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Markets and Securities Regulation Department
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex

Roxas Boulevard, Metro Manila Philippines

Attention: HON. VICENTE GRACIANO P. FELIZMENIO, JR.

Direclor

MS. TRIXIE POSADAS
Analyst

Re: ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

2018 Annual General Meeting of Stockholders:
Amended Definitive Information Statement

Gentlemen:

We write on

behalf of our client, ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS

INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the “Company”).

In compliance with the directive of this Honorable Commission in its letter dated

17 May 2018, which we received via fax on 22 May 2018, the Company hereby submits
an Amended Definitive Information Statement and Management Report incorporating

the information requested in said letter.

Aside from the said information which are underscored for easy reference, the
Amended Definitive Information Statement and Management Report are identical with
the Definitive Information Statement and Management Report filed on 17 May 2018 in
all material respects.



e

We trust that you will find the same in order, and respectfully request that the
Company be given clearance to distribute the said Amended Definitive Information
Statement and Management Report as soon as possible.

Very truly yours,

TR0 ASFIl Amensiad DIS cover leller (ZAMAY1 5} sppsa



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

Please be informed that the Annua! General Meeting of the Stockholders of ALLIANCE
SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the “Company’) wif be held on July 4, 2018
(Wednesday)' at 2:30 p.m. (the “Annual General Mesting” or the “Meeting”). The venue of
the Meating will be at the PSE Auditorium, Grourid Fioor, Philippine Stock Excharige Cefitra,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila. The order of business thereat will
be as follows:

Call to order;

Proof of the required notice of the meeting:
Certification of quorum; :
Reading and approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of
Stockholders held on June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders
held on September 7, 2017;

Presentation of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for
the Year Ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon;

Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
Officers for the corporate year 2017-2018; '

Appointment of Independent External Auditors;

Election of Directors, including Independent Directors;

Other matters.
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There will be an OPEN FORUM before the approval of the Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 is submitted o the vote of the
shareholders. Questions will likewise be entertained for other items in the agenda as
appropriate and consistent with orderly proceedings.

A brief statement of the rationale and explanation for each Agenda item which requires
shareholders’ approval is contained in Annex *A” of this Notice. The Information Statement
accompanying this Notice contains more detail regarding the rationale and explanation for
each of such Agenda items.

For the purpose of the meeting, only stockholders of recard at the close of business on April
11, 2018 will be entitied to this Notice, and {o vote at the Meeling. Please bring some form of
identification, such as passport, driver's iicense, of company [D. in order to facilitate
registration which will start at 1:00 p.m. on July 4, 2018.

Any stockholder who cannot attend the Meeting in person and desires to be represented
thereat is requested to date and sign the attached proxy form, and mail it back using the
retumn envelope. The proxy should be mailed in time so as to be received by the Office of the
Assistant Corporate Secretary at the Company's principal office on or befare June 22,
2018, which is the deadline for submission of proxies. Proxy validation will commence on
June 26, 2018° at 10:00 a.m. at the principal office of the Company.

' At the Meeting of the Company’'s Board of Directors on 10 May 2018, the Board approved the
postponement of the Meeting originally scheduled on 15 June 2018, the date provided in the
Company's By-Laws, to 4 July 2018. This is due to the possible declaration of 15 June 2018 as a
national holiday in observance of Eidul Fitr, which is expected to fall on said date.

* In view of the'postponement of the Meeting to 4 July 2018, the Board of Directors also approved the
postponement of the proxy deadline from 5 June 2018 to 22 June 2018, and the proxy validation from
1?ﬁ.é'une 2018 to 29 June 2018.

id.



Copies of the Minutes of previous stockholders’ meetings are available on the Company's

website (http://allianceselectfoods.co
hours at the office of the Corporation.

m/) and will be available for examination during office
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ANNEX “A”

- EXPLANATION AND RATIONALE
For each item on the Agenda of the
2018 Annual General Stockholders’ Meeting of
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
requiring the vote of stockholders

AGENDA

Call to Order _ o

The Chairman of the Meeting will formally open the 2018 Annual General
Stockholders’ Meeting. The Directors and Officers of the Company who are present
thereat will be introduced.

Proof of Required Notice of the Meeting

The Corporate Secretary will certify that copies of this Notice and the Information
Statement have been duly sent to stockholders as of record date of Aprii 11, 2018
wathm the periods prescribed by the applicable rules.

Certification of Quorum
The Corporate Secretary will attest whether a quorum is present for the meeting.

Reading of the Minutes of the 2017 Annuat General Stockholders’ Meeting held
on June 15, 2017, and the Special Mesting of Stockholders held on September
7,2017, and Actlon Thereon '

Shareholders may examine the Minutes of the said stockholders’ meeting in
accordance with Sec. 74 of the Corporation Code. The Minutes are available on the
Company's website.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a reselution
approving the minutes of the 2017 Annual General Meeting of Stockholders heid on
June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017.

Presentation of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the
Year ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon

A summary of the Annual Report and the financial statements of the Company,
audited by the Company’s independent extemal auditors, Reyes Tacandong & Co.,
for the year ended December 31, 2017 will be presented. Copies of the sald Annual
Report with the said financial statements are enclosad with the Information
Statement, and are also available on the Company’s website.

There will be an OPEN FORUM after the presentstion. A shareholder, upon
identifying himself or herself, may raise questions that are relevant or express an
appropriate comment.

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution
approving the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017.



Ratification and Approval of the Acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
Officers for the Corporate Year 2017-2018

Actions by the Board of Directors and by the Officers for the corporate year 2017-
2018 are summarized in the Information Statement,

Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution
ratifying and approving the acts of the Board of Directors and Officers.

7. Appointment of Independert Extarnal Auditors
- The Audit Committee endorsed the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the

Company’s independent external auditors for the year 2018. The Board of Directors
approved the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., subject to approval by the
stockholders.
Resolution to be adopted: Shareholders will vote on a resolution for the
appointment of said auditing fim as independent extemal auditor of the Company for
2017.

8. Elaction of Directors, including Indepandent Direclors
The Final List of Candidates for election as directors, as prepared by the
Nominations Committee in accordance with the Company's By-Laws and Manual on
Corporate Governance, will be presented to the shareholders, and the election of
directors will be held.

9. Other Matters
Matters that are relevant to and appropriate for the annual stockholders’ meeting may
be taken up. No resolution, other than the resolutions explained in the Notice and the
Information Statement, wili be submitted for voting by the shareholders.

10. Adjourmnment

CZ34 2013 ASFII AEM - et dnd Ageincis ADIS (ZIMAYE) ariosa



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[X] Amended Definitive Information Statement N

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{formerly Alliance Tuna International, inc.)
a Metro Manila, Philippines :
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
4. SEC Identification Number €5200319138
5. BIR Tax ldentification Code 227-409-243-000
B, Unit 1208, East Tower, Phliippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila 1605 .
Address of principal office Postal Code
7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 635-5241 to 44
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
Date : July 4, 2018 |
Time : 2:30 p.m.
Place : PSE Auditorium, Ground Floor, Phillppine Stock
Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Paslg
City, Metro Maniia '
9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given fo
security holders: May 30, 2018, and in no case later than June 1 3, 2018
10.  In case of Proxy Solicitations:
Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: Alliance Select Foods
International, Inc.
Address : Unit 1206, East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila
1605
SEC Form 17-1S 1

December 2003



Telephone No. : (632) 635-5241 to 44

11.  Securities registéred pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8
of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only
to corporate registrants):

Number of Shares of
Common Stock Issued: 2,499,712,463 {as_of April 30, 2018)

Amount of Debt Outstanding: $40.018.45 (as of March 31, 2018)

12, Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yesx _ No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. —- Common Shares

PART 1

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

The Annual General Meeting of the Stockholders of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc.
(the “Company”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines
with address at Unit 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Oriigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila, will be held on July 4, 2018 (Wednesday)' at 2:30
p.m. (the “Annual General Meeting"” or the “Meeting”). The venue of the meeting will be at
the PSE Auditorium, Ground Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange Centrs, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila.

The Agenda of the Meeting, as indicated in the accompanying Notice of Annual
General Meeting, is as follows:;

Call to order;

Proof of the required notice of the meeting:

Certification of quorumn;

Reading and approval of the Minutes of the 2017 Annual Stockholders’
Mesting held on June 15, 2017, and the Special Meeting of Stockholders held
on September 7, 2017;

PN

' At the Meeting of the Company's Board of Directors on 10 May 2018, the Board approved the
postponement of the Meeting originally scheduled on 15 June 2018, the date provided in the
Company’s By-Laws, to 4 July 2018. This is due to the possible declaration of 15 June 2018 as a
national holiday in observance of Eidul Fitr, which is expected to fall on said date.

SEC Form 17-I8 2
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Presentation of the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the

Year Ended December 31, 2017 and Action Thereon;

Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Executive
. Officers;

Appointment of Independent Extemal Auditors;

Election of Directors, including independent Directors:;

Other matters.

LEN @ o

There will be an OPEN FORUM before the approval of the Management Report and Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 is submitted to the vote of the
shareholders. Questions will likewise be entertained for other items in the agenda as
appropriate and consistent with orderly proceedings. '

The Management Report with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 is attached to this Information Statement. The Management Report
includes the Company’s information and results as of March 31, 2018. The 2017 Annua}
Repot under SEC Form 17-A is available on the Company's website
(http://allianceselectfoods.com/). The Company’s unaudited interim financial statements for
the first quarter of 2018 or the period ended March 31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q is attached
to this information Statement and is also available on the Company’s website. Upon written
request of a shareholder, the Company shall fumish such shareholder with a copy of the
said Annual Report as filed with the SEC, free of charge. The contact details for obtaining
such copy are on Page 28 of this Information Statement.

For the purpose of the Meeting, only stockholders of record at the close of business on
April 11, 2018 will be entitied to vote. Stockholders are requested to bring some form of
identification such as passport, drivers license, or compeny LD. in order to facilitate
registration, which will start at 1:00 p.m.

Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting may accomplish the attached Proxy Form.
Please indicate your vote (Yes, No, Abstain) for each item in the attached form, and submit
the same on or before June 22, 2018 to the Office of the Assistant Corporate Secretary at
the Company's principal office. '

Proxies will be validated by a special committee consisting of the Company’s Corporate

Secretary, Cornpliance Officer, and a representative of the Company's stock transfer agent,

Stack Transfer Service, Inc. ("STSI"). The special committes will validate the proxies on
June 29, 2018,” 10:00 a.m. at the Company's principal office. '

Vatlidated proxies will be tabulated at the Meeting by STSI, and will be voted as indicated by
the shareholder in the proxy, and in accordance with applicable rules.

Voting procedures are contained in Item 19 (Page 27) of this information Statement and will
be stated at the start of the Meeting. Cumulative voting is allowed; please refer to Item 4
(Page 5) and ltem 19 (Page 27) for an explanation of cumulative voting,

Further information and explanation regarding specific agenda items, where appropriate, are
contained in various sections of this Information Statement. This Information Statement
constitutes notice of the resolutions to be adopted at the Meeting.

2 In view of the postponement of the Meeting to 4 July 2018, the Board of Directors also approved the
postponement of the proxy deadline from 5 June 2018 to 22 June 2018, and the proxy validation from
8 June 2018 to 29 June 2018.
3 -

Ibid.
SEC Form 17-8 3
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item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

There are no corporate matters or action to be taken during the Meeting that will éntitle a
stockholder to a Right of Appraisal as provided in Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines (Batas Pambansa [National Law] No. 68).

For the information of stockholders, any stockholder of the Company shall have a right to
dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares in the following instances, as
provided in the Corporation Code of the Philippines:

1. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence (Section 81);

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of
all or substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

3. In case of merger or consolidation (Section 81); and

4, In case of investments in another corporation, business or purpose (Section 42).

The Corporation Code of the Philippines (at Section 82) provides that the appraisal right
may be exercised by any stockholder who shali have voted against the proposed corporate
action, by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty (30) days after the date
on which the vote was taken, for payment of the fair value of his shares: provided, that -
failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal
right. A stockholder must have voted against the proposed corporate action in order to avail
himself of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected,
the corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of his certificate(s) of stock
representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior fo the date on which the
vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate
action.

if within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair
value of the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons,
one of whom shall be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation and the third by
the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority of appraisers shall be final, and their
award shall be paid by the corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made; -
provided, that no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the
corporation has unrestricted retained eamings in its books to cover such payment; and
provided, further, that upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the
stockholder shalf forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

ltem 3, interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director, nominee for efection as director, associate of the nominee or executive officer
of the Company at any time since the beginning of the iast fiscal year, has any substantial
interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any of the matters o be
acted upon in the Meeting, other than election to office. :

SEC Forrn 17-18 4
December 2003
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At the time of the filing of this Information Statement, the Company has not been informed
by any incumbent director in writing of an intention to oppose any action to be taken at the
Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof
As of April 30, 2018, there are 2,499,712,463 outstanding and issued common shares of the
Company, exclusive of 287,537 treasury shares. The Company does not have any class of
shares other than common shares.

All stockholders of record as of April 11, 2018 are entitlied to notice and to vote at the
Meeting.

A stockholder entitled to vote at the Meeting shall have the right to vote in person or by
proxy.

Cumulative voting may be adopted in the election of directors as aliowed by the Comporation
Code of the Philippines. On this basis, each registered stockholder as of April 11, 2018 may
vote the number of shares registered in his name for each of the directors to be elected; or
he may multiply the number of shares registered in his name by the number of directors to
be elected, and cast the total of such votes for one (1) director. A stockholder may also
distribute his votes among some or all of the directors to be elected.

Voting Procedures are stated in item 19 (Page 27) of this Information Statement.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, the following stackholders own more than
five percent (5%) of the Company's outstanding capital stock as of April 30, 2018;

_ Name, Address of Name of Beneficlal
Title of Record Owner, and Owner and Citizenshi Number of | % of
Class Retationship Relationship with P| Shares Held | Class
With Issuer Record Owner
Common | PDC Nominee Strongoak, inc. Filipino |1,382,755,864[65.32%
Corporation
{Please see Note 2)
Beneficlal Owner:
Strongoak, Inc. Proxy Named:
37F Enterprise Tower | (Please see Note 1)
1, Ayala Avenue,
Makati City
Stockholder
Please see Note 2.
SEC Form 1748 5
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Common | PCD Nominee See Note 3 below. Filipino | 628,260,323 125.17%
Corporation
37/F Tower |, The
Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Center,
Makati City
Common | Harvest All Harvest All Investment| Hong Kong| 177,261,165 |7.00%
Investment Ltd., Ltd.
4304-43/F China (Same as Record
Resources Bldg. 26 Owner)
Harbeour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong Proxy Named:
(Please see Note 1)
Stockholdar
Common | Victory Fund Ltd., Victory Fund Ltd. |Hong Kong| 138,474,015 |5.54%
30 Biderford Road, {Same as Record
#17-02 Thongsia Owner)
Building, Singapore
Proxy Named:
Stockholdsr (Please see Note 1)
TOTAL 2,327.760,367 193.12%

1

proxies is on June 22, 2018,

The proxies naming the natural persons authorized to vote the shares of the
foregoing record owners for the Meetin

g have not yet been received by the
Company. The deadiine set by the Bo

ard of Directors for the submission of

Mr. Antonio C. Pacis, Mr. George E. SyCip, Ms. Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz

currently represent Strongoak in the Board of Directors of the Company.

PCD Nominee Corporation (‘PCD Nomineg”) is a wholly-
Philippine Depository & Trust Corp., the depository infras
fixed income markets in the Philippines. PCD Nomine
organized by the major institutions actively participating
markets to implement an automated book-
transaction in the Philippines. PCD Nomi
shares in the books of the Company's tra

owned subsidiary of the
tructure for equities and
e i8 a private company
in the Philippine capital
entry system of handiing securities
nee is the registered owner of the
nsfer agent. The beneficial owners of

such shares are PCD Nominee's participants who hold the shares on their own

behalf or in behaif of their clients. The benefic
Nominee’s participants who hold the shares

their clients.

The 629,269,323 shares

owned by Filipinos, excl
Strongoak, Inc., and h
beneficially own 93,989

—— e e e U

Nominee.

SEC Form 17-5
December 2003

ial owners of such shares are PCD
on their own behalf or in behalf of

shown above as of April 30, 2018 are shares beneficially
usive of the 1,382,755,864 shares beneficially owned by
eld through PCD Nominee. Foreigners or non-Filipinos
961 shares or 3.78% of the Company through PCD



Except as stated above, the Company has no knowledge of any person or any group who,
directly or indirectly, is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company's outstanding
shares or who has a voting power, voting trust or any similar agreement with respect to
shares comprising more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Other than
Strongoak, Inc., the Company is not informed of any other participanis under the -PCD
Nominee account who own more than 5% of the voting securities of the Company as of

April 30, 2018.

Security ownership of Directors, Officers and Management

Security Ownership of Directors and Officers

To the best knowledge of the Company, the beneficial ownership of the Company’s directors
and officers as of April 30, 2018 is as foliows:

Title of Name of Amount and Citizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficlal
Ownership

Antonio C. Pacis 400 _

Common Chairman (Direct) Filipino 0.00%
George E. SyCip, 2,314,954 : o

Common Vice Chairman (Direct) American 0.09%
Raymond K.H. See,

Common | Director, President 15,521 Fifipino 0.00%
and CEQ {Direct)

Common | Marle Grace T. Vera 400 Filipino 0.00%
Cruz, (Direct)
Direcfor
Erwin M. Elechicon, 200 _

Common | ;. dependent Director (Direct) Filipino 0.00%
Joseph Peter Y.

Common | Roxas 2'(123‘}:&230 Filipino 0.08%
Director
Dobbin A. Tan e

Common . 10,000 Filipino 0.00%
independent Director (Director)
Barbara Anne C.

Common | Migallos 0 Filipino 0.00%
Corporate Secretary
Lisa Angela Y.
Dejadina
Senior Vice President - .

Common Business Development 0 Filipino 0.00%
and Operational
Excellsnce

SEC Form 1718 7
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Ma. Kristina P.

Ambrocio

Vice President - Head

of Legal, Compliance

Officer and Assistant

Corporate Secretary
TOTAL 4,682,475 0.17%

Common 0 Filipino 0.00%

Voting Trust Holders/Changes in Control

The Company has no knowledge of any voting trust holders of 5% or more of the
Company’s stock, or of any arrangements that may result in a change of control of the
Company.

The Company conducted a stock rights offering in 2015 consisting of 1,000,000,000
common shares at a price of P1.00 per share by way of pre-emptive rights offering
exclusively to shareholders of the Company as of August 7, 2015, at the proportion of ane
stock rights share for every one and one-half common shares of the Company. The stock
rights offering resulted in a change of control of the Company. '

Strongoak, Inc. (“Strongoak”), which previously owned 430,286,226 shares, equivalent fo
28.69% of the outstanding capital stock prior {o the stock rights offering, subscribed to an
additional 952,479,638 common shares under the said stock rights offering for a total
subscription price of P952,479,638.00. Strongoak now owns 1,382,765,864 shares,
equivalent to 55.32% of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. Prior to the stock
rights offering, no single shareholder had control of or more than 50% of the voting power in
the Company.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers
The names of the incumbent directors of the Company, their respective ages, citizenship,
period of service, directorships in other companies and positions held for the last five (5)

years are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Director Nationality Position Age : Period of
Service

(as of April 30,
2018)

Antonio C. Pacis Filipino Chairman 77 Jyears and 4
months
(First elected on
Decembker B,
2014)

George E. American Vice Chairman 61 13 years and 2
SyCip months
(First elected on
February 12,
20085)

SEC Form 17418 8
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Raymond K. H.
See

Filipino

Director,
President, and
CEO

50

3 years and 4
months
(First elected on
December 8,
2014)

Erwin M.
Elechicon

Filipino

independent
Director

58

3 years and 10
months
(First elected on
June 18, 2014)

Marie Grace T,
Vera Cruz

Filipino

Director

37

3 years and 10
months
(First elected on
June 16, 2014)

Joseph Peter Y.
Roxas

Filipino |

Director

56

2yearsand 2
months
(First elected on
March 1, 2018)

Dobbin A. Tan

Filipino

Independent
Director

2 yearsand 2
months
(First elected on
March 1, 2018)

ANTONIO C. PACIS - 77, Filipino citizen: Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pacis obtained his law degree from the Ateneo Law School in 1965
and his masteral iaw degree from the Harvard Law School in 1867,

He is on the Board of Directors of publicly listed company BDO Unibank,
Inc., OCLP Holdings Inc., Paluwagan Ng Bayan Savings Bank,
Armstrong Pacific Co., Inc., Legisforum, inc., Technology Investment
Co., inc. and Central Colleges of The Philippines.

He is Chairman of the Board of Directors at Asian Silver Estate, Inc.,
International Social Service Philippines, Inc., Amigo Holdings, Inc., Asian
Waterfront Holdings, Inc., Mantle Holdings, Inc., and Corporate Secretary
for Armstrong Securities, inc., EBC Strategic Holdings Corp., and
Paluwagan Ng Bayan Savings Bank. _

Mr. Pacis has been practicing law since 1985 and confinues to practice at
Pacis and Reyes Law Office and was a professor of [aw at the Ateneo
Law School.

GEORGE E. SYCIP - 81, American citizen; Vice-Chairman

Mr. Sycip received his BA ‘With Distinction' in International
Relations/Economics from Stanford University and his Master in Business
Administration Degree from the Harvard Business School

Mr. Sycip is the Director and Principal of Galaxaco China Group, a
project doing business in China, and Halanna Manegement estate
investment and development and consultancy firm serving American,
European and Asian clients' estate investment and development
company. Mr. Sycip currently serves on the Boards or Advigsory Boards of
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several companies and institutions. In Asia, these include Macro Asia
Corp., Beneficial-PNB Life insurance, Medtecs Corporation, and Cityland
Development Corporation. In the U.S., he is on the Board of the Bank of
the Orient, Arasor Intemational, the California Asia Business Council, the
International Institute for Rural Reconstruction, Give2Asia, and Stanford
University’s Institute for International Studies.

RAYMOND K. H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; Director, President & CEQ

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in
B.S. Industrial Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical
Engineering.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation. He rose from the ranks in his 24
year stay in the said company. Mr. See was the Senior Vice-President for
Operation of the Company before being appointed as President & CEO
of the Company on December 8, 2014.

MARIE GRACE T. VERA CRUZ - 37, Filipino citizen; Director

Ms. Vera Cruz holds an MBA from London Business Schoo! and a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Economics from the University of the
Philippines, where she graduated Magna cum Laude.

Ms. Vera Cruz is the Managing Director of Seawood Resources, Inc., an
investment company based in the Philippines. She is also the President
of Strongoak, inc, Prior to Seawood and Strongoak, Ms. Vera Cruz was a
consultant at McKinsey & Co.

ERWIN M. ELECHICON - 58, Filipino citizen; Independent Dirsctor

Mr. Elechicon holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics, cum lauds,
from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1979. He attended courses in
Finance at the Columbia Business Schoo!; and in Marketing at Kellogg
School of Management.

Mr. Elechicon was with the Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for over
26 years. He has had focal and regional responsibilies at P&G across
Asia, and has lived in Singapore, Mumbai, Kuala Lumpur and Ho Chi
Minh City as well as Manila. He was also President and General Manager
of two Jolibee Foods Corporation subsidiaries, Greenwich Pizza
Company and Chowking. He was co-founder and Chairman of Assurant
BPO Solutions, Inc., a Makati-based company providing business and
knowledge process outsourcing and managed services solutions to a
broad range of clients. He was also a director of U-Bix Corporation, one
of the largest integrated office systems and service providers in the
Philippines. He was Director of Petronas Dagangan Berhad, Malaysia
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several companies and institutions. In Asia, these include Macro Asia
Corp., Beneficial-PNB Life Insurance, Medtecs Corporation, and Cityland
Davelopment Corporation. In the U.S., he is on the Roard of the Bank of
the Orient, Arasor Intemational, the Califonia Asia Business Council, the
International Institute for Rural Retonstruction, Give2Asia, and Stanford
University’s Institute for Intemational Studies.

RAYMOND K. H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; Director, President & CEOQ

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in
B.S. Industrial Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical
Engineering.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation. He rose from the ranks in his 24
year stay in the said company. Mr. See was the Senior Vice-President for
Operation of the Company before being appointed as President & CEO of
the Company on December 8, 2014, = -

MARIE GRACE T. VERA CRUZ - 37, Filipino citizen; Director

Ms. Vera Cruz holds an MBA from London - Business Schoo! and a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Economics from the University of the
Phirip_pines, where she graduated Magna cum Laude.

Ms. Vera Cruz is the Managing Director of Seawood Resources, Inc., an
investment company based in the Philippines. She is also the President
of Strongoak, Inc. Prior to Seawood and Strongoak, Ms. Vera Cruz was a
consultant at McKinsey & Co. '

ERWIN M. ELECHICON - 58, Fili_pino citizen; Independent Director

Mr. Elechicon holds a Bacheior of Arts Degree in Economics, cum laude,
from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1979. He attended courses in
Finance at the Columbia Business Schoof; and in Marketing at Kellogg
School of Management. o

Mr. Elechicon was with the Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for over
26 years. He has had local and regional responsibilities at P&G across
Asia, and has lived in Singapore, Mumbai, Kuala Lumpur and Ho Chi
Minh City as well as Manila. He was also Presidsnt and General Manager
of two Jollibee Foods Corporation stbsidiaries, Greenwich Piza
Company and Chowking. He was co-founder and Chairman of Assurant
BPO Solutions, Inc., a ‘Makati-based company providing business and
knowledge process outsourcing and managed seivices solutions to a
broad range of clients. He was also a director of U-Bix Corporation, one
of the largest integrated office systerns and service providers in the
Philippines. He was Director of Petronas Dagangan Berhad, Malaysia
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JOSEPH PETER Y. ROXAS - 56, Filipino citizen; Director

Mr. Roxas graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1983 with a
Bachelor's degree in Economics. He also has MBA units from the Ateneo
de Manila University Graduate School.

Mr. Roxas is President of Eagle Equities, Inc. since 1996, He is also

- presently a Director of DFNN, inc., a listed company in the Philippine
Stock Exchange, and of Kimgquan Trading Corporation, a privately held
company. He is also a Director of the Association of Securities Analysts
of the Philippines since 2000. Mr. Roxas was with R. Coyuito Securities
as Assistant Vice President for Research from 1993 to 1995, and
Investment Officer from 1987 to 1992.

DOBBIN A. TAN - '54, Fitipino citizen; Independent Director

Mr. Tan graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1985 with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Management Engineering. He obtained his
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Chicago, Booth School of Business in 2013. Mr. Tan also aftended a
Management Development Program of the Asian Insfitute of
Management in 1990, and a Strategic Business Economics Program of
the University of Asia and the Pacific in 2001.

Mr. Tan is presently Chief Executive Officer of New Sunlife Ventures, Inc.
He was Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer of Information
Gateway from 2002 to 2012. Mr. Tan also served as Vice President for
Marketing of Dutch Boy Philippines from 2000 to 2002, President of
Informatics Computer College from 1997 to 2000, Assistant Vice
President for Marketing of Basic Holdings from 1994 to 1997, Operations
Manager of DC Restaurant Management Systems from 1990 to 1894,
and Senior Financial Analyst/ Corporate Planning Manager for San
Miguel Corporation from 1985 to 1990.

Process and Criteria for Selection of Nomineeés for Directors
The Board of Directors set May 2, 2018 as the deadline for the submission of nominations {o
the Board of Directors. The deadline was duly announced and disclosed on Aprit 17, 2018.

The Nominations Committee composed of Mr. Raymond KH. See, Mr. Erwin M. Elechicon
and Mr. Joseph Peter Y. Roxas screened the nominees for election to the Board of Directors
in accordance with the Company's Revised Manual on Corporate Governance. The
Commitlee assessed the candidates background, educational quélifications, work
experience, expertise and stature as would enable them to effectively participate in the
deliberations of the Board. " '

in the case of the independent directors, the Committee reviewed their business
relationships and activities to ensure that they have all the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications for independent directors as set forth in the Company's Manual of

Corporate Govemance, the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC"), and the SRC Implementing
Rules and Regulations.
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Nominees for Election at Annusa! General Meeting of Stockholders on June 28, 2017

The Nominations Commitiee screened the nominees o determine whether they have all of
the qualifications and none of the disqualifications for election to the Company’s Board of
Directors, and prepared the Final List of Candidates for election to the Board of Directors at
the Annual Stockhoiders’ meeting.

The Final List of Candidates is as follows:

Nominee; for Regular Director

Antonio C. Pacis

Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz
Raymond K.H. See
Joseph Peter Y. Roxas
Gabriel A. Dee

Nominees for Independent Directors

1. Erwin M. Elechicon
2. Dobbin A. Tan

kol

Al nominees with the exception of Mr. Gabriel A, Dee are incumbent directors. The
qualifications of the incumbent directors are on Pages 8 to 11 of this information Statement.
The Certificates of Qualification of Indepsndent Directors Messrs. Erwin M. Elechicon. and
Dobbin A. Tan will be submitted with the Definitive Information Statement.

The qualifications and background information of Mr. Gabriel A, Des is as follows:

GABRIEL A. DEE. - 53, Filipino citizen; Nominee for Director.
Academic Background

Mr. Dee graduated from the University of the Philippines in 1984 with a
Bachelor's degree in History, and obtained his law degree in 1988 from

the same university. Mr. Dee also has MBA units from the Ateneo de
Manila Graduate School of Business.

Professional Background/ Experience

Mr. Dee has been practicing law since 1988, and has been Senior
Partner of Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos Law Offices since 2006. Mr.
Dee is also Director and Corporate Secretary of various corporations,
including listed company including listed companies MJC investments
Corporation (Director) and Maeay Holdings, Inc. {Corporate Secretary),
Mr. Dee is also a professorial lecturer on Corporation Law for the
University of the Philippines College of Law and Lyceum College of Law,
and has been a resource person/ speaker on various seminars on the
topics of initial public offerings, listings and estate planning.

As of the date of filing of this Information Statement, no director has resigned or declined to
stand for re-election fo the Board of Directors due to disagreement on any matter.
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Executive Officers

The following persons are the present executive officers of the Company:

Name of Officer Nationality Position | Age Period of
Service
3yearsand 3
o | President and Chief months
Raymond K.H. See Filipino Executive Officer 50 éﬁxrs‘tagée;tg:r
8, 2014)
Jyear 8
months
Morbara Anne C. Filpino | Corporate Secretary 63 | (First elected
9 on July 6,
2015)
3 years and 4
Senior Vice President - “months
Lisa Angela Y. Filinino Business Development 35 (First elected
Dejadina P and Operational on
Excellence 17 Novemnber
2014)
Vice President — Legal, 2 yﬁ;ﬁtﬁgd 5
Ma. Kristina P. —_ Compliance Officer, and . '
Ambrotio Fillpino | £ ssistant Gorporate 38| (First e'egted
Secretary on QOctober
19, 2015)

RAYMOND K.H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; President & CEO.

Academic Background

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in

B.S. Industrial
Engineering.

Professional Background/ Experience

Management Engineering, minor

in  Mechanicat

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation who rose from the ranks in his 24
year stay in the said company. Mr. See was the Senior Vige-President for
Operation of the Company before being appointed as President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company on December 8, 2014.

BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS - 63, Filipino citizen; Corporate

Secretary.

Ms. Migallos graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines,
with a Bachelor of Arts degree, and finished her Bachelor of Laws degree
as cum laude (salutatorian) also at the University af the Philippines. She

placed third in the 19879 Philippine Bar Examination.
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Ms. Migallos was elected as Corporate Secretary of the Company on July
6, 2015. She is Director and Corporate Secretary of Philex Mining
Gorporation, Corporate Secretary of Philex Petroleum Corporation, and
Corporate Secretary of Nickel Asia Corporation and Sitangan Mindanao
Mining Co., inc. She is the Managing Pariner of the Migallos & Luna Law
Offices. Ms. Migallos is also a Director of Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation and
Philippine Resins Industries, and Corporate Secretary of Eastem
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. She is a professonial tecturer in
Corporations Law, Insurance, Securities Regulation and Credit
Transactions at the De La Salle University College of Law, where she
heads the Mercantile and Taxation Law Department. She was a Senior
Pariner of Roco Kapunan Migallos and Luna Law Offices from 1988 fo
2008,

LISA ANGELA Y. DEJADINA. - 35, Filipino citizen; Senior Vice
President for Business Development and Operational Excellence.

Academic Background

Ms. Dejadina has a degree in B.S. Industiial Enginééring from the
University of the Philippines where she graduated in 2005.

Professional Background/ Experience

Before joining the Company, Ms. Dejadina worked at Pilipinas Shelt
Petroleum Corporation where she covered various roles contributing to
ten years solid work experience in the petroleum industry in the areas of
fuel depot operations, Heaith, Safety, Security and Envirenment (HSSE)
management, and business support functions (business development,
logistics, and ieaming & development), "

MA. KRISTINA P. AMBROCIO. ~ 38, Filipino citizen; Vice President —
Legal, Compliance Officer, and Assistant Corporate Secretary.

Academic Background

Ms. Ambrocio graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 2001
with a major. in Philosophy, and minor in Humarnities. She obtained her
law degree in 2005 from the University of the Philippines.

Professional Background/ Experience

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ambrocio was Corporate Counsel and
Assistant Corporate Secretary of Chevron Philippines, Inc.

Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the business since the
Company cansiders the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental to the overall
success of the Company's performance.
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Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or -
affinity among any of the directors, executive officers and persons nominated or chosen to
become directors or executive officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

None of the directors, nominees for election as a director, executive officers or control
persons of the Company have been involved in any legal proceeding, inciuding without
limitation being the subject of any:

a. bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a
general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two
{2) years prior to that time;

b. cenviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

c. order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise fimiting his involvement in any type of
business, securities commodities or banking activities; and |

d. order or judgment of a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil
action), the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign
Exchange or other organized trading market or self-regulatory organization finding
him/her to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation,

for the past five (5) years up to date of this Preliminary Information Statement, that is
material to the evaluation of ability or integrity to hold the relevant positions in the Company.

The pending and material legal proceedings involving the Company, and the directors,
executive officers or control persons of the Company in their respective capacities as such,
and the nominees for election as a director, are as follows:

1. Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, and Bondeast Private
Limited represented by Chiew Chee Chong vs. Annsley B. Bangkas and George E.
Sycip, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-158-00033 (XV-14-INV-14B-00503-OCP-Pasig City);
and Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, and Bondeast Private
Limited represented by Chiew Chee Chong vs. George E. Sycip, Alvin Y. Dee,
Jonathan Y. Dee, and Ibarra A. Malonzo, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-158-00034 (Xv-14-
INV-14C-00974-OCP-Pasig City)

Consolidated Criminal Case Nos. M-PSG-18-00148-CR and M-P$G-18-00149-CR -
(MeTC Br. 72, Paslg City) |

On February 13, 2014, shareholders Harvest All Investment Limited, Victary Fund Limited, -
and Bondeast Private Limited (“Harvest All et al) filed a criminal complaint with the Office of
the City Prosecutor of Pasig City against the Company’s then Chairman, and cument Vice
Chairman, Mr. George E. Sycip, and then Assistant Corporate Secretary Annsley B.
Bangkas for allegedly denying its right to inspect company records in violation of the
pertinent provisions of the Corporation Code. Harvest All et al filed the complaint despite
being informed that its request to inspect company records was not being denied, and that
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action thereon was merely being deferred until the Board has determined the propriety of
allowing the inspection.

On March 11, 2014, Harvest All et al filed another complaint with the Office of the Pasig City
Prosecutor, this time against Mr. Sycip and then Director, and current Chairman, Mr.
Jonathan Y. Dee, and then Directors Messrs. Alvin Dee and Ibarra A. Malonzo again for
alleged violations of the Corporate Code provisions on the right to inspect company records.
The complaint was filed despite a resolution by the Board to refer the matter to independent
counsel to determine whether the request was made in good faith and for a legitimate
purpose consistent with the applicable provisions of the Corporation Code.

The said complaints were consolidated and transferred to the Department of Justice —
Manila (“DOJ"). in a Resolution dated July 28, 2015, the DOJ dismissed the consolidated
complaints. The DOJ held that Messrs. Sycip, Alvin and Jonathan Dee, and Malonzo, and
Ms. Bangkas did not deny Harvest All et al's request to inspect company records. The DOJ
further held that the delays in acting on the request were reaspnable and nat unlawful, and
that the referral of the matter to independent counsel was not tantamount to a denial of the
request to inspect company records. On September 1, 2015, Harvest All et al. filed a Motion
for Reconsideration which was subsequently denied. Harvest All et al. then filed a Petition

for Review dated August 30, 2016 before the Department of Justice.

In a Resolution dated December 4, 201 7, finding probable cause to indict the respondents
for the crime of violation of Sections 74 and 75, in relation to Sec. 144 of the Corporation
Code and directing the Prosecutor General to file the Informations.

On January 11, 2018, Informations for the 1st and 2nd Inspection cases were filed before
the MTC of Pasig and were raffled to MTC Br. 72.

On January 18, 2018, Respondent Sycip filed a Manifestation to ask the judge to make a
judicial determination of probable cause.

MTC 72 issued an Order dated February 23, 2018 consolidating the 1st and 2nd inspections
criminal cases, and ruled that there is suffiGient probable cause for the issuance of warrants
of arrest against the accused. Accused Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Deg, and Ansley Bangkas
filed a motion for reconsideration to the Order dated February 23, 2018 of the MTC. The said

mofions are pending resolution.

2. Alliance Select Foods Intermational, Inc., represented in this derivative suit by
Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private Limited, and
Hedy §.C. Chua v. George E. Sycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee, ibarra A, Malonzo,
Joanna Y. Dee-Laure, Teresita Ladanga, and Grace Dogillo. :

Commercial Case No. 14-220
(RTC Br. 154, Pasig City)

On May 27, 2014, shareholders Harvest Al Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited,
Bondeast Private Limited, and Hedy S.C. Chua filed a derivative suit purportedly on behalf of
of the Company against the Company's director, Mr. George E. Sycip, and its former
directors Messrs. Jonathan Dee, Alvin Y. Dee and lbama Malonzo, and certain senior
executives of the Company at that time. The derivative sut prayed, among others, for the
appointment of an interim management committee, and to compel an accounting and retum
of Company funds allegedly diverted to comporations controlled by the family of respondenis
Messrs. Jonathan and Alvin Dee. On 03 February 2015, the respondents filed a motion
praying to declare the application of an interim management commitiee moot and academic
in view of the change in the composition of the Company's Board of Directors ‘and
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management. The Complainants filed a Motion to Inhibit on February 28, 2015, which was
granted by the Pasig RTC Branch 159 on January 5, 2016. The case was eventually re-
raffled to Pasig RTC Branch 154 on February 1, 2016. Several motions were filed in this

case and are all still pending resolution by the said Pasig RTG.

Mr. Sycip filed a Petition for Certiorari before the Court of Appeals contending that RTC
Branch 159 committed grave abuse of discretion in inhibiting from the case, In its Decision
dated April 7, 2017, the Court of Appeals granted Mr. Sycip's Petition for Certiorari and
setting aside the inhibition of Judge Lingan of RTC 159 and directing the latter to proceed
with the hearing of the case. Complainants Hedy Yap Chua et al., filed a Motion for
Reconsideration on the Decision of the Court of Appeals dated April 7, 2017. Mr. Sycip filed
his Opposition to the said motion for reconsideration. The Motion for Reconsideration is stilt
pending resolution, '

3 Hedy §.C. Yap-Chua and Albert Hong Hin Kay v. George E. Syclp, Jonathan Y.
Dee, Ibarra A. Malonzo, and Avelino M. Sebastian, Jr.

Commercial Case No. 14-219
(RTC Br. 161, Pasig City)

On May 12, 2014, Ms. Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua and Mr. Albert Hong Hin Kay filed a Petition for
the Declaration of Nullity of Board Resofutions and Inspection of the Corporate Books and
Records, with Prayer for Issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of
Preliminary Injunction with the Regional Trial Court of Pasig City (Pasig RTC) against the
Company’s director, Mr. George E. Sycip and former directors Messrs. Jonathan Y., Dee,
Alvin Y. Dee and Ibarra A. Malonzo, and then Corpomate Secretary, Mr. Aveiino M.
Sebastian. Ms. Yap-Chua and Mr. Hong sought to nullify, among others, the résolufion of the
Board dated May 5, 2014 approving the private placement of Strongoak, Inc. of
P563,679,956 into the Company, and the issuance of 430,286,226 of the Company’'s
common shares to Strongoak, Inc. pursuant thereto. '

The Company moved to intervene in this case. The RTC Pasig denied such intervention.
The Company appealed to the Court of Appeals via a Petition for Review dated July 25,
2014. This was docketed as CA G.R. No. 136402.

On May 23, 2014, the judge issued an order stating that “After a careful consideration of the
aliegations in the Petition with Prayer for Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) andfor Writ of
Preliminary Injunction, this Court finds that the prayer for the TRO does not appear to be of
extreme urgency, hence, the same is hereby BYPASSED,” The Petition remains pending
before the Pasig RTC.

The Complainanis filed a Motion for Inhibition, which was granted by Pasig RTC Branch 159.
The case was eventually re-raffled to Pasig RTC Branch 181 on March 21, 2016, where it
remains pending as of date.

On March 29, 2016, the Company received the CA Decision dated March 14, 2016, granting
the Company’s Petition to Intervene in the case. Ms. Yap-Chua et al. filed a motion for
reconsideration of the said Decision but was subsequently denied. On February 2, 2017, the
Company received a copy of the Petition for Review on Certiorari of Hedy Yap-Chua et al.
with the Supreme Court. (SC G.R. No. 226182 [CA-GR. SP No. 136402]). Registrant has not
received notice on whether the Supreme Court has acted on said Petition.
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In view of Ms. Yap-Chua, et al.'s Petition before the Supreme Court, the Company fiiled a
motion to suspend the proceedings with the Pasig RTC until the Petition is resolved. This
incident is still pending before the Pasig RTC.

In an Order, dated August 18, 2017, RTC Pasig set the case for hearing for the affirmative
defenses of Respondents Jonathan Dee, and Alvin Dee. In response to this order of RTC
Pasig, Petitioners Ms. Yap-Chua, et al,, filed an Urgent Mdtion to Suspend Proceedings on

Respondents Sycip and Dees’ Affirmative Defenses, dated September 12, 2017,

In an Order dated February 12, 2018, RTC Pasig granted the Urgent Motion to Suspend
Proceedings because of the pendency of Ms. Yap-Chua, etal.’s Petition before the Supreme
Court. :

4. Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua v. Jonathan Y. Dee, Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz, George E.
Sycip, Antonio C. Pacls and Raymond K.H. See.

[.S. No. XVI-INV-15B00053

On February 24, 2015, Ms. Hedy S.C. Yap-Chua filed a Complaint-Affidavit with the
Department of Justice (“DOJ") against incumbent Directors George E. Sycip, Marie Grace T.
Vera Cruz, Raymond K.H. See and Antonio C. Pacis, and former director Mr. Jonathan Y.
Dee (“Respondent Directors”) for alieged violations of the Corporate Code provisions on the
right to inspect company records. The Board approved Ms. Yap-Chua's request to inspect
company records, subject to a procedure to ensure an orderly inspection and that
proprietary information does not become public. However, the respective lawyers of the
Company and Ms. Yap-Chua could not come to an agreement on the said procedure for
inspection. .

At the special meeting of the Board on September 17, 2014 called at the request of Ms. Yap-
Chua and specifically to discuss the matter, the Board, by the vote of the Respondent
Directors, resolved to direct the lawyers of the Company and of Ms. Yap-Chua to meet face-
to-face to resolve their differences regarding said procedure. Ms. Yap-Chua alieged in her
Complaint-Affidavit that the procedure proposed by the Company, and the referral of the
matter to the lawyers, was tantamount to a denial of her right to inspect company records.

The Respondent Directors received a copy of Ms. Yap-Chua's Complaint-Affidavit from the
DO.J on June 9, 2015, and have fited their respective responsive pleadings thereto.

Complainants has since filed a Motion to Resolve the main complaint. The Complaint is still
pending resolution before the DOJ.

5. Harvest All Investment Limited, Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private
Limited, Atbert Hong Hin Kay and Hedy S.C. Yap Chua v. Alliance Select Foods
International, Inc., George E. 8ycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Raymund K.H, See, Mary Grace
T. Vera-Cruz, Antonio C. Pacls, and Erwin M. Elechicon and Barbara Anne C. Migallos,
§.C. G.R. No. 224871

Commercial Case No. 15-234
{RTC Br. 159, Pasig City)

On August 5, 2015, Harvest All Victory Fund Limited, Bondeast Private Limited, Mr. Albert
Hong Hin Kay and Ms. Hedy S.C. Yap Chua (“Harvest Al et al’) filed a Complaint {with
application for the issuance of Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction and Temporary
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Restraining Order/Writ of Prefliminary Injunction) with the Pasig Regional Trial Court ("Pasig
RTC"), against Alliance Select Foods International, Inc., its Directors Messrs. George E.
Sycip, Jonathan Y. Dee, Raymund K.H, See, Mary Grace T. Vera-Cruz, Antonio C. Pacis,
and Erwin M. Elechicon and Barbara Anne C. Migalios (the “Company”) praying, among
others, that the Company be restrained from carrying out its Stock Rights Offering, and that
the Company be compelled to hold its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting prior to the said Stock
Rights Offering. The Stock Rights Offering would raise gross proceeds of P1,
000,000,000.00 to be used for needed capital expenditures, repayment of loans, installation
of a new management information system, and working capital requirements of the
Company. '

In a Resolution dated August 14, 201 5, the Pasig RTC denied the prayer for a Temporary
Restraining Order. The Pasig RTC held that Harvest Al et al failed to show that it had a clear
and unmistakable right that was or wouid be violated by the conduct of Annual Stockholders’
Meeting after the Stock Rights Offering. The Pasig RTC noted that Temporary Restraining
Order is unwarranted because Harvest All et al were granted the right o subscribe to the
Stock Rights Offering to prevent the dilution of shareholdings and voting rights feared by
Harvest All et al.

In a Resolution dated 24 August 2015, the Pasig RTC dismissed the Complaint for lack of
jurisdiction over the subject matter of the case due to Harvest Ali et al's faifure to pay the
correct filing fees (the “RTC Resolution™).

In the meantime, the offer period for the Stock Rights Offering, which commenced on
August 17, 2015, ended on August 26, 2015. On September 7, 2014, the Company's Board
scheduled the Company's Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on November 17, 2015 with record
date on October 20, 2015. The Board of Directors later on decided to reschedule the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting to December 18, 2015.

Harvest All et al filed a Petition for Review with the Court of Appeals to reverse and set aside
the RTC Resolution dismigsing the Comptaint. It also prayed that the Company be restrained
from implementing the October 20, 2015 record date of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting,
and to compel the Company to set the record date of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting to a
date prior to the Stock Rights Offering.

On 15 December 2015, the Court of Appeals issued a Resolution of even date granting
Harvest All et al.’s prayer for a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO), effective for a period of
60 days from notice, enjoining the parties to maintain and preserve the status quo pending
resolution of the Petition for Review, after Harvest All et al posts the required bond (the
“TRO Resolutian™). The Court of Appeals issued the TRO the next day, or on 16 December
2015, the date of the Meeting. The Company received the TRO a few hours before said
Meeting. The Company and the respondent directors and officers filed motions for
reconsideration of the TRO Resolution and to dissolve the TRO.

The Court of Appeals rendered a Decision dated February 15, 2016 ruling on the merits of
the case in which the TRO was issued. The Court granted the Petition af shareholders
Harvest All Investment Ltd., et al., but sustained the position of the Company that Harvest All .
investment Lid., et.al, should pay the correct filing faes for its Complaint with the Pasig RTC.
Both parties filed their respective Motions for Reconsideration, and both were subsequentty
denied.

Jonathan Dee filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with the SC to set aside the nfing of
the CA and affirm the ruling of the Pasig RTC dismissing the case (SC G.R. No. 224834).
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Harvest All et al. on the other hand filed their only Petition for Review on Certiorari with the
SC questioning the ruling of the CA that though the case should not be dismissed because
Harvest Ali et al. was not in bad faith in not filing the proper filing fee, the latter should pay
the filing fee based on the 2015 SRO, which would amount io approximately Php 20 Millian)

The Petitions for Review on Certiorari were consolidated by the SC. On March 15, 2017, the
SC rendered a Decision in favor of the petition of Harvest All, et al., ruling that the intra-
corporate controversies may involve a subject matter which is either capable or incapable of
pecuniary estimation, and remanded the case back to the RTC to assess the correct filing
fees, and upon payment, to proceed with the regular proceedings of the case. The
Registrant and other respondents filed their respective motions for reconsideration of the
Supreme Court Decision arguing, among others, that supervening events have rendered the
case moot and academic.

In the Resolution dated February 28, 2018 rendered by the SC, the SC denied the motions
for reconsideration filed by the respondents and held that the Pasig RTC is the appropriate
court to determine whether the supervening evenis alleged by the respondents has rendered
the case moot and academic. Proceedings on the Somplaint before the Pasig RTC resumed
on 19 April 2018.

6. Victory Fund Limited, Harvest All Investment Limited, Bondeast Private
Limited and Hedy $.C. Yap Chua vs, Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee, Joanna Y. Dee-
Laurel, George E. Sycip, Teresita S. Ladanga, Grace S. Doglilo, Arak Ratborihan,
Raymond K.H. See, Marle Grace T. Vera Cruz, Antonio C. Pacls, and John and Jane
Does, NPS Docket No. XVI-INV-16B-01028

The complainants are shareholders of ASFIl who allege that the resporidents improperly
used their investment in the Company fo engage in supposediy illegal activities and
transactions. The Complaint also stated that damage and prejudice was caused to the
complainants as a result of respondents’ actions, which ingluded the alleged diminution of
complainants’ property rights due to a supposedly deliberate dilution of the complainants’
shareholdings in ASFIl. The complainants further asserted that their proportionate rights as
sharehoiders were diminished, such as their entittement to represeniation in the Board of
Directors of ASFII.

The complainants submitted a Supplement to the Joint Complaint-Affidavit to include the
supposed damage incurred by the complainants when they were not elected to the Board of
Directors of the Company during the Annual Stockholders Meeting on 01 March 20186.
Preliminary investigation hearings were held on March 22, 2018, March 28, 2018 and April 5,
2016.

Meanwhile, Jonathan Dee, Alvin Dee, Joanna Dee-Laurel, and Tess Ladanga (Perjury
Complainants) filed a complaint for perjury against Yap-Chua.

In a Joint Resolution dated July 12, 20186, the Investigating Prosecutor dismissed the
complaint for syndicated estafa, falsification of public documents and perjury.

Both Syndicated Estafa and Falsification Complainants and Perjury Complainants filed their
respective Petition for Partial Review with the DOJ. The DOJ issued a Joint Resolution
dated March 31, 2017 denying both pefitions for partial review, affirming the dismissal of the
complaints.

The Compiainants filed their Partial Motions to Reconsideration before the DOJ.
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in a Joint Resolution dated March 27, 2018, the DQJ, in resolving the Partial Motions for
Reconsideration filed by the Complainants, granted the motion for partial reconsideration,
affirmed the dismissal of the charges for falsification of pubfic document and syndicated
estafa complaint but found probable cause for estafa against Jonathan Y. Dee, Alvin Y. Dee,
Joanna Dee-Laurel, George Sycip, Teresita Ladanga, Grace Dogillo and Arak Ratborihan.
The DOJ did not find sufficient evidence to support the charges for falsification of public
document and syndicated esfafa against Raymond See, Grace Vera Cruz and Antonio Pacis
and affirmed the dismissal of the complaints against these respondents.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has had no transactions covered under Part 1V (D)(1) of Annex "C" of SRC
Rule 12 in the last two (2) years, or those involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries in
which an incumbent director, executive officer or stockholder owning ten percent (10%) or
more of the total outstanding shares of the Company and members of their immediate family
had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest, other than those disclosed below:

a. Effective January 1, 2017, the Company entered into a Consultancy Agreefnent
with Strongoak, inc. Currently, Strongoak, Inc. owns 55.32% of the Company.

Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2017 on
the Company’s related party transactions are incorporated by reference.

Other than as disclosed above, and as indicated in the Consolidated Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017, the Company has not entered into any other related party
transactions, or with parties that fali ouiside the definition of “related parties™ but with whom
the Company or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate
the terms of material transactions that may not be available from other, more clearly
independent parties on an arm's length basis.

Item 8. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following summarizes the executive compensation received by the CEO and the top
four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company for 2015, 2018, 2017, and 2018 .
It also summarizes the aggregate compensation received by all the officers and directors,
unnamed. -

.. | Salaries - | Bonuses/Other
" Year -. | Amountsin- | -~ = Income

il Y000 < | Amounts in'B'000 |
2015 P 12,998 P 268
CEO and the four most 2016 P 14,885 P 235
officers named above 2017 P 14,865 P 215
2018 P 18,980 P 254
Aggregate compensation 2015 P 19,624 P 393
paid to ali officers and 2016 P 23,360 P 578
directors as a group 2017 P 19,417 P 679
unnamed 2018 P 23,855 P 755

The following are the Company’s top five (5) compensated execufive officers as of
December 31, 2017: )
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Generai Counsel, Asst.
Ma. Kristina P. Ambrocio | Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Senior Vice President for
Operations

Lisa Angela Y. Dejadina
Christopher Paul M.

Sales Manager

Manese
Edward L. Noma Procurement Manager
Raymond K.H. See President and CEO

Compensation of Directors

On 21 January 2016, the Company's Board of Direclors adopted a policy, effective
immediately, setting directors’ per diems at P10,000 per attendance at Board rméetings, and
P5,000 per attendance at Committee meetings.

Under the amended By-Laws, as compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an

amount of not more than 10 % of the Company's EBITDA duiring the preceding year. Such

compensation shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as

the Board may deem proper, subject to the approval of the shareholders representing at

least majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the -
shareholders.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control arrangements

Gther than the usual employment contracts, there are no existing employment contracts with
executive officers. Furthermore, there are no special retirement plans for executives.

There is also no arangement for compensation fo be received from the Company in the
event of a change in control of the Company,

Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a contiibution more significant than others to the
business since the Company considers the collective efforts of all its employees as
instrumental to the overall success of the Company’s performance, '

- tem7. Independent Public Accountants

The appointment of the Company's independent auditors for the fiscal year 2018 will be
submitted to the shareholders for approval and rafification at the Meeting.

The Audit Committee has recommended, and the Board of Directors has approved, the re-
appointment of the accounting fim of Reyes Tacandong & Co. (Reyes Tacandong) as the
Company’s independent auditors. Reyes Tacandong was first appointed as the Company’s
independent auditors in 2015. Mr. Emmanuel V. Clarino is the partner-in-charge of Reyes
Tacandong.

Representatives of Reyes Tacandong will be present at the Mesting, and will have an |
opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to do so; and to respond to appropriate
questions from shareholders. '
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The Company has been advised that the Reyes Tacandong auditors assigned to render
audit-related services have no shareholdings in the Company, or a right, whether legally
enforceable or not, o nominate persons or to subscribe to the securities of the Company,
consistent with the professional standards on independence set by the Board of
Accountancy and the Professional Regulation Commission.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by
the Company’s independent auditors for each of the last three (3) fiscal years:

Audit and Audit-Related Fees 2017 2016 2015
Regular Audit 21,280,000 | 21,000,000 g 1,000,000
Review of proposed equity 600,000 ) )
restructuring
Long Form Audit : - -
Review of Forecast - -
All Cther Fees 128,000 150,000 150,000

Total Audit and Audit-Related | R 2,008,000 R1,150,000 | B 1,150,000
Fees .
Tax Fees

There were no tax-related services rendered by the independent auditors other than the
assistance rendered in the preparation of the income tax returns which formed part of the
regular audit engagement,

Changes In_and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and_Financial

Disclosures

As stated above, Reyes Tacandong was first appointed to be the Company’s independent
auditors for 2015. Reyes Tacandong succeeded Navarro Amper & Co. (Navarro Amper),
who was the Company’s independent auditors for 10 years prior to 2015. Other than that,
there was no change in the Company’s independent accountants during the three most
recent calendar years or in any subsequent interim period.

There has been no disagreement with either Reyes Tacandong or Navarre Amper on
accounting and financial disclosure.

item 8. Compensation Plans
No action is to be taken by the shareholders at the Meeting with respect to any plan pursuant -
to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action ié to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the authorization or issuance
of any securities otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.
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ltem 10. Modiflcation or Exchange of Securities
No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the modification of any class of
securittes of the Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of
securities of the Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
item 11.  Financial and Other Information
As stated above, no action Is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the matters
under Items 9 {Authorization or Issuance of Securities Otherthan for Exchange) and 10
(Modification or Exchange of Securities). '
ltem 12.  Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters
No action is to be taken at the Meefing with respect to any transactien involving the following:
a) the merger or consolidation of the Company into or with any other person or
of any other person into or with the Company;

b)  the acquisition by the Company or any of its security holders of securities of
another person;

c) the acquisition by the Company of any other going business or of the assets
' thereof; ' ' ]

d) the sale or other transfer of all or any substantial part of the assets of the
Gom_pan)r, or

e) the liquidation or dissolution of the registrant.

Item 13, Acquisition or Disposition of Property
No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the acquisition or digposition of
any pro_pert_y.
item 14. Restatement of Accounts
No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital,

or surplus account of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

ltem 15. Action with Respect to Reports

Action is to be taken on the reading and approval of the follawing:
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1. Minutes of the Previous Stockholders’ Meeting

The Minutes of the 2017 Annyal Stockholders’ Meefing held on June 15, 2017 and of the
Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017 are posted on the Company’s
website (www. http://allianceselectfoods.comMome/our-compariy/), and &lso available for
inspection by stockholders at the principal offices of the Company. Copies thereof will also
be made available upon request at the venue of the Meeting. =~ '

The matters taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 15, 2017 are as
follows: (i) reading and approval of the minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
held on .June 28, 2016; (i) presentation and approval of the Management Report and
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016; (iii) rafification and
approval of the acts of the Board of Directors arid Executive Officers; (iv) appoiritment of
independent exteral auditors; (v) election of Dirsctors, including Independent Directors.

At the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017, the stockholders took up
the amendment of Article Seventh of the Company's Articles of incorporation fo reduce the
par value of common shares of the Company from One Peso (P1.00) per share to Fifty
Centavos (P0.50) per share, and fo decrease the authorized capital stock of the Company
from Three Billion Pesos (P3,000,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion (3,000,000,000)
common shares with par value of One Peso (P1 .00) each to COne Billion Five Hundred
Million Pesos (P1,500,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion (3.000,000,000) common
shares with par value of Fifty Centavos (P0.50) each.

The resolution to be adopted will be for the approval of the minutes of the 2017 Annuai
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 15, 2017, and of the Special Stockholders’ Meeting held
on September 7, 2017.

2. Manag_ement Report

The Company’'s Management Report, which includes the Audited Financial Statements for
2017, will be submitted for approval by the stockholdets. A copy of the Management Report
is attached to this Information Statement. The Management Report includes the Company’s
information and results as of March 31, 2018. The 2017 Annual Report under SEC Form
17-A is avallable on the Company's website (http:/falianceselectfoods.com/). The
Company's unaudited interim financial statements for the first quarter of 2018 or the period
ended March 31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q is attached to this Information Statement. Upon
written request of a shareholder, the Company shall fumish such shareholder with a copy of
the said Annuatl Report as filed with the SEC, free of charge. The contact details for
obtaining such copy are on Page 28 of this Information Statement.

The resolution to be adopted will be the approval of the Management Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December at, 2017.

~ ltem 16, Matters Not Required to be Submitted

There are no matters or actions to be taken up at the Meeting that will not require the vote of
the stockholders as of the record date,
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item 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken at the Meeting with respect to any amendment of the Company's
charter, by-laws or other documents.

ltemn 18. Other Proposed Action

Action is to be taken on the ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and
executive officers.

1. Acts of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers

All acts, contracts, proceedings, elections and appointments made or taken by the Board of
Directors and/or the officers of the Company during the past corporate year will be submitted
for ratification and approval of shareholders. These refer to the actions taken by the Board of
Directors at its meetings held on June 15, July 20, August 8, September 7, November 7, and
December 6, 2017, and on March 23, 2018. The acts of officers referred to are those that
implemented the actions taken by the Board. A summary of significan{ actions of the Board,
as set forth in the Minutes of meetings, is provided below.

At the organizational meeting held on June 15, 2017, the Board of Directors elected the
officers of the Company, and constituted the Board Commitiees for the remainder of the
corparate year 2016-2017. '

At the special meeting on July 20, 2017, the Board appointed Mr. Edgardo Cabalde as the
Company’s Chief Finance Officer, Treasurer, and Chief Information Officer.

During the same meeting, the Board of Directors also approved the amendment of Article 7
of the Articles of Incorporation to reduce the par value of the Company's common shares
from One Peso (P1.00) per share to Fifty Centavos (P0.50) per share, and to decrease the
Company's authorized capital stock from Three Billion Pesos (P3,000,000,000.00) divided
into Three Billion (3,000,000,000) common shares with par value of One Peso (P1.00) each
to One Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos (P1,500,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion
(3,000,000,000) common shares with par value of Fifty Centavos (P0.50) each.

Further, the Board of Directors also approved the Management Report and Interim Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended May 31, 2017.

At the regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 8, 2017, the Board of
Directors approved the Second Quarter Financial and Performance Report.

At the special meeting of the Company's Board of the Directors held on September 7, 2017,
the directors appointed Mr. Edgardo Cabalde as the Data Protection Officer of the
Corporation.

At the special meeting of the Board of Directors on November 7, 2017, the directors
approved the Third Quarter Financial and Performance Report of the corporation.

At the meeting held on March 23, 2018, the Board of Directors set the date of the 2018
Annual General Meeting on June 15, 2018 at 2:30 p.m. The deadline for the submission of
proxies was set on June 5, 2018.
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At the meeting held on May 10, 2018, the Board approved the postponement of the 2018
Annual General Meeting from June 15, 2018 to July 4, 2018, the proxy deadline from June 5,
2018 to June 22, 2018, and the proxy validation date from June 8, 2018 to June 29, 2018,

Item 19. Voting Procedures

Stockholders of record as of Aprit 11, 2018 may vote at the Meeting. Stockholders have the
right to vote in person or by proxy.

Registration of stockholders and pl‘DXleS attendlng the meetlng will open at 1:00 p.m. of June
15,2018,

Approval of the matters requiring stockhalder action as set forth in the Agenda and in this
Information Statement would require the affirmative vote of stockholders ownmg at least a
majority of the outstanding voting capital stock.

In the election of directers, cumulative voting may be adopted. On this basis, each
stockholder as of April 11, 2018 may vote the number of shares registered in his name for
each of the directors to be elected, or he may multiply the number of shares registered in his
name by the number of directors to be elocted, and cast the total of such votes for one (1)
director, or he may distribute his votes among some or all of the directors to be elected. The
nominees with the greatest number of votes wili be elected directors. Voting/ ba[lotlng for
regular directors will be separate from voting/ balloting for independent directors.

The Company will distribute to shareholders not iater than May 24, 2018 the Information
Statement and proxy form. The proxy form contains each item on the Agenda that requires
shareholders to vote “YES”, “NO” or “ABSTAIN". In the case of the election of directors, the
names of each of the nominees are listed in the proxy with space for the shareholder to
indicate his or her vote for or against each of the nominees.

The voting at the Stockholders’ Meeting will be by ballot(ng Shareholders who are present
and did not submit proxies before the meeting will be given ballots upon registration. I the
case of proxies submitted prior to the meeting, the proxy designated by the stockholder to
represent them at today's meeting will be provided with batlots for casting in accordance with
the stockholders’ instructions, as indicated in the proxy.

Ballots will be tabulated by an independent extemal auditing firn togsther with the
Company's stock transfer agent, Securities Transfer Services, Inc. (“STSI?). Results of the
vating by sharehelders will be announced for each item on the Agenda requiring the vote of
shareholders. The tabulation and results of the voting shall be duly disclased and shall be
made available on the Company’s website on the business day following the meeting.

This voting procedure shall also be announced at the start of the meeting.

PART Il

PLEASE SEE SEPARATE PROXY FORM
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PART Il |

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquity and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and comect. This report is signed in the City
of Makati, Metro Manila on May 23, 2018.

By:

B ALLOS
Corporale Segretary

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER A PRINTED COPY OF THE
COMPANY’S ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17-A, AS FILED WITH THE SEC FREE
OF CHARGE. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

ATTY. BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS
Corporafe Secretary
- Unit 1206, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

Cragd 2058 ADFT ASM Amencded Oafinitive 19 (ZIMAY1E) wplt
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PART Il

" PLEASE FILL UP AND SIGN THIS PROXY AND RETURN IMMEDIATELY TO THE CORPORATE SECREI"ARY
A RETURN ENVELOPE 15 PROVIDED FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE.

PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC, (the "Company™ hereby appoints MR.
RAYMOND K. H. SEE or in his absence, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING, as attorney and proxy, with power of substitution, to represent
and voie all shares registered in his/her name as proxy of the undersigned stockhoider, at tha 2018 Annual General Mpeting of
Stockholders of tha Company to be held on July 4, 2018 at 2:30 p.m., at the PSE Auditerium, Ground Floor, Philippine Stock Exchenge
?ﬁntm' Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila, and at any of the adjoumments thereof for the purposa of acting on the
ollowing matters:

6. Election of Direclors

1. Approvel of minutes of the Annuel General Meeting of
Stockholdars held on June 15, 2017, and the Special Mseeting Voba for nominees listed below:
of Stockholders held on September 7, 2017

_ Regutar Directors:

L Yes Clno [ Abstein 1. (3 Merie Grace T. Vera Cruz

M Raymaond K.H. See

2
2. Approval of the Annuel Report and Audited Financial 3. [ Amtonio C. Pacis
Statemants for 2017 4. (1 Joseph Peter Y. Roxas
5

D Yes D No D Abstain (1 Gabrial A. Dee

Independeni_ Dirgctqts: _
3. Ratification and epproval of the acts of the Board of 1. D) Erwin M. Eiechicon
Directors end executive officers for the corporate 2. [ Dobbin A. Tan
year 2017-2018 0
Withhold authority for all nominess
[Oves [CIno [ Abstain listed above
L] Withhold authority to vote for the
4, Appoiniment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as nominees listed below:
independent auditors

Clvyes [wno [ Abstain

7. At their discrelion, the proxies named above are authorized to
vota upon such ather matters as may propery come before the
meeting.

DATE PRINTED NAME OF STOCKHOLRER

SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER] AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

THIS PROXY SOLICITATION IS MADE BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY. THIS PROXY SHOULD BE REGEWED BY THE OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT
CORPORATE SECRETARY ON OR BEFORE JUNE 22, 20118, THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISBION OF PROXES.

THIS PROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXEGUTED, WILL BE VOTED [N THE MANNER AS DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO DIREGTION IS MADE,
THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED BY THE PROXY HEREIN DESIGNATED FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE MATTERS STATED ABOVE, AND FOR THE ELECTION OF
NOMINEES FOR DIRECTORS AT HIS DISCRETION.

A PROXY SUBMITTED BY A GORPORATION SHOLLD BE AGGOMPANIED BY A CORPORATE BECRETARY'S GERTIFIGATE QUOTING THE BOARD RESQLUTION
DESIGNATING A CORPORATE OFFICER TO EXECUTE THE PROXY. PROXIES EXECUTED BY BROKERS MUST BE AGCOMPANED BY A CERTIFICATION
UNDER OATH STATING THAT THE BROKER HAS OBTAINED THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE ACGOUNT HOLDER. FORMS OF THE GERTIFICATION MAY BE
REGUESTED FROM THE OFFICE OF SEGURITIES TRANSFER SERVICES, ING. (TEL NO. [02}-4406157)

A STOCKHOLDER GIVING A PROXY HAS THE POWER TO REVOKE IT AT ANY TIME BEFORE THE RIGHT GRANTED IS EXERCISED. A PROXY IS ALSO
CONSBIDERED REVOKED IF THE STOCKHOLDER ATTENDS THE MEETING IN PERGON AND EXPRESSES HIS INTENTION TO VOTE IN PERSON. THIS PROXY

SHALL BE VALID FOR FIVE {5) YEARS FROM THE DATE HEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED IN THE BOX HEREIN morf[pm

Thig solichation ls primarily by mail; however, incidental personal solichation mey &lso be made by the officers, directors and regular employess of Lhe
Company whose number [s not expected to exceed fifteen end who recelve no additional compensation thersfor. The Company bears the cost,
aslimated not to exceed P3 million, of preparing and malling this praxy form and other materals fumished to stockholders in connection with this
proxy solicitation and the expenses of brokers who may mall such materials to their customers.

No director or exacutive officer, nominge for elaction as dimcior, or assoclate of such director, executive officer or nomines, of the Company, at any
tima since the beginning of the last fiscal year, has any substential interest, direct or indirect, by sacurity holdings or otherwise, in any of the mattars to
be acted upon in he Mesting, other than efection to office.



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
MAKATI CITY )S. S

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, ERWIN M. ELECHICON., Filipino, of legal age, with address at 38 Gentleness $t.,
Multinational Village, Paranaque City, Metro Manila, after having swom under oath in
accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1.

I am nominated for re-election as Independent Director of ALLIANCE SELECT
FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. {"the Company"}, a corporation duly organized and
existing under Philippine law, with principal office at Unit 1206, East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Cenire, Exchange Road, Orligas Center, Pasig City,
Metro Manila, af the Company's 2018 Annual Stockholders' Meeting to be held on
July 4, 2018. | have been an Independent Director of the Company since June 16,
2014,

| am affiiated with the following companies or organizations:

Company/Organization Position/Relationship Period of Service
Sitver Machine Digital Chairman September 2014 -
Communications, Inc. Present

. March 2012 -
The T88C Company Founding Partner Present
. Trustee & Vice- June 2012 -
Ateneo de lloilo, Inc. Chairman Present

Ateneo Assoc. of Former | Trustee & Post June 2009 -

Resident Sfudents, inc. President Present
- . January 2006 —
The P& Gers Fund, Inc. Trustee & President Present

I possess dll the qudiifications and none of the disqudiifications to serve as an
Independent Director of the Company, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, ifs Implementing Rules and Regulations and other
SEC issuances. '

I am not related o any director/officer/substantiol shareholder of the Company;
and any of its related companies, subsidiaries and affiliates under Rule 38.2.3 of
the Securities Regulation Code.

To the best of my knowledgé, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

[ am not in government service or affifiated with any govemment agency or
instrumentality.

| shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securtfies Regulation Code and its




Implementing Rules and Regulo’rions, Code of Comporate Governance and other
SEC issuances.

8. 1shall inform the Corporate Secrefary of the Company obout any changes in the
obovementioned information within five {5} days from ils occumrence.

Done, this 10t day of May 2018 in Makati City, Metro Monila.

ol

ERWIN M. ELECHICON
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this 10" day of May 2018 at Makati City,
Metro Manilo, affiant exhibiling o me his Social Securily System 1.D. No. 03-5449695-9
bearing his photograph and genuine signature as competent evidence of his identity in
accordance with Rule 1, Sectfion 12 and Rule IV Section 2 {b} of the 2004 Rules on
Notorial Practice.

. Doc. No. 9 ;
Page No. ;

Book No : NOTARY PUBLIC FOR AND N THE GITY OF MAKATI
: APPOWTMENT NO. 11-226 (2018-2019)
Series of 2018. COMMISSION EXPIRES ON BECEMBER 31.2019

7" Flaar, ThaPHINMA Plaza, 30 Plaza Drive
Rockwnll Contsl, Mekatt City 1210
PTR No. 6816275, Makat City; 1/4/2048
: I8F O.R. No. 020917; Quezon Clty; 1/4£2018
2374 EWE Indepeancen Director Cerfficobe {IDAAY1E) sppils TIM 5D0-0:2

04
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATE CITY )S.S.

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, DOBBIN A. TAN, Filipino, of legal age, with address at the U301, 38

Rockwell Drive cor. Palma Street, Makati City, Metro Manila, hereby declare
under oath that:

1. | am nominated for re-election as Independent Director of
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the “Company”), a
corporation duly organized and existing under Philippine law, with principal office
at Unit 1206, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila., at the Company’'s 2018 Annual
General Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 4, 2018. | have been
Independent Director of the Company since March 1, 2016.

2. I am also currently affiliated with the following companies or
organizations:
Company Position . Period of Service
Xavier School, Inc. Treasurer April 2014 to Present
PhilEquity Fund, Inc. Independent Director March 2014 to Present
New Suniife Ventures, Inc. President January 2013 to Present
information Gateway President Novermnber 2016 to Present

Group (Rising Tide Mobile
Entertainment, Inc., i-
Gateway Mobile
Philippines, Inc., and G-

Gateway Mobile,

Philippines, inc.)

Red Rock Security, Inc. President November 2016 to Present
3. | possess all of the qualifications and none of the disqualifications

to serve as Independent Director of the Company, as provided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code ("SRC”), the 2015 Implementing Rules and
Regulations of the SRC (the “SRC Rules”), and other issuances of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

4, I am not related to any director, officer, or substantial shareholder
of the Company, any of its related companies, or any of its substantial
shareholders under Rule 38.2.3 of the SRC Rules, or otherwise.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending
criminal or administrative investigation or proceeding.

6. | am not connected with any government agency or instrumentality.
7. 1- shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and

responsibilities as Independent Director under the SRC, SRC Rules, the Code of
Corporate Govemance for Publicly Listed Companies, and other SEC issuances.
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8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of any changes in the
abovementioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

Done this 10" day of May 2018 at Makati City, Metro Marg'woﬁj

DOBBIN A. TAN
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 10" day of May 2018,
affiant exhibiting to me his Competent Evidence of Identity consisting of his
Philippine Passport No. EC0552843 issued on 13 March 2014 at DFA - Manila,
expiring on 12 March 2019 bearing his photograph and signature, in accordance
:ith Rule II, Section 12 and Rule IV Section 2 (b) of the 2004 Rules on Notarial

ractice. :
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )} S.8.

CERTIFICATION

|, BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS, of legal age, Filipino, and with office
address at 7" Floor, The PHINMA Piaza, 39 Plaza Drive, Rockwell Center, Makati
City, Metro Manila, hereby depose and state under oath that:

1. | am the Corporate Secretary of ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS
INTERNATIONAL, INC. (the “Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing
under Philippine law, with principal office address at Unit 1206, East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila.

2. I hereby certify that the following incumbent Directors and/or nominees
for election as Director of the Company are not connected with any government
agency or instrumentality:

a) Mr. Antonio C. Pacis

b) Mr. Raymond K. H. See

c) Ms. Marie Grace T. Vera Cruz

d) Mr. Erwin M. Elechicon (Independent Director)
€)  Mr. Dobbin A, Tan (Independent Director)

f) Mr. Joseph Peter Y. Roxas

g)  Mr. Gabriel A. Dee

BA
Corporate Secretay

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 22™ day of May 2018, affiant
exhibiting to ma her Community Tax Certificate No. 25010154 issued on 5 January
2017 at Makati City, and her Passport No. EC0356963 issued on 20 February 2014
at DFA Manila, expiring on 18 February 2019 bearing her photograph and signature,
in accordance with Rule H, Section 12 and Rule IV Section 2 (b} of the 2004 Rules
on Notarial Practice. .
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL., INC.
MANAGEMENT REPORT

I.  Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
T dted Audited Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Aliiance Select Foods Intemational, inc. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries for the period ended December 31, 2017 in compliance with
SRC Rule 68, as amended, are attached to the Information Statement and are incorporated
by reference. Copiss of the said financial statements are also uploaded on the Company's
website (http://allianceselectfoods.comy).

The Company's unaudited interim financial statements for the first quarter of 2018 or the
period ended March 31, 2018 on SEC Form 17-Q is also attached to this Information
Statement and uploaded on the Company’s website.

Il. Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and.Financial Disclosure

Reyes Tacandong & Co. was appointed as the extemal auditor of the Company for the year
2017. There were no disagreements with the Company’s independent extemal auditors,
Reyes Tacandong & Co regarding the financial statements of the Company for the year
2016.

il. The Company

Alliance Select Foods Intemational, Inc. is a public corporation under Section 17.2 of the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) and was registered in the Philippine Securitiecs and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on September 1, 2003 as Allance Tuna Intemational, Inc. It
started commercial operations in 2004 to engage in tuna processing, canning, and the
export of canned tuna products in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines. On
November 8, 2006, the Company’s shares were listed on the PSE through an initial public
offering. The name of the Company was changed to Alliance Select Foods Intemational, inc.
on July 22, 2010 to reflect the Company’s plan to diversify its product line and take
advantage of its manufacturing expertise and global marketing channels to introduce new
products.

The Company’s key business activity is the processing, canning, and export of canned tuna,
it exports its canned tuna products to Europe, North America, Asia, Africa, Middle East, and
South America. It is primarily a “private label manufacturer” that processes tuna in
institutional and retail packs.

The following table presents the Company's major corporate milestones from the date of
incorporation up to present:

Date Milestone _
September 2003 Incorporated as Alliance Tuna International, Inc.

May 2004 Opened a representative office in Bangkok, Thailand.

September 2005 | Acquired 40.00% stake in FDCP, Inc. (‘FDCP"), atin can producing
company in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines.




November 20068

Listed on the PSE.

May 2008 Established PT international Alliance Foods Indonesia (“PT IAFI") in
Indonesia.

January 2009 Acquired 39.00% stake in Prime Foods New Zealand, Ltd. ("PFNZ”)
-in January and increased to 50.00% stake plus one {1) share in
December 2009,

October 2009 Established Big Glory Bay Salmon & Seafood Company, Inc.
("BGB") to pracess salmon in the Philippines.

June 2010 Owned 40.00% stake in Alliance MHI Properties, Inc. (“AMHI™) with
Mingjing Holdings, Inc. (“MHI") holding 60.00%. .

July 2010 Renamed the Company as “Alliance Select Foods International,
inc.”

April 2011 Established ASFI Choice Foods, Inc. as an investment vehicie in
the USA. This has been dissolved in November 2015.

July 2011 Undertook its first stock rights offering fo raise equity for the
acquisition of Spence & Company Lid, (“Spence™).

August 2011 Acquired 100.00% stake in Spence, a smoked salmon and seafood
pracessor based in the US.

May 2012 Set up PT Van De Zee (“VDZ"), a subsidiary of PT IAFI in
Indonesia.
September 2012 | Acquired six (6) fishing vessels (in addition to one fishing vessel
: previously acquired) by virtue of “dacion en pago”.
October 2012 Acquired 80.00% stake in Akaroa Salmon New Zeaiand Lid.
: ("Akaroa™).

January 2013 Established Alliance Select Foods Pte. Ld. ("ASF™), a Singapore
based wholly-owned subsidiary. At present, this subsidiary is not
operating.

March 2013 Established Wild Catch Fisheries, Inc. (‘WCFI”) with CHL Fishing
Industry, Inc. (“CHL") and CHL Construction & Development
Enterprises, Inc. ("CHLC”). WCF! is a joint venture fishing company.

May 2014 Completed a private placement transaction with Strongoak Inc. to
finance the Company's working capital requirements.

April 2015 Executed a Supplemental Agreement to the Joint Venture (JVA)
with CHL and CHLC which stated that the Company shall have no
further funding liability or obligation under the JVA.

August 2015 Completed stock rights offering.

October 2015 Divested from PFNZ and increased ownership‘inlerest in BGB from
68% to 100%.

December 2015 ASFIl subscribed to preferred shares anising from the increase in

authorized capital stock of AMHI, resulting in ASFIl's 98.89%




-

ownership of AMHI.

October 2016 BGB increased its authorized capital stock to P350,000,000 divided
into 350,000,000 shares of P1 .00 each.

November 2016 | ASEIl subscribed to an additionai 125,000,000 shares of BGB's
increase in authorized capital stock,

March 2018 The SEC approved the Amendment of Article Seventh of the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation to reduce the par value of
common shares of the Company from One Peso (P1.00) per share
to Fifty Centavos (P0.50) per share, and {o decrease the authorized
capital stock of the Company from Three Billion Pesos
(P3,000,000,000.00) divided into Three Billion (3,000,000,000)
common shares with par value of One Peso {P1.00) each to One
Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos (P1,500,000,000.00) divided into
Three Billion (3,000,000,000) common shares with par value of Fifty
Centavos (P0.50) each. _

The Company is a processor and exporter of canned tuna and smoked salmon. it commits to
manufacture, in partnership with its global customers and local suppliers, high quality food
products from naturally sustainable sources. As part of the Company’s expansion strategy to

secure its own raw materials, it invested in several companies that are into, among others,
salmon farming.

The following presents the conglomerate map of the Company’s operating subsidiaries and

. affiliates, including its corresponding percentage of ownership as of March 31, 2018.

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS
INTERNATIONAL, INC.

I I : : l ! Il
r - [] - 1
99.98% 58.89% ! 100.00% ! ! 80.00%
PT Intemational : | PlgGloryBaySaimon] | |  10000% |1 Akaroa Salmon
Alllance Foods Alliance MHI | 1] & seafood | [spence & co. Lta] ' | New Zeatand Ltd.,
Indenesia Properties, inc. :' Company, inc. :'
[ ] . [}
‘ i -
49.00% 100% 20.00% 40.00% 20%
PTVanDe Zee | |ASFIT (Thalland) FDCP, Inc. Wiid Catch Salmon Smolts
ales NZ

The following discussion describes briefly the operating subsidiaries and affiliates of the
Company:

In May 2004, the Company set up a marketing representative office in Bangkok, Thailand, to
tap the network of buyers and brokers who use Thailand as a base.

In September 2005, the Company acquired a 40% stake in FDCP, a can-manufacturing
company.,



In May 2008, PT IAFI was established to acquire the assets of an Indonesian tuna cannery
located in Bitung, in the island of North Sulawesi. The Parent Company owns 99.98% of PT
IAFI. A complete renovation of the factory and upgrade of capacity ‘o 90 metric tons per day
was undertaken. PT IAF| started operations in July 2008 and is primarily engaged in canned
fish processing.

PT IAFI set up PT Van de Zee (PT VDZ), a fishing company in Indonesia on May 2012 with
an initial stake of 80%. in 2014, a new law in Indonesia required that domestic ownership in
local entities be increased to at least 51%. Currently, PT IAFl owns 49% of PT VDZ
However, due to subsequent changes in Indonesian fishing regulations restricting foreign
commercial fishing, VDZ is currently not in operation.

As part of the Parent Company’s product diversification strategy, it invested in a New
Zealand based processor of smoked salmon in January 2008. The Initial investment of a
39.00% stake in PFNZ was later increased to 50% plus 1 share. PFNZ was originally
engaged in the business of processing, manufacturing, and distributing smoked salmon and .
other seafood under the Prime Smoke and Studholme brand. On October 201 5, the Parent
Company divested its interest in PENZ.

In October 2008, the Parent Company and PFNZ established a joint-venture company called
BGB that imports salmon from New Zealand, Chile and Norway, among others, and
processes it in General Santos City, Mindanao, Philippines. The smoked salmon products
from BGB are sold iocally and abroad. On October 201 5, the Parent Company accepted
PFNZ's BGB shares as partial payment for PFNZ's payment obligations to the Parent
Company.This resufted in BGB becoming a 100% subsidiary of the Company. In 2016, BGB
ventured into other seafood products.

On June 18, 2010, AMHI, a property holding company, was established. On November 1, 2015,
the AMH! Board approved ASFIl's application for subscription of 54,000,000 preferred
shares arising from the increase in authorized capital stock of AMHI. AMHI's application for
increase in capital stock to P60,000,000.00 divided into (i) 4,000,000 common shares with a
par value of P1.00 per share and (i} 56,000,000 preferred shares with a par value of P1.00
per share was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23,
2015. ASFI! now owns 98.89% of AMHI. AMHI's registered address is at Purok Saydala,
Barangay Tambler, General Santos City.

On August 10, 2011, the Parent Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Spence, located in Brockton, Massachusetts, USA. Spence, which became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Parent Company, specializes in the production of smoked salmon and
other seafood. It is one of the leading salmon processors in the USA with extensive network
of clients nationwide. _

The Parent Company acquired an 80% stake in Akaroa in October 2012. With its principal
office in Christchurch, New Zealand, Akaroa is engaged in the business of sea cage salmon
farming and is among the pioneers of farmed salmon industry in New Zealand. It also
processes fresh and smoked salmon and has established itself as the premium quality brand
in the country over the years. Akaroa has been the recipient of various awards and
accolades from New Zealand's food industry.r. It operates two marine farms in the pristine
cold waters of Akaroa Harbor in the country’s South Island to rear the King, or Chinook,
salmon. Akaroa holds a 20%  stake in Salmon Smolt NZ Ltd., a modem hatchery
guaranteeing high quality and consistent supply of smolts {juvenile salmon),



PRODUCT LINES

The Company's products lines are composed of three (3) groups, namely, canned tuna, raw
and smoked salmon, and fishmeal.

Canned Tuna

The Group’s Tuna Division, comprised of ASFIi and PT 1AFI, sells canned tuna in solids,
chunks, and flakes variants, packed in ail, brine, vegetable broth, or water.

The market for canned tuna is comprised of the institutional and retail markets. The end
users of the institutional cans include restaurants, hotels, and commissariesThe retail can is
what consumers normally purchase in supermarkets and grocery stores. :

Smoked Salmon

BGB processes various salmon species and manufactures them into smoked and raw
products for retail and institutional consumers. These are frozen and vacuum packed, and
sold in different forms and cuts. Products are sold in retail stores under different BGB-owned
brands such as Prime New Zealand, Gold Standard, and Superfish in countries like
Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan, and Philippines, among others.

Spence sells the traditional and classic smoked salmon to supemnarkets in the US under tis
own brand and via private fabel. Salmon species that the fiim smokes include Atlantic and
Sockeye. In addition to these traditional products, Sperice also markets value added salmon
products like Nova lox, Gravlax Pastrami Salmon.

Akaroa serves both the domestic and intemational markets For intemetional markets,
Akarca's products are air-flown and delivered to retailers, Distributors or direct customers in
Singapore, Philippines, USA, Hong Kong, among others.

The company also distributes whole figh Salmon, Biack Cod, Sea Bass, and US Scallops. .

Fishmeal

Fishmeal is the by-product of the tuna canning and salmon processing operations. Fishmeal
aresold as additives or primary ingredients for animal feeds.

REVENUE BREAKDOWN
In 2017, the Company generated net revenues of around US$72.2 million.
The percentage contribution to ihe Group’s revenues broken down into maijor product lines

for the period ended March 31, 2018 and for the three (3) years in the periods ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: :

Product March 31, | December 31, December | December
2018 2017 31, 2016 31, 2015

Canned 65% 58% 56% 56%

Tuna

Fishmeal 2% 2% 2% 4%

{Local)

Salmon 33% 40% 42% 40%

Total* 100% . 100% 100% 100%




*Numbers might not add up dus to rounding emors

PRODUCTION PROCESS

The following diagrams present the different processes that the Company employs in
producing canned tuna and smoked saimon in its processing facilities.

Canned Tuna

Saurcing/ Recelving o Sorting and ol Prepamation/ | Buichering, Skinning, . flshmeal
Thawing Pre-caoking and Loining T Processing

] E

Labeling and Shipping | Coollng and 4 Retorting —| Filllng and Sealing
Inrubatinn

Smoked Salmon
Sourcing [ Filleting / - Brining - Drying
Trimming !
Labeling, Packing and Cooling Smoking
Shipment i «

IV. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditlon and Results of
Operations

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Company's financial condition and resulls
of operations and certain trends, risks, and Uncertainties that may affect the Company’s
business. The discussion and analysis of the Company's results of operalions is presented
in four (4) comparstive sections: a) The three (3} months ended March 31, 2018 with
comparative figures as of December 31, 2017 and for the period ended March 31, 2017,
whichever is relevant; b) the year ended December 31, 2017 with comparative figures as of
December 31, 2016; ¢) the year ended December 31, 2016 with comparstive figures as of
December 31, 2015; and d) the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with the year
ended December 31, 2014. Disclosure relating to liquidity and financiel condition and the
trends, risks, and uncertainties that have had or that are expected fo affect revenues and
income, completes the management's discussion and analysis.

Further, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Alliance Select Foods Intemnational, Inc., and its
Subsidianes (the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statements of financiaf position
as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended and unaudited
financial statements of the Group for the period ended March 31, 2018. The financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Phifippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting
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Standards (PAS) and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as approved by the Financial Reporting Standards

Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC. PFRS is an International Financial Raporting
Standards equivalent.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Uniled States Dollar, the currenc y of
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

Operating Performance

Three months Ended March 31, 2018 versus March 31, 2017

The table below shows the comparisons of key operating results for the three months period
ended March 31, 2018 versus the same period in 2017,

For the Three Months Ended March 31

In USD'000 2018 2017
Revenue - net $23,651 $16,819
Gross Profit 3,427 1,908
Gross Profit Margin 14% 11%
Selling and Administrative
Expenses 1,945 1,520
Other Income . 544 76
Other Expenses 49 57
Finance Costs 329 199
Income Before Tax | 1,648 208
Income Tax Expense ' 343 a1
Income for the Period 1,305 127
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,215 80
Non-controlling interest 90 37
$1,305 $127

The Group’s consolidated net revenues of $ 23.7 million for the first quarter of 2018 were
41% higher than the revenues of $ 16.8 million in the same reporting period last year. The
revenue increase is driven by growth in most of the subsidiaries. ASFIl's 57% revenue
growth is driven by volume sales and average price per FCL. Spence and Akaroa grew its



The 1st quarter of 2018 registered a gross profit of $3.4 million, 80% higher compared to the
reported $1.9 million gross profit in the 1st quarter of 2017. Correspondingly, gross margin
for the total group is higher at 14%, compared to last year's 11%. Last years gross margin
was mainly impacted by the high prices of raw materials in Spence due to an algae bloom
epidemic.

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 28%. Meanwhile. an increase in finance
cost resulted from an increase in foans payable from banks and/or financial institutions by
57% or $ 10 million versus same quarter last year, including advances from related parties
amounting to $ 2 million for the 1st quarter this year.

December 31, 2017 versus December 31 y 2016

The table below shows the comparison of key operating resulis for the fiscat
period ended December 31, 2017 versus the same period in 2016.

Years Ended December 31
Amount in US $'000 2017 2018 % o
Change _
Revenue $72,192 $60.014 20%
Gross profit 9,449 3,468 172%
Gross margin 13% 6%
Selling & Administrative

Expenses 6,726 8,771 -1%

Normal selling &
administrative

Provision for impairment 1,391 | 1,187 17%

Other non-operating income
Gain on acquisition of - - -100%

AMIHI & re-measurement of

previously held interest

Finance Cost 788 869 -9%
Profit (Loss) for the year (1,563) (5,899) 126%
Non-controlling interest 126 70 80%
Profit(Loss) attributable to
equity 1,437 (5,969) 124%
holders of the parent

Net Profit (Loss) Margin 2% “10%
EBITDA 2,501 {2,760) 183%
EBITDA margin 3% -5%
Return on equity (ROE}

4% A7%
Earnings (Loss) per share 0.0006 (0.0024) 124%
Book value per share 0.0135 0.0129 5%




The Group's consolidated revenues of $ 72 million in 2017 were 20% higher than the
revenues of § 60 million in 2016. In 201 7, about 60% of total revenues were contributed by
tuna-related products and the remaining 40% were contributed by salmon-related products.
There is a 24% and 15% growth in revenue for the tuna and salmon segments, respectively.

3%. The volume decline in canned tuna shipped was mainly attributable to the decline in
sales volume of PT IAF| by 61% to 26 FCLs in 2017 from 66 FCLs in 2016. The decline in
PT IAFI's sales volume was a result of PT [AFI's difficulty in profitably matching market
prices as fish costs have continuously increased due to the prohibitive fishing regulations in
Indonesia.

The revenue increase in salmon-related products was due to a 34% increase in revenues
from Akaroa as it continues to grow its local sales and expand itg export market. BGB has

been intensifying its selling efforts by increasing its local customer base and deveioping new
export clients resulting to a 40% increase in volume sales,

The Group’s gross profits of $ 9 million in 2017 were 172% higher than gress profits of $3
million in 2016. The gross profit ratio increased to 13% in 2017, from 8% in 2016. The
salmon business experienced a decline in gross profit ratio to 17% in 2017 from 20%,
perticularly due to higher raw material prices in Spence due to supply issues encountered as
a result of the algae bloom in Chile and sea lice in the North Sea.

The frequent shut downs of PT 1AF! is due to its inability to source low cost fish in the region,
resulting in an uncompetitive cost structure in the globally-competitive tuna canning market.
PT IAFI's predicament is common to other tuna canning companies in Indonesia. Indonesian
fishing regulations have made foreign commercial fishing in Indonesian waters practically
impossible, resulting in higher figh prices and insufficient supply for tuna canneries across
Indonesia.

The Group’s nomat selling and administrative expenses of $ 6.7 million in 2017 were 1%
iower than $ 6.8 million in 2016. The ratio of nomai selling and administrative expenses to

As part of the Company’s risk management process and in line with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventories are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an allowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal of any provision for

measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impaimment losses. In CY 2017, the
Group recognized the following provisions in its books: ‘

- Inventory write down and allowance for inventory obsolescence for the Group totaling
$230,780. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and its adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

- Provision for impaiment of other property, plant, and equipment and other assefs
amounting to $1,090,400 primarily relating to the property, plant and equipment
carried in the books of PT JAF).



- Provision for trade and other receivables amounting io $69,574. The Group identified
specific accounts that are doubtful of collection, considering historical collection and
write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the amounts deemed to
be uncollectible.

The Group's finance costs of $788k in 2017 were 9% lower than its finance costs of $869k in
2018. The decrease was due 1o the settlement of fong-term loans of the Company using its

short-term placements. Moreover, a portion of the SRO proceeds was utilized fo retire high
interest loans. o

The Group ended the year with net income of $ 1.6 million from $ 5.9 million loss in 20186,

December 31, 2016 versus December 31, 2015

The table below shows the comparison of key operating fesulls for the fiscal
period ended December 31, 2016 versus the same period in 2015.

Years Ended December 31
Amount in US $°000 2016 2015 %
Change

Revenue $59,914 $67,916 -12%
Gross profit 3,468 6,820 -49%
Gross margin 6% 10%
Seliing & Administrative
Expenses 6,771 - 9772

Nomal selling & -31%
administrative

Provision for impairment 1,187 8,973 -87%

Other non-operating income
Gain on acquisition of - 5,827 -100%

AMIHI & re-measurement of

previously held interest

Finrance Cost 869 1,903 -54%

Profit {Loss) for the year (5,899) (8,023) ~26%

Non-controliing interest _ 70 {1,630) -104%

Profit{Loss} attributable to

equity {5,969) (6,302) -7%
holders of the parent

Net Profit {Loss) Margin “10% -12%

EBITDA (2,780) {5,107) -46%

EBITDA margin -5% -9%

Return on equity (ROE) - -
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17% 21%
Eamings (Loss) per share (0.0024) (0.0038) -45%
Book value per share 0.0129 0.0152 -15%

The Group’s consolidated revenues of $ 80 milion in 2016 were 12% lower than the
revenues of $ 68 million in 2015. In 2016, about 58% of total revenues were contributed by
funa-related products and the remaining 42% were contributed by salmon-related products.
Revenues declined by 14% for the tuna-related products while revenues for the salmon-
related products declined 8%. The revenue decline in the funa business was impacted the
severe fluctuation in prices of raw materials. Shipments of canned tuna declined 12% 1o 630
full container load (FCL) in 2016 from 712 FCLs in 2015, The volume decline in canned tuna
shipped was mainly attributable to the decline in sales volume of the PT IAFI by 40% to 66
FCLs in 2016 from 109 FCLs in 2015. The decline in PT IAF'’s sales volume was a result of
PT 1AFf's difficulty in profitably matching market prices ss fish costs have continuously
increased due to the prohibitive fishing regulations in indonesia.

The revenue decline in salmon-related products was due to the Company's divestment of its
PFNZ shares, resulting to a loss of PENZ as a customer, mitigated by a 34% increase in
revenues from Akaroa. BGB has been intensifying its selling efforts in increasing its local

customer base and developing new export clients to compensate for the lost volume from
PFNZ.

The Group’s gross profits of $ 3 million in 2016 were 49% lower than gross profits of § 7
million in 2015. The gross profit ratio dropped to 6% in 2016 from 10% in 2015 due to the
negative gross profit margin in the tuna business of 6% in 2016 from a positive 1% margin in
2015. The lowsr volumes sold, unexpected spike in raw materials, and price compression
from competition caused the negative gross profit of the tuna business. The salmon
business also experienced a decline in gross profits to 20% in 2016 from 25% due to higher
raw material prices.

The frequent and persistent shut downs of PT IAF| is due fo its inability to source low cost
fish in the region, resulting in an uncompetitive cost structure in the globally-competitive tuna
canning market. PT IAFI's predicament is common to other tuna canning companies in
indonesia. Indonesian fishing regulations have made foreign commercial fishing in
Indonesian waters practically impossible, resulting in higher fish prices and insufficient
supply for tuna canneries across Indonesia.

The Group's normal seliing and administrative expenses of § 7 million in 2016 were 31%
lower than § 10 million in 2015. The ratio of normal selling and administrative expenses to
sales decreased by 3 percentage points to 11% in 2016 from 14% in 2015. Over the past
two years, the Group has successfully implemented measures to reduce operating expenses
and have consistently managed costs to partially cushion the impact of the inherent volatility
in raw material prices.

As part of the Company’s risk management process and in line with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventories are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an allowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal of any provision for
inventory obsolescence, arising from any increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a
reduction in the inventory amount in the period when the reversal occurs. When the

11



inventory is sold, the carrying amount of the inventory is recognized as an expense in the
period when the related revenue is recognized. Property, plant and equipment are likewise
measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impainment losses. In CY 201 G, the
Group recognized the following provisions in its books: :

- Inventory write-down and aliowance for inventory chsolescence for the Group totaling
$794,010. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and its adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

-~ Provision for impairment of other property, plant, and equipment and other assets
amounting to' $314,320 primarily relating to the two (2) fishing vessels carried in
ASFII Parent and PT VDZ's books.

-~ Provision for trade and other receivables amounting to. $79,049. The Group identified
specific accounts that are doubtful of collection, considering historical collection and
write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the amounts deemed to
be uncollectible. : :

The Group’s finance costs of $869k in 2016 were 54% lower than its finance costs of $1.9
million in 2015. The decrease was due to the settlement of long-term loans of the Com pany
using its short-term placements. Moreover, a portion of the SRO proceeds was utilized o
retire high interest loans. '

The Group managed to reduce net losses by 26% to $ 6 million in 2016 from $ 8 million in
2015.

Calendar Year 2015 compared to Calendar Year 2014

The table below shows the comparison of key operating results for the
calendar years 2015 and 2014.

Years ended December 31
Amount in US $°000 2015 2014 % Change
Revenue $ 67,916 $ 81,262 -18%
Gross profit 6,820 7,880 -13%
Gross margin 10% 10%
Selling & administrative
expenses
Nomnal selling & 9,477 8,720* 9%
~ administrative expenses
Provisions for impairment 9,268 19,570* -53%
Gain on acquisition of
AMIH! & re-measurement of 5827 - 100%
previously held interest :
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Finance Cost 1,903 1,831 4%
Profit (Loss) for the year (8,023) (17,076) -53%
Non-controliing interest {1,630) {640} 155%
Profit (Loss) attributable to (8,392)  (16,436) -61%
equity holders of the parent

Net Profit (Loss) Margin -12% -21%

EBITDA ' (6,194) (19,343) -68%
EBITDA margin -9% -24%

Retum on equity (ROE) -21% -84%

Eamings (Loss) per share $(0.0038) $(0.0122) -69%
Book value per share $0.0152 $0.0178 -14%

*Includes reclassification to align with 2015 presentation

The Group's consolidated revenues of $66 million in 2015 were 16% lower than the
revenues of $61 million in 2014. The revenue decline is primarily due to lower volumes sold
across the group and secondarily due to lower prices for canned tuna products sold. in 2015,
about 60% of total revenues were contributed by tuna and fishmeal products and the
remaining 40% were contributed by salmon products. The volume decline in canned tuna
shipped was mainly attributable to the decline in sales volume of PT IAFI by 52%. The
decline in PT !AFI's sales volume was a result of PT IAFI's difficutty in profitably matching
low canned tuna prices to high fish costs resulting from prohibitive fishing regulations in
Indonesia. The revenue decline in salmon products was due to the Company’s loss of PFNZ
as a customer. PFNZ accounted for more than 50% of the revenues generated by BGB in
2014,

The Group’s gross profits of $7 million in 2015 were 13% lower than gross profits of $6
million in 2014. The ratio of gross profits to sales of 10% remain unchanged in 2015 from
2014. The decline in the tuna business’ gross profits were offset by the increase in the gross
profits of the salmon business. From 5% in 2014, the gross margin of the tuna business was
2% in 2015 because of the high cost of raw materials, lower capacity utilization, and lower
selling prices due to heavy discounts given by competitors. However, the decline in the
gross margins of the tuna business was offset by an increase in the margins of the salmon
business.

PT IAFFs predicament is similar to other tuna canning companies in Indonesia. Indonesian
fishing regulations have restricted foreign commercial fishing in Indonesian waters, rasulting
in higher fish prices and significantly insufficient supply for tuna canneries across Indonesia.
While management believes that unconventicnal sourcing strategies and cost saving
initiatives will eventually reverse the financial performance of PT IAF), it is struggling with fish
sourcing and competitiveness in the meantime.

The Group’s normal selling and adminisirative expenses of $9.5 million in 2015 was 9%
higher than $8.7 miflion in 2014, The ratio of normal selling and administrative expenses to
sales increased by 3.2% to 14% in 2015 from 10.7% in 2014. The increase represents costs
relating to aggressively expanding the sales team and strengthening the management team.
The increase was partially offset by cost-saving initiatives.
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As part of the Company’s risk management process and in line with its Accounting Policies,
when the net realizable value of the inventories are lower than cost, the Company provides
for an allowance for the decline in inventory value. The reversal of any provision for
inventory obsolescence, arising from any increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a

measured at cost less depreciation and provision for impairment losses. in CY 201 5, the
Group recognized the foliowing provisions in its books:

- Inventory write down and allowance for invéntory obsolescence for the Group totaling
$5.3 million. The provision also accounts for the passage of time and its adverse
impact on the value of unsold inventory.

- Provision for impairment of other property, plant, and equipment and other assets
amounting to $3.85 million primarily relating to the two (2) fishing vessels and fishing
license camied in PT VDZ's books. In 2015, indonesian fishing regulators prohibited
VDZ to operate said vessels. The Company believes that the fishing license is
uniikely to be renewed given Indonesia’s regulatory environment. Without the legal
approval to operate in intended fishing grounds, the book value of VDZ's vessels and
fishing license are unlikely to be recovered. Furthermore, some property, piant, and
equipment used by PT [AFI] are similarly impacted by said Indonesian regulations,
resulting to additional provision for impairment.

- Provision for trade and other receivables amounting to $0.32 million. The Group
identified specific accounts that are doubtful of collection, considering historical
collection and write-off experience, and provided a provision pertaining to the
amounts deemed to be uncollectible.

- Provision for impairment of the investment in FDCP amounting to $0.25 million. The
Group is the sole customer of FDCP. Due to the Group's sourcing from alternative
can suppliers, the Group believes that the book value of its investment in FDCP is
unlikely to be recovered.

The Group’s finance costs of $1.9 million in 2015 were 4% higher than its finance costs of
$1.8 million in 2014. Management is taking several measures to reduce the Group’s cash
conversion cycle and subsequently reduce its financing costs. A portion of the SRO
proceeds was utilized to retire high interest loans,

The Group’s ownership increase in AMHI from 40% 1o 98.89% led 10 a re-measurement of
previously held interest and a gain on acquisition amounting to $5.8 million. '

The Group managed to reduce net losses by 53% to $8.0 million in 2015 from $17.1 million
in 2014. _ '

Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources

March 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017
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The Group had a total liability to equity ratio of 1.15:1 and 1.09:1 as at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively.

The 24% growth in 2018 Q1 sales versus 2017 Q4 sales led to an increased trade and other
receivables balance.

Inventory balances across entities were maintained compared to that of 2017 ending
balances, except for BGB which grew by 36% mainly due to raw materials purchase.

Increase in Other current assets ig due to BGB’s increase in advances to vendors/suppliers.
increase in Trade and other payables are mainly for raw material purchases.

A higher average loan balance for the quarter drove the 13% growth in loans payable.

March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current Ratio 0.7 0.92
Debt-to-equity Ratio 1.15 1.09

December 31, 2017 compared to Decembar 31, 2016

Balance Sheet Highlights Years Ended
December 31
Amount in US$'000 2017 2016 % Change
Cash & cash equivalent $4,427 $7,396 -40%
Receivables 9414 8,725 40%
Inventories 14,155 7,954 78%
Other current assets 5,812 1,530 282%
Total Current Assets $33,608 $23,605 43%
Property & Equipment 16,104 17,007 5%
‘Total Assets $70,519 $59,861 18%
Trade and Other Payables 9,745 6,070 61%
Bank Loans . 24 286 20,830 17%
Total Current Liabilities 36,358 27,128 4%
Total Liabilities 36,830 27,7149 33%
Total Stockholders’ Equity 33,688 32,112 5%
Total Liabilities & SE - $70,519 $59,%61 18%

40% increase in Trade and other receivables was primarily due to en increase in 4" quarter
sales that will be collected in 2018; ASFII in particular delivered 32FCLs more in the last
quarter of 2017 at 144 FCLs versus 112FCLs in 20186,
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78% increase in Inventory balance was a result of a 4x higher frozen fish inventory balance

* in ASFIi vs last year as well as increase in PT IAFI's finished goods inventory balance

relating to the 11FCLs for delivery in early 2018.

282% increase in Other current assets was mainly due to advance payments to vendors for
raw materials.

5% decrease in Property & Equipment due to the impairment of property, plant and
eguipment in the books of PT JAFI.

There was no impairment of goodwill tecognized during the year.

81% increase in Trade and Other Payables is due to obligations with various suppliers of
raw materials and supplies.

17% increase in Loans Payable is due to the avaiiments made during the last quarter of
2017 mainly used for purchase and as prepayments of raw materials. :

Loans payable — net of current portion increase by 46%.

Amounts as of December 31 2017 2016
Curmrent Ratio 0.92 (.87
Debt-to-equity Ratio 1.09 0.86

December 31, 2016 compared to December 31, 2015

Balance Sheet Highlights Years Ended
December 31
Amount in US$'000 2016 2015 % Change
Cash & cash equivalent $7,396 $17,595 -58%
Receivables 6,725 5374 25%
Inventories . 7,954 6,722 18%
Other current assets 1,530 1,097 39%
Total Current Assets ' $23,605 30,788 -23%
Property & Equipment 17,007 17,917 -5%
Total Assets $59,861 $66,538 13%
Trade and Other Payables 6,070 $5,73 6%
Bank Loans 20,830 21,840 - 5%
Total Current Liabilities 27,128 27,786 -2%
Total Liabilities 27,749 30,474 8%
Total Stockholders’ Equity 32,112 38,064 ~16%
Total Liabilities & SE $58,861 $68,538 “13%

16




R

58% decrease in Cash due to the application of proceeds from the Stock Rights Offering
(SRQ) to the Group's working capital requirements and repayment of high interest loans.

25% increase in Trade and other receivables was primarily due fo an increase in 4% quarter
sales that wifl be collected in 2017,

18% increase in Inventories was primarily due to goods produced in 2016 that will be sold in
2017.

104% increase in Other current aéseis was mainly due to advance payments to vendors.
5% decrease in Property & Equipment due to the impaiment of two (2) fishing vessels.
There was no impaimment of goodwill recognized during the year,

8% increase in Trade and Other Payables is due to obligations with various suppliers of raw
materials and supplies. :

5% decrease in Loans Payable is due to the settlement of various loans.
Loans payable — net of current portion declined by 97% due to the settiement of various

loans
16% decrease in Equity pertains to the decrease in Retained Earnings.

Amounts as of December 31 2016 2015
Current Ratio : 0.87 1.11
Debt-to-equity Ratio 0.86 0.80

- The Group's financial liquidity profile declined in 2016 due to the application of proceeds

from the Stock Rights Offering to the Group’s working capital requirements.

December 31, 2015 compared to December 31, 2014

As at December 31
Amount in US $'000 2015 2014 % Change
Cash & cash equivalents 5 17,505 % 2,426 625%
Receivables 5,374 9,796 -45%
Inventories 8,722 18,768 -84%
Other current assets 1,097 1,727 -36%
Total Current Assets ' 30,788 32,738 £%
Property & Equipment 17,917 13,227 3I5%
Total Assets $ 68,538 $ 65,847 4%
Trede and Other Payables 5,731 9,040 7%
Short-term loans payable 21,840 29,201 -25%
Total Current Liabilities 27,786 38,396 =28%
Total Liabilities 30,474 42,516 -28%
Total Stockholders' Equity (SE) 38,064 23,331 63%
Total Liabilities & SE $ 68,538 % 65,847 4%
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Changes in current assets: Lower group revenues have led to a 45% decrease in
Receivables. The Group has recognized allowances, write downs, and impairments resulting
in a 64% decrease in Inventories, Lower prepayments for raw materials as of end 2015 led
to a 36% decrease in Other Current Assets.

Impact of Stock Rights Offering: The 625% increase in cash & cash equivalents was due
to the proceeds of the SRO in August 2015. The proceeds were partially used to settle
outstanding obligations, contributing to the 37% decrease in Trade and Other Payables.
Furthermore, the proceeds were also used to setlle other obligations such as bank loans,
leading to the decline in short-term loans payable of 25% and total fiabilities of 28%. The
SRO has aiso contributed to the increase in Total Stockholders’ Equity by 63%.

The consolidation of AMHI as a subsidiary of the Company has led to the recognition of
AMHI's land as part of property, plant, and equipment, confributing to the 35% increase in
the property, plant, and equipment account, :

Amounts as of December 31 2015 2014
Current Ratio 1.1 0.85
Debt to equity Ratio 0.80 1.82

The Group significantly improved its financial stability and liquidity profile in 2015 due 1o the
infusion of the proceeds from the SRO in August 2015,

Plan of Operation

The Group does not foresece any cash flow or liquidity problem over the next twelve (12)
months. it is in compliance with its foan covenant pertaining to debt-to-equity ratio. It is not
aware of any material off-balance shest transactions, arangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations) and other relationship of the Group with entities or other persons
created during the reporting period that would have significant impact on the Group’s
operations and/or financial condition.

As of March 31, 2018, there were no other material events or unceriainties known to
management that could have a materiat impact on the future operations, in respect of the
following: _

e Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a
material impact on the Group;

* Known trends, events, uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/ income from
continuing operations; :

* Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Group's continuing
operations; and

* Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resuits of
operations. '

Key performance Indicators

The company uses the following key performance indicators to assess the Company's
financial performance from period to period.
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For the 3-
month
ended

For the period ended December 31 March 31
Liquidity and
Solvency 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018
Current ratio 085! 111] os7] o082 0.97 |
Debt to equity ratio ' 1.82 0.80 0.86 1.09 1.15
Profitability
Revenue growth rate -3.6% | -164% ) -118%| 20.5% 40.6%
Net profit margin -21.0% | -11.8% [ -10.0% 2% 5%
Return on average |
stockholders' equity -644% [ -20.8%| -17.0% 4.4% 3.1%

The following defines each ratio:

The revenue growth rate is the Group’s increase in revenue for a given period. This
growth rate is computed from the current revenue less revenua of the previous year,
divided by the revenue of the previous year. The result is expressed in percentage.

The net profit margin is the ratio of the Group’s net income attributable to equity
holders of the parent versus its net revenue for a given period. This is computed by
dividing net income after tax by net revenue. The result is expressed in percentage.

The total liabilities to equity ratio are used to measure debt exposure, it shows the
refative proportions of all creditors' claims versus ownership claims. This is
computed by dividing total liabilities by total stockholders’ equity. The result is
expressed in proportion.

The retumn on average stockholders' equity ratio is the ratio of the Group's net
income attributable to equity holders of the parent to the average stockhoiders’
equity. This measures the management's ability to generate returns on investments.
This is computed by dividing net income attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the average stockholders’ equity. The result is expressed in percentage.

V. Number of Holders of Each Class of Common Securi_tj

As of December 31, 2017, there are 2,499,71 2,463 outstanding and issued common shares
of the Company, exclusive of 287,537 treasury shares. The Company does not have any
class of shares other than common shares.

V.. Names of the Top Twenty (20) Shargholders of Each Class

The top twenty (20) stockholders of the Company as of April 30, 2018 are the following:
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Name . Na, of shares

% ownership

1. PCD Nominee Corporatian (Filipino) 2.012,025,187
2. Harvest All Investment Limited 177,261,165
3. Viciory Fund Limited ' 138,474,015
4. PCD Noaminee Corporation (Foreign) 93.989.961

5. Albert Hin Kay Hong 39,071,537
6. Bondeast Private Limited 13,023,411

7. Kawsek Ir., Peter 4,538,646
8. FCF Fishery Co. Ltd. 3,975,370
9. Cordova, Michael W. 3,805,000
10. S. Chandra Das 2,604,760
11. Oriental Tin Can & Metnl Sheet Mig. 2,210,385
12. FDCP, Ine. _ 1,894,045

13. Cheng, Berck Yao 1,200,000
14. Tri-Marine International (Pte) Ltd. 1,170,472
15. Damalerio Fishing Corp. 920,656
16. DFC Tuna Venture Carporation 617,248
17. Phil. Fisheries Development Authority 346,207
18. Amadeo Fishing Corp. 294,874
18. GENPACCO, Inc. 172,973

20. MGTR Fishing 135,399

80.48%
7.09%
5.54%
3.76% |
1.56%
0.52%
0.18%
0.16%
0.15%
0.10%
0.0%%
0.08%
0.05%

- 0,05%
0.04%
0.02%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%

Please note that the 2,012,025 187 shares reflected above for PCD Nominee Corporation
(Filipino) include the 1,382,755,864 shares (55.32%) of Strongoak, Inc. and the 112,170,283

shares (4.49%) of Mingjing Holdings, inc.

There is no action to be taken at the 2018 AGM with respect to an acquisition, business
combination or other reorganization that wili affect the amount and percentage of present
holdings of the Company’s common equity owned beneficially by (i) any person or group

who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five
any class of the registrant's common equity; (i) each director and nomi
directors and officers as a group, and the Company's present commitments
with respect to the issuance of shares of any class of its common equily,

percent (5%) of

nee; and (jii) all
to such persons
if any.
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V.

Directors

Board of Directors
Year
Director Natlonality | Position Age :;z't'o"
Assumed
Antonio C. Pacis Filipino Chaiman of the Board 77 2014
George E. Sycip American | Vice Chairman 61 2004
Raymond K H. See Filipino gg%ctor, President & 50 2014
Marie Grace T. Vera |ty | Director 37 | 2014
Joseph Peter Y.|__ . .
Roxas Filipino Director 56 2018
Erwin M. Elechicon Filipino Independent Director 58 2016
Dobbin A. Tan Filipino Independent Director 54 2016

ANTONIO C. PACIS - 77, Filipino citizen; Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pacis obtsined his law degree from the Ateneo Law School in 1965 and his Master of
Law degree from the Harvard Law School in 1967.

He is on the Board of Directors at OCLP Holdings Inc., BDO Unibank, inc., Paluwagan NG
Bayan Savings Bank, Armstrong Pacific Co., Inc., Legisforum, Inc., Technology investment
Co., Inc. and Central Colleges of The Philippines.

He is Chairman of the Board of Directors at Asian Silver Estate, Inc., intemational Social
Service Philippines, Inc., Amigo Holdings, Inc., Asian Waterront Holdings, Inc., Mantle
Holdings, Inc., and Corporate Secretary for Armstrong Securities; Inc., EBC Strategic
Holdings Corp., and Paluwagan NG Bayan Savings Bank.

Mr. Pacis has been practicing law since 1965 and continues to practice at Pacis and Reyes
Law Office and was a professor of law at the Ateneo Law School.

GEORGE E. SYCIP - 61, American citizen; Vice-Chairman

Mr. Sycip received his BA “With Distinction’ In Intemational Relations/Economics from
Stanford University and his Master in Business Administration Degree from the Harvard
Business School

Mr. Sycip is the Director and Principal of Galaxaco China Group, a project doing business in
China, and Halanna Management estate investment and development and consultancy firm
serving American, European and Asian clients’ estate investment and development
company. Mr. Sycip cumently serves on the Boards or Advisory Boards of several
companies and institutions. In Asia, these include Beneficia-PNB Life Insurance, Medtecs
Corporation, and Cityland Development Corporation. In the U.S,, he is on the Board of the
Bank of the Orient, Arasor International, the California Asia Business Council, and the
Intemational Institute for Rural Reconstruction, Give2Asia, and Stanford University’s institute
for international Studies.
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RAYMOND K. H. SEE - 50, Filipino citizen; Director, President & CEO

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in B.S. Industrial
Management Engineering, minor in Mechanical Engineering. '

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation. He rose from the ranks in his 24 year stay in the said company. Mr. See was
the Senior Vice-President for Operation of the Company before being appointed as
President & CEO of the Company on December 8, 2014.

MARIE GRACE T. VERA CRUZ - 37, Filipino citizen; Dirsctor

Ms. Vera Cruz holds an MBA from London Business School and a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Economics from the University of the Philippines, where she graduated Magna
cum Laude.

Ms. Vera Cruz is the Managing Director of Seawood Resources, Inc., an investment
company based in the Philippines. She is also the President of Strongoak, Inc. Prior to
Seawood and Strongoak, Ms. Vera Cruz was a consultant at McKinsey & Co.

JOSEPH PETER Y. ROXAS - 56, Filipino citizen; Director

Mr. Roxas graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1983 with a Bachelor's degree

in Economics. He also has MBA units from the Ateneo de Manila University Graduate
School.

Mr. Roxas is President of Eagle Equities, Inc. since 1998. He is also presently a Diractor of
Kimquan Trading Corporation, a privately held company.. He is also a Director of the
Association of Securities Analysts of the Philippines since 2000. Mr. Roxas was with R.
Coyuito Securiies as Assistant Vice President for Research from 1993 to 1995, and
Investment Officer from 1987 to 1992.

ERWIN M. ELECHICON - 58, Filipino citizen; Independent Director

Mr. Elechicon holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics, cum faude, from the Ateneo de
Manila University in 1979. He attended courses in Finance at the Columbia Business
School; and in Marketing at Kellogg School of Management.

Mr. Elechicon was with the Procter & Gamble Company (P&G) for over 26 years. He has
had local and regional responsibilities at P&G across Asia, and has lived in Singapore,
Mumbai, Kuala Lumpur and Ho Chi Minh City as well as Manila. He was also President and
General Manager of two Jollibee Foods Corporation subsidiaries, Greenwich Pizza
Company and Chowking. He was co-founder and Chairman of Assurant BPO Solutions, Inc.,
a Makafi-based company providing business and knowledge process outsourcing and
managed services solutions {o a broad range of clients. He was also a director of U-Bix
Corporation, one of the {argest integrated office systems and service providers in the
Philippines.
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V.

DOBBIN A. TAN - 54, Filipino citizen; Independent Director

Mr. Tan graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1985 with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Management Engineering. He obtained his Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Chicago, Booth School of Business in 2013. Mr. Tan
also attended a Management Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management in
1990, and a Strategic Business Economics Program of the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 2001,

Mr. Tan is presently Chief Executive Officer of New Sunlife Ventures, Inc. He was Managing
Director and Chief Operating Officer of Information Gateway from 2002 to 2012. Mr. Tan

Executive Officers

. . . Year Position

Officer Nationality | Position Age was Assumed
Raymond K.H. See Filipino President & CEO 50 2014
Lisa Angela Y. Filipino SVP — Operationat | 35 2014
Dejadina . Excelience and

Business

Development
Barbara Anne C. Filipino Corporate 63 2015
Migallos Secretary :
Ma. Kristina P. Filipino Asst, Corporate | 39 2015
Ambrocio : Secretary and

Compliance Officer

RAYMOND K_H. SEE — 50, Filipino citizen; President & CEO.

Mr. See graduated from De La Salle University in 1989 with a degree in B.S. Industrial
Management Engineering, minor in Mechanicat Engineering.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. See was a former executive from Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation who rose from the ranks in his 24 year stay in the said company. Mr. See was
the Senior Vice-President for Operation of the Company before being appointed as
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on December 8, 2014,

LISA ANGELA Y. DEJADINA - 33, Filipino citizen: Senior Vice President for
Operational Excellence and Business Development

Ms. Dejadina has a degree in B.S. Industrial Engineering from the University of the
Philippinies where she graduated in 2005.
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Prior to joining the company, Ms. Dejadina worked at Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
where she covered various roles contributing to ten years of solid work experience in the
petroleum industry in the areas of fuel depot operations, Health, Safety, Security and
Environment (HSSE) management, and business support functions (business development,
logistics, and leaming & development).

BARBARA ANNE C. MIGALLOS — 63, Filipino citizen; Corporate Secretary.

Ms. Migallos graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines, with a Bachelor of
Arts degree, and finished her Bachelor of Laws degree as cum laude (salutatorian) also at
the University of the Philippines. She placed third in the 1979 Philippine Bar Examination.

Ms. Migallos was elected as Corporate Secretary of the Company on July 8, 2015. She is
Director and Corporate Secretary of Philex Mining Corporation and Philex Petroleurn
Corporation, and Corporate Secretary of Nickel Asia Corporation and Silangan Mindanao
Mining Co., Inc. She is the Managing Partner of the Migallos & Luna Law Offices. Ms.
Migallos is also a Director of Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation and Philippine Resins Industries,
and Corporate Secretary of Eastern Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. She is a
professorial lecturer in Corporations Law, Insurance, Securities Regutation and Credit
Transactions at the De La Salle University College of Law. She was a Senior Partner of
Roco Kapunan Migallos and Luna Law Offices from 1988 to 2008.

MA. KRISTINA P. AMBROCIO - 39, Filipino citizen; Assistant Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Officer

Ms. Ambrocio graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University in 2001 with a major in
Philosophy, and minor in Humanities. She obtained her law degree in 2005 from the
University of the Philippines. Ms. Ambrocio also completed an Advanced Intellectual
Property Law course at the Institute of European Studies of Macau in 2008.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ambrocio was Corporate Counsel and Assistant Corporate
Secretary of Chevron Philippines, Inc.

IX. Market Price of the issuer’s Common Shares
Al TTICE ol the Issuer's Common Shares

The common shares of the Company are traded on the PSE under the symhol FOOD. The
Company’s common stock was first listed on the PSE on November 8, 2008.

The table below sets out the high and low sales prices for the Company’s common shares
as reported on the PSE for the periods indicated.

2016 2017 2018 _

High Low |High Low High lLow

Q1 081 057| 082 0.80{ 065 0.55

Q2 101 070| 0.86| 084 | 0.70*] 0.52*
Q3 135( 080 079 077
Q4 1.06| 0.78! 062 0.61

2 April 1, 2018 to 22 May, 2018
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On December 29, 2017, the last trading day for the year, the closing price for FOOD was
P0.62 per share. On 22 May 2018, the closing price of FOOD was P0.60 per share.

The number of shareholders of record as of Aprit 30, 2018 is 200 and the total number of
shares outstanding on that date were 2,499,712,463 net of 287,537 treasury shares. -

Public float as of April 30, 2018 is 31.77%.

X. Dividends

The Company is authorized to declare and distribute dividends to the extent it has
unrestricted retained earnings. Unrestricted retained eamings represent the undistributed
profits of a corporation that have not been earmarked for any corporate purposes. A
corporation may pay dividends in cash, by distribution of property, or by issuance of shares.
Dividends dectared in the form of cash or additional shares are subject to approval by the
Company's Board of Directors.

In addition to Board approval, dividends declared in the form of additional shares are also
subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock. Holders of outstanding common shares as of a dividend
record date will be entitled to full dividends declared without regard to any subsequent
transfer of such shares. SEC approval is required before any property or stock dividends can
be distributed. While there is no need for SEC approval for distribution of cash dividends, the
declaration of cash dividends must be immediately disclosed to the SEC and the PSE in
accordance with the SRC Rule 17.

The Company has not adopted a specific dividend policy. Nevertheless, the Company has
declared dividends for the years 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2011.

The company has not declared dividends for the past two {(2) most recent fiscal years,

In the future, the Company intends to continue {o pay dividends out of its unrestricted
retained eamings. The ability to pay dividends, and the amount of such, however, shall
depend on the Company’s retained eamings, cash flow requirements, financial condition,
capital expenditures, and investment requirements during the relevant period.

Xl.  Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

There are no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities, including recant issuances of
securities constituting an exempt transaction.

Xll. GCorporate Governance

The Company befieves that corporate governance is a necessary component of what
constitutes sound strategic - business management, and therefore undertakes all efforts
necessary fo create awareness within the organization.

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are principally embodied in
the Company's Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws and its amendments, and Manual on
Corporate Govemance. The Company complies with the Revised Code of Corporate
Govemance set by the Securities & Exchange Commission {SEC) and the Corporate
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Governance Guidelines and Listing Rules of the Philippines Stock Exchange {PSE), and
endeavors to elevate its corporate governance practices in line with best practices.

The Company's Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws and Manual on Corporate Governance
may be viewed on the Company’s website (http:!faIlianceselectfoods.com!).

To ensure adherence to corporate governance principles and best practices, the Company
has a Compliance Officer with the rank of Vice President that reports directly fo the
Chairman of the Board. The Compliance Officer constantly monitors and evalustes
compliance of the Directors and officers to its Manual on Corporate Govemance.

Corporate Governance Updates

The Company filed its revised Manual on Corporate Governance (containing revisions as of July
2014) with the SEC on 31 July 2014.1t also filed its Consolidated Changes to the Annual
Corporate Governance Report on January 14, 20186. Since then, the Company has filed two
(2) amendments to the Company’s ACGR to reflect the changes made after the Company’'s
stockholders’ meeting held on March 01, 2016. All amendments and changes have been
posted in the Company’s website before the prescribed deadline.

In addition, the Company has been regularly submitting corporate govemance surveys as
required by the PSE Memorandum 2010-0574 dated November 26, 2010. Since this
requirement came into force, the Company has been participating in these surveys and filing
it with the Exchange in a timely manner. A Compliance Report on Comporate Govemance
was submitted to the Exchange on March 29, 20186 for the year ended December 31, 2015.

On June 1, 2017, in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8 Series of 2017,
Aliiance Select Foods intemational, Inc. (FOOD) submitted with the SEC its 2017 Corporate

Govemance Manual. The same was adopted by the Board of Directors of FOOD in a special
meeting held on May 30, 2017. : . '

The Company plans to adopt a whistleblowing policy, and a code of business ethics.
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A ALLIANCE SELECT FooDs
A INTERNATIONAL, INC,

AFERLTELR L3I Chute ey

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FIHAHUALSTATEHEIFIS

In preparing the consofidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to contimue as a Eommg concem, disdasing, as applicable matters
refated to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

eiﬂ:ermtendstnqumdatetheGmuportomaseopaaﬂmu,orlnsnnreaIsth:aItemm st
to daso.

The Board of Directors is respansihle in overseeing the Group's finandal reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated fisancial statements Incluiding
ﬂlesdmdulesauadwedﬂmein,andaﬂmﬂsmesametuthemmsnrmemhers. '

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the Independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited
the consofidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards gn
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinlon on the
faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit.

ANTONIO C/PACIS
Chairman of the Boa

MA. CRISTINA C. VILLARUZ
Group Comptrofer
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- INDEPENDENT AUDJTORS’ REPORT

The Stackhalders and the Baard of Directars
Alllance Select Faods Intermational, Jnc,

Unit 1206 East Tower

Phifippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortlgas Avenue, Pasig Clty

QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financjal Statements of Afllance Select Foods
international, Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak inc.) and Subsidiaries {the "Group™}, which comprise tha
consolidated statemants of financlal position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive Income, consolidated statements of changes In equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of slgniflcant accaunting policles.

In our opinion, the consolidated financlal statements present falrly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial positlon of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolldated cash fiows for the years then ended, In accordance with
Phitiopine Financia] Reporting Standards {PFRS].

Basis for Qpinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Phillppine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audfors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements saction of ourreport. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountams in the Philippines {Code of Ethics)
together with the athical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the cansolldated flnancla|
statements jn the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our gther ethical responsibilities In accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethlcs, We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained fs
sufflicient and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion, '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most signiflcance in our

- audlt of the consolidated financial statements of the current perlod. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audlt of the consofidated financial statements asa whole, and In forming our opinian
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinton on these matters, )

THE POWER OF REING UNDERSTOOG

N P D ey
AUEHT YA COUSULYING . Rs M‘
Ryt Tacandong & 0. 15 o bet of tha RSM k. Exch member of the RSK paty % b an indepencd mrﬂgmdmnsmhgﬁmurﬂpnﬁkuhho\mﬂgh:mnsumm;kls
ot 15T separstn gl entlty a¥any Sesciption In wry Judsdicion,
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FIRM PRINCIPLTS, WISI: ROLUTIONS,

o
o

atlon of Property, Plant and Equ en
Property, pl nd equipment, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreclation and

ant a

any accumulated Impairment in value, Land is stated at cost less any impaiment In value, The Group Is
required to review the recoverable amount of its property, plant and equlpment whenever there Is an
indication of impajrment losses. Determination of the recoverable amount involves slgnificant estimates
and assumptions. Total carrylng amount of the Group’s psoparty, plant and equipment amounted to
$16.10 miilfon or 23% of the total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2017, Our audit precedures
included, among others, review of Mmanagement’s Impairment analysis and cash tlow projections and
evaluatlon of the assumptions used by the Group. We also focusad on the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures about those assumptions 1o which the outcome of the Impairment test is most sensitive,
that is, those that have the most significant effect on the determination of the recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment In accordance with PAS 86. The Group’s disclosures are included in
Notes 2, 3 and 11 to the consolldated financlal statements.

Valuation of Goodwill

Under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 36, Impairment of Assats, the Group (s required 1o annwally
- test the amount of goodwill for Impairment. This annual Impairment test was significant to our audit
because the assessment process is complex and highly judgmental and Is based on assumptlons that are

review of management's: impalrment analysis and cash flow projections and evaluation of the
assumptions used by the Group. We also focused on the-adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about
those assumptions to which the outcome of the Impalrment test Is most sensftive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on the determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill in

accordance with PAS 36, The Group's disclosures are included In Notes 2, 3 and 5 1o the consalidated
financial statements, _

Valuation of Inventorles

Inventories are initlally measured at cost and subsequently valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value (NRV). Determination of the NRV of inventories involves stgnificant judgment and Js affected by
volatllity of the price in the market, Total inventories of the Group of $14.15 million represent 20% of
the total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2017. Our audit procedures Included an assessment of

ARG
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Other Information

Annuai Report for the ¥ear ended December 31,2017 are expected to be made available to us after the
tate of this auditors’ report,

M'ana'gement Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PR and for such internal contrel as management determines s

5,
hecessary to enable the preparatlon of consolidated financia) Statements that are free from materla]
misstatement, whether due tg fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financia) Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
&bifity to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters refated tg going concern and
using the going concern basls of accounting unless management eltherintends to liquidate the Graup or
1o cease Operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do 5o,

Auditors’ Responsipiiities Jor the Audit of the Consofidated Finonclol Statements

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

e AR AR
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PIRtd PRINCHY 55, WISI! SOI.IFI'ION.’-I:
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As part of an audlt [ accordance with PSa, we exercise professlonal judgment and malntain professionaj
skepticism throughout the audlt, We aiso:

ientify and assess the risks of materfal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audlt procedures responsive tg those risks, and
obtaln audit evidence that Is sufficlent and aPpropriate to provide a basis for our oplnion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud ig higher than for ona resulting from

arror, as fraud may involve m'l!uslun, forgery, intentional omissigns, mlsrepresentations, or the
override of internat control, -

" Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant Lo the auditn order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's Internal control,

" Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosuras made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the §OIng concern basis of accounting
and, based onthe audit evidence abtalined, whether a material uncertalnty ex|sts related to events
oF conditions that may cast signiflcant doubt on the Group’s abitity to continue as @ guing concern, i
We canclude that a materiaj Uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures In the tonsolidated financiaf statements or, If such disclosures are
Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our tonclusions are based onthe audit evidence obtained up to

tha date of our auditory report. Howevear, future events or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease
to continue as a going concern,

" QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the flnanglaj Information of the entltles or
business activities within the Group to eXpress an opirfon on the tonsolidated financlaf statements.

We are responsible for the direction, Supervision and performance of the group aydjt. We remain
solely responsibie for our audit opinion.

.We communicate with those ctharged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned

5Cope and timing of the aydit and slgnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in
internal control that we Identify during our audits,

We also provide those charged with govarnance whh a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and Communicate withthem af refationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and where applicable, refatag
safeguards,

L T
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From the matters communicated Wwith those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current perlod and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describs these matters In our auditory’ report unless faw or

communication,

The engagement partner op the audit resulting in this independent avditors’ report Is Emmanuel V.
Clarino.

REYES TACANDONG & CO,

Gyt D) O,

EMMANUEL V. CLARINO
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 27455
Tax tdentification Na. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4787; Valld unt!l December a1, 1018
SEC Accreditation Ne. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valld untlf March 27,2020

BIR Accreditation No. CB-005144-005-2017
valid untif lanuary 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954

lssued January 3, 2018, Makab Clty

March 23, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manlia
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUB
(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEM ENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITlON
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Decamber 3&
Note 2017 Fa015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 $4,427,478 $7,396,343
Trade and other receivables 8 8,414,233 6,724,308
inventories g 14,153,811 7,953,765
Other current assets 10 5,612,224 1,468,380
Total Curmant Assets - 33,608 806 23,543,396
Noncurrant Assets
Property, plant and equlpment 11 16,104,369 17,007,323
Defarred tax assets 26 8,721,323 8,273,039
Gaodwill 9,502,585 9,502,585
Other noncurrent assats 12 1581487 1,534,944
Total Noncurrent Assets 36,909,764 16,317,801
$70,518,570 $59,861,287
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payabies 13 $9,745,224 6,070,258
Loans payable - 14 24,285,900 20,830,183
Due to related parties i5 2,142,510 136,112
Income tax payable : 184,683 91,571
Total Current Liabilitles . 36,358,322 27,128,124
Noncurrent Labilities
Loans payable - net of current portion 14 79,355 54,446
Net retiremant benefit obligation 16 234,627 184,914
Deferred tax llabilities 26 135,957 289,201
Refundable lgase deposlts 21,811 * 52,395
Total Noncurrent Uiabilities 471,750 620,956
Total Liabilities 36,830,072 27,749,080
Equity
Capital stock 17 53,645,778 51,646,778
Addlttonal paid-)n Capital 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other comprehensive Income 933,159 848,999
Deficit {25,231,797) (26,665,068
36,010,231 34,588,710
Treasury shares 17 (5,774) [5,774)
Equity attributabla 1 squity holders of the Parent
Company 36,004,357 34,582,936
Non-contmlligglrlterests {2,315,859) {2,470,729)
Total Equity 33,688,498 32,112,207
$70,518,570 559,961,287

See oecomponying Notes 1o Consolidoted Finonch) Stotements,



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Subsldlary of Strongoak Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS Of COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended bemmbnr 31
Mote 2017 2016 2015
NET REVENUE i1 $72,191,518 $59,914.477 $67,915,590
COST OF GODDS SOLD 18 (62,742,916) [55A46,802) {51,096,123}
= 13-70,143)
GROSS PROEIT 8,448,662 3,467,675 6,819,567
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE ENPENSES 20 (8,117,124} [7,957,915} {18,744,748}
INTEREST EXPENSE 14 (787547) {868,517) ( 1,%03,051)
EQUITY iN NET 'INCDME {LOS5ES) oF
ASSOCIATE 12 26,081 13,771 {26,024)
GAIN ON ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 4 - - 3,471,040
GAIN ON REMEASUREMENT OF PREVIOUSLY
HELD INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 4 -~ - 2,356,202
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - Net 21 {7,554) 561,115 {167,979)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 362,518 (4,777,871} {8,194,993)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE {BENEFIT) 26 (1,000,534] 1,120,398 (172,177)
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,563,052 [5,898,759} {8,022,818)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOS5S)
ftems that wilt be reclassifled subsequently to
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations {15,850 (105,0349) 815,312
Share in ather <omprehensive loss of 4 Jolnit '
venture - - {14,505}
item that wiif not pe reclossifled subsequentiy to ' .
Profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on ratlrement benefits _ :
o {net of tax) 16 - 103,542 75,084
{15,850] {1,492) B75,901
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS} $1,547,202 {$5,900,261) {$7,146,915)
NET iINCOME {Loss) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company $1,437,271 ($5,968,520) (56,392,392}
Noncontrolling Interests 125,781 69,760 (1,630,424)
: $1,563,052 (65,898,769) {58,022,816)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: .
Equity holders of the Parent Company $1,392,332 (85,918,511} - (85,576,750}
Noncantrolling interests 154,870 18,250 (1,570,165)
A $1,537,202 [85,900,261) {57,146,915)
INCOME (L0SS) PER SHARE
Basic and diluted Income (loss) por share 23 $0.0006 ($0,0024) ($0.0038)

See accompanying Nataes to Consolldated Finaneig Statements,
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Irc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Capltal Stock 17
Balance at beginning of year $53,646,778 953,646,778 $32,238,544
Additional subseription — - 21,408,234
Balance at end of year 53,646,778 53,646,778 53,646,778
Additlonal Paid-in Capital
Balance at beginning of year 6,662,001, 6,662,001 6,768,843
Stock Issue cost - - {106,842)
Balance at end of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other Comprehenslva Income (Loss)
Cumulative Remeasurement Goins {Losses) on
Retirement Benefit Obligation 16
Balance at baginning of year 55,150 {48,352) (123,245)
Remeasurement galn on retirement - 103,542 75,094
Balance at end of year 55,150 55,180 (48,352)
Revaluatlon Reserves
Balance at beginning of year 275 275 86,457
Effect of deconsolidation - - {71,577)
Share in other comprehensive loss of B Joint
venture - - {14,505}
Balance at end of year 275 275 275
Cumulotive Transtation Adjustment
Balance at baginning of year 893534 958,568 183,256
Exchange differences on foreign currency :
translation {15,850) {105,034} - 815,312 .
Balance at end of year 877,684 853,534 598,568
Total balance at end of year of other
comprehenslve income 933,149 948,595 850,491
Defick
Balance at beginning of year (26,669,068) (20,700,539) | 14,898,404)
Effect of deconsolidation - - 590,257
Net Incoma {Joss) 1437271 {5,968,529) (6,392,302)
Balance at end of year (25,231,797} 126,669,068) {20,700,539)
Treasury Shares 17 {5,779) {5,774) (5.774)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Balance at beginning of year (2470,729) (2,488,979} {918,814)
Total comprehensive income {loss} attributable
to non-control]lng_}nterests 154,370 18,250 (1,570,165)
Balance at end of year {2,315 £55) (2,470,729) {2,488,979)
) $33,688,408 532,112,207 338,063,978

See gceompartylng Nates ta Cansolidated Franclal Statements.



ALLIANCE § ELECT FOODS INTERNATIDNAL, INC.
(A Subsldlary of Strongoak Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CDNSDLIDATED-STATEMENTS OF CASH FLQWS

Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before Income tax 8562518 {84,777,871) (58,194,593)
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortization 11 1,150,597 1,147,554 1,184,928
Provislen for impairment Iosses on; 20
Property, plant and equipment 1,050,400 - 2,730,177
inventories 230,780 794,010 5,298,817
Trade and other recelvahles 69,574 75,049 315,318
Other noncurrent assets - 314,320 628,480
interest expensa 14 787547 868,517 1,503,051
Interest Income 7 {70,965) (159,133) (175,890}
Gain on disposai/retirement of property,
plant
and equipment 21 {58,618) {12,078) {4,418)
Retirement benefits expense i6 50302 52,315 - 74,093
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss - net {85,264 88,482 678,965
Equity in net {income) tosses of joint ventures
and assoclate 12 (26,084). {19,771). 26,024
Reversal of allowance for im pairment fosses
on inventorles 21 - - (436,277}
Gain on acquisition of subsidiary 4 - - {3,471,040)
Galt on remeasurement of previously held
interest : a - - {2,356,202)
Loss on restructuring of receivable 21 - - 556,879
Galn on disposal of investment 21 ~ - {371,280)
Operating income {loss) before warking capltal ' :
changes 3,739,719 {1,584,606) ¢{ 1,613,368)
Decrease (increase} in:
Trade and other receivables {2,758 399) (1,402,586) 3,581,355
Inventories (6,431,886} {2,025,319) 6,572,552
Other current assets (4,143,894) - (370,614) 565,557
Other noncurrent assets {25,925) 47,443 {1,688,749)
Increase [decrease) In trade and other payables 3,329,733 185,218 (3,360,151)
Net cash generated from {used for} operations (6,250,531 {5,151,464) 4,057,636
income tax pald (507 877) {699,153) (822,616)
Interest recelved 70,965 90,613 175,890
Contribution to retirement fund 156 - (42,403) {32,965)
Relirement benefits paid from operations 15 - {38,833) -
Net cash provided by {used tn) operating
activities ' (6:727,443)  (5,841,240) 3,377,945

fForward}



Years Ended December 31
Note 017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment 11 ($1,334,218)  ($702,914) (3 1,286,072)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and
equipment 88,116 14,762 254,073
Acqulsition of subsidiary, net of cashacquired 4 - - {479,089)
Praceeds from disposal of Investment - 6 - - 5,000
Net cash used In investing activities {1,245998) {688,152} (1,505,08ﬂ
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Availment of loans 29,164,704 35,580,025 75,003,353
Issuance of shares 17 - - 21,408,234
Payments of: _
Loans (25,684,118)  (38,351,307) {80,685,263)
Interast {a42,314) (86B,517)  (1,956,584)
Advances from related partes 2,006,398 - -
Payment of advances from related partjes - - " (18,947)
Neat cash provided by (used In} financing
actlvities 5,044,710 (3,629,799) 13,839,793
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS {40,134) {39,445) {542,691}
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,958,365) (10,198,535) 15,168,059
CASH AND cASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,396,343 17,594,979 2,426,020
CASH AND cASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR : . 7 54,427,473 57,396,343 $17,594,979
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 7
CaSh on hand 54;029 541521 5151944
Cash in banks 4,415,573 3,710,241 3,416,589
Cash equivalents 7,876 3,681,481 14,162,466
$4,427,474 57,396,343 $17,594,979

See acenmpanying Notes to Consoliduted Financhal Stotements,



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNA'I'IONAI., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsldfary of Strongoak Inc.}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

General Informatiop _ .
Alliance Select Foods International, inc. {ASF)l or the “Parent Company”}, a public corporation under
Section 17.2 of the Securitles Regulation Code {SRC), was Incorporated In the Philippines and

Company is primarily engaged In the business of manufacturing, canning, importing and exporting of
food products such as marine, aquaculture and other processed seafoads, Its shares are fisted In
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) since November 8, 2006.

Strongoak Ine, (Strongoak), the immediate parent of ASFIl, owns a total of 1,382,765,862 ASHI
common shares, representing 55.32% ownership (see Note 17). Strongoak Inc., Is 8 domestic
company engaged in investment activities,

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the Board of Dectors {BOD} and stockholders,
respectlvely, approved the Parent Com pany’s equity restructuring by reducing the par value of jts
shares and applying the resulting excess and additiona Paid-in capital against the Parent Company's
deficit. On March 23, 2018, the equity structuring was approved by the SEC [see Note 17),

The Parant Company's registered office address, which is atso its princlpal place of business, is at
Unit 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City.
The Parent Company has a plant located in Brgy. Tambler, General Santos City, Philippines.

Subsidiaries
The consolldated financial statements include t he accounts of ASFll and the following subsidiarles
(collectively referred hereln as the “Group”) as at December 31,2017 and 2016:

Principal Place of

Name of Subsidiary % of Ownership Nawre of Business Buslness

Salmanand other seafoods Unlted States of

Spence & Company Ltd. {5pence) 100 Processtng . Amerlea
BIg Glory Bay $almon and Saimon and ather seafoods

Seafood Company, Inc. {aGa} 1oo precessing Phllippines
ASFl Thatland ) 100 Salas office Thalland
PT Internatanal Alllance Faod ; :

Indonaslx {PTIAFI) 59.98 Canned fish procassing Indonesia
Alllance MHI Propertes, inc. (AMHI) 98,89 Leasing _ Philippines
Akaroa Salmon {NZ) 1d. {Akaroa} BD Salm:ﬂgl:: and New Zesland
PTVan De Zee {PTVDZ) MW ‘ 49 Flshing Indonesia

fa} indirect ownershin interest through PTIAF,
{b) Na aperutions in 2017 and 2018,

Spence. Spencs is based In Brackton, USA and speclalizes in the production of smoked salmon and
other seafood products. .
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BGH. BGB{s engaged in Manufacturing goods such a3 salmon and other processed seafoods. It was
registered with the Phillppine SEC in October 2008 and Its registered office |s located at Suite 1208,
East Tower, Phillppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. Its plant
facllities are located in Barrjo Tambler, General Santos City.

In 2016, the ASFll convarted advances of $2.57 miillon 4o capital stock of BGE.

ASFi Thafiand. ASFI Thalland was established as a sales representative office,

hroperty holding company. The registered address and principal office of AMHI is at Purok Saydala,
Barangay Tambler, General Santos City.

On December 23, 2015, ASFl tonverted advances of $0.29 milion as partial payment of its

subseription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMH. The subscription resulted to the

Increase in Parent Company’s effacthe voting ownership Interest Jn AMHI from 40% 10 98.89%
(see Note 4},

Akarog. Akaroa, a <ompany Incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand, is engaged in sea cage
salmon farming and operates two marine farms in Akaroa Harbor, South New Zealand, It procasses
fresh and smoked saimon, Akaroa holds 20% stake I Salmon Smok Nz Lig. {S5NZ), an entlty

operating a modern hatchery, which quarantines and conslstently supplies high quality smoits
(Juventle saimon) for Akaroa's farm,

Status of O, |

Management Ig undertaking necessary initlatives to Improve operation and maintain financial
stability. With these Initlatives, which include expanding the Group's global market, targeting key
accounts, improving efflclencles across all areas of operations and hetter inventory management

and raw materiaj sourclng, the Group has generated a consolidated net Income of $1.56 million For
the year ended December 31, 2017,

As at December 31, 2017, the Group’s deficit amounted to $25.23 million, The Group incurred net
losses of $5.90 miition and $8.02 miiton 1n 2026 ang 2015, respeciively, because of losses sustalned

termination of Prime Foods New Zealsnd {PFNZ) as a customer after ASE; divested its investment in
PFNZ {see Note 6}, and the inherent volatillty In raw materfal prices,

The Group has recognized impalrment losses in inventories of 5033 In 2017, $0,79 milllon In 2018
and $5.30 milfion in 2015, property, plant and equipment and gther noncurrent assets (mainly
fishing vessels and related CiP) of $1.09 million In 2017, $0.31 mllion In 2016 and $3.36 million In
2015, Management recognlzed the loss on the fishing vessa| because of the discontinvance of the
Group's fishing operation In 2015. In 2017, FTIARI recognized additlonal Pravision on Impairment

loss of $1.09 ‘million on its property, plant and equlpment hasad on the recoverahle value
assessment.



In 2017, the BOD and stockholders of ASFII decided 1o undertake an equity restructuring, This will

result to the ellimination of ASFIl's capital deficlt of $32.00 million, which the SEC approved on
March 23, 2018,

ASFl's imm_edfate Parent has infused tota] capital of $30.3 miflion to sustafn the Group’s operations
and In 2017, extended a loan of $2.00 miflion {equivatent 1o R100.00 million) to ASFH {see Note 15).

Summary of Significant Actounting Policles

The significant accounting policies used in tha Preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are consistently applied to ali the Years presented, uniess otherwisa stated,

These consolidateg financlal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in
accordance with Philippine Finanelal Reporting Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework
includes all applicable PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by
the International Financal Reporting Interpretations Committes {IFRIC} ang adopted by the SEC,

The consglidated financial statements comprise the statements of financial position, ‘statements of
comprehensive incame, Statements of changes in equity, statements of cash fiows, and notes
thereto, Income ang €xpenses, excluding the components of pther comprehensive Income, are
recognized in the statements of comprehensive incoma, Reclassification adJustments are amounts

income in the current or previous perlods, Transactlons with the owners of the Group in their
capaclty as owners are recognized in the statements of changesin equity,

Measurem ant Bases

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States (U5} Dollar, the functional
turrency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates. All values
are rounded to the nearest U.5, Dollar, except when atherw(se statad,

is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given exchange of assets and falr value of
the conslderation recelved In exchange for incurring a liahility, '



)

-4

Falr values are Categorized Into different levels In a fair value hierarchy based on fnputs used in the
valuation techniques ag follows: -

* levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or [fabilttes
*  Level 2~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement I directly or Indirectly observable '

* Level 3 -~ Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to tha fairvalue
measurement is unobservabla

If the inputs used to Mmeasure the fair value of an asset or g liabliity might be categorized in different
levels of the falr value hierarchy, then the fair value measuremant Is tategorized in its entlrety In the

_same level of the falr value hierarchy as the lowest lavel Input that Is significant to the entire

measurement,

The Group recognizes transfers hetween levels of the fair valye hlerarchy at the end of tha reporting
period during which the chenge has occurred,

Further information about the assumptlions made in measuring fair values is induded in Note 27 to
the consolidated finangial statemants.

Adoption of N PF|

The accounting policies adopted are consistent wih those of the previaus financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amendead PFRS which the Group adopted effective for annual
periods beglrning on or after January 1, 2017:

* Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative ~ The amendments
requlre entitles to provide information that enahle the users of financlal statements to evaluate
changes in ffabilities arising from financing activitles.

* Amendments to PAS 12, income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for defarreg tax assats related to unrealized
losses on débt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice.

® Amendment to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities - Cloriflcation of the Scaopa of
the Standard ~ The amendment is part of the Annual Improvements to PERS 2014-2016 Cycle
and clarifies that the disclosure requlrements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity's Interest in a subsldiary, a joint venture or
an associate {or a portion of its interest In a joint venture or an associate} that Is classifiad
{or Includedina tisposal group that Is classified} as held forsals,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRs did not have any material effact on the

consolidated financlal statements. Additiona} disclosures have been includad In the notes tp
financial statements, as applicable.
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New and Ame RS [n | ue But Not Yet E v

Relevant new and amended PERS whith are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2017

and have not been applied in preparing the consolldated financlal Statements are summarized
below. '

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018;

PFRS 'S, Financial Instruments — This standard will replace PAS 39, Finonclal instruments:
Recognition and Measurement {and all the previous versians of PFRSSL 1t containg
requirements for the classification and measurement of financlal assets and financial llg bilitles,
[mpalrment, hedge accduntlng, recognition and derecognition,

falr value {through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the

classification by reference to the business mode| within which thase are hefd and Its contractyal
cash flow characteristics. :

For financial llabilitles, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relatss o cases where the fair value
Option is taken - the amount of change in falr value of 5 financlal labMty deslgnated as at falr
value through profit or loss that Is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability I

recognized in other comprehensive Income {rather than In profit or loss), unfess this creates an
accounting mismatch. '

For the Impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 Introduces an “expected credit [oss” model based
an the concept of providing for expected losses at inception ofa contract; recognition of a credit
loss should no longer wait for there to be objective evidence of impalrment.

hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhay) allowing financlal statomeants to

For
better reflect how risk man Bgement activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financlal sisk exposures,

The derecognition Provisions are carrled gver almost unchanged from PAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue Jrom Contract with Customers - The new standard repiaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenve and rejated interpretations. it establishes a single
tomprehensive framework for reventie recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industrias and capRal markets, with a core prnciple (based on 3 five-step modet to be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or Improved guidance {e.g. the

Polnt at which revenue is recognized, accounting for varlable conslderations, costs of fulfilfing
and obtaining a contract, etc.}. :

Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Controct with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 ~ The
amendments provide clarlficationg on the following topics: {a) Identifying performance
obligations; (k) principal versus agent conslderations; and {c) licensing. The amendments also
Provide some transitlon relief for modifted contracts and com pleted cantracts.
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investment in an assodlate or a Joint venture that Is held by an entlty that Is a venture capltal
organization, mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying entlty, is avallable for each investment
in an assoclate or Jjoint venture on an Investment-by-investment hasis, upon initial recognition,

s Philippine Interpretation  (FRIC 22, Foreign Currency  Transactions ond A'dvance
Consideration — The interpretation provides guldance clarifylng that the exchange rate to yse {n
transactions that involve advanea consideratlon pald or recelved In a foreign cwirency is the one

at the date of initial recognltion of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
Kabiflty.

Effe'ctive for annual periods beginning on or aftey January 1, 2019-

* PFRS 16, leases — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and Its related interpretatlons. The
most significent change introduced by the new standard Is that almost all leases will be brought
onto lessees’ statement of financlal position under & single model {except leases of Jess than
12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between operating and

finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remalns largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance Jease |s retained,

Deferred affectlvity -

* Amendment to PFRS 1D, Consolfdated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in
Assaciotes and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution af Assets Between aon Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ~ The amendments address a turrent conflict between the two
standards and clarlfy that a gain or [oss should be recognized fully when the transaction involves
a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not canstitute a business. The effective date
of the amendments, initially set for annuaf periads beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was
deferred indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier application s still permtted.

Management has initlally assessed that the adoption of PFRS 9, PFRS 15 and PFRS 16 might have a
slgnificant effect on amounts reported in the Group’s financlal assets and itabllities, ravenue angd

leases. However, It Is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect untii a detailed
review has been completed. }

Basls of ggggo!ldatlng

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has control. The Grnup; controls a subsidlary 1f it is
exposed or has rights to variable retumns from its involvement with the subsidlary and has the abllity

The Group re-assesses whether or not jt controls an entity if facts angd circumstances Indleate that
there are changes to ane or more af the thres slements af canteol,
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The financial Statements of the subsidlaries ere inciuded In the consolidated financial statements
from the date wh

The flnanclal statements of the subsidlaries are prepared using the same reporting period of the
Parent Company. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting pollcies
for Tike transactions and other events in simllar clrcumstuances, Intercompany balances and
transactions, including intercompany profits and unreallzed profits and losses, are eliminated In full,

A change in ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change in control, Is accounted for as an
equity transaction, Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets (Including goodwill)
and liabllitles of the subsidiasy, any non-controlling Interests and the other components of equity
related to the subsidiary. Galn or Igss arising frar the loss of contral js recognized in profit or loss.
If the Group retains interest in the previous subsidlary, then suchinterest Is measured at falr value
at the date control Is lost, Subsequently, it Is accounted for 85 an equity-accounted investee oras an
available-for-sale financial asset depending on the Jevel of Intesestretained,

Non-controlling Interasts represent the portlon of profit or ioss and Net assets not held by the
Group, presented within equity in the consolldated staternents offinanclal position, separately from
equlty attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company, Non-controlling Interests represent
the interests of minority shareholders of PTIAFI, PTVDZ, Akaroaand AMH!,

Busl Combination and Gaadwill

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition mzthod. The acquisition cost i
measured as the sum of the considerations transferred, measurad at gcquisition date falr vajye and
the amount of any non-controlling interest In the acquiree. For each business combination, the

eor

at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets. Acquisition costs Incurred are

expensed and Included In general and adm Infstrative expenses.

When the Groyp acqulres a business, it assesses the financlal assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation In actordance with the contractual terms, economilc
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

When the businass combination is achleved In stages, any previotdly heid non-controlling interest is
re-measured at tha data of obtaining control and 2 gain or loss lsretognized in profit or Yoss,

If the initfa accounting for a business combination is incomplete a5 at the reporting date In which

the combination occurs, the Group reports in s consofidated financlal staternents provisional

ing the measurement period, the
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Goodwill, which arose from the acquisitions of Spence {$745 mifllen} In 2011 and Akaroa
{82.05 million} In 2012, |5 inltially measured at the acquisition date as the sum of the fair value of
conslderation trunsferred; the recognized amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree;
and, If the business combination is achleved in stages, the falr value of existing equlty interest in the
acquiree less the fair valye of net identifiable assets acquired and Habilitjes assumed, [f this
tonsideration Is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the bargain
purchase galn s recognized directly in profht or loss. The conslderation transferred does npt include

amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing refationships, Such amounts are generally
recognlzed in profit or Inss, )

After Initfal recognltion, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulateqd Impalrment losses. For
impalrment testing, goodwill acquired In a business tombinathn is, from the acguisltion date,
aflocated to each of the entity’s cash-generating units or group of cash-generating unlits that are
expected to beneflt from the synergles of the combination, Irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the entity are assigned to those units or groups of unlts, Each unit or group of unlts 10

which goodwlll is. allocated represents the lowest level Within the entity at which goodwill Ig
monitored for internal Mmanagement purposes,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit or group of cash generating units and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill assoclated with the disposed

. operation Is included In the carrylng amount of the ‘Dperation In determining the gain or loss on

disposal, Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured bised on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portlon of the cash-generating unit refained.

Financial Assets and Liabll|
Financial assets and |z bilities are accounted far as follows:

8. Recognition

instrument. Financlal Insttuments are inftially measured at falrvalue which Includes transactlon
Costs directly attrlbutable to the acquisition (e.g. fees, commissions, transfer taxes, ate.),
Hawever, transaction costs refated to the acquisition of financial Instruments classified as fajr

value through profit or [oss {FVPL) are recognized Immediately In profit or loss. The Group uses
trade date accounting to account for financfal instruments. '

instrument is not active, the Group determines fair value by using a valyation technique whose
variables Include data from observable markets, The difference between the transaction price
and the fair value (a “day 1* difference) is recognized in p
recognition as some other type of asset. in cases where the valuation model yses uncbservable
data, the difference hetween the transaction price and the model
proflt or [oss when the inputs become observahle, or when the instrument Js derecognized. For

each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of Tecognizing the "Day 1
differance, : '



b. Classifleation

The Group classifies its financlal assets at initlal recognition under the follawing categories:
{a) financial assets at FVPL, (b} held-to-maturlty {(HTM) Ivestments, {c) loans and receivables
and {d) avallable-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, Financial liabflitles, on the other hand, are
classified as either financial labllities at FVPL or other financhl labilities at amortized cost. The

classification of a financial Instrument largely depends on the Group'’s Intentlon at acquisition or
issuance date, '

As at December 31, 2017 and 2015, the Group does not have financlal assets and liabilities
classified at FYPL, HTIV investments and AFS financlai assets,

Loons and Receivables. Loans and receivables are financial aszets with fixad or determinable
payments and fixed maturitles that are not quoted in an active market, They are not entered

&5 noncurrent assats.

After Inktial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effectlve Interest method, less allowance for impairment, Ifaiiy. Amortized cost s calculated by
taking Into account any discount or premium on acqulsition and any transaction costs which are

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial Instrument, The amertization Is Included
in profit or loss.

The Group has classified Its cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from
related partles and deposits-as Ioans and recelvablas,

Cash equivalents are short-term highiy liquid Investments that ate readily convertible to known

amount of cash with original matusities of three months or less ang that are subject to an
[nslgnificant risk of changa in value,

Other Financial Uabifitles at Amortized Cost. Financlal liabilities are classified [ this category if
these are not held for trading or not deslgnated as at FVPL upon the inception of the llability.
These include Habilitles arising from operations or through borrowing,

Other flnancial liabilitles are initlally recognlzed at fair vajye less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After Inltial recognition, other financlal liabilities are measured at amortized
cost using the effectiva interest method. Amortized cost is caluulated by taking Into account any
related Issue costs, discount or premlum. Gainsand losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilitles are derecognized, as well as through amortization process,

The Group's trade and other payables {exciuding customers’ deposit and statutory péyable),

loans payable, due to related parties and refundable lease deposits are classified under this
category,
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Impairment of Financiaf Assats

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is ebjective evidence that a financifal
asset or

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of Irmpairment exists individually for Its
financlal assets that are individually significant, and indiidually or collectively for Its financial

of impalrment exlsts for an Individually assessed financlal asset, whether signiflcant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financlal assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment, Ascets that are individually assessed for Impairment

and for which an impairment loss Is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collectlve assessment of Impairment.

The Impairment ioss s measured as the difference between the financla) asset’s carrylng
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the originaj effective

"Interest rate, The Carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance

account. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profitor loss, Interest Income continues to
be recognized on the reduced carrying amount using the Interest rate used to diszcount the
future cash flows for the purpose of meastring the Impairment loss.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
velated objectively to an event occurring after the Impaiment was recognized, the previously
recognized Impairment loss Is reversed by adjusting the allowance account, The amount of the
reversal Is:recognized In profit or loss, to the extent that the resulting carrying amount will not
exceed the amortized cost determinad had no impairment loss been recognized in prlor years.

Berecognition

A financiat asset {or where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a group of similay
financial assets) is derecognized by the Group when:

s - the right to receive cash flows fram the asset has explred; or

¢ the Group retains the right to recelve cash flows from the asset, but hag assumed an

obligation to pay them In full without material delay to 3 thirg Party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or ' '

* the Group has transferred Its Tight to recelve cash fiows from the asset and either -
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither

transferred nor retained substantlally ‘all the risk ang rewards of the assets, but has
transferred contro) over the asset.
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Blological Assets. The Group measures Its blologlcal assets on initial recognition and at the end of
each reporting period at jis falr value less costs to sell. Biologlcal assets of the Group comprised

solely of consumable female smolts. They are cultured during the developmental phase which lasts
for an average period of 14-16 months.

Harvested agriculturaj produce are also carrsd gt fair value less estimated casts to séll at harvest
palnt,

Gains or losses arising on nital recognition of biological asset at fair valye less estimated
paint-of-sale costs and from a change in falr value lass estimated paint-of-sale of biological asset ara
Included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income for the perlod when they arise,

ldle Assets. Idle assets afe those which are no longer used In the Group’s operations. These are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment Joss, The Group's idle assets
are already fully provided with allowance for Impairment loss.

Irtangible Assats

are intially measured at cost, At the end of each reporting period, items of intanglble assets
acquired are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost Includes purchased price, Including import dutles and nor-refundable purchase taxes, after

deducting trade discaunts and rebates and any directly attributahle cost of preparing the (ntanglble
asset for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure Is Eapltallzed only when it Increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, All other expendltures, including expenditure on

internally generated goodwlll and brands, are recognized in the consolidated proflt or loss as
incurred.

Amortization of Intangible Assets with Deflnite Useful Lives. Amortlzation for salmon farming

consent and fishing ficense with finlte usefy] life is calculated over the cost of the asset less lis
residual value,

Amortization Is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the usefyl life of salmon farming consent ang flshing license, from the date
that they are avallable for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic henefits embodled In the asset. The estimated useful life of the salmon
farming consent and fishing license for the current and comparative periods Is 25 years,

intongible Asset with Indefintte Useful Life. Imtangible asset with indefinite Wfe 1s ot amortized,
However, these assets are reviewed annually 1o ensure the carying value does not exceed the
recoverable amount regardiess of whethar an indicator of impalment is present, The Group
considers its macrocystic consent having an indefinite useful fife for the following reasons:

* there have been no established legal or contractual expiration date_;
* impracticabitity of tha determination of the intangible assete ecanomic usefid lives; and
* are expected to generate net cash flows for the Group,
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Derecognition of Intangible Assets, An Intangible asset is derecognized on dispasal, or when no
future economle beneflits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arlsing from
derecognition of an intangible asset gre measured as the difference between the net disposaj

proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss
when the asset is terecognized,

Property, Plant and E ulpmen
Property, plant and equipment except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset 1o its working
condition and location for fts Intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other gdirectly attributable costs, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items ang restoring the site on which they are bcated and capitalized borrowing

costs. Purchased software that Js integral to the functionality of the related equlpment is capltalized
a5 part of the equipmaent.

ExpendItures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been Put into operation, such
8s repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or loss in the year the
costs are incurred, in situatlons where It can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have
resulted in an Increase In the futura economic benefits expected to he obtalned from the yse of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond Its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capliallzed ag additional costs of property, plint and aquipment. The cost of

replacing a component of an tem of property, plant and equipment is recognized If It is probable

that the future aconomje henefits embodiad within the component will flow 1o the Group, and its
cost can be measured rellably, The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized,

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and aquipment have different usefy| lives, these
are accounted for as separate ltems (major components) of property, pfant and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization are tomputed using the Straightline method over the following
estimated useful llves of tha Property, plant and equipment:

Number of Years
Building 25
5 lor lease term, whichever js
Leasehold improvemanis shorter)
Machinery and equipment 15
Transportatfon equipment 5
Plant and offlce furnhure, fixtures and aquipment 5

_ | N method are reviewed perlodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
Pioperty, plant and equipment.

Fully deprectated assets arg retained In the accounts until they are no longer n use and ng further
charge for depreciation and amortiration fs made in respect of those assets.



Construc,tion-m-progress {CIP} represents properties under construction and is stated at cost,
including cost of canstruction and ather direct costs, Borrowing costs that are tirectly attributable
to the construction of Property, plant and equipment are capltaiized durlng the construction period,

disposal, In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are tllscounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflacts Current market assessments of the time value of
Money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash Inflows, the recoverable amount Is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs, tmpairment losses are recognized in profit or jpgs,

the last Impairment Joss was recognized. In such Instance, the camying amount of the asset s

that the carrying amount may be impaired, Impairment is determined for goodwii| by assesstng the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates,

Payments for the sale of goods. These are recorded at face amount in the consolidated statements
of financial position and recognlzed as revenue in Profit or loss when the goods for which the
advances were made are delivered to the customers, :
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Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid.in Capltal, Capital stock is measured at par vajye for all shares
Issued. {ncrementat costs, net of tax, Incurred that are directiy attributable to the issuance of new
shares are recognized In equity es a reduction from related additional pald-in capital (APIC) ar

refained earnlngs. Proceads or fair value of consideration recelved in excess of par value are
recognized as AR|C,

Other Comprehensiye income. Other comprehensive income pertains to remeasurement gakn or loss
on retiremant benefits chligation, revaluation reserves and cumulative translation adjustments,

Deffcit.  Deflcit rebresents the cumuiative balance of net loss, net of dividend declaration, Deflcit

may also include effact of changes In accounting policy as may be requited by the standard’s
transitional provision. '

Treosury Shores. Own equlty instruments which are reacquited are recognized at cost and
deducted from equity. No galn or loss Is recognized in the consolidated statements of
tomprehensive Income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrylng amount and the consideration, if reissued, Js

recognized In APIC. Vollng rights related to treasury shares are nuilifed for the Group and no
dividends are aliocated to them.

Rental Incorme, Revenue Isrecognized on 3 stralght-line has/s over the term of the [easa.
interest Income, Interest income s fecognlzed in proflt or Joss using the effective interest method,
Other Income. income from other sources is recognized when eamed turing the period.

Lo ense Re |

Costs and expenses are recognized In profit or loss when a decrease In future economie benefit
related to a decrease in an asset or an intrease jn 3 liability has arlser; that can ba measured reilably,

Cost of Goods 5o/, Cost of gaods sold |s recognized as expense when the related goods are sald,

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling éxpenses constitute costs incurred to seil and market

* the goeds and sarvices. Adminlstrative expenses constltute cost of administering the business, Both

are expensed ss Incutred,

Interest Expense, interest expense Is recognized in profit or loss using the effoctive Interest method.

Other Chorges, Expenses from othar sources are expensed as incumag,
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directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of @ qualifying asset. Capitalization of
borrowing cost fommences when the actlvities o prepare the ssset are in progress and

expenditures and horrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costsare capltalized until the assets are
substantially ready for thelr intanded use.

Leases

a. thereisachange In contractual terms, otherthan a renewal or extension of the arrangemant;

b. arenewal option Is exercised or extension granted, unless theterm of the renewal or extension
was inftfally Included in the leage term;

C. therelsa change In the determlﬁat]on of whether fufliment is depandent on a specified asset;
or

d, thereisa substantlal change to the asset,

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the

change In circumstances Bave rise ta the reassessment far scesarls {a), (¢} ar (d} and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b}, .

Group as Lessee, |easps where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershlp are classified as operating {eages, Operating lease Payments are recognized s an
expense in profit or loss on g stralght-line bass over the lepss term.

Group as Lessor, leases where the Group retains substantialy al the rlsks and rewands of
ownership are classifled as operating leases. Operating [ease receipts are recognized as an Income
in profit or loss op a straight-line basls over the lesse term,

Retlrament Benefits

Retirement benaflt costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method, This
method reflects services rendeljed by employees up to the date of valuatien and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ prajected salaries,

The Group recognlzes service costs comprising of current senvice costs, past service costs, gain or

loss on curtailment and settlsments and net interest expense on the retirement benefit labitity In
profit or loss,

The Group determines the net interest expante an retirement hegefit liability by applying the
discount rate to the net retirement benefit liability at the beglnning of the year, taking into account
any changes in the liability during the perlod as 3 result of contributions and benefit payments,

Remeasurements af the net retirement henefit liability, which consjst of actuartal gains ang losses
and the return on plan asset {excluding amount charged In net Interest) are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive Income (OCI) and are not reclasslfied ta profit or toss In subsequent periods,



Actuarfal valuations are made with sufficlent regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
cansolidated financlal statemants do not differ materially from the amounts that would pe
determined at the reporting dat

Income Taxes
JlLDme |aves

Current tax, Current tax Js the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reparting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabiiities and thelr carrying amounts for financial reparting purposes.

Defecrad tax llabliitles are recognlzed for all taxable temporary diferences, Defecrad tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and
minimum corporate incame tax (MCIT), to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable proflt

will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits
of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized,

extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient futyre taxable profit will be avallable to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating 1o items recognized outside profit or logs i recognlzed outside profit or loss,

. Deferred tax Items are recognized in relation to the underlying transaction efther In other
camprehensive income or directly in equity.

Forelgn Curren Denominated Transactl nsiation

Each entity In the Group determines Its own functional turrency and Items included In the
cunso!]dat_ed financlal statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency,
Transactiens in foreign currencles are Inltlally recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the
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Investments Iy assoclates and subsidiaries whose functiona/ eurrency Is other than US Doljar are
translated to US Dollay using the closing exchange rate prevaiting at the reporting date, The Group's
share in the results of operations of the forelgn investee s transiated using the exchange rate at the
dates of the transections or, where practicable, the rate that approximates the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions, such as the average rate for the period. Any resulting exchange
diffarence is recognized as s separate tomponent of equity,

Exchange differances arising on the settlement of monetery ltems, and on retransiation of monetary
items are Included jn profit or loss for the period. Exchange diferencas arising on the retransiation
of non-monetary items carried at falr value are included In profit or loss for the perlod except for
differences arising on the retranslation on non-monetary items In respect of which gains and fosses

For

Group’s forelgn operations {Including comparatives} are exprassed in US dolfars using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting perfod. Income and expense items
{Including Comparatives) are translateg at the average exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used, Exchange differences, if eny, are recognlsed in other comprehensive Income

and accumulated in g Separate component of equity under the header of forelgn currency
translation reserye, .

On the disposat of a foreign operation {ie. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a fareign
operation, or a disposal Involving foss of control over g Subsidiary that includes-g foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation attributable 1o the Group
are reclessified to profit of foss. Any exchange differences that have previously bean atuributed to
nan-controlling Interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassifleg to profit or Joss.

lated elatlons| d Relate Tran

Related party relationships exlst when one party has the ability to control, directly or Indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exarcisa sgnificant influence over the pther
party in making financia) and operating decisions, Such relationships also exist between and/or
among entities which are under common control whh the reporting enterprise, or between and/or

among the Teporting enterprises and thelr key management personnel, directors, or jts
stockholders,

A related party transaction s a transfer of resources, services orobligations between 3 reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether 3 Price is charged, '

Provisions

current best estimate,

gontlggenglgg

Contingent Mabllitles are not recognized In the consolidated financiaj Statements,
disclosed In the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an

economic he
consolidated financia statements but are disclosed In tha notesto consolidated financial
when an inflow of economic benefits is probabje. '
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In the nates to the consolidated financia) statements, when material,

Income {Loss} per Sharae

The Group presents basic ang dlluted income {loss) per share data For ks tormon shares,
Basic income {loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income {loss) attributable to common
shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares issued
and outstanding during the year. There are no potentfal dilutive shares,

Operating Segments

For management Purposes, the Group is divided into operating segments per products/service,
{tuna, salmon, and rental) according to the nature of the products and services provided, The
Group’s identified operating segments are consistent with the segments reported to the BOD which

is the Group’s Chief Operating Declsion Maker., Financial Infermation on operating segments is
presented in Note 29, :

. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financiai statements requires management to make
Judgments, estimates and agsumptions that affect the reported amounts of Fevenue, expenses,

The estimates and undertylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basis. Reylisions to
accounting estimates are recognized In the perlod when the estimate s revised if the revision

current and future periods.

The Group befieves that the following represent a summary of these significant Judgments

estimates and assumptions and the related impact and assoclated risks in the consolidated financial
staterments: '

Assessing Going Concern, The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and Is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in
buslness for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management Is not aware of any materjal
uncertainties that may cast slgnificant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue 85 a golhg

Concern. Therefore, the consolidated financlal statements tontinute to be prepared on 3 golng
concern basis, -

: the functional Currency of
the entlties in the Group has heen determined to be the US Dollar except for certaln subsidiarles

whose functional currency s the New Zealand Dallar and Phillppine Peso. The Us Dollar is the
currency that mainly influences tha cperatlons of most of the entitlss within the Group,
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Management has assessed that the acquisition of AMH} In 2015 constitutes a business (see Note 4),

Determining Reportuble Operating Segments. The Group has determined that it has reportable
segments based on the following threshaolds:

a. 15 reported revenue, Including both sales to external tusiomers and inmersegment sales or

transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, Intemal and external, of all operating
segments. .

b. The absolute amount of jts reported profit or loss Is 10% or mure; In absolute amount, of
(i) the comblned reported profit of al! operating segments that did not report a loss and
{il) tha cambined reported [pss of all Operating segments that reported a loss,

€. ltsassets are 10% or more of the combined assets of gl| operating segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds ‘may be considered
reportable, and separately disciosed, if management beliaves that informatfon about the segment
would be useful to users of the consolldated financial statements,

Accounting for interest in a Joint Operation, Tha Group has, after tonsidering the structure and form
of the contractual armangement, the terms agreed by the parties and the Group's rghts and
obiigations classlifled Its Interest in a Joint arrangement with FDCP, inc. {FDCP) and Wild Catch
Fisherles, Inc. [WCF1) as a Joint venture under PFRS 11. As a consequence, the Group accounts for

the assets, llabliitles, revenues and expenses relating to Its interest in the Joint operation only to the
extent of the Group’s Interest in the Joint venture,

Classifying Leases - Group as a Lessee, The Group has an operating lease agreement for its office
stte. The Graup has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the leased

property are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreement is accounted for as an operating
lease.

Rent expense. arising from operating lease amounted to S8.50 milllon, $0.75 million and
£0.82 million In 20317, 2016 and 2015, respectively {see Note 24), '

Classlfying Leases - Group as Lessor, The Group has entered Into Jegse agreement on Its parce) of
land. The Group has determined that it retains alf the significant fisks and rewards of ownershlp of
the property. Accordingly, these leases are accounted for as Operating leases,



e ———————— .

known market factors, The 'Group identifies end provides far specific accounts that are doubtful of
collectlon and reviews the age and statys of the remaining recelvables and establishes a provision
tonsidering, among others, historica collection and write-off experience.

Trade and other receivables, recelyable from WCFI and recejvable from PENZ, net of alfowance far
impairment losses, aggregated $10.41 milfiion and $7.79 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,

respectively. Allowance for Impaiment losses aggregated $4.19 milllon and 54.18 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes & angd 12,

Estimating NRV of Inventories, The NRV of inventorles represents the estimated selling price for

Jnventorles [ess g|| estimated costs of completion and cost Necessary to make the sate. The Group

determines the estimated selling baseqd on the recent sale transaction of similar goods with

adfustments to reflect Bny changes in economic conditions since the date of transactions oecurred.

Estimating Usefuf Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Othar Intangible Assets, The Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment ang other Intanglble assets based on the

Period over which the assets are expected to be available for use, The estimates ara based on a

“collective assessment of Industry practice, Intemal technlcal evaluation and experlence with similar

assets, The estimated useful livas ©of property, plant and equipment. and other Intangible assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and ara Updated if axpectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other fimits on the use
of the assets. Future results of operatlons could be materlally sffected by cthanges In estimates
brought about by changes In the factors mentioned above, The amount and timing of recording of

depreciation expense for any period would be affecteq by changes in these factors ‘and
clrcumstances,

There were no changes in the estimated usefu) lives of the Group’s property, Plant and equipment
and other intangible assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2018.
Property, plant and equipment {except land), net of accumulated depreciation, érnortfzatlon and
impairment fosses amounted to $6.66 million and $7.57 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2015,
respectively {see Note 11). Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortlzation and

impairment losses, amounted to 556,938 and $60,416 as at December 31, 2017 and 2018,
respectively (see Note 12),
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Assessing impalrinent of Nonfinancial Assets ond Goodwill. The Group assesses Impalmment on its
nonflnanclal. assets {excluding goodwill and macrocystic consent} whenever events or changes in
clreumstances indicate that the carrylng amount of the assets or group of assets may not be

recoverable, The refevant factors that the Group considers In deciding whether to perform an asset
impairment review Include the following:

s significant und erperforrﬁance of e business in refation to expectations;
* slgniflcant negative Industry or economic trends; and '
* significant chenges or plannad changes in the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impalrment loss Is
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, If It Is not possible, for the

Goodwill and macracystic consent are tested for impairment znnually and more frequently, when
Circumstances indicate that the carrying amount, may be impalred,

As at December 31, 2017 ang 2016, management has determned that the amount of allowance for
impairment on lts Investments in assoclates, joint ventures, idle assels, property, plant and
equipment, goodwill, other Intangible assets {including goodwill) and other Rencurrent assets ware
sufficlent, Carrying amounts of these nonfinancial assets are disclosed In Notes 5, 13, 11 and 12,

Estimating Retlrement Benefit Costs, The determination of the obligation and costs of retirement
benefits is dependent on the assumptians used by the actuary in caleulating such amaunts, These

assumptions are described In Note 16 to the consolldated financlal statements and include, among
others, discount rates and salary increase rates.

Net retirement benefit obligation amounted to $0.22 milllon and $0.18 million as &t Dacember 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, The cumulative remeasurement gatn an retirement benefit Jlabllity
recognized in equity amounted to $55,190 as at December 31, 2047 and 2015 {see Nota 16},

the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based on the
forecasted taxable Income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on the
Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses,

The Group has recognized deferred tax assets amounting to $9.72 million and 58,27 million as at
December 31, 2017 ang 20186, respectively (see Note 28).



-

-24-

4. DBusiness Combinations

On December 23, 2015, the Parent Company converted advances of $0.25 miilion {P13.5 million} as
partial payment of Its subscription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMHI, Tha subscription
resulted to the increase in the Farent Company's effectlve voting ownershlp Interest In AMHI to
98.89%. Prior to December 23, 2015, the Parent Company had 40% voting ownership interest In

Purchase price allocation are as follows:

Amount
Net assets at acquisition date $6,379,054
Percentage share of net assets acquired - 98.89%
Net assets acquired 6,308,884
Gain on acquiskion {3,471,040)
Gain on remeasurement of previpusly hefd interest (2,356,202)
Total consideration $481,642
Total conslderation $481,642
Less cash acyulred _ 2,553
Acquisliion of subsidiary, net of cash acquirad $479,089

Gains on acquisltion and remeasurement of previously held Interest resulted from the Increase in
fai

i
ir value of the land held by AMHL. The falr value of previously held Interest by the acquirer
Immediately before the acquisition date was $2.55 milllon, -

Non-contmiling interest Is measured based on Its proportionate share on the net assets of AMHI at
acquisition date,

The revenue and the net come of AMH! from the date the Parent Company obtained controf,
which is December 23, 2015, to December 31, 2015 wera no longer Included In the consolidated
financlal statements because these were not considered significant,

Had the acquisition of AMMI taken place at the beginning of 2015, the Group’s revenue and net joss
for the year would have been $67.99 million and $7.54 miilion, respectively,

. Gaodwill

Goodwill resulted from the acquisition by the Parent Company of tha following subsldlarias:

Spence. The Parent Company ascquired 100% ownership of Spence In 2011, The acquisition of
Spence’s salmon processing facilitles In Brockton, USA allows the Group to diversify Its praduct line
to take advantage of the changing faod consumption pattems around the globe, address the Issue

of sourcing raw materlals and improve overafl margins and Profitabllity. The goadwill arising from
the acquisition amaunted to $7.45 mitlion,
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Akaroo. The Parent Company acquired 80% ownership of Akaroa in 2012. Akaroa is engaged in the
business of sea cage salmon farming and Operates two marine farms In New Zealand. It aiso

Results of operations (net income} of these two subsldiarles are as follows:

_ 2017 2016 2015
Spence $235,576 - $683,074 $1,728,338
Akaroa 686,896 212,713 74,174

2017 2016
- Distount rate 7.66% B.665%
Growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

Management determinad the flve-year projected cash fiows based on past performance, existing
contracts and expectations on market development such as average price, revenue growth range

pre-tax cash flow long-term growth rate taking into consideration the sector performance and
general market and economic conditions.

Disposal of Investments

PENZ

On Qctoher 30, 2015, ASFI! sold jts 50% plus one share interest in PENZ to HC & IW Studholme No, 2
Family Trust for 85,000, The sale fesuited In a gain of 30.37 millon in the 2015 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income {see Note 21},

The carrying amounts of the nat lizbllities of PFNZ as at Qctober 'aﬂ, 2015, which have heen
excluded inthe 2015 consolidated financhal statements, are as fotiows:

Am od nt
Net lablilitles §732,774
Non-controlling interests (366,494}

Net liahilities so|d $366,280
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Note Amount
Fair value of considaration recelved 55,000
Carrylng amount of net liabitites solg {366,280)
Gain on disposal 21 $371,280

The 2015 consofidated statement of comprehensive Income Includes revenue of §3.26 million and
net Joss of $0.57 milllon of PENZ for the ten months period endedOctober 30, 2015,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Thls account conglsts of:

2017 2016

Cash on hand 54,029 54,621
Cash In banks 4,415,573 3,710,241
Cash equivalents 7,876 3,681,481
54,427,473 $7,396,343

Cash in banks earn interest at prevalling bank depostt rates,

Ca'sh equivalents partain to cash placement with a bank for varying perlods of up to thg’ee months

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,

Interest income Included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is summarized
below {see Note 21): :

. Note . 2017 2016 2015
Cash in banks and cash equivalents $19,070 590,613 $107,442
Recelvabie from PFNZ 12 51,586 68,520 63,448
$70,965 $159,133 $175,890
E. Trade and Qther Recelvables

This account consists of;
Note 2017 2016
Trade 49,086,490 55,992,752
Claims recelvables 1,027,177 1,630,854
Pue from related partles 15 276,382 287,420
Receivable from PENZ - current portion 12 140,958 177,500
Advances to employees 30,771 20436
Others - 864,405 615,407
\ 11,426,183 8,724,379
Less allowance for impalrment losses 2,011,950 1,999,471
$9,414 233 56,724,908
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Trade recelvables are generated

from the sale of inventories and are generally collectible within 29
1060 days:

Trade recelvahles aggregating $6.02 milfion and $3.59 million a5 at December 31, 2017 and 2015,
respectively, were used to secure the Group's short-term Joans {see Note 14),

Claims recelvables include clai

ms for refunds from government agencies and claims from insurance,
suppliers and other parties,

Movements In the allowance for Impalrment losses are ag foltows:

: Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $1,949,471 $1,889,186
Provisions _ 20 68,574 79,049
Currency translation adjustment {57,095) 31,236
Balance at end of year ' ) 52,011,950 $1,599,471
Inventories
Thls account consists pf:
Note 2017 016
At cost:
Finlshed goods ' . . 19 53,269,506 52,701,345
Raw materials 9,355,847 3,463,261
Parts and supplies 294,821 346,966
Work-in-process 237,261 266,681
' 13,158,435 56,778,253
At NRV:
Finished goods 935,980 928,517
Raw and packaging materials 59,456 245,955
986,436 1,175,512

$14,154,871 $7,953,765

The costs of Inventorles measured at NRV are as follows:

. Note 2017 2016
Finished goods 19 52,144,028 $2,786,522
Raw and packaging materials 206,550 928,524

$2,350,578 53,715,046

Movements in the aliowance for impairment losses on Inventortes are a5 follows:

Note 2017 2016
o $2,539,534 $4,589,905

{1,416,172) (2,844,381)
230,780 794,010

$1,354,142 $2,539,534

Balance at beginning of year
Reversal/write-off
Provisions 20

Balance at end of year




Inventorias aggregating $8.25 miilion and 52.75 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,

fespectively, were used td secure the Group's short-term loans {see Note 14).

Inventories charged to cost pf goods sold amounted to $49.47 million, $43.35 million and

$51.24 million In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 19},

10.

Other Current Assats

This actount consists of:

2017 2016
Advances to suppliers 54,673,341 5485,280
Prepayments;
Taxes : 68,011 172,433
insurance 25,428 51,423
Rent 24,352 24,583
Others 229,435 155,428
Input VAT 591,157 539,233
95,612,224 $1,468,380
Advances to suppllers pertain to ativance payments tg suppliers for purchase of flsh.
Other prepayments pertain to dues and subscriptions and other fees,
12, Progerty, Plant and Equlpment
Movements in this account are as follows:
Dacamber 11, Ly
Offln Plant
BulMIng and Muchinery Transportutia Fumntum, Fumiary,
Lansehard el n Pcunsand  Ratgresand Conetructian-
iand T o L] Iprent Tp e Ll Mipmant . In-Prograss Tokal
Codi :

. Balances athaglnning of yaar 25075 $4.TIR6TE LRt g $1%c.660 $~ 520,050.199
AddtTons - ALk AL601y 32,720 LOM anq $65,21 1384,114
Disppsals/reticement - [1a8,3r3) {z.01m) {d4,153) [am {25} -~ {222,387}
Trenslation sdjustinent 13,71, 5133 6015 (760} H] | - — 24,589
_l}_«lll_llcu atand of vear _gﬂiﬁ A 554,162 8,128 386 486,530 A% 160 155548 859,281 !5,259!!!
Accumuinted Depreclation and ’

Amardextton
Balances at beginning of yaar - LB a2ke 07 243,370 F2% b 128992 - BAILEQ7
Baprectation and amortiorion - LR TIZEAR £2,410 .53 7 1) = LIASE
Diposals/retirement - (‘5’-“3:1 ll{s:n::s; {19,453} t'-'::] {os) = [153439)
Trenylation adjustmeant - (B0} 3,085/ L] = - 13300
Balsncas at end of yes = LE0A.0ZM 5 OR47iA 291,536 anam 139 3%8 = T3BL057
Aliawanca for Impakment
Ralances bt begining and and of

yanr - 5UE5%8 101 A8 - - - - [HLET
Frovisian for impakmaunt = 812,781 173,535 - 513 - = 1080400

Brlances at end of yuar - 1418185 7 542 - 183 -
Canying Amount $OALEME 1631745 GLEINASS $0E 02 Tinesy $7,497

- 1,.698.4
3660.281  $16,100, 47
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e Pl -
Buldingand  Machinery Furntum, Furhixy,
Lessuhold " Thniporisfon  Fiturand  fouys wd Fiching  Contrurtion-

Lind I'anrrh I‘M _ Squipment Equlorpnt a!ml Mronrls JrProgress Total
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Dlsposels /rutirermant - (2408} {1967} {so,u59 {y47} - - - {5,573)
Aaclugitikeation - - - - - - [hAE) LIH) 1T
Trlruh.llom_ﬂ_!hbrunt 34,111 {Eﬂ‘l FEA TS 55 105 BN 4,087 ll!!l_‘l'ﬁl - 11 3545)
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Atcrenpiated Dapracdation

snd Amorttoation
Balancas st bagineing iy - FELLh 150045 1385 3,85 HT10 e 3T - 570,093
Dapreclation and smon iation, - e LR 0AH o.a PukLv] C - - L142,800
Dlpanbefiniframan - - Le57) LT 14 1] - - = 51,880}
Ruchustficalion - - - - - - H - (508,457
Trngfution ad] vetment - i7] 15, oB51% 35,515, 14,830 = hd 130,350
Bahavices at wid of yoar - . 1513 4,282,007 T 270 pLLbt 1id832 - - E495 M0}
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The Group's transportation equipment with aggregate carrying amounts of $105,026 and $70,082 as

at Dacembaer 31, 2017 and 2016, respactively {sae Note 14) are used as collataral to secure chattel
mortagage.

As discussed In Note 1, the Parent Company, BGB, PTIAFt and PTVDZ incurred losses in 2016 and
2015. The property plant and equipment of Parent Company and these subsldiarles account for
$6.88 mitilon or 41% of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2017,
The Group reviewed the recoverable amounts of these assets hased on its value In use by projecting

future cash flows covering a perlod of flva years. A determined WACC was used 10 discount the ¢ash
flows. ' '

Detalls of the rates used are as follows:

o . . 2017 2016
Discount rate 7.66% 3.66%
Growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

The Group provided for impairment foss of $1.09 million in 2017 {PTWAFY's piant and machinery) and
$8.55 million in 2015 {mainly fishing vessels and related CIP), on Iis property, plant and equlpment
(see Notes 20 and 21) because of the discontinuance of the Group's fishing operatlons. Allowance

for Impalrment loss amounted to $1.70 million and 50.61 million asat December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively,

In 20185, fishing vessels with cost amounting to $14.41 million and accumulated depraciation and
Impalrment amounting to $14.10 million, were reclassified to “Other noncurrent assets” as
“Idle assets” as these ara no longer used In operations (see Note 12, '

In 2015, the Parent Company recovered two of the fishing vessels tpreviously sold to WCF| because
of losses sustained by WCFL The receivable from the sale of three fishing vessels of $6.38 million in
2013 was provided with an allowance for impairment loss of $6.28 milllon in 2014 {see Note 12).
When the Parent Company recovered the two vessels at a arrying amount of §5.91 million, it
reversed allowance for iImpairment {recovery) of $5.82 million in 2015 but racognized a provision for
Impalrment loss on the fishing vessels at the same amount in the same year {see Mote 21},

Effectively, the Parent Company did not recognize any gain or loss from this transaction In the 2015
consolidated financial statements.
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The depreciation and amortization charged to operations are as follows:

Note 2017 2016 201%
Property, plant and equlpment $1,145634  $1,142 690 $1,172,648
Other Intanglble assets 12 4,963 4,864 12,280
_ $1,150597 51,147,554 $1,184,928

Charged to;
Cost of goods sold 19 $1,029,724  $1,059,050 §1,086,489
Selling and administrative Bxpenses 20 120,873 83,504 98,439,

$1,150,597  $1,147,554 $1,184,928

Galn on disposal/ratirement of property, plant and equipment amounted to $58,618, $12,078 and
$4,418 In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively {see Note 21},

The cost of fully depmc[ate;;.' Propesty, plant and equipment stiil used In Group’s operatigns
amounted to $0.28 million and $0.42 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respactively. Fully

depreciated property and equipment of AMH! costing .16 wmillon were retired on
December 31, 2017, '

12. Other Noncurvent Assets
This account consists of:
_ Note 2017 2018
Receivable from WCFI . 11 $2,182,863 $2,182,863
Receivable from PFNZ - net of current portion 894,004 1,068,019
Investments in joint ventures 553,480 553,480
[dle assets 11 314,320. 314,320
Other intangihle assets 171,217 174,655
‘Investment In an associate : 118,333 92,252 .
Others 412,212 314,257
, 4,246,429 4,699,886
Less allowance for Impairment [osses 3,164,942 3,164,942

$1,581,487 $1,534,944

Recelvabla from \WCFI

Recelvable from WCF| Includes receivable from the sale of a fishing vesse and advances for fish

deposit, These were provided with allowance for Impairment [pssag because of lossas sustalned hy
WCFl. WCF) has ceased operatlons sinee 2014,
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tvable from p
Detalls of the recelvable from PENZ are as follows:

o ' Note

2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year $1,245519  $1,358375 52,772,462
Cash receipts {110,557) {112,856} : -
Offset of trade payable - - {455,583)
Restructuring loss:
Wrlte-down 21 - - (556,879}
Interest expense 14 - = {401,625)
Outstanding balance : 1,134,962 1,245,519 1,358,375
Less current portion ] 148,958 177,500 160,000
Noncurrent portion 8994004  $1,068,019 $1,198,375

As discussed in Notes 1 and 6, ASFI) spid its pwnership Interest
BGB entered into a debt restructuring agreement with PFNZ, whi

i PFNZ In 2015, In the same year,
ch provides among others:

a. Payment of the recelvable In monthly installments commencing in January 2016 up to

September 2029; and

b. The restructured retelvable shali be secured by PFNZ’s tangible and intellectual propertias;

Interest income amounted to $51,B86, $68,520 and $68,448 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively

{see Note 7).

mastments n Jolnt vV 5
Details are as follows:

. 2017 2016
At cost;
FDCP $240,564 $240,964
WCFI 39,27% 39,279
280,243 280,243 .
Accumulated equity in net eamnings:

Balance at beglnning of vear 360,185 392,690
—__Share In net losses - (32,501)‘
Balance at end of year 360,189 360,189

640,432 540,432

Share in other comprehensive income [86,952) (86,952)
Tolal 553,490 553,480
Allowance for impalrment loss (553,450} (553,480}
$— $—-

FDCP, FDCR Is engaged in manufacturing and whotesate of tin ans. FD
operatlons In September 2015, The Group provided Impairment {055 of §
investment in FDCP. The Group has 39% ownership interest In FDCP,

WCFI. WCF| is an entity primarlly engaged in commercial flshi
waters and in the high seas, The Group has 40% ownership

operation on December 31, 2014,

TP ceasad manufacturing
0.24 million In 2015 on jts

ng within and outslde Philippine
Interest In WFCL WCH ceased
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1.

Idie Assats

idle assets pertaln to fishing vessels that are no ionger used Inthe Group’s operations, Detalis of thé

tarrying amount of the fishing vessei reclassified from property, plant and equipment in 2016 are as
follows (see Note 11):

- Amount
Cost ' $14,412,664
Less: :

Accumulated depreciation
Allowance for Impaloment losses

484,192
13,614,152
$314,320

The fishing vessel was stated at Its recoverable amount whichis based on scrap value, In 20186, the

carrylng amount af fishing vessel amounting to $314,320 was fully provided with allowance for
impairment losses,

Detalls of Idle assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows;

Amount

Carrying amount 5314320
Less allowance for Impaliment 314,320
4-

Other Intangibla Assets

Other intanglble assets pertain to consents In New Zealand and fishing Jicense. Movements in this
account are as follows:

Note - 2017 2016

Cost $269,066 $269,066
Accurmnuiated Amortlzation )

Balance at beginning ofyear 94371 40,100

Amortization 11 4,963 4,864

Translatlon adjustment {1,485) (593)

Balance at end of year 57,849 84,371

: 171,217 174,695

Allowance for impaimment loss 114,279 114,279

556,938 $60,416

The carrylng amount of Intangible asset with Indefinite useful Iife, which pertains to macrosystic
consent, amounted to $21,302 and $20,754 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Total carrying amount of intanglble assets with deflnite useful lives, which pertain to fishing license,

tonsent and development expenditure, amounted to $35,636 and 339,662 a5 at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively,
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n Assog

The Group has an effective 20% ownership interest in SSNZ. SSNZ s enéaged In the farming of
salmon In Soqth Island of New Zealand and was Incorporated In 2008,

Detalls of the Investment are ag follows;

: 2017 2016
Acqulsition cost 527,319 $27,319

Accumulated equity In profits:
Balance at beginning of year ’ 64,933 - 45,182
Equity In net income 26,081 . 19,771
Balance at end of year 91,014 64,933
$118,333 §92,252

The summarized financjai information of SSNZ as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 is as follows: :

2017 2016
Total assets $419,063 $491,719
Total fiabilities 42,694 120,092
Equity . 502,033 371,627
Net Income 130,406 123,571

Others

Others include lease deposkts and hiological assets of the Group, which comprised solely of
consumable female smolts. The blological assets amounted to $036 million and 40,25 million as at
December31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

Allowanga for Impairment Lossas

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Receivable from WCF| $2,182,863 52,182,863
Investments in Joint ventures 553,480 553,480
Idle assets . 11 314,320 3i4,320
Other intangible assets 114,279 114,279

$3,154,942 $3,164,942

Movements in thiz account are as follows:

: Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $3,164,942 $2,850,622
Provision 20 ' - 314,320
Balance at end of year $3,164,942 $3,164,942
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13. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

Note . 2017 2016
Trade payahles:

Third parties 56,947,753 3,596,396
Related party _ 15 262,844 262,844

Accrued expenses: '
Salaries, wages and other benefits 758,492 582,290
Interest 435,828 90,595
Professional fees 241,787 384,315
Frelght 16,544 125,925
Others 647,619 679,165
Statutory payahle 273,458 69,430
Customers’ deposlts 72,299 195,398
Others 83,570 73,900
$9,745.224 © 56,070,258

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and ara generally settled within 30 days.

Other accrued expenses include accruals for business devefapmeﬁt expenses; security services,
commission and customers’ claims, Accrued expenses are usually settled in the following menth.

Statutory payable includes amounts Payable to government agencles such as 855, Phithealth and
Pag-1BIG and are normally settled in the following month, :

14, Loans Payable

Details of the Group's loans payable are as follows:

Short-term Loans
Currency Nominal nterest rate 2017 2016
Local banks Ush 4,50% $18,4387,091 $12,522,343
PHP 5.00% - 2,500,000
investment banks PHP 4.50% 3,064,290 3,077,233
UsSD 3.00% 2,700,000 2,700,000
24,251,381 20,799,575
Add current portlon of long-term joans 34,519 30,607

$24,285,500 520,830,183

Loans from local banks aggregating $18.49 million and $15.02 millon as at Dacember 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, represent availments of revolving facllities, export packing credlt, export bills
purchase, import letters of credit and trust receipts, with term ranging from 3 to 6 months,
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Loon Security. loans of $18.49 million and $12.47 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are secusred by the Company’s tradle receljvables sndInventorles as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Trade recelvables B $6,023,684 $3,580,400
Inventaries 9 8,251,535 2,750,488

514,275,223 $6,330,888

Loans from investment banks are unsecured promissory notes used to finance the Group’s working
capital requirements, with 30-tlay term renewable.

Chattel Mortgage Loans

Qurrency Nominal interest rate 2017 2016
Local banks PHP 9,24% - 9.59% 450,569 $51,664
Foreign financing
corporation NZD 7.15% 63,305 33,389
113,874 85,053
Less current portion ' 34,519 30,607
$79,355 $54,446

Loon Security. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, chattel morigage toans amounting to $113,874
and $85,053 are secured by transportation equipment with carrying amount of $105,026 and
570,082, respectively (see Note 11},

Schedule of Principal Payments. These are summarized below:

Year Amount
2018 §34,519
2019 - 2022 79,355
$113,874
Interest Expense

Interest expense charged to operations Is as follows:
Note 2017 2018 2015
Loans payable §751487 G860,496 51,407,386
Due to related partles 15 36,060 B,021 94,040
Restructured recejvables 12 ~ - 401,625

$787,547 $868,517 $1,903,051

Interest expense on restructured receivables pertains to “Day 1 loss” on recelvable from PENZ
restructured In 2015 {see Note 12).
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15. Relatad Party Transactions

The Group, in the normal course of business, has regular transactions with Its related partles as

surmnmarized below:

: Amount of Transaction Qutstanding Balance
Related Party Mote - 2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade and other receivables 3
Joint Vanture (85,043} $306,398 $265,265  $271,598
Associate ) {4,705) - 11,117 15,822
5276,382  $287,420
Other noncurrent assets 12
Joint Ventura $— $— 52,182,863 $2,182,863
Allowance for impairment - — (2,182,863} (2,182,863}
5— 5
Trade and other payables :
immediate Parent $110,154 —~  $110,154 —~
Joint Venture 13 - - 262,844 262,844
' $372,998  $262,844
Due to related parties
Immediate Parent 1 $2,002,804 $~ $2,002,804 §-
Subsldiary’s Stockholder 3,594 ~ 138,705 136,112
$2,142,51D 5136,112

Naiure and Terms of Paymeqpt

Trate and other receivables. Other seceivable from SSNZ pertains to working capltal advances that
are due on demand. The receivable from FDCP pertains to return of purchased tin cans which had

damages.

Other Noncurrent Assets, As discussed in Note 12, this receivable resulted from the sale of fishing

vessels by the Parent Company, which was provided with effiowance,

Trade and‘omer Fayables. The Parent Company purchased some of its tin cap requirements fram
FDCP. Accrued expense to immadiate parent pertains to consultancy fee, These trade accounts

which resulted from these transactions are noninterest-bearing,

Due to Related Partles, Payable to immediate parent is due on April 28, 2018 and bears an Interest
of 6.50% per annum, The ultimate parent company is Seawood Resources, Inc,, a domestic
company engaged [n Investment actlvities. Due to a subsidlary’s stockholder is for working capital
advances that Is payable on demand. Due to a subsidiary's stockholder bears an Interest of

7.15% per annum.

Akaroa purchased smolts from SSNZ which are settled upon billing. Total purchases amounted to
$247,646 and $288,028 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. There isno outstanding payable arising from

this transaction,
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Movements in the present value of defined beneflt obligations are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $226,550 $393,160
Current service cost 42,325 74,564
Interest cost 8,705 18,339
Retirement liabllity reclassifled to payable - {46,451}
Beneflts paid:
From operations : -~ (38,833)
From plan assets - (10,102)
Remeasurement losses {gains); :
Changes in financlal assumptions - {35,854)
Experience adjustments - (112,063}
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - translation adjustment {763} (16,210}
4276,817 $226,550
Maovements In the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

: 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $41,636 311,991
Interest income " 728 588
Employer contribution - 42,403
Benefits paid - {10,102)
Loss on plan asset - {(916)
Transiation adjustment (174) {2,328}

§42,190 $41,636
The analysis of the fair value of plan assets at the reporting dates & as follows:
2017 2016
Cash and cash equivaients . %352 $107
Debt Instruments 41,889 41,585
Fees payables (5} {6)
Withholding taxes payable {46) {50}
542,190 $41,635
The principat assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
2017 2016
Discount rate ' 5.25% 5.25%
Expected rate of salary Increases 4.00% 4,00%
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The sensitivity analyses balow have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the

respective assumptions occursing at the end of the reporting pericd, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

Increase

{Decrease) on

Retirement

Change in Benefit

Assumption Obligation

Expected salary growth rate 1.00% $26,325
Discount rate 1.00% (26,228)
Life expertancy 10.00% 2,984

The average duration of the benefit obligation on December 31, 2017 and 2016 is 18 years.

The cumulative remeasurement gains {losses} on retirement obligation recognized in equity as at
December 31 follows:

2017 2016 2015
Balance =t beginning of year 455,150 {$48,352) ($123,446)
Rerneasurement gain - 103,542 ' 75,094
Balance at end of year $55,150 $55,190 ($48,352)

Deferred tax asset related to the cumulative remeasurement gain or loss amounted to $45,162 as at
Decemnber 31, 2017 and z016.

17

Equity

Lapltal Stock

Detalls of the Company's capital stock as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as foliows:

Shares Amount

Authorized
Crdinary shares at 1 par value

Balance at be_gjnning and end of year 3,000,000,000  R3,000,000,000

Issued and Outstanding
Balance at beginning of year 2,500,000,000 453,646,778
Treasury sharag {287,537) (5,774)

Belance at end of year 2,499,712, 463 $53,641,004
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The history of shares issuances from Initial public offerfing of the Parent Company s as follows:

Issue/Offer Number of

Subscriber Price Regtstration/Issue Date Shares Issued

Initlal public offering Varilpus £1.35 Movember B, 2006 535,099,610

Stock dividends Varlous - December 17, 2007 64,177,449
Stock rights offer {SRO) Varlous 1.00 July 25, 2011 272,267,965

Stock dividends Various - January 25, 2012 137,500,000

Private placement Various 160 December 14, 2012 60,668,750

Private placement Strongozak Inc. 131 May 5, 2014 430,286,226

SRO Varous 1.00 Qctober 28, 2015 1,000,000,000

’ 2,500,000,000

On February 17, 2015, the BOD approved the increase in the Parent Company's authorized capital
stock from R£1.50 billion divided into 1.50 billion shares to #3.00 billion divided Into 3.0 billion shares
8L #1.00 par vaiue a share. The same resolution was approved by the stockholders on
March 31, 2015, The increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the SEC on October 28,
2015,

In the same meeting, the BOD also approved the stock rights offering of up to 1.0 billlon shares at
P1.00 par value & share by way of pre-emptive rights offering to eligible existing common
shareholders of the Parent Company at the proportion of 1 rights offer for every one and ¥ existing
common shares held as of the record date. :

Strongoak Inc. acquired 952,479,638 shares of the Parent Company at par value arising from the
Increase In sutharized capitat stock end stock nghts offering by way of pre-emptive rights, such
increase was approved by the SEC on October 28, 2015. This resulted in Strongoak Inc. owning a
total of 1,382,765,864 common shares, representing 55.32% of the total Issued and outstanding
shares of the Parent Company. :

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the BOD and stockhoiders, respeciively, approved the
Parent Company’s plan to undergo an equlty restructuring to eliminate the Parent Compay’s
deflcit, as follows:

¢ Decrease the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock by reducing the par value of |ts
common stock from P1 a share to approximately RO.50 a share, without returning any portion of
the capital to the stockholders. The Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation will be
amended to reflect the necessary changes,

» Create additional paid-in capital from the decrease in par valug,

. Apply the newly created additional paid-in capital, together with the existing pid-in caphal of
$6.7 million, to wipe out the Parent Company’s deficit as at May 31, 2017.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC a pproved the Parent Company’s application for the equity
restructuring. Accordingly, the resulting APIC of $26.82 milllon from the restructuring and the APIC
of $6.66 million as at December 31, 2016, will be used to fully wipe out the Parent Com pany's deficlt
amounting to 532.00 million as at December 31, 2017. ’
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The total number of shareholders of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2017 and 1016 I5 236
and 256, respectively, :

The Group’s noh-controlling interests represent 0.029%, 20% and 1.115% ownership of non-controling
interest shareholders of PTIAFI & PTVDZ, Akaros and AMHI, respectively, Non-contralling interests
amounted to $2.31 million and $2.47 mililon as at Pecember 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The net Income {loss) aligcated to non-controliing Interests amounted to $125,781, $69,760 and
{$1.63 milllon) In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

The summarlzed flnancial information of PTIAF! and PIVDZ, Akarca and AMHI as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 follows: : :

2017
PTIAF) & PTVDZ AKAROA AMH)
Total assets $4,028,101 $2,679,662 $3,054,192
Total liabilities 12,969,968 1,235,864 2,400,951
Equity {capital deficlency) (8,941,867) 1,443,798 653,241
Net income (loss) (288,031} 703,204 {211,964)
2016
PTIAF| & PTVDZ ARARQA AMHI
Total assets 34,257,722 31,791,814 33,603,358
Total {iabllitles 12,910,681 1,068,337 2,446,946
Equity {capital deficlency} (B,652,958) 723,477 1,156,412
Net income (loss) (2,874,407) 212,713 380,744
2015
. PTIAFL & PTVDZ AKARCA AMH1
Total assets $5,189,840 $1,635,630 $3,527,397
Total l{abiiities 7,511,756 1,126,612 2,691,807
Equlty {capital deficiency) 2,321,916 509,018 835,550
Net income {loss} (6,428,462) 51,959 384,162
18, Net Ravenue
This account consists of: -
, 2017 2016 2015
Net revenue $72,475308  $56,917,341 $68,198,564
Sales returns (283,725) {2,864) (282,874)
$72,191,578 $59,914,477 $67,915,690
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15. Cost of Goods Sold

This account censists of

Note 2017 2015 2015
Raw materfals used $49313,797 $42423,566 $43,734,566
Direct labor 6,657414 6,046,490 5,332,204
Manufacturing overhead: _
Depreciation and amortization 11 1029723 1,058,050 1,086,489
Warehousing 954299 1173976 1,031,855
Fuel 131497 791,357 531,799
Light and water 128777 303,958 482,542
Rent 24 440,557 678,911 634,006
Consumables 337,950 439,796 140,484
Others - 2,464,568 2,601,899 562,721
Total manufacturing costs 62,668,583 55,519,003 53,586,756
Finished goods, bfgl_nnlng 5 5487867 6415,666 13,925,033
Total cost of gaods manufactured 68,156450 61,934,669 67,511,789
Finished goods, ending 9 {5,413534) {5,487,867) {6,415,666)

$62,742916 556,446,802 $61,006,123

Other manufacturing overhead consists of indlrect labo,
and Insurance, among others,

repairs and maintenance, outside services

20,

Selling and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016 2015
Salaries, wages and other benefits $2,614,078 §2,772,549 53,621,209
Provislons for Impalrment losses on:
Property, plant and equipment 11 1,080,400 - 2,730,177
Inventories 9 210,780 794,010  5,298817
Trade and other receivables B 69,574 79,049 315,318
Other noncurreat assets 12 - 314,320 628,480
Frelight and handiing 93,265 845,804 333,426
Outside services 830,684 746,535 1,135,054
Taxes and licenses 682,079 305,302 635,979
Transportation and trave) 320,853 428,402 641,091
Advertising and marketing 257,497 309,030 435,789
Representatlon and entertalnment 179,508 193,856 174,420
Insurance 145,711 193,691 251,259
Depreclation and amortization 11 120,873 88,504 98,439
Utilitles and communication 101,313 115,683 137,527
Materlals and supplies 95,718 88,043 107,250
Commission 80,514 83,609 325,185
Business development 73,091 89,505 110,191

{Forward)



Note, 2017 2016 2015
Rent 24 361,136 566,186  $132,060
Repairs and maintenance 40,637 40,753 65,032
Buyers’ claim : 14,829 19,307 624,919
Others . 164,396 383,377 958,317
58,117,124 $7,957,915 $18.744,748
21, Other Income {Charges) - Net
This account consists of;
Note 2017 2016 2015
Bank charges - {$154,146)  [$116,353) {$114,558)
Interest income 7 70,965 159,133 175,890
Galn on disposal/retirement of property, plant
and equipment 11 58,618 12,078 4,418
Foreign exchange galn (ioss) 13,198 202,330 (4p5,182)
Loss on restructuring of receivable from PENZ 12 - - {556,879)
Reversal of allowance for impairment foss on
inventories ' - - 436,277
Recovery of fishing vessels from WCFi» '
Reversals of allowance for
impairment loss on other
nancurrent assets 11 - - 5821848
Provision for impalrment loss on
fishing vesseals 11 - - {5821,845)
Gain on disposal of investment : 6 - - 371,280
Others 3811 303,927 {79,225}
: ($7.554)  $561,115  (5167,979)
Others pertain ta sale of scrap materfals and duty rebates.
22. Employee Beneflts
This account consists of:
Note 2017 2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits _ $9,867306 38,503,263 53,066,779
Post-employment benefits 18 50,302 92,315 74,083
$9,517,608  $9,595,578 43,140,872 _
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23. Income {Loss) Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diltsted income (loss} per share s based on the following data:

2017 2016 2015
Net income {loss) attributable to Parent
Company $1,437,271 ($5,968,529) ($6,352,392)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding 2,499,712,463  2,199712,463  1,677,794,655
50,0006 {$0.0024) {60,0038)

The welghted average number of shares refars to sharas in circulation during the period that is after
the effect of treasury shares.

As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Parent Companyhas no dilutive potential share,

24,

Significant Agreements

&!EEI! gg[eement

The Parent Company entered into an exclusive supply agreement with a customer to provide

_specified products for duration of five Years starting 2018, renewable upon mutual agreement by

both parties.

Operating Lease Agreemen
A number of operating lease agreements were entered into hythe Group,

The Group os lessee

Operating lease agreement with Dominion Property Holdings, inc, The Parent Com pany leases jts
head office space from Dominlon Proparty Holdings, Inc. with 2 monthly rental of $3,688 for a
period of three years, commencing on August 16, 2015 to Algust 15, 2018 renewable by mutua}l
agreement by both partles, '

Operating lease agreement with Piadi Multipurpose Cooperative. BGB has a one-yéar lease
agreament with Pindi Multipurpose Cooperative for the lease of the warehouse building which
expired on August 31, 2016, The fixed monthly rent amounted to $426 plus 12% VAT or a total of
8477,

Opetoting lease agreement with New Zealand Guardian Trust Compony Limited, Akaroa -antered
Into a lease agreement with New 2egland Guardian Trust Company Limited for premises located at § -
Pope Street, with an annual renta) payment of 546,213 for 15 years beginning fune 1, 2012 until
May 30, 2027. The agreement has four renewable dates belng December 1, 2014, june 1, 2017,
June 1, 2022 and December 1,2024,

Operating lease agreement with o former sharehoider. Spence leases its office and ma nufacturing
space from an entity that is controlled by its former shareholder under an operating lease that
expires on May 31, 2020. The Company also leases certain vehicles under operating leases untjl
Septamber 2018,
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Total rent expense charged under “Cost of goods sold” amounted to $0.44 million in 2017 angd
$0.68 million in 2016 and 2015 (see Note 19).

Total rent expense charged under “Seliing and administrative expenses” amounted to $61,136,
$66,186 and $0.13 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 20},

Future minimum Jease payments under the lease agreements are as follows:

2017 2016

Not later than one year : $173,054 $860,553
Later than one year but not later than five years 359,984 1,383,224
More than five years 165,723 197,999
$698,761 $2,441,776

The Group as Lessor
Operating Jease agreement between AMHI and FDCP. AMHI has a lease agreement with FDCP

covering a parcel of land, The lease agreement expired in 2017, Rent recelvabie of AMH included In
the “Due from related parties” under “Trade and other recelvebles” account amounted to $14,610

respectively,

25,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

For the past 6 years, the Parent Company hag been giving back to the community through the
feeding program conducted jn Banisil High School located in General Santos City, The program

responsibility program to focus on the focal workers' communjty welfare, as well as promoting a
ciean and healthy environment together with energy conservation, for commencement In 2018,

26.

Income Taxes

Companents of income tax expense (benefit) charged to profit or foss are as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Carrent $600994  $200842  $1,081.708
Deferred (2,601,528) 418,056 (1,223,475

{$3,000,534) $1,120,898 ($172,177)
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Defarred Tax
The tompanents of the Group’s deferred tax assets and defersed tax Nabllitles as at December 3,
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for Impalrment losses on:
Trade and other receivables ang other
noncurrent assets: 57,157,270 5055,832
Inventorles 268,920 504,733
Property, plant and equipment 30,422 4,208,964
NOLCO 2,014,218 2,284,039
MCIT 94,961 4,009
Accrued expenses 90,50 134,095
Retirement benefit obligation 60,780 53,354
Unrealized forelgn exchange loss 4,181 1549
Rental payable - . 126,464
59,721,323 98,273,039
Deferred tax labllities:
Accelerated depreciation 5135,957 $249,570
Accrued rental income - 21,134
—— Vnrealized foreign exchange gain ' - 18,497

$135,857 $289,201

Details of other dedyctible temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets ware racognized
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Allowance on Impalment on: :
Trade and other receivables and other noncurrant assets $430,276 $499,196 -
Property, plant and equipment 479,117 479,117
Inventories 137,323 257,127
NOLCO . 1,176,469 1,427,438
MCIT . 65,239 104,480
Retirement benefit obligation 9,608 2,120

$2,348,032 52,769,478

The detalls of the Group’s NOLCQ, which can be clalmed as deduction from future taxable income
are as follows:

Inception Year Amount Applied Expireqd Bafance Explry Year
2017 $299,738 5 - $299,738 2020
2016 5,844,461 - - 5,844,461 2019
2015 4,491,524 - - 4,491,524 2D1B
2014 2,035,603 3,959 2,031,604 - 2017

512,671,326 53,999  $2,031,604 $10,635,723
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The detalls of the Group's MCIT, which can be claimed as deduction from future Incame tax liabllity
are as follows: '

Inception Year. Amount Expired Balance Explry Year

2017 $100,743 S— $100,743 2020

2016 4,009 - 4,009 2019

2015 55,448 - 55,448 2018

2014 83,767 83,767 - 2017
$243,967 583,767 $160,200

The Group believes that with the new strateg(c plan belng implemented to turn-arsund the business
{see Note 1}, the Group will generate enough taxable Income to utllize the tota! deferred tax assets
of $9.72 million and $8.27 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The reconclilation of income tax beneflt tomputed at the statatory Income tax rate and at effective
{ncome tax rate follows:

2017 2016 2015
Income tax benefit computed at statutory
tax rate ' $168,755 ($1,433,361) ($2,458,498)
Tax effects of:
Incame exempt from taxation {5,724} (81,524} (52,516}
Expenses exemnpt from taxation 78,866 70,282 712,426
Interest expense 2,100 18,152 12,410
Expired:
NOLCO : 609,481 807,684 -
MCIT ' 83,767 52,786 -
Changes In unrecognized DTA {421,446) 812,200 1,551,454
Effect of tax rate differences 484,735 B74,679 62,547
$1,000,534 $1,120,898 (5172,177)

The Parent Company and BGB were Subjacted to MCIT $100,743 in 2017, $4,009 in 2016 and
$35,221 in 2015,
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27. Fair Value of Finanelal Assats and Llabillties

The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financjal assets and
financial ltablllles as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2017
Falr value measurement using
Quoted prices Slgniflcant Sgnificant
Inactiva  observable uncbservable
Carrylng markets Inputs nputs
Amgunt Fair Value {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financlal Assets

Loans and recetvables: )
Cash and cash equivalents $4427,478 34,427,478 54427,478 ] $
Trade and other receivables 3,137,851 9,137,851 9,137,831 = -
Due from.related partles 276,382 276,382 276,382 - -
Recelvable from PFNZ* 934,004 1,284,758 - ~__ 1,284,758
814,835,715 $15,126,469 $13841,711 & $1,244,758
Financlal Liabilities
Trade and other payables** 49,394,457 59,394,437  $9354,437 8- -
Loans payable 24,365,255 14,370,619 - ~ 24,370,614
Due to refated partles 2,142,510 2,142,510 2,342,510 - -
Refundable lease deposits 21,811 21,811 - - 21,811
$35,924,013  $35,929372  $11,535,847 $~  $24,392,425
*Under ather noscurrent assets

** Excluding stetutory payoble ond cusfomers’ deposits

2016
Quated prices Signiflcant Significant
in active observable unpbsenvable

Carrylng markels inputs Inputs
. Amount Fair Value {Level 1} (Level 2) {Leve] 3)
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents $7,395,343  $7,395,343 $7,395,343 8- o=
Trade and other recelvablas 6,437,488 6,437,488 6437,488 - -
Due from related parties 287,420 287,420 287,420 - -
Recelvable from PFNZ* 1,068,019 1,275,327 - - 1,275,327
$15,'I.BB,270 $15,396,578 514,121,251 & $1,275327
Financial Uabilities : '
Trade and other payables* $5,805,430 45,805,430 55,805,430 & [
Loans payabla 20,884,629 21,116,861 - - 21,115,861
Due to related partias 136,112 136,112 136,212 - -
Refundable lease deposits 92,355 92,395 -~ - 92,355
526,918,566 527,150,798 $5941,542 & $21,209,256

- *Under other noncurrent ossets
* Excluding statutory payablz tnd customers’ depishis

The difference between the carrying amount of trade and other payables disclosed in the
consolidated statements of financlal position and the amount disclosed in this note perfains to
government payables and customers’ deposits that are not consldered as financial ilabilities,
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Due to the short-term maturities of cash and cash equlvalents, trade and other racaivables, trade
and other payables and due to related parties, their carrylng amounts approximate their fair values.

The fair value of the receivable from PFNZ and loans payabie is determined based on the discounted
tash flow analysis using eifactive Interest rates for simllar types of Instruments; There were no
significant unobservable inputs identifled and no relationship was established between the
unobservable Inputs and the fair value of the loans payable and refundable lease deposits, These
financial Instruments are classified under Level 3 of the farr value hlerarchy groups of the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of the refundable lease deposits is based o the
amount that the Group could be required to repay Immediately.

The fair value hievarchy groups the financlal instruments Into Lavels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the falr value is observable. There were no transfers to other fevels in 2017 and 2016,

28,

Financlal Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, receivable fram PFNZ, trade and other payables {excluding statutory payable and
customers’ deposit), loans payabie, due to related parties and refundable lease deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk and forelgn currency risk, The Group’s BOD and management review and approve the
palicies for managing each of the risks summarized helow,

Credit Rigk
Credit risk Is the risk when a counterparty fails to fulfill its obligations to the Group.

The table below shows the Bross maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Group’s consolldated statements of financiat position before taking Into consideration collateral and
other credlt enhancements: '

2017 : 2016
Cash in banks and cash equivalents $4,423,449 $7,391,722
Trade and other racelvables 9,414,233 6,724,908
Receivable frorn PENZ* 994,004 1,068,019
Refundabie deposits* 54,786 61,815

514,886,472 515,246,464

*Under other noncurrent ossets

The Group, however, deals only with reputable banks and customers to limit this risk.
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2018, the aging analysis of the Group’s financlal assets Is as follows:

2017
Past Dua Acenunts byt nat Impabed

Nelther Past Impalred

-Duanor 1-30Days 31-6D Days Over Financial
Impalrad Past Due Pagt Dua 50 Daye Assats Tatal
Cash In banks $4,415,573 $- $= - $- $4,915,573
Cash equivalents 7,876 - - - - 7.876

Trade and other ‘ :

receivahles 4,345,089 4,180,626 262,465 625,853 2,011,850 11,426,183
Raceivable from PFNZ* 994,004 - - - - 994,004
Refundable deposits* 54,786 - - 54,786

$9,817,328  £4,180,275 $262,465 3625851 $2,011,950 $16,894,422
*Under ather noncurrent assets :

2016
Past Due Accounts but not Impaired

Nefther past -~ Impaired

Duenor 1-30Days 31-60 Days Over Financlal
: Impalrad Past Due Pasgt Dua 60 Days fgsate Total
Cash in banks $3,710,241 $- 5- 5 = $3,710,241
Cash equivalents 3,681,481 - - - - 3,681,481
Trade and other ’
recelvables 552,567 - 201,847 68,768 1,001,726 1,059,471 8,724,379
Recejvable from PFNZ? 1,068,019 - - - - 1,068,010
Refundable deposks™* 61,815 - - - - 61,815

$13,974,123 $201,847 $68,768  $1.001,726 §1,998,471 $17,245 035

*Under noncurent ossets

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carryng amaunts of financial assets that are nelther past
due nor impalred are rated a5 High Grade. The credit quallty of the financiaj assets is managed by
the Group using the Internal credit quallty ratings as foliows:

High Grade. Pertains to Counterparty who is not expected by the Group to default in settilng Its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimai, This vnormally includes large prime financlal
institutions and companies. Credit quality was determined based on the credit standing of the
caunterparty.

Standord Grode. Other financial assets not belonging to high grade financial assets are included In
this category.

Substandord Grode. Substandard grade flnanclal assets are those which are considered worthless.
These are accounts which have the probability of impairment based on historical trend,

Interast Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair valus or future cash flows of a financial

.instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates,

Tha primary source of the Group’s interest rate risk relates to debt instruments such as bank and
morigage loans. The interest rates on these labilitles ara disclosed in Note 14,
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Management belleves that any varlation In the Interest will not have a material impact on the nat
profit of the Group. Bank and mortgage loans amounting to $24.37 million and $20,88 millfon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2015, respectively, agreed at interest rates ranging from approximately
4.50% to 5.00% for bank loans and 7.15% to 9.59% per annum for fong-term loans; expose the
Group to fair value Interest rate risk.

The Graup has no floating Interest rate. The Group 1s not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk,

Liquidity Risk :
Liquldity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds to
meet commitments from financial Instruments. it may result from either the nabllity to sell assets
quickly at fair values or failure to collect from counterparty. '

The Group’s objective is to maintaln a balance between continuity of funding and flexibillty through
related party advances and alms to manage liguidity as follows:

a. To ensure that adequate funding fs available at ali times;
b. Tomeet commitments as they arise without recurring unnecessary costs; and
€. To be able to assess funding when needed at the least possible cost,

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial fiahilities based on the earllest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables
Include both Interest and principal.

2017
Welghted '
Average
Effective Withia More than
. Imterest Rate One Year One Year Total
Trade and other payables* - $9,394,437 5 $9,394,437
Loans payakle 4,50% - 9,599 24,28550) 78,355 24,365,255
Due to related parties 6.5006 - 7.15% 2,142,510 - 2,142,510
Future Interest 4.50% - 9,59% 20603 11,711 an,714
Refundable Jease depaosits - - 21,811 21,811
$35,852,451 $112,277 $35,964,72T
*Excluding stalutory puyable ond customers’ deposits
2016
Weighted
Average Effective Within Mara than
: Interest Rate One Year One Year Total
Trade and other payableg* - $5,805430 G- $5,805,430
Loans payable 2.75%-9,05% 20,830,802 54,446 20,885,248
Due to related parties 7.15% 136,112 - 136,112
Future Interest 2.50% -9.59% BAGS 5,743 14,209
Refundable lease deposits - - 92,395 52,305
526,780,810 152,584 $26,933,394

*Excluding statutory payable and customers’ deposit
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Foreign Currency Rlsk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from purchase and sale transactions
denominated in currencles other than the reporting currency. The Group does not enter into
forward contracts to hedge CUITENCY eXposures,

As part of the Group’s risk Management policy, the Group malntalns menitoring of the fluctuations
in the forelgn exchange rates, thus managing its foreign currency risk,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Philippine Peso and New Zealand Dollar denominated
monetary assets and monetary Habiliifes at the reporting dates are as foliows:

2017 2016
Philippine US Dollar Phtilppine US Doltar
Peso Equlvalent Peso Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents R26,898,255 $538,609  R103,617,011 $2,084,011
Trade and other receivables 36,302,077 727,032 16,222,194 326,271
Due from a related party 11,693,298 234,185 11,638,205 234,089
Trade and other payables . 290,490,623 5,817,738 140,559,765 2,827,027
Loans payable 160,001,176 3,204,389 155,568,759 3,128,897
. 2017 2016
New Zealand USDollar  New Zeatand US Dollar
Dallar Equivalent Dollar Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents $825,035 $583,841 $234,570 $160,554
Trade and other receivables 925,192 656,936 808,835 . 559,552
Due from a related party 15,657 11,117 5,070 3,507
Trade and other payables 661,571 469,758 629,046 435,174
Loans payable 89,155 63,306 48,768 33,738
Due to a related party 196,751 139,706 196,751 136,112

Management’s Assessment of the Reasonableness
The sensitivity analysls includes outstandin
and translated at period end for a 6% an

currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis [ncludes all of the Grou
and liabliities. A positive number befow inds

sirengthens by 6% and 10% In 2017 and

For a 6% and 10% in 2017 and 20186, respectively,
currency, there would be an equal and apposite |

following table would be negative.

of Possible Change in Foreign Exchaonge Rates,
g foreign currency denominated menetary items adjusted
d 10% change in 2017 and 2015, respectively, In forelgn

p's forelgn cumenwy denominated monetary assets
cales an increase in net profit when the U.S. Dolfar
2016, respectively,

against the relevant cuirency.

weakening of the U.S. Dollar against the relevant
mpact on the net profit and the balances on the
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The following table detalls tha Group's sensitivity to the U5, Dollar against the relevant forelgn
currency. _

Effect on Income (Loss) for the Periad

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents : $67,352 $207,951
Trade and other racelvables 83,039 32,627
Due from related parties 14,718 23,409
Trade and other payables {377,250) {276,913}
Loans payable (196,062} (558,901)
(8408,203) {$571,827)

Capltal Mansgement

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management Js to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit standing and stabla capital ratios in order to support Its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Group malntains its current capltal structure and will make adjustments, if necessary, in
order to generate a reasonable level of retumns to stockholders over the long term. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processas during the year.

The Group considers the equity presented In the consclidated statements of flnancial position as its
core capital,

The Group monitors capital using debt to equity ratio, which [s total debt divided by total equity.
The debt-to-equity ratlo as at December 31, 2017 and 20186, fallows: .

2017 2D16
Deht $36,830,072 527,739,080
Equlty 33,688,498 32,112,207
Debt-to-Equity Ratia $1.09:1 $0.86:1

"The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requlrements,

Debt Is composed of trade and other payables, loans payable, duets related partles and income tax
payable as discussed In Notes 13, 14, and 15 respectively, while equity includes- share capital,
reserves of the Group and non-controlfing interests, less Ireasury shares,

Pursvant to the PSE's rules on minimum public ownership, at least 10% of the Issued and
outstanding shares of a fisted company must be owned and held by the public, The public
ownership is about 32% as at December 31,2017 and 2016, respectlvely,

The Group reviews its capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the Group
conslders the cost of tapltal and the risks associated with it.
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29. Operating Segmant Informatian

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on the business segments in which the
Group’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services provided, The Group s organized Into three major operating business segments
{tuna, salmon and rental} in 2017, and 2016 which Is consistent with how the Group’s management
internally monitors and analyzes financial information,

Financial Information about reportable segments follows:

. December 31, 2017
Tuna Salmon Rental Total
Segment revenue $43416969 $28707,381  $u44925  §72.309.775
Inter-segment revenue - {77,331 {80,856) {158,197)
Net revanue $43,416,969 $28,710,530 464,069 §72,101,578
Segment resuits :
Income [ioss} hefora Income tax ($884,747)  $1,607,520 ($160,655) $562,518
Provision for (benefit from)
income tax {1,540,B64} 613,705 16625  (1,000,534)
Nst Income (loss) $756,117 $984,215 {$177,280) $1,553,052
Tota! assets $41,183,305 521,035,287 §$8,298,978 $20,518,570
Total flabliities $33,623,685 $2,963,647 $242,740 $36,830,072
Net cash flows provided by {used in):
Operating activitias {$10,008,715)  $3,281,830 {5567) (86,727,443
Investing activities {804,533) (441,465) - {1,245,958)
F!nam:lgg activities 8,720,522 (3,675,612) - - 5,044,710
Other Information:
Depreciation and amorization $663,544 $487,053 $-  $1,150,597
Other nancash income - net 1,294,239 15,842 -~ 1,310,091
December 31, 2016
Tung Salmon Rental Total
Segment revenue $34,939,555  $24,957, 221 $738,320 360,635,096
Inter-segment revenue - (41,906) (678,713) (720,619}
Net revenue $34,939,555  $24,915,315 $59,607  $59.514. 477
Segment results
" Incame (loss) before Income tax (66,137,014) . $1,377,5%3 {618,250 {4,777,871)
Provision for Income tax 343,078 566,621 211,159 1,120,898
Net income {lass) (§6,480,092)  $310,772 {$229,449)  (5,898,765)
Total assets $29,214,871  $22,084,35 58,612,064  §59,861,287
Total liabilitles 324,793,234 $2,774.497 $181,348 527,749,080

{Forward)
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Decembsr 31, 2016

Tung Salmon Rental Total
Net cash flows provided by {used In);
Operating activities ($7,321,522)  $1,173,294 $306,988  ($5,841,240)
Investing activities (248,997) {439,155) - {688,152)
Finanging activities {2,947,263) (375,818) {306,718)  (3,629,795)
Qther information:
Depreciation and amortization 8713,017 5433,973 52,680 31,149,670
__Other noncash Income - net 1,255,801 78,408 - 1,334,209

Geographical information ahout reportable segments follows:

Deacember31, 2017
Philippines  Indonesla UsSA New Zealand Total
Segment sales $44,088,592  $2,006,774 $20,272332 $5892,077 $72,349,775
Inter-segment revenue {80,856} - - {77,341} (158,197)
Total net sales $44,007,736  $2,096,774 $20,272,332 $5,814,736 $72,191,578

" Segment noncurrent gssets* $10,589,227  $2,408,539 $SAB006  $1,370,331  $14,862,003
Inter-segment noncurrent

assets 3,823,243  {1,090,400) - 91,044 - 2,823,856
Total nonturrent assets $14,362,46%  $1,315,23% $536,005  $1,461,145 $17,585,859
¥Includes property, plant and equipment ond other noncurrent assets,

December 31, 2016

Philippines Indonesia US4 New Zealand Total
Segment sales $33,634,583 $3,828,084 §18,909,173 4,263,256 860,635,096
Inter-segment revenue (678,713) S - - {41,505) {720,619)

Total net sales 332,955,870  $3,823,084 $18,909,178 54,221,350 555,914,477

Segment noncurrent assets* 510,204,273 $2,698,400 5644,044 $974,482 514,521,289
Inter-segment noncurrent

assets 3,866,910 -
Total noncurrent assets $14,071,183  $2,698,490

*includes property, plant and equipment ang other noncient gssets,

- - 3,866910

The Group has no revenues from transactions with a single external customer accounting for 10% or
more of its revenues from external customers. :
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30. Reconciilatlon of Liabllitles Arlsing From Financing Activitles

The table below detalis chan
including cash and noncash cha

ges in the Company's liabilitles arising from

nges:

Financing Cash Flows

financing activities,

2016 Availments Payments 2017

Loans payable $20,884,629  $29,164744  ($25,684,118)  $24,365,255
Due to refsted parties 136,112 2,006,398 - 2,142,510
Interest payable 80,595 787,547 -{435,828) 442 314
$21,111,336 541,958,699 [526,119,945} $26,950,079
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL SYATEMENTS FORFILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alllance Select Foods International, Inc.

Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanylng consolidated financlal statements of Alliance Salect Foads
International, Inc. {a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.} and Subsidiarles as at and faor the year ended
December 31, 2017, on which we have rendered our report dated March 23,2018,

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that Alllance Select
Foods International, Inc. has two hundred twenty one (221) stockholders owning one hundred {100) or

more shares each.

REVES TACANDONG & €O,

G2 nnt ) 00

EMMANUEL V. CLARING
. Partner

CPA Cartificate Nn, 27455

Tax ldentification No. 102-084-D04-000

BOA Accreditation Na. 4782; Valid umtll December 31,2018

SEC Accreditation No, 1021-AR-2 Graup A
Valid untll March 27, 2020

BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valld untl January 13, 2020

PTR Wo. 6607054
Issued January 3, 2018, Makat! Clty

March 23, 2018
Makatl Clty, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDUIES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alllance Select Foods International, Ine,
Unit 1206 East Tower

Phillppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig Clty

We have audited in accordance with Phillppine Standards on Auditlng, the consolidated financlal staterients
of Alliance Select Foods international, Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)and Subsidfaries (the "Group”} as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and have Issued our report thereon dated March 23,2018, Qur
aud(t was made for the purpose of forming an opinion an the basic consolidated financlal statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules as follows are the responsibility of the Group’s

management:
s Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretatlons
» . Financial Soundness Indicators '
¢ Conglomerate map
¢ Reconclliation of Retalned Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
L ]

) Supplementary Schedules as Required by Part N of Securitfes Regulation Code Ruke 68, as
. Amended

These schedules are presented for the purpose of complying with Securlties Regulation Code Rule 68, as
amended, and are not part of the basic consolidated financial statements. The Information in these
schedules has been subjected to the audlting procedures appliad In our audit of the basic consolidated
financlal statements, including comparing such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the baslc consolldated financlal statements or to the basic consolidated financlal
statements themselves. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated In all material respects In relatlon to
the basle consolldated Financlal statements taken as a whole.
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Valld untit March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valid until January 19, 2020
PFTA Mo, 6607954
lssued January 3, 2018, Makati City

March 23, 2018
Mekat! City, Metro Manila
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Not Not
Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preperation and Presentation of Flnandal
Statements
. v
Conceptual Framework Phase A; Objectives and qualitative characteristics
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Phllipplne Financial Reparting Standards {PFRS)
Not Not
PFRS Title Adopied Adopted | Applicable
PERS 1 {Revised) First-time Adoption of Phllllpplne Financiai Reporting v
Standaerds
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for -
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemptlon from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and /
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adoptets
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment )
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settied Share- v
based Payment Transactions
PFRS.’:I(Revlsed) Business Comblnations v
' Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration In a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint y
Ventures
PFRS 4~ Insurance Contracts
Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts




PFRS

Title

Adogted Not

fNot

Adopted | Applicable

PFRS 5

Nan-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operatlons

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methads of Disposal

. 4,\\[

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Minera) Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financlal
Assets .

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures ahout
Finangial Instruments

Amendments ta PFRS 7: Disclosuras - Transferz of
Financla) Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financiai Liabilltles

Amendment to PFRS 72 Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PBFRS 7: Applicabiity of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Flnancial
Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments ta PFRS 8: Aggregation of Opemting
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconclliatlon of the Total of
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financlal Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transitlan Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investrment Entlties

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entitles: Appyling
the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11

JoInt Atrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guldanc_e

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitians
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests In Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12¢ Transitlon Guldance




PERS Not Nat
Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitles v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entlties: Applying v
the Consulidation Excepttan,
Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarlfication of the Scopeof [
the Standard
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term recelvables and "
Payables
{ Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts |
Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs)
Not Not
PAS Title Adopted | iopted | Applicable
PAS 1. (Revised) |Presentation of Financlal Statements .
Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financlal instruments v
and Obligations Arlsing on Liguidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of items of Other v
Comprehenslve Income '
Amendment to PAS 1; Clarification of the v
Requirements for Comparative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disciosure Inhiative 4
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 4
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estivrates |
PAS 8 _ v
and Errors .
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Constrtiction Contracts v
"PAS 12 Income Taxés 4
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underlylng Assets
Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax v
Assets for Unreallzed Losses




PAS ) Not Not
Title Adopted | 1 jopted | Applicable
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Sarvicing v
Equipmaent
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumutlated v
Depreclation
Amendment to PAS 16; Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarificatlon of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19
v
(Revlsed) Employee Benefits
Amendment to PAS 19; Deofined Benefit Plans: v
Employee Contributions '
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market v
I155ue
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants end Disclosure of v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net investment in a Forelgn Operation v
PAS 23 {Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Pians v
PAS 27
' v
{Amended) Separate Flnancial Statements
Amendments to PAS 27: [nvestment Entities v
Amendments to PAS 27; Equity Method in Separate v
Financial Statements :
PAS 28
v
{Amended) Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception




PAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PAS 29

Financial Reporting In Hyperinflationary Economies

s

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Financial Instruments: Presentation

Amendmants to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Ohligatlons Arlsing on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssuas

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Finenclal Assets an
Financial Liabliities

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Flnanclal Reporting

‘Segment Informatlon for Total Assets and Liabilitles

Amendment to PAS 34: Interlm Financlal Reporting and

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of information
‘Elsewhere [n the Interim Flnanclal Report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabillties and Contingant Assets

PAS 38

intangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 3B: Revaluation Method ~
Propertionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methads of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 30

Financial instruments: Recognitlon and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39 Transition and Initsl
Recognltton of Financlal Assets and Financlal Liabllitles

Amendments to PAS 3%: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Falr Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financlal Guaraniee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financlal
Assets




Not Not
PAS
Title Adopted | oy oted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39; Reclassification of Finandal v
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derlvatives
Amendrent to PAS 39; Eliglble Hedged Items
Amendments to PAS 39; Novation of Derlvatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting v
PAS4D  |Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40; Clarifying the Interrelatlonship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifylng Property v
1 as Investment Property or Owner-occupled Property
PAS 41 Agriculture v
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
Philippine Interpretations
Not Nat
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissloning, Restoration and v
Similar Liahiltties
IFRIC2 Members’ Share In Co-operative Entltles and Shnilar v
Instrumants
. IFRIC4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a v
Lease .
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissionlng, v
Restoration and Environimental Rehabilltation Funds
\FRIC 6 Llahllﬁles arlsing from Partlclpating in a Speclfic Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies -
IFRIC S Reassessment of Embedded Derlvatives v
Amendments to Phllippine Interpretation IFRIC-9; v
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes




Interpretations Title Adopted | NOt Not
oP Adopted | Applicable

IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on g Defined Benefit Asset, v
Minimum Funding Requlrements and thefr interaction
Amendments tq Philipplae interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of 8 Minimum Funding Requirement

tFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net investment in s Forelgn Operation

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Dwners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 19 Extingulshing  Financlal  Liabilities with  Equity v
Instruments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Suface v
Mine

FRIC21  |Llevies v

PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - siC
Interpretations Title Adopted Ad:::e d Appl::;hla
S1C-7 " | Introduction of the Euro v

Government Assistance - No Specific Relaticn to

Sic-10 Operating Actlvitles Y

Sic-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v

SIC-25 income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
or its Shareholders

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the v
Legal Form of a Lease

Si1C29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures, v

SIC-31 Reverye - Barter Transactlons involving Adventising v
Services

SIC-32 Intanglble Assets - Web Sita Costs v




ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

{A Subsidlary of Strongoak Inc.)

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Below Is & schedule showing financial soundness ind

ended 2017, 2016 and 2015,

DECEMBER 31, 2017

icavors of the Group as at and for the years

2017 2015 2015

CURRENT/LIQUIDITY RATIO '
Current assets $33,608,806 $23,543,396 $30,787,776
Current liahilities 36,358,322 27,128,124 27,785,532
Current Ratia 0.92 0.87 111
SOLVENCY RATIO
Net income {loss) before depreciation and

amortlzation $2,713,649 (54,749,098)  ($6,837,888]
Total labilities 36,830,072 27,749,080 30,473,956
Solvency Ratio 0.07 {0.17) (0.22)
DEBT-TO-EQUITY RATIO
Total liabllitles $36,830,072 $27,748,080 $30,473,956
Total equity 33,688,408 32,112,207 38,063,978
Debt-to-Equity Ratlo 1.09 0.86 0.80
ASSET-TO-EQUITY RATIO
Total assets $70,518,570 $59,861,287 $68,537,934
Total eguity 33,688,498 32,112,207 38,063,978
Asset-to-Equity Ratio 2.09 1.86 1.80
INTEREST-COVERAGE RATIO .
Eatrnings before intérest and taxes $1,350,065 (53,509,354) (56,291,942) -
Interest expense 787,547 868,517 1,903,051
Interest-Coverage Ratio 1,71 {4.50) {3.31}
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Het income {loss) attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company $1,437,271 {55,968,529) {56,392,392)
Average equity 33,900,353 35,088,093 30,697,320
Return on Equity 4.37% (17.01%) {20.82%}



ALUIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

1A Subsidlary of Strongoak Inc.)

SUPPI.EMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

e AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Deficlt at beginning of year as shown In the separate financlal statements

{$22,528,486)

Less deferred tax assets at the beginning of year (7,732,162)
Add deferred tax liability at the beglnning of year 17,748
Total deficlt, as adjusted at beginning of year {30,242,900)
Net loss during the year closed to retalned earnings {8,977,458)
Add {less):
Movement in deferred tax assets {1,718,077)
Mavement in deferred tax liabifity {17,748)
Treasury shares - {5,774)
Total deficlt available for dividend declaration at end of year &=
Recanciliation:
Deficit at end of year as shown In the separate financial statements {$31,505,944)
Add {less}):
Deferred tax asset as at end of year (9,450,239}
Treasury shares (5,774)
Total deficit available for dividend declaration at end of year S




ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsldlary of Strongaak Ine} :

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PART Il of SRC RULE 68 AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017
Table of Contents
Schedule Description Page
A Financial Assats 1
B Amounts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Emplovees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockholders (Dther than Related Partles) -
C Amounts Recelvable from Related Parties which are Ellminated .Durlng the
Consolidation of the Financial Statements 3
D Intangible Assets - Other Assets 4
E Long-Term Debt 5
F indebtedness to Related Party. _NA
G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers _N/A
H Capital Stack 6
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SCHEDULE A
ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
. (A Substdiary of Strongoak inc)
SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
Number of Shares  Amount Shown in the Income
or Principal Amount  Statement of Financial recelved and
Description  of bonds and notes Posltlon accrued
Cash in banks
Security Bank of the Philippines - $1,585,419 5-
Citizens Bank - 1,100,806 -
ANZ Bank : - 585,828 -
Bangkok Bank Manila - 345,048 -
Bank of Mandiri - ' 297,617 -
Banco De Oro Universal Bank - 211,319 -
Land Bank of the Philippines - 198,630 -
Bank of the Philippine lstands - 43,470 -
Unlon Bank of the Philippines - 22,518 -
Robinsons Bank - 18,918 -
Asia United Bank - 3,016 -
Philippine Veterans Bank - _ 2,844 -
Sterling Bank of Asla ’ - 2,414 -
East West Bank - 1,422 -
Philippine Business Bank _ - 1,355 -
Development Bank of the Philippines - 604 -
Rabo Bank — 344 -
$4,415,573

Cash equivalents ]
Security Bank of the Phillppines — 7,876 -
: 54,423,449 $19,079
Trade receivables - $8,876,444 &
Retelvable from PFNZ - 1,134,962 51,886
Due from related parties ' - 276,382 -
Other nontrade receivables - B9,678 -

510,377,466 $51,8386
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COVER SHEET
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Reglstration Number
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COMPANY NAME
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[ COMPANY INFORMATION ]

Company’s EmeX Address ] Company’s Telephone Number/s Mohile Numer i
Info@alllanceselectfoods.com {02) 635-5241 to 44 - '
No. of Stockholders ) Annual Meeting (Month / Day} Flsca) Year {Month / Day)
236 June 15 December 31
L CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION i
Tha designated comlact persen MUST be sn Officer of tha Corporation [
Nama uf Contact Person . “Emal Address Talephone Nomber/s Moble Number
Mr. Raymond K.H. $ee info@allianceselactfoods,com {02) 635-5241 -
L CONTACT FERSON'S ADDRESS ]
Unit 1206 Fast Tower, Philppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Avenue, Paslg Clty

NOTEL: i cwse of death, rasignution or cessation of office of the officer designated as conate; persory, such incldent shall &2 reported o the
Commisskon within thirty (30} alender deys flom the otcurrence thereof with information and cornplate contact detalls of the new contact aerson
designated, .

2: Al Boxes must be praperly and completely fillad-up. Fallura to do so shall couse the delay it updoting the corpormtion’s records with the
Cotamtzeinn and/ar nou-recelpt of Notice of Deficiencler. Further, nar-cecelpt shail not excuzs thecorparation fram Habiiity for it deficiencles,
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ALTIANCE SELECT FOODS
A INTERNATIONAL, INC:

Y APNBRIZLY LINTKD CORnANY

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Alflance Select Foads International, Inc. {the Company) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financlal statements
Including the schedules attached thereln for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, In accordance with the prescribed finandlal reporting framework indicated
thereln, and for such Internal control ag management determines is necessary to enabie

the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing
the Company's ability ta continue as a going concern, disdosing, as applicable matters
refated to going concern and using the goihg concern basis of accounting unless

manageraent elther intends to liquidate the Cormpany or to cease aperations, of has no
realistic alternative but to do sa.

The Board of Directors Is respansible in bverseelng the Company’s financial reporting

process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the finandal statements Including the
schedules attached thereln, and submits the same to the members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appeinted by the stockholders, has
audited the flnanctal statements of the Company In actordance wlth Philippine

Standards on Auditing, and In Its report to the members, has expressed its opinien on
the fairness of presentation upon completlon of such audit,

Signature %j é; -

Antonio C. Pacls”
Chalrman of the Boar

Signature M /L—_
RaymhandiK.H. See [
Chipf Exegutlve Officar
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 2 aPB:f _ZE@__

g 2018 at Pasig
Ciy; afflants exhibited to me thair government issued identification cards, as follows:
Name Competent evidence | Date and Place of Valid until

of ldentity Issue
Antonio Pacls Passport No. | October 30, 2015 QOctober 29, 2020
EC5839503
Raymond K.H. See Passport No. March 17, 2015 March 16, 2020
EC3595414
Maria Cristina | PRC No. 0092146 Aprll 1, 2019
Villaruz *
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods International, Inc,

Unit 1206 Fast Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortlgas Avenue, Pasig City

Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of
(a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.} (the

Allfance Select Foods International, inc,

"Cumpanv").lwhich comprise the separate statements of financlal

positlon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the separate statements of comprehensive Income,

separate statements of changes In
ended and the notes to the separate
policies.

In our oplnion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly,
the financial posltion of the Company as at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2016, and |

and its cash flows for the
{PFRS),

Busis for Opinion

We conducted our audits In accordance with Philippt

responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the

equity and separate statements of cash fiows for the vears then
financlal statements, including a summary of significant accounting

in all matetlal respects,
ts financial performance '

years then ended In accordance with Phitippine Financtal Reporting Standards

ne Standards on Auditing {PSA). Our

Audit of the Separate Financlal Statements sactlon of our report. Ws are independent of the Company
In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants In the Phillppines {Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the separate financlal

statements in the Philippines, and we have

fulfllled our other ethical responsibilitles in accordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those ‘Charged with Governance for the Sepurote Financia!

Statements

Management is responsible for the
stataments in accordance with PFRS,
necessary 1o enable the preparation of separate financla
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

preparation and fair

THE POWER OF usllc UNDERS TO0h

and for such internal

presentation of these separate flnancial
control as management determines is
'.,st gments that are free from matertal

BUREAU oF INTERMAL, NEVENUE
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In preparing the separate financlal statements, management [s respensible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a Boing concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and
using the going concern hasls of accounting unless management elther intends to liquldate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative buttoda so,

Those chargad with gwerﬁance are responsible for overseelng

the Company’s finantlal reporting
process.

Audltors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

Our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as 2
whole are free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
teport that Includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a
guarantee that an audit.conducted in accordance with PSA will alweys detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are ¢considered material If, Individually

or in the aggregate, these could reasunably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these separate financial statements,

As part of an audit in accerdance with P5A, we exerclse professional Julgment and malntaln professional
skepticlsm throughout the audit. We also:
*» |dentHy and assess the dsks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropeiate to provide a basis for our opinlon. The risk of not
detecting a materlal misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit I order to deslgn audit procadures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intarnal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. '

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basls of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia) tncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast slgnificant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a Eoing
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention Jn our
audltors’ report to the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinlon. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up

to the date of our audltors' report, However, future events o congditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going congem, :

* Evaluate the overall presentatiolﬁ,_ﬁﬁlﬂ’m:lmrrand-mntent—-ef the separate financial statements
including disclosures, and whether %ﬁﬁdﬁﬁﬁﬁéfﬂuﬁq ements represent the underlying

transactions and events In a manngr thajachjeyes fait,nresentation.
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We communlcate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit ang significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencies In -
intemal contro! that we ldentify during auy audit,

We also provide those charged with governance wi
ethical requirements regarding independence, and

matiers that may reasonahly be thought to bear o
safeguards, '

th a statement that we have compiled with relevant
communicate with them all relationships and other
n our Independence, and where applicahle, related

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

Gt D,

EMMANUEL V, CLARINO
Parther
CPA Certificate No. 27455
Tax [dentification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accredi@tlon No. 4782; Valid untl December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valld untll March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No, 08-005144-005-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954

{ssued January 3, 2018, Makati Chy

March 23, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manlla
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

{A Subsidiary of Strongoak inc.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assats
Cash and cash equivalents 4 $2,225,131 $4,186,918
Trade and other receivables 5 6,249,389 3,605,787
Inventories 6 11,468,354 5,506,505
Due from refated parties 13 8,067,041 14,138,569
Other current assets 7 4,755,734 533,958
Total Current Assets 32,766,649 28,062,137
Noncurrent Ascets
Invastments in subsidiaries 8 - 18,039,544 23,038,544
Property, plant and equipment g 3,329,237 2,819,878
Defetred tax assets - net 24 9,450,239 7,714,014
Other noncurrent assets 10 2,068,086 2,021,253
Tota! Noncurrent Assets 32,837,106 35,594,089
565,653,755 5 63,656,226
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Llabilltias
Trade and other payables 11 56,831,455 53,868,971
Loans payable 12 24,263,385 20,759,621
Notes payable 13 2,700,000 1,000,000
Due to Parant Company -13 2,002,804 —
Total Carrent Liabilities 35,797,644 25,628,592
Noncurrent Liabilities :
Loans payable - net of turrent portion 12 38,565 33,713
Notes payable - net of current portion 13 750,000 -
Net retirement beneflt obllgation 14 191,673 145,839
Total Noncurrent Liabllities 980,238 179,552
Total Uabliities 36,777,882 25,808,144
Equity .
Capital stock BUREAL OF INTERNAL REVENUE 53636778 53,646,778
Additional paid-in capltal Large Lavoavars Servico 116 6,662,001 6,662,001
Other comprehensive income bargn ¥icjerains Mision Davang 73,563 73,563
Deficit Do ! T ADO (31,500,685} (22,528,486}
K “|APR 16 20181 1% 28,881,647 37,853,856
Treasury shares RN R T {5,774) (5,774)
Total Equity A6 e T oy 23,375,873 37,848,082
ALLATT T T RGO
7T s s v §65,653,755 $63,656,226

See accompanylng Notas to Seporate Fingntial Statements,
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC,
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeurs Ended Decamber 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
NET SALES 16 $41,320,195  $31,111,471  $34,409,556
COST OF GOODS SOLD 17 (36,967,178}  (31,989,024) {33,275,546)
GROSS PROFIT {LOSS} 4,353,017 (877,553} 1,134,050
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 18 {3,25?.039) {3,467,160) (8,037,656)
{NTEREST EXPENSE 12 {769,302) {627,183} (928,359)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - Net 19 (10,929,749) 688,784 76,460
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {10,643,078)  (4,283,112) (7,755,555}
PROVISION FOR {BENEFIT FROM}
INCOME TAX 24
Current 94,961 420 35,221
Deferred (1,735,825) {298,595) {570,345)
{1,640,B64) {298,175) {535,124)
NET LOSS (8.972,209)  (3,984,937)  {7,220,431)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltem that will not be reclassifled
subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on retlrerment
benefit obligation {net of tax effect} 14 - 105,728 92,034
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS {$8,972,209)  ($3,879,209) (57,128,397}
LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted Yoss per share 21 {$0.00359) {$0.001589) - {50.00430)
See actompanying Notes to Separate Financial Statemants,
BUREAY of INTER ERMAL RE'VENUE
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak nc.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

. Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 2016 2015
CAPITAL STOCK: 15 _
Balance at beginning of year $53,646,778 $53,646,778 §32,238,544
Issuance ) - ~ 21,408,234
‘Balance atend of yedr 53,606,778 53,645,778 53,646,778
ADBDITIONAL PAJD-IN CAPIT Al 15
Balance at beglnning of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,768,843
Stock issue costs - - {106,842)
Balance at end of year 6,662,001 6,662,001 6,662,001
DTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Loss) 14
Balance at begInning of year 73563 (32,163) {124,199}
Remeasurement galn on retlrement
benefit obligation {net of tax effect) - 105,728 92,034
Balance at end of year 73,563 73,563 {32,165)
DEFICIT
Bajance at beginning of year (22,528,486) {18,543,549) {11,323,118)
‘Net loss _{8,572.209)-  {3,934,937) {7,220,431)
Balance at end of year (31,500,695) {22,528 488) {18,543,549)
TREASURY SHARES _
Balance at beginning and end of year 15 {5,774) —_[5,774) (5,774

$28,875,873 $37,848,082 $41,727,291

See octompunying Notes to Separate Financial Statemayity,
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

{A Subsldiary of Strongoak Inc.)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Yeur Ended Decembar 31
Note WAT 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Lass hefore Income tax ($10,613,073) (54,283,112} {57,755,555)
Adjustments for:
Pravislan for impalrment losses on:
Due from related partles 13 6,667,442 - -
Investment Ina subsidiary B 4,939,000 - -
Inventories 6 230,750 267,059 3,441,498
Trade and other receivables 5 57,275 42,925 123,651
Cther noncurrent sssets 10 ] 314,320 240,964
Property, plant and equipment 9 - - 101,406
Interest expense 12 765,302 627,183 928,365
Depreciation and amortizetion 9 378,651 378,607 361,226
Interest income 4 {263,613) (145,212) {167,723)
Retirement benefits 14 4642 87,143 71,322
Unrealized forelgn exchange Inss (gain} 13,386 {59,160} {6,023}
Loss {gain) on dispasal of Investment and
property, plant and equipment 19 {647) {3,589). 599,487
Reversal of allowance far Impairmient
losses on Inventories 19 - - {368,294)
Operating income (loss) before working -
caphal changes 2,289,966 (2,773,936) (2,425,672)
Decrease {Increase) In; '
Trade and other recelvables (2,635,885) {1,170,777) 835,453
Inventories {6.192,629} (571,910} 2,632,526
Other currant assets {4,316,253) {159,617} 283,535
Cther noncurrent assets {64,688) (32,472) (26,253}
Increase (decrease) In trade and other _
payablas 3,627,819 770,819 (680,638)
Net cach generated from {used for)
operations (7,291,651) (3,937,793} 624,951
Interest recelved 32815 76,692 59,275
Income tax paid {1,482) {306) -
Contribution to retirement fund 14 - (42,403) {33,738)
Retlrement benefits pald 14 - {38,833) {18,381}
Net cash provided by (used in)-operating
activities (7,260,320) (3,942,643} §72,107

(Forward)
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_ Yean Ended December 31
Nota 2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT, IVITIES _
Additlons to property, plant and equipment 9 [5888,050)  (3444,651) {$510,200)
Increase in due from related parties {1,006,155) {3,622,661) {5,318,736)
Proceeds from;
Sale of property, plant and equipment 9 6827 3,589 -
Dlsposal of Investments ] - = 5,000
Net cash used In Investing activities {1,893 559) {4,063,723) [5,823,936)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from: _
Avallment of lpans 25,122,545 33,599,512 65,504,488
Avallment of promissory notes 2,450,000 : - 800,000
Issuance of shares - - 21,301,392
Payments of loans (25,608,602)  (36,031,962) {67,628,428)
Advances from Parent Company 2,002,808 - -
Interest pald {785,151) {598,183) (787,428)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing
activities 7,130,585 (2,630,633) 19,190,024
EFFECT. OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 11,5% {5,136) -
NET IHCREASE [DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,961,787} (10,642,135) 14,038,195
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,186,918 14,825,053 790,858
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 4 $2,225131 $4,186,918 $14,829,053
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 4
Cash on hand $1602 $2,797 $10,012
Cash In banks 2,223529 502,640 £56,575
Cash eguivalents - 3,681,481 14,162,466
$2,225131 $4,186,918  $14,829,053
NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Rental payable offset agalnst due from a
related party 13 $584,343 [ 5=
Conversion of advances to equlity investment a - 2,568,520 2,434,083
584,348 —— *538-529—--52;454;9-&
.l n Tavnivare Sa .
See accompanying Notes to Separate Finondial Statements. Large Taue « rows Division-Davag
RDO
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.}

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS

1. Corporate information and Status of Operation

General Information

Alllance Select Foods International, Inc. {ASFIl or the “Company”) is a publicly fisted corporation
Under Sectlon 17.2 of the Securities Regulation Code {SRC) and was Incorporated in the Phillppines
and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) on September 1, 2003, The
Company is primarily engaged In the business of manufacturing, canning, Importing and exporting of

food products such as marine, aquaculture and other processed sesfoods. Its shares are listed (n
the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE) since November 8, 2006.

Strongoak Inc. {the “Parent Company”) acqulred 952,479,638 common shares of the Cotmpany from
the increase In authorized capital stock and stock rights offering, which ware bath approved by the
SEC on Octobar 28, 2015, This resulted in Strongoak Inc. owning a total of 1,382,765,864 common
shares, representing 55.32% of the- total Issued and outstanding shares of the Company
(see Note 15). As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company I a subsidiary of Strongeak inc,
Strongoak Inc. is a domestic company engaged In invasting activities.

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the Board of Directors {BOD) and Stockholders,
respectively, approved the Company’s equity restructuring by reducing the par vaiue of Its shares
and applylng the resulting excess and addltlonal pald-in capitel against the Company's 'deflcit,
On March 23, 2018, the equity vestructuring was approved by the5EC {see Note 15),

The Company's reglstered office address is Unit 1206 East Tower, Philipplne Stock Exchange Centre,

Exchange Noad, Ortigas Avenue, Paslg Clty. it has a plant facllity located in Brgy. Tambler, General
Santos City, Phillppines. .

Investments in Subsldlarles
The Company has investments in the TollowIng subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Principal Place
Name of Subsidiary % of Ownership Nature ¢f Busfness

of Buslness
Spence & Company Ltd. (Spence) Safmon and orther Unlted States
100 seafood processing of America
BIg Glory Bay Salmon and Seafood Salman and otiier
Campany, Inc. {BGE] : 100 seafood pracessing Philipplnes
ASFl Thalland 100 Sales office Thafland
PT International Alllance Food Indonesla
{PTIAFI) _ ‘69,98 Canned fish processing Indonesla
Alltance MHI Praperties, Inc, {AMHI) 98,89 Leasing Phifippines
Akaroa Salman (N2} Ltd. {Aeroa) Salmon farmfng and
: B0 - procassing New Zealand
PT. Van De Zee [PTYDZY"® 49 Fisking " Indonesia

=t ——

{a) No eperations in 2017, 2016 and 2015 BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
{b) Indirect ownership through PTIAR - £ . REVENUE

Large Tapayess Servige
Largur repravans Division-Davao

Daty l lzg?
L APR 18 gppp!
Sty ey

ALLAN €, fpalnAG




Status of Operations

Management is undertaking the necessary Initiatives to Improve operation and maintain Ananclal
stability. With these initiatives, which Include expanding global market, targeting key accounts,
Improving efficlencies across all areas of operatlons and better inventory management and raw

material sourcing, management has projected a turnaround In operation with a positive result of
operation and cash flow in the coming years.

The Company incurred net losses of $8.87 million, $3.98 million and $7.22 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively, as the Company continue to streamline its operation. The losses were primarily
due to impairment losses recognized from investment In and advances to PTIAFI aggregating
511,67 million in 2017, Impairment losses on inventorles of 50,23 milllion, $0.27 miltion and
$3.44 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and other noncurrent assets of $0.31 million and $0.34 milflon in 2016 and 2015,

respectively {see Notes 6, 8, 9, 10, and 13), Losses In 2016 and 2015 were also due to volatility In
raw material prices and lower pricing.

In 2017, the Company decfided to undertake an equlty restructuring. This will result to the

elimination of the Company's capital deficit of $32.00 miflion, which the SEC approved on
March 23, 2018. . :

The Parent Company has infused capital of $30.05 million to sustain the Company's operations and
In 2017 extended 2 loan of $2.00 million {equivalent to RI00.00 millien) to the' Company

{see Note 13). The Parent Company whI continue to provide the necessary level of financlal support
to enable ASFIl to meet its working capltat requirements, :

Approval of Separate Financlal Statements
The Company's separate financlal statements were approved and

authorized for Issuance by the
BOD on March 23, 2018.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies

The significant accounting policies used In the preparation of separate financial statements are
conslistently appiled to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basls of Preparation :

The separate financlal statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {PFRS). This financhal reporting framework Includes all
applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by the
Intemational Financlal Reporting Interpretations Committes {IFRIC), Philippine Interpretations
Commlttee (PIC), and Standing Interpretations Committee {SIC) as approved by the Financial
Reporting Standard Council [FR5C) and Board of Accountancy (BOA} and adopted by the SEC.

The Company also prepares and Issues consolidated financlal statements In compliance with PFRS

for the same period as the separate financlal statements. Thesa may ba obtained at the registerad
office address of the Company or at the SEC.



Measurement Basas

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented in U.S. Dollar, the Company's
functlonal currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest U.S, Doflar unless otherwlse Indicated.

The separate financlal statements have been brepared on a historical cost basls. Histarical cost is
genenally based on the falr value of the consideration given In exchange of an asset and the fair
value of conslderation received in exchange for incurring a liahility.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a llability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measwement date. The Company uses
market observable data to the extent possible when measuring the falr value of an asset or a

Nability. Falr values are categorized into differant levels in a felr value hierarchy based on inputs
used In the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices In active markats forldentical assets or fiabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that [s significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly obsarvable

Level 3 - Valuation technlques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorlzed in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the falr value measurement is categorized In [ts entlrety in the

same level of the falr value hierarchy as the lowest level Input that is signiflcant to the entire
measurement. .

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting perlad during which the change has occurred.

Furthar Information about the assumptions made In measuring fair values s included in Note 25 to
the separata financial statemaents,

Adoption of New and Amended PERS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS whick the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beglnning on or after January 1, 2017;

* Amendments to PAS7, Statement of Cush Flows - Distlosure fnftiative —
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial state
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments
ments to evaluate

«  Amendments to PAS 12, Income Toxes -
Losses ~ The amendments clarify the accou
fair value and the falr value is below the
unrealized losses on debt Instruments meas
accounting for deferred tax assats,

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
nting for deferred tax whera an asset Is measured at
asset’s tax base {e.g. deferred tax asset related to
ured at falr value), as well as certaln ather aspects of
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Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitles — Clarification of the Scope of
the Standord — The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2015 Cyele

and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12 apply to interests [n entlties within the

scope of PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations except for
summarized flnancial information for those interests {l.e. paragraphs B10-B16 of PFRS 12).

The adaption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the

separate financlal statements, Additional disclosures have been Included In the notes to separate
financlal statements, as applicable. '

New and Amendad PFRS Issued But Not Yet Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,2017
and have not been applied in preparing the separate ﬂnanciai?‘tatements are summarized helow,

Effactive for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PERS 9, Ananclal Instruments ~ This standard wili replace PAS3S, Financie! Instruments:
Recognition and Mecsurement {and all the previous verslens of PFRSS), 1t contains
requirements for.the classification and measurement of financial assets and financlal liabilitles,
impairment, hadge accounting, recognition and derecognition,

FFR5 9 requires all recognized financlal assets to he subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive Income), depending on the

classification by reference to the business mode! within which these are hield and its contractua
cash ftow characteristics, '

For financial liabiitles, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change In fair value of a firanclal liability designated as at fair
value through proflt or loss that is attributable to changes In the credit risk of that liability is

recognized in other comprehensive Income {rather than in proflt or loss), unless this creates an
accaunting mismatch.

For the Impalrment of financlal assets, PFRS 9 Introduces an “expected credit loss® model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at Inception of a contract; recognition of a credit
loss should no longer walit for there to be abjective evidence of impalrment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to

better reflect how risk management activities are undertzken when hedging financlal and
non-financiaf risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - The new standard
PAS 14, Constructlon Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations, It astablishes a
single comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across
transactions, industries and capital markets, with a core principle {based on a five-step mode to
be applied to all contracts with customers), enhanced disclesures, and new or improved

guldance (e.g. the point at which revenue Is recognized, accounting for varlable consideratlons,
costs of fulfifiing and obtaining a contract, ete,). '

replaces
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Amendment to PFRS 1S, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clorificatfon to PFRS 15 -~
The amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: {a} Identlfying performance
oblligations; (b} principal versus agent considerations; and {5} licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed cantracts.

* Amendments to PAS 28, investments In Associates and Jolnt Ventures - Measuring an Assoclate
or Joint Venture at Fair Vafue — The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to
PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and tlarify that the election to measure at falr value through profit or loss
an [nvestment in an associate or a joint venture that Is held by an entity that Is a venture capltal
organization, mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying entity, Is avallable for each Inyestment
in an assoclate or jolnt venture on an investment-by-investment hasls, upon Inltial recognition,

« Phillppine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Forefgn Cuwrency Transoctlons ond  Advance
Consideration ~ The interpretation provides guldance clarlfying that the exchange rate to use in
transactions that involve advance consideration pald or recelved In a foreign currency Is the one

at the date of initial recognition of the hon-meonetary prepayment asset or deferred income
fiablllty.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2019

* PFR316, Lenses — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its related interpretations.
The most significant change Introduced by the new standard Is that almost all leases will ba
brgught onto lessees’ statement of financlal position under asingle model {except leases of less
than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between operating

and finance leases, Lessor accounting, however, remalns largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease Is retalned,

Deferred effectivity -

Amendment to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financla! Statements and PAS 28, Investments in
Associutes and Jfoint Ventures - Safe or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and lis
Associote or Jolnt Venture - The amendments address a current conflict between the twa
standards and clarify that a galn or loss should be recognlzed fully when the transaction involves
a business, and partially If it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The effective date
of the amendments, Inltlally set for annual periods beginning on or after Janwary 1, 2016, was
deferred Indefinitely in December 2015 but earlter application!s still permitted.

Management has inftially assessed that the adoption of PFRS 8, PFRS 15 and PFRS 16 might have a

slgnificant effect on amounts reported in the Company’s finandal assets and liabilities, revenue and

leases. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect unt! a detailed
review has been completed. :

Financla] Assets and Llabliities )
Financial assets and llabilitles are accounted for as follows:

a. Recognition

Financial assets and liablllitles are recognized In the separate staternent of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provislons of 2 finanglal
instrument. Finaneial Instruments are inltlally measured at falr value which Includes transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition {e.g. fees, commlssions, transfer taxes, atc.). -
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However, transaction costs related to the acqulsitlon of financial Instruments classifled as fair

value through profit or Joss {FVPL} are recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company
uses trade date accounting to account for flnanclal Instruments.

“Day 1" Difference. The best evidence of the falr value of a financlal instrument at Initial
recognitlon Is its transaction price unless the transaction price differs from its falr value,
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices In an active market. If the market for a financiai
Instrument Is not active, the Company determinas fair value by using a valuation technique
whose varfables Include data from pbservable markets. The difference between the transaction
price and the falr value (a “day 1” dlfference} is recognized in profit or loss, unless it qualifles for
recognition as some other type of asset. in cases where the valuation modet uses unobservable
data, the difference between the transaction price and the madel value Is only recognlzed in
profit or loss when the Inputs become observable, or when the Instrument is derecognized,
For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognlzing the

“day 1* difference.

Classification

The Company classifles its financial assets at Initjal recognltion under the following categories:
{a} financial assets at FVPL, (b) held-to-maturity (HTM) Investrnents, {c} loans and receivables
and (d) available-for-sale (AFS} financlal assets. Financial fabllities, on the other hand, are
classified as either financlal Habillties at FYPL or other financal (abliitles at amortized cost.

The classification of a financlal instrument largely depends on the Company's intention at
acquisition or issuance data.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have financlal assets and Yabilities
classified at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financlal assets.

Loans and Receivables, Loans and recelvables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that are riot quoted In an active market, They are not entered
Into with the Intention of immediate or short-term resale andare not classifled or designated as
AFS financial assets or financial asset at FYPL. Loans and vecelvables are included in current
assets if maturity Is within 12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as

‘noncurrent assets,

After Initial measurement, loans and receivables are measure
effectlve interest method, less allowance for impairment,
taking into account any dlscount or premium on acquisit)

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financlal In
in profit or loss,

d at amortized cost using the
(Fany. Amortized cost [s calculated by
on and &ny transactlon costs which are
strument. The amortization is included

The Company has classified lts eash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables, due from

related partles, other noncurrent recelvable and refundable lease deposits {classlfled under
other noncurrent assets) as loans and receivables. .

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readfly convertible to known

amounts of cash with original maturities of three months ar less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in'value.
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Other Financial Liabiiitles ot Amortized Cost. Flnancial llabilitles are classified in this category i

these are not held for trading or not designatad as at FYpL upon the Inception of the liability.
These Include Iabifities arising from operations or through borrowing,

Other flnancial liabllities gra Initlally recognized at falr vilue less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initlal recognition, other financial liabillties are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest metho. Amortized cost Is calculated by taking Into account any
related Issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recoghized in profit or loss when
the liabiiities are derecognized, as well as through amortization process.

The Company's trade and other payables {excluding customers’ deposits and statutory
payable), ivans payable, notes payabie and due 10 Parent Company are classified under this

* category.

Jmpairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is oblective evidence that a
financlal asset or group of financial assets Is Impalred. A flvancial asset or graup of financlal
assets Is deemed impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impalmment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the hitial recognition of the asset {an Incurred

"loss event”) and that loss event {or events) has an impactonthe estimated future cash flows pf
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be estimated rellably.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indlvidually for Jts
financlal assets that are individually significant, and IndiMdually or collectively for its financlal
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no ohjective
evidence of impalrment exists for an indlvidually assessed flnanclal asset, whether signlficant or
not, It Includes the asset in a group of flnanclal assets with simifar credit risk characteristics ang
collectively assesses them for impalrment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment

~and for which an impairment loss Is ar continues to be recognized are not included In a

collective assessment of Impalrment.

The impaiment Joss is measured as the difference between the financlal asset's cayrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows dlscounted at the orlginal effective
Interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an afbowance
account, Impairment losses are recognized in full In profitor oss, Interest income continues to

be recognized on the reduced carrying amount uslng the [nterest rate used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of meastring the Impatrment Loss.

If, In a subsequent year, the amount of the Impairment [oss tdecreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the Impairment was recognized, the previausly
recagnized Impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowanice account. The amount of the
reversal |5 recognlzed in profit or loss, to the extent that the fesulting carrying amount will not
exceed the amortized cost determined had no impeitment lossbeen recognized in prior years.
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d. Derecognition

A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar
financial assets) Is derecagnized by the Company when; '

* the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or
* the Company retains the right to recelve cash flows frem the asset, but has assumed an

obligation ta pay them In full without materiai delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

the Company has transferred its right to teceive cash flows from the asset and elther
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or {b} has nelther

transferred nor retained substantlally all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has
transferred contrel over the assat,

Where the Company has transferred its right to recelve cash flaws from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantlally all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred contro} of the asset, the asset Is recognized to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Contlnuing invoivement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, If any, 15 measured at the lower of

orlginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be requlred to pay.

A financial labliity Is derecognized when the obligation under the Nabliity is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liablity is replaced by another fram the
same [ender on substantlally different terms, or the terms of an existing liabillty are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the

original llabillty and the recognition of the new llability, and the difference In the respective
carrylng amount Is recognized in profit or loss.

e, Offsetting

FInancial assets and llabllities are offset and the net amount rported In the separate statement
of financial position If, and only If, there (s a currently enforceable [egal tight to affset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settie on g net hasis or to realize the asset and
settle the {inbility simultaneously, This Is not generally the case with master netting agreements

where the related assets and liabllities are presemted gross In the separate statement of
flnancial position,

lmventor

Inventorles are Initlally measured at cost. Subsequently, Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value (NRV). The costs of jnventories are calculated using weighted average
method. Costs comprise direct materlals and when applicable, diract labor costs and those
overheads that have been incurred In bringing the Inventories to their present location and
condition. NRV represents the estimated selling price less ail estimated costs of complation and .

costs necessary to make the sale for finlshed goods, and current replacement cast for raw and
packaging matetlals. '



-G.

When the NRV of the inventorles is lower than the cost, the Company provides for an allowance for

" the decline in the value of the Inventory and recognizes the write-down as an expensa in profit or

loss, The amount of any reversal of any write-down of Inventories, arlsing from an increase In NRV,

Is recognized as part of other Income or charges In the separate statement of comprehensive
incgme. .

When [nventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense in

the period in which the related revenua is recognized and the related allowance for Impairment loss
Is reversed.

Other Assets

Other assets inciude advances to suppliers, prepayments, value-added tax (VAT) and idle assets,

Advances to suppllers. Advances to suppllers are recogniied whenever the Company pays in

advance for Its purchase of goods. These advances are measured at transaction price less
impairment in value, if any.

Prepayments, Prepayments are expenses paid In advance and recorded as assats before these are
utllized. These are apportioned over the period covered by the peyment and recognized in profit or
loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized over no more than 12 months

after the reporting date are classified as current assets, Otherwlse these are classifled as
noncurrent assets,

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, The net amount of

VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is presented as “inprt VAT' under “Other nancurrent
assets” account In the separate statement of financlal posltion.

Idle Assets, ldle assets are those which are no longer used in the Company’s aperatlons,
The Company's idle assets are already fully provided with allowance.

Investments in Subsidlardas and Joint Ventures

The Company’s investments in subsidlaries and Jalnt ventures are carrled In the saparate statement
of financial positlon at cost, less any impalrment in value, A subsidlary Is an entity in which the

Company has control, A joint venture Is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties
undertake an economic activity which Is subject to JoInt control, ’

An Investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights,

involvement with the Invastee and has the abliity to affect those retur
Investee.

to variable returns from lis
ns through Hs power over the

Control is generally accompanied by a shareholding of more than one half of voting rights,
The existence and effect of potentfal voting rights that are substantive are considered when
assessing whether the Company controls an entlty. The Company re-assesses whether or not it

cantrols an entlty iIf facts and eircumstances indicate that there are changes to ane or more of the
three elements of contro) -

A joint venture |s 2 type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have JoInt-control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the Joint venture. Joint control Is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decislons about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing contral,
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The Investment is derecognized when It Is sold or disposed.  Galns or losses arising from
ment In a subsidiary are measured s the difference between the net

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized In the profit or lass when the

asset Is derecognized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost lass sccumulated depreciation and amortlzation
and any accumulated impairment in value,

as part of the equipment.

Expenditures Incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repalrs, malntenance and overhayl Costs, are normally recognized In proflt or loss In the year the
Costs are Incurred, in situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures haye
resulted In an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtalned from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditures are capitalized as additlonal costs of Propeny, plant and equipment, The cost of
replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized If it I probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the compenent will flow to the Coempany, and
[ts cost can ba measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced companent i derecognized.,

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful fives, these
are accounted for as separate items {mafor components) of property, plantand equipment,

Depreciation and amortization are camputed using the stralght-line methad over the following
estimated useful fives of the property, plant and equipment;

Number of Years
Bullding 25
Machinery and equipment . 15
Leasehold Improvements 5 {or lease term, whichever Is
sharter)
Transportation equipment 5
Office and plant furniture, fixtures and equlpment 5

The estimated useful lives and depreclation and a
ensure that these are consistent with the expe.
property, plant and equipment.

mortization method are reviewed periodically to
cted pattern of economic benefits from items of

Fully depreclated assets are retained |n the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
charge for depreclation and amortlzation Is made in respect of those assets,

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and th
depreclation, amortization and any Impairment in value ar femo
Any resulting galn or loss is recagnlzed In proftt or loss.

€ related accumulated
ved from the accounts,
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Construction-in-progress reprasents the on-going installation of pouch line facility and boilers and is.
stated at cost including other direct costs. This is not depreciated until such time that the relevant

assels are completed and ready for operational use. This will be recognized as machinery and
equipment upon completion of the construction.

Impairment of Nonfinanclal Assets

The carrying amounts of nonfinanclal assets are raviewed forimpalrment when events or'changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, ¢ any such indication
exists and when the carrying smounts exceed the estimated recoverable ‘amounts, the assets or
cash-generating unlts are wiittan down to thelr recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of
the asset is the greater of the falr value less cost ta sell or value Inuse. The fair value less cost to selt
is the amount obtalnable from the sale of an asset In an arm’slength transaction less the cost of
disposal. In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are dlscounted to their present
vaiue using a pretax discount rata that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely Independent

cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the agsat
belongs. Impalrment losses ara recognlzed in profit or loss,

An assessment Is made at each reporting date as to wh
recognized Impalrment losses may no longer exist or m
the recoverable amount is estimated, A previously re
there has been a change in tha estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverabla amount singe
the last Impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
Increased to its recoverable emount, However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying-
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amertizatlon for property, plant
and equipment, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
Is recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges for

property, plant and equipment are adjusted in future years to aliocate the asset's revised carrying
amount, on a systematic basis over Its remaining usefut life.

Customers' Daposits ; . :
Customers’ deposits consist of amounts recelved by the Company from its customers as advance
payments for the sale of goods, These are recorded at face amount In the separate statement of

financial posttion and recognized as revenue In proflt or loss when the services for which the
advances were made are rendered to the customers,

Capital Stock and Additional Faid-In Capital

Capital stock |s measured at par value for all shares Issued.
that are directly attributable to the Issuance of pew shares are recognized in equity as a reduction

from related additional paid-in capital or retained eamings. Procezds or fair value of consideration
recelved in excess of par vahse are recognized as additional paid-In capltal,

Defich _
Deflclt represents the cumulative balance of net josses. Deficit nay also inciude effect of changes In
accounting pollcy as may be required by the standard’s transitional provision,

ether there is any Indication that previously
ay have decreased. If such indication exists,
cognized Impairment loss is reversed only if

Incremental costs, net of tax, incurred
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Tr hare

Own equity instruments which are reacquired are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.
No galn or loss is recognized in the separate statement of comprehensive income on the
purchase, sale, Issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity Instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideratlon, If reissved, )s recognized In additionat paid-in

capital, Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullified for the Company and no dividends are
allocatad to them. :

Revenug Rocognition

Revenue is recognized when It Is probable that the economic benefls assoclated with the
transactions will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured refiably.
Ravenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration racelved or recelvable, excluding

tlscounts and returns. The Company has concluded that it is the principal In all of its revenye
arrangements. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Sale of Goods. Revenue Is recognized, net of sales returns, discounts and allowances, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownershlp of the goods have passed to the customers, which s
normally upon delivery to and acceptance of the goods by the buvar.

Interest income. Interest income Is recognized in a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method,

- Other Income. \ncome from other sources is recognized when eamed during the perind,

Cast and Expensa Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or Ioss when a decresse In future economic beneflt
related to a decrease In an asset or an increase In a liability has arisen that can ba measured rellably,

Cost of Goods Sold, Cost of goods sold is recognized as exi:ense when the related goods are sold.

Selling ond Administrative Expenses. Selling expenses constitute costs incurred to sell and market

the goods and services. Administrative expenses constitute cost of adminlstering the business.
Both are expensed as incurred,

Interest Expense. Interest expense Is recognlzed in a time proportion basis using the effective
interest method. ' :

Leasey

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contalns a lzase Is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date. This requlres an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent an the use of a specific asset ot assets and whether the amangement

conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment Is made after Inceptlon of the lease only If one of
the following applies:

8. thereis achange [n contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement:

b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

€. thereis achange In the'deten-nlnatlon of whether fulfilment s da

pendent on a specified asset;
ar

fl. there is a substantlal change to the asset.
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Where reassessment is made, leass accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the

change In circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarlos (8}, (¢} or [d) and at the date of
renewal ar extenslon period for scenario (b), '

Leases where the |essor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classiffed as

operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense In profit or loss on a
straight-line basis aver the lease term.

Retlrement Benafhs
Retirement benefit costs are actuarlally determined using the projected unit credit method,

This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and Incarporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries,

The Company recognizes current servi

_ te costs and Interast expense on the retirement beneflt
obligation In profit or loss.

The Company determines the interest éxpense on retirement benefit obligation by applying the
discount rate to the retirement benefit obligatlon at the beglning of the year, taldng Into account
any changes in the llabillty during the period as a result of benefit payments, _

Remeasurements of the net retitement beneflt obligation,
and losses and the return on plan asset {excluding amount

Immediately In other comprehensive Income and are not re
periods.

which consist of remeasurement gaing
charged in net Interest) are recognized
classtied to profit or loss In subsequent

The net retirement benefit obligation recognized by the Company s the present value of the definad
benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan asset. The present value of defined beneflt
obligatfon s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest

rates of government bonds that have terms to maturity approdmating the terms of the related
retlrement benefit obligatian.

Actuarial valuation is made with sufficlem regularity by a qualified actuary so that the amounts
recagnized in the separate financial statements do not differ materfally from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date, .

fncome Toxes

Current tox. Current tax Is the eéxpected tax payable on the taxable Income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substamlively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax, Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and llabHitles and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purpases.

Deferred tax llabilitles are recognized for all taxabia temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognlzed for all deductible temporary differences, excess miaimum corporate incama tax (MCIT)
and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) to the extent that itIs probable that future taxable proflt

will be avallable against which the deductibie temporary differences, excess MCIT and NOLCO can
be utillzed.
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The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that It Is no longer probable that sufficient future taxahble profit wiil be avallable to allpw all
or part of the deferred [ncome tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the

period when the asset is realized or the Ifabliity Is settled, based on tax rate {and tax laws) in effect
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabillties and the deferred taxes relate {o the same taxable entlty and the
same taxatlon authority.

Forelgn Currency-Denominated Transactions and Transiatlon
Transactlons denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of
the fransaction. Qutstanding monetary assets and lfabllities denominated in foreign currencles are

translated using the closing exchange rate atthe reporting date. All differences are recognized in
profit or loss.

Related Party Relatlonships and Transactions

Related party refatlonships exist when one party has the ahllity to control, directly or indirectly

through one or more intermediarles, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other

party in making financlal and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or
among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or

among the reporting enterprises and thelr key management personnel, directors, or Its
stockholders,

A related party transactlon is a transfer of resources, services or obl|

gations hetween a reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Provisions

Provislons are recognized when the Company has a present obligatlon {legat or constructive) as a
result of past event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodylng economic benefits will
ba required to settle the obligation, and = rellable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation. Provislons are reviewed at the end of reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate, :

The amount recognized as a provision Is the best estimate of the expend|ture required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The estimates of outcome and flnancial effect
are determined by the judgment of the management of the entlty, suppletmented by experience of
similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts. The evidence considered
includes any addltional evidence provided by events after the reparting perfod.

Contingencles

Contingent Habillties are not recognized In the separate financlal statements. These are disclosed In
the notes to separate flmancial statements unless the passitility of an outflow of resources
embodylng aconomic henefits Is remote. Contingent assets are wot recognized in the separate

financlal statements but are disclosed in the notes to separate flnanclal statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is prohable. ’ '
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Events after the Reporting Date

The Company identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but
before the date when the separate financial statements were awhorized for Issue. Any subsequent
event that provides additional Information about the Company’s financlat position at the reporting
date is reflected In the separate financlal statements. Nan-ad[usting subsequent events are
disclosed In the notes to the separate financial statements, when material,

Loss per Sharg

The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share data for its common shares.

Baslc loss per share Is calculated by dividing the niet (oss attributatle to common shareholders of the

Company by the welghted average number of commaon shares issued and putstanding durlng the
year.

There are no potential dilutive shares.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statements requires management to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amouvnts of revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilitles and disclosure of contingent liabHitles, at the end of the reporting peried.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that could
require a materlal adfustment to the carrylng amount of the assetor llabiilty affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revistons to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period when the estimate is revised if the revision

affacts only that period, or in the period of the revision and futyre petiads if the reviston affects
both current and future periods.

The Company belleves that the: following represent a summary of these significant judgments and
estimates and the related impact and associated risks jn the sepante financial statements, -

Assessing Going Concern, The Company Incurred losses In 2017, 2016 and 2015, and in a deficit
positien as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. These events ar conditions Indicate that a materia
uncertainty exists that may cast slgnificant doubt on the Company’s abillty to continue as a going
concern. Management's plans to mitigate the material uncettsinty ave adequately disclosed in

Note 1. Accordingly, the separate financlal statements continue 1o he prepared on a going concemn
hasis,

Determining Functional Currency. Based on tanagement's assessrment, the functional cusrency of
the Company has been determined to be the U.S: Dollar. The U.S. Dollar 1s the currency of the

ptimary economic envirenment [h which the Company opetates, [t I the eurrency that mainly
influences the operations of the Company.
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Determining Control or Joint Control over an Investee Company. Control is presumed to exist when
an investor is exposed, or has ¥ights, to variable returns from its involvement with tha Investee and
has the ablilty to affect those returns through its power overthe Investee. On the other hand, [olnt
control Is the contractually agreed sharing of contro! of an arrangement, which exIsts only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the partles sharing contral,
The Company accounts for its interest In a Joint arrangement with FDCP, Inc. {FDCP) and Wild Catch
Fisherles, Inc. (WCFI) as a JoInt venture under PERS 11, Management has determined that by virtue

of Its majority ownership of voting rights in AMHI and PTVDZ as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company has the abllity to exerclse contral over these Investees.

Classifying leases. The Company has operating lease agreements for Its office and plant site,
The Company has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the leased

properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreements are accounted for as operating
leages,

Rental expense amounted to $0.17 mililon, $0.72 milllon and $0.62 miliion in 2017, 2015 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 22). .

Assessing for impairment of Finoncla} Assets. The Comparny maintains aliowance for impairment
losses at a leve] conslderad adequate to provide for potential uncollectible recelvables. The level of
this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collactibility of the
accounts. These factors Include, but are not limited to, sigrificant financial d)fflculties or .
bankruptcy, the length of the Company’s relationshlp with the customer, the customer payment
behavior, and known market factors. The Company identifies and provides for speciflc accounts
that are doubtful of collection and reviews the age and status of the remalning recalvables and
establishes a provision considering, amang others, historica) collection and write-off experience,

No Impalrment loss an cash in banks and cash equivalents was recognized In 2017 and 2016. Cash In

banks and cash equivalents aggregated $2.23 million and $4.19 million a5 at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 4).

The Company recognized provision for Impairment loss on trade recelvables amounting to
$57,275, 842,925 and $123,651 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company also written off
trade and other receivables amounting to $478 and $26,959 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for Impalrment lossas, ampunted to $6.25 million and
$3.70 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively {see Note 5.

Due from related parties, net of allowance for impairment Joss, amounted to $8.07 million and
$14.14 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Due from PTIAF! amounting to

$5.01 million was provided with a proviston for Impairment loss amounting to 56,67 milllon in 2017
{see Note 13). :

Receivable from WCFI and refundable lease deposits, net of allowance for Impalrment losses,
aggregated $1.67 million and $1.61 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Allowance for impalrment losses amounted to $2.18 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2015,
respactively {see Note 10).
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Estimating NRV of Inventorfes. The NRVY of inventories represents the estimated selling price for
Inventorles less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make the sale for-finished
goods, and current replacement costs for raw and packaging materials. The Company determines
the estimated selling price for inventorles based on the recent sale transactlon of simliar goods with
adjustments to refiect any changes in economlc conditions since the date of transactlons accurred.
The Campany records provisions for excess of cost and NRY of Inventorles. While the Company
believes that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences n the actual
experience or significant changes in estimates may materially affect the profit or loss and equity.

The Company recognlzed provision for impatirment loss on inventories amounting to $0.23 million,

$0.27 milllon and $3.44 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 18). Inventories

tarried at lower of cost and MRV aggregated $11.47 mitllon and $5.51 mllllon as at Oecember 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively {see Nate 6).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equlpment based on the period aver whith the assets are expected to be
available for use. The estimates are based on a collective assessment of Industry practice, Internal
useful llves of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each teporting date and are updated If expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technlcal or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limits on the use of the assets. Future results of operations could be materfaliy
affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes In the factors mentioned above,

The amount and timing of recording of depreciation and amortization expense for any period would
he affected by changes In these factors and circumstances.

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of the Company’s property, plant and
equipment in 2017, 2016 and 2015. The carrylng amount of property, plant and equipment

amaunted to $3.33 milllon and $2,82 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
{see Note 5),

Assessing for impairment of Nonflnanclad Assets. The Com pamy  assesses impairment on lts
nonfinancial assets whenever events or changas In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets or group of assets may not be recoverable. The relevant factors that the Company’
considers in deciding whether to perform an asset impairment review include the following:

* significant underperformance of a business in relation to expectations;
slgnificant negative industry or economilc trands; and
* significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assats or, If it |
cash-generating unit to which the asset helongs. Recoverable amo
Tair value less cost to sell and the value in use,

an Impalrment loss is
s not possible, for the
unt represents the greater of the

No provision for [mpalrment loss was recognized for other Current assets and input VAT In 2017,
2016 and 2015, Other current assets and Input VAT Bggregated

_ $5.15 milfion and $0.94 miliion as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 7 and 10)
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Provislon for impalrment loss was recognized on investment in PTIAFL in 2017 amounting to
55.00 million, The recoverable amount was estimated based on falr value Jess cost to sell.
The recoverable amount of investment In PTIAEL represents the amount expected to be genarated
from the eventual sale of FTIAFI’s assets net of related payables. Such amount is based on various
valuation methods applicable to the spechic assets, l.e discounted cash flow, net realizable value,
and appraised value. Management belleves that the recoverable amount of its investment In PTIAR)
Is reasonable. Investment in subsidlarles, nat of allowance for impairment loss amounted to
$18.04 million and $23.04 miltion as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 8),

Allowance for Impalrment lass on property, plant and equipment amounted to $0,10 milllon as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 and $13.72 milllon as at December 31, 2015, The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment aggregated $3.33 million and $2.82 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectlvely (see Note 9). The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
represents the assets’ value in use. Value In use is determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets. The estimated
cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historlcal experlence and buslness plans and

are discounted using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time value of
money and the risks spetific 1o the assets.

In 2016, the Company recognized provision for impairment loss on its ldle assets amounting to
$0.31 million. As at December 31, 2017, management has aisessed that thera is no further
allowance for Impairment is required on Its investments in Joint ventures and idle assets in excess of

those that were already provided. - Carrying amounts of these nonfinanclal assets ara disclosed in
Note 10.

Estimating Retlrement Benefit Costs. The determination of the obligation and costs of retirement
benefits Is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts.

These assumptions are deseribed in Note 14 to the separate financial statements and include,
among others, discount rates and expected salary increase rates,

Retirement benefit costs amounted to $46,423, 587,143 and $71,322 in 2017, 2016 and 2015,

respectively. The retirement benefits obligation amounted to $0.12 million and $0.15 miftion as &t
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 14).

Recognizing Deferred Tax Assets. The carrylng amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting
date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that It Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assetsto be utilzed. The Company’s
assessment on the recognitlon of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits from NOLCO and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income of

the subsequent reporting petiods, This forecast is based on the Company's past results end future
expectations on revenue and expenses,

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets amounting to $0.75 milllon and $1.01 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016 slhce the Company belleves that It Is not probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be avallable to allow all ar part of the MCIT and NOLCO to be utllized within the
pertod aliowed hy the tax regulations.

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets amounting to $9.45 millfon and 37.73 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively (see Note 24),
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4, Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account canslsts of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand 31,602 52,797 .
Cash in banks 2,223,529 502,640
Cash equivalents - 3,681,481
$2,225,131 $4,186,918

Cash In banks earn Interest at prevalling bank depostt rates.

Cash equivalents pertain to short-term placements and earn Interest at the respective shert-term
deposlt rates,

Interest income included in the se

parate statements of comprehensive income is summarized below
(see Note 19):

Hote 2017 1016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 816,964 576,692 $99,275
Due from related parties 13 * 178,897 - -
Accretlon of lease deposits 10 67,752 68,520 68,448
$263,613 $145,212 $167,723
5. Trade and Other Receivables
This account conslsts of:
Note 2017 2016
Trade:
Third parties $6,249,009 53,595,510
Related party : 13 31,080 31,080
Others 544,447 687,069
. 6,924,536 4,313,659
Allowance for impairment losses (575,147) (617,872)

36,249,389 53,695,787

The credit terms on sale of goods averages 60 days. No Interestis charged on receivables exceeding
the credit tarms, -

Trade receivables amounting to $6.02 million and $3.55 milllon as at Dacember 21, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are used to secure the Company’s short-term laans (see Note 12),

Other recelvables Include claims receivable for tax refund and advances to employees subject to
salary deductlon,
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Movements in allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $617,872 $575,425
Provision ' 18 51,275 42,925
Write-off - (478}
Balance at end of year $675,147 $617,872
6, Inveniorles
This account consists of:
2017 01e
At Cost: :
Raw and packaging materiats 58,251,540 52,750,488
Finished goods ' 2,530,151 1,817,512
Parts and supplies 178,117 203,397
At NRV — :
Finished goods 508,546 735,108
$11,468,354 45,506,505

The costs of Inventories measured at NRV are as folfows:

2017 2016

Finished goods $1,128,719 $2,000,768
Raw and packaging materlals 102,650 125,151

51,231,365 52,125,919

Movements In allowance for impairment losses on Inventories are as follows:

Nate - 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $1,3580,811 $2,535,239
Provision 18 230,780 267,059

Reversal

{898,768) {1,411,487)
Balance atend of year

$722,823 51,350,811

Reversal of allowance for Impairment of Inventories malnly pertains to Inventorles condemned and

subsequently sold, which were provided with allowance,

Inventories amounting to $3.25 million and $2.75 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, are used to secure the Company’s short-term loans {s2e Note 12},

Inventories charged to cost of goods sold amounted to 530,35 milllon, $25.67 million, and
$26.75 milllon In 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively (see Note 17},
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7. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

) 2017 2016
Advances to suppliers 54,673,341 5321,504
Prepayments; :

Taxes 59,152 163,048
Insurance 16,043 33,925
Qthers B,19R 15,391
$4,756,734 5533,958
Other prepayments pertain to subscriptions and other fees.
3.— Investments in Subsldiarles
The account consists of investments in:
Name of Subsidlaries Note 2017 2016
Spence $9,240,945 - $9,240,946
BGB 6,17_7,75 i 6,177,761
PTIAF] 4,999,000 4,999,000
Akaroa 2,326,800 2,326,800
AMHI 294,037 294,037
23,038,544 23,038,544
Allowance for impairment loss 19 {4,999,000) -
518,039,544 523,03 8,544
Movements In investments in subsidiaries at cost are as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 523,038,544 520,470,015
Additions - 2,568,529
Balance at end of year 523,039,544 $23,038,544

SPENCE

Spence [s based In Brockton,
seafood products.

BGB

BGB is engaged in manufacturing goods such as salmon and ath
reglstered with the Philppine SEC in October 2009 and its registered office is located
East Tawer, Phillppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,

facilities are |ocated in Barrlo Tambler, General Santos City.

er processed seafoods,

USA and specializes in the production of smoked salmon and other

It was

at Sulte 1206,
Pasig City. s plant

In October 2016, the Company converted advances of $2.57 millon, for 125,000,000 shares of stock

of BGB (see Note 13),
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PTIAFI

PTIAF] was established under the Indoneslan Forelgn Capltal Investment Law and Is primarlly

engaged in canned fish processing exclusively for International market. The plant !s located at
JL Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madidir Unet Ling. il Kecamatan Madidir, Bltung [ndonesia.

FTIAFl owns 49% of PT YDZ, a fishing company. PT VDZ's opertlon is integrated with the una
processing activities of PTIAFL As at December 31, 2016, PT VDZ ceaszd operations.

PTIAFI has been incurring losses due to changas In Indonesia’s fishing regulations imposing
moratorium on foreign vessels, This moratorlum has adversely affected PTIAFI's operations.
In 2017, the Company’s prices have remalned uncompetitive primatlly due to this moratorium, This
resulted to continued losses during year. The Company reassessed the recoverabllity of its

investment in PTIAF| and recognized a provision for Impalrment loss amounting to $5.00 million In
2017 (see Note 15},

AKAROA

Akaroa is a company Incorporated and domiciled in New Zealind, engaged In sea cage salmon
farming and operates two marlne farms in Akaroa Harbor, South New Zealand. It also processes
fresh and smoked salmon. Akaroa also holds 25% stake in SalmonSmiolt NZ. Ltd, a modern hatchery
quarantining high quallty and consistent supply of smoits {luvenile salman) for its farm,

AMH|

AMBI was incorporated in the Philipplnes and registered wikth the SEC on June 18, 2010 as a

property holding company. The registered address and principal office of AMHI is at Purok Saydala,
Barangay Tambler, General Santos Clty.

PENZ

PFNZ is a company registered and domiciled in New Zealang and (s engaged in processing,
manufacturing and distributing smoked salmon and other seafoods undar the Prime Smoke and
Studholme brand for distribution In-New Zealand and other countrles, '

in October 2015, the Company sold its interest in PENZ to HC & JW Studholme No. 2 Family Trust for
$5,000. Lass on sale amounted to $599,487 {see Nate 19]. '

Flnancial Informatjgn

The summarized financial information of the subsidiaries with non;contrullin'g interests as at and for
the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 Is as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Total assets $9,737,122 9,559,843 $10,352,867
Total liabliities 16,606,783 12,642,222 11,330,175
Equity (capital deficiency) {5,844,828) (3,072,379} 3,666,524

Net income {loss) 203,209 (2,328,738) (5,952,341}
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9. Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in this account are as follows:
2017
Ofitew Piant
Mathinery  Leasehold  Tramapor. Funltum,  Furnlture,
and  Improve- tatfon fhetrms and Ficturasand Constroctione

Equipmant mants Equipmant  Enupanent equlpment  tn-Prograss Toi
Cost
Balance at beginning of yaar $L360,616 32645709  $141,713 Lamr AN 409.m0 345,647 $- $4,.890,683
Addtons 11,718 159,750 - 24,451 0 785 540,377 848,050
Plspesals = - - {24,125} - - - {24,125}
Balence at and of year 1373344 2 BG4S0 141,219 287,810 109470 45931 G303 5754604
Accumulated Deprechition and
Amortization . .
Bakance at beginalng of year 59235 1 M3119 187 125,871 2356 45411 - 1969399
Caprectetlon and amertizmtion 107,327 133 13,685 51016 nny 50 - 378,601
Disposalt - - - {24,125 - - - [24,129)
Balance ot end of year ABGEG62 1,997,442 15,873 152,758 15,395 551 - 2323561
Alowanes Tar impalrmant Losies
Balance ot baghaing and end of :
___yeer - 101408 - - - - - 101,406
Carrying Amount 5505 51307511 sus3an 5135052  Si7ams ¥~ S690,377 s,:-xzse:;l
101k
Ofike Plant
Machinery L hold  Treasp Fumbture,  Fomifturs,
and  Improve tatlon Fheluras md  Ficturns and Flshing

Boiding _ Equipment ments  Equipmant Equpmant  equipment Vasenls Total
Cost
Bakance at beginning of yeer $1,345,550 52,460,555 314,213 $280,601  $i13,m9 445,647 314,412,654 $11,509.540
Additlons 14,076 185,754 - 49,340 155,081 - - 444,651
Disposals - - - (50,853} - - - (50,53}
Redassliicatlon - - - - — ~ {14,412,654) (14,412,664}
Balance at end of year 1,360,826 2,546,709 141,213 207,488 409,000 45,647 — _ 4B90.683
Atcumulstad Dogredatian snd

Amortization

Balance ot hegianiog of yaar 80786 1017132 1,652 138,566 163,528 30,004 484,192 2,125,847
Daprachtion and amertization 78,469 185,997 535 38,158 60,048 15,410 - 378,607
Disposals - - - (50,853} - - - [50,653)
Reclassticatlon = - - - nd - [a81192)  feg419%
Balance 3t end of yenr 359,235 1213119 2,187 125871 123,55 45411 - 1,9%9359
Aliowance far Impalrment Lossas
Balance at beglnning of year - 101406 - - - T~ 13,514,152 13,715 558
Retlassiiication - = - = - = {13,614,152) (13,614,152
Holance at end of year - g_:a_l@g i - = - = 105,406
Carrying Amount $LO01391 51332384  £139.026  S161617 5185 414 8236 $~ $1pi0E70

Transportation equipment with net car

rying value of $65,769 and $53,295 as at December 31, 2017

and 2016, respectively, are held as collateral to long-term Ioans (see Nota 12),

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has Incurred losses fro
reviewed the recoverable amounts of these assets based
covering a period of five years. A determined Weighte

m operations untl] 2016. The Company
on value in use by projecting cash flow
d Average Cost of Capital was used to

discount the cash fiows, Details of the rates used are as follows;

Rate
Discount rate 7.66%
Growth rate

5.00%
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Management determined the profected cash flows based on past performance, existing contracts

and expectations on market development such as average price per full contalner load and revenue

growth range and the related cost to generate such revenue. Management has concluded that no
impairment losses have to be recognized In 2017, 2016 and 2015.

in 2016, fishing vessels with cost amounting to $14.41 million and accumulated depreclation and
Impalrment amounting to $14.10 milfon, were reclassified to "Other noncurrent assets® as
“Idle assets” as these are no longer used tn operstions (see Note 10},

The Company recognized a gain on disposal of transportation equipment amounting to $627 and -
$3,589 in 2017 and 20186, respectively [see Note 19),

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations are as follows:

Note 2017 2016 . 2015
Cost of goods sold 17 $306,910 5312,617 $301,968
Selling and administrative expenses 18 71,781 65,990 59,258

$375,691 $378,607 $361,226

The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment stifl used in Company's operations
amounted to $0.25 miflfon and $0.24 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

10.

Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Receivable from WCFI 13 52,182,853 $2,182,863
Refundable lease deposits 22 1,674,393 1,613,428
Input VAT 393,693 407,825
Idle assets ) 314,320 314,320
Investments in joint ventures " 280,243 280,243
4,845,512 4,798,679
Allowance for iImpairment losses {2,777,426) (2,777,426)
: $2,068,086 $2,021,253

Recehable from WCF]

Receivable from WCFI Includes a recelvable from the sale of 2 fishing vessel and a'dvances for

fish deposit. These were provided with allowance for Impalrment losses due to losses sustained by
WCFI. WCFI ceased operations since 2014,

Deposlts
Refundable lease deposits pertain to lease deposits made to AfViHY,
deposit amortization amounted to 567,752, §68,520 and $68
respecilvely {see Note 4),

Interest income on leazs
,M48 In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
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|l Assets

ldle assets hertain to fishing vessels that are
the carrying amount of the fishin
follows (see Note 9}:

no longer used In the Company’s operations. Detalls of
g vessel reclassified from property, plant and equipment are as

Amount

Cost $14,412,564
Less:

Accumulated depreciation 484,192

Allowance for impairment losses 13,614,152

' 5314,320

The fishing vessel was stated at its recoverable amount which Is based on scrap value. In 2016, the

carrying amount of fishing vessel amounting to $314,320 was fully provided with allowance for
impairment losses (see Note 18),

Detalls of [dle assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are asfallows:

~ Amount
Carrying amount $314,320
Less allowance for impairmeant 314,320

Investments in Jolnt Ventures

FDCP. FDCP Is engaged in manufacturing and wholesale of tin cans. FDCP ceased manufacturing
operations in September 2015. The Company recognized Impairment loss af $0.24 milllen In 2015 1o

fully provide its investment in FDCP {see Npte 1B), The Company has 35% ownership Interast In
FDCP. '

WCFI. WCFl s an entity primarily engaged n commerclal shing within and outside Philippine waters
and In the high seas. The Company has 40% ownership Interest InWFCL. The Company's [nvestment
in WCFt is fully provided with allowance for itnpalmment losses as WCFl ceased operations In 2014,

Aliowance for Impalrment Lossas
Details as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Note
Receivable from WCFI 13 $2,182,863
Investments In Joint ventures 280,243
Idle assets 9 314,320

52,777,426
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Movements In allowance for Impairment losses on other noncurrent assets are as follows;

Note 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year $2,777,426 52,463,106
Provision 18 - - 314,320
Balance at end of year 52,777,426 $2,777,426
11. Trade and Other Payahles
This account consists of
Note 2017 2016
Trade payables:
Third parties 85,212,632 $1,833,832
Related partles 13 277,721 685,723
Accrued expenses 1,028,991 1,003,315
Statutory payable 239,812 50,703
Customers’ deposlts 72,299 195,308
$6,831,455 $3,868,971

The Company pays in advance Its purchases of frozen/Imported goods,
local goods averages 30 days. Ne Interest is charged on payables that ha

Credit term for purchases of

ve exceeded credit terms.

Details of accrued expenses are as follows:
Note 2017 2016
Professional fees 5393,849 $315,696
Salarles and wages 130,011 76,185
Consultancy fee 13 110,154 -
Rental 106,313 118,995
Short-term employee banefits 86,253 44,383
Frelght 78,061 122,478
Interest 73,738 90,595
Others 50,614 234,979
- 51,028,991 $1,003,315

Other accruals conslst of forelgn travel axpenses, utllities,

customers’ claims.

securlty services, commission and
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12, Loans Payabie

‘Details of the Company’s loans payable are as follows:

Short-term Loans
Terms and conditions of outstanding short-term hank loans are as follows:

Nominal
Currency Interest Rate 2017 2016
Local banks usp 4.5% $18,487,091  $14,967,021
Investment hanks PHP 5.0% 3,064,290 3,077,233 -
Usp 4.5% 2,700,000 2,700,000

24,251,381 20,744,254
Add current portlon of chattel

mortgage loans 12,0048 15,367

$24,263,385 520,759,621

The loans from local banks, with term of 3-6 months, pertein to working capital loans and

avaliments of revalving facilities In the form of export packing credit, export bllls purchase, import
letters of credit and trust receipts.

Loans from Investment bank are unsecured promissary notes used to finance the Company’s
working capital requirements, with terms 90 days renewahble at the end of each term.

Loans of $18.48 million and $12.47 miliion as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are
secured by the Company’s trade racelvabies and inventorles as follows:

Note © 2017 2016

Trade receivahles 5 $6,023,684 $3,589,400
Inventories 6’ 8,251,539 2,750,488
$14,275,223 46,339,888

Chatte age loans - Net of Curreat Portlon _
Terms and conditions of outstanding chattel mortgage loans from a local bank are as follows:

Nominal interest
Currancy Rate Year of Maturity 2017 2016
PHP 9.24% - 8.50% 2021 $50,569 549,080
Less current portion
of long~term loans 12,004 15,367
$38,565 $33,713

Loan Security. As at December 31, 2017 and 2018, chattel mortgage loans are secured hy
transportation equipment with carrying amount of 65,769 and 558,295, respectively (see Note 9}.
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.Schedules of Princlpal Pavmants
These are summarized below:

Year .

Amount
2018 512,004
2019 13,185
2020 -2022 25,376
550,569
Interest Expense

interest expense arising from borrowings follows:
Note 2017 2016 2015
Short-term loans $742,485 $546,683 $674,158
Long-term logns 4,676 70,447 150,179
Notes payable 13 13,544 10,083 104,032
Due ta Parent Company 13 8,597 - -
$769,302 $627,183 5928,369

13.

Relatad Party Transactions

The Company, in the normal course of buskass, has transactions with its related parties as
summarized below:

N

Amount of Transacilon Outstanding Balance
Related Party Note 2017 2018 2017 2016
Trade and Other Racelvables . :
Jolnt venture 5 5= S $31,080 $31,080
Due from Related Partles ' .
Subsidiarles '8595,514 $1,089372  $14500,268  $13,904,880
Joint venture 96 - 234,185 234,089
Allowance for Impalrment - - (6,667,442) -
58,067,041  §14,138,968
Other Noncurrent Assets 10 :
Jolnt venture §- & 52,182,863 $2,182,863
Subsidlaries 60,865 68,520 1,674,303 1,613,428
Allowance for Impairment - - (2,182,863} {2,182,863}
$1,674,303 51,613,428
Trade and Othar Payahles 11 :
Joint venture - - $262,804 $262,844
Subsidiarles {3408,002) $159,799 14,377 5422879
Parent Company 110,154 - 110,159 -
$387,875 $685,723
Nates Payable . :
Subsidlary $2,450,000 $1,000,000  $3,450,000 $1,000,000
Due to Parent Company $2,002,804 4= $2,002,804 5

The relatlanship of each related party [5 disclosed In Note 1.
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" Tratle Receivable, Trade Payable and Other Payables. The Compzany purchased some of its tin can

requirements from FDCP. Trade payable to AMHI pertains to unpald rentals, Payable to Parent
Company pertalns 1o consultancy fee. Payable to Spence pertains to interest payable. These trade
gccounts which resulted from these transactions are noninterest-bearing.

Due from Related Parties. The Company has advances to its subsidiaries for working capital
requirements, These receivables (excluding BGB, AMH, and Akaroa} are noninterest-bearing and
payable on demand, The recelvable from FOCP pertalns to return of purchased tin cans which had
damages. FDCP ceased manufacturing operations in 2015, The Company recognized provision for

Impairment foss on advances to PTIAFI amounting to $6.67 milllon in 2017 because of the significant
losses by PTIAFI {see Note 19},

Interest income eamed In 2017 on these advances follows {see Nate 4);

Due from:

Interest Rate
BGB 3.00% $115,060
AMHI 7.50% 47,986
Akaroa ' 7.00% 15,851
$178,897

In October 2016, the Company converted advances of $2.57 milllon for 125,000,000 shares of stock
of BGB (see Note B). .

The Company has a management agreement with Spence, Maragement fees amounted to $0.40
million, $0.40 million, and $0.30 miilton In 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The outstanding

‘balance s due on demand and noninterest-bearing {see Note 19),

Other Noncurrent Assets, Refundable lease deposit to AMHI resulted from a long-term lease
contract {see Note 22). The receivable from WCF! was from the sale of fishing vessels (see Note 10},

Notes Paynble, The Company's notes payable to Spence pertzins to working capital advances,
payable in lump-sum plus Interest of 0.4% per annum broken down as follows: *

: 2017 2016
Current portlon $2,700,000 $1,000,000
Lohg-term 750,000 -

53,450,000 51,000,000

Interest expense incurred amounted $13,544, $10,053 and $0.10 mitlion In 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respactively (see Note 12). : :

Due to Porent Company, The Company’s payable to Strongoak, its Parent Company, pertalns to cash
advances In 2017 for its working capital requirement, which Is subject to 6.5% annual Interest and
payable within four months from drawdown date. Interest expense amounted to $8,597 in 2017

{see Note 12). The ultimate Parent Company Is Seawood Resources, inc, a domestlc company
engaged In Investing activitles,
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Remuneration of Key Manogement Personnel, The remuneration paid to key management
personnel of the Company is set out below In aggregate as:

2017 2016 2015
Short-term employee henefits $398,457 5504,165 5436,492
Post-employment benefits 35,937 35,581 16,541

$434,421 . $543,746 $453,033

14

-

Retirement Benefit Ohligation

The Company values its defined benefit obligation using projected unit credit method by the service
of an independent actuary and accrues retirement beneflt expense for its quallfled employees.
The Company has a trust agreement with a local bank establishing the Company’s retirement plan.
The most recent actuarlal valuation was as at December 31, 2016 by independent actuary.

Retirement benefit costs recognized In the separate statements of comprehensive income in respect
of thls defined benefit plan are as follows {see Note 18):

2017 2016 2015

Sarvice cost;
Current service cost $38.802 570,049 554,245
Net interest expense 7,621 17,094 12,076
Retirernent benefit costs recognlzed In proflt or loss $46423 587,143 571,322

The amounts included In the separate statements of financial position arising from the Company’s
obligations [n respect of Its retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

2017 2016

Present vaiue of defined benefit obligation $233,863 $147,475
Fair value of plan assets : . (42,190) (41,636)
' $191,673 $145,839

Movements in the present value of defined beneflt obligations are as follows:

2017 2016

Balance at beglnning of year $187475 - 5350,463
Current service cost 3B,802 70,049
Interest cost 8,349 17,682
Beneflts paid:

From operations —~ (38,833)

From plan assets e (10,102}
Remeasurement gains:

Arising from experience adjustments - {114,936)

Arising from changes in financial assumptions ~ (37,020}
Retirement liability reclassified to payable - (46,451)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain {763) (13,377}

Balance at end of year

- $233,863 5187475
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Movements on the falr value of plan assets are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year ‘ 541,636 811,991
interest Income 728 588
Employer contribution - 42,403
Benefits paid - {10,102}
Loss on plan assets - (9186)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss {174} (2,328)
Balance at end of vear 342,190 541,636

The analysis of the fair value of plan assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 Is as follows:

2017 2016

Cash and tash equlvalents $363 5107
Debt instruments 41,889 41,585
Fees payables (5) (6)
Withholding taxes payable - (5%} {50)
$42,190 541,636

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

2007 - 2016 2015
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25% 4.94%
Expected rate of salary increases 4,00% 4,000 5.00%

The sensitivity analysis on the defined benefits obligations as at Decernber 33, 2017 and 2016 is as
follows:

Effecton-
Retirement
Beneflts
Obligations
1% Increase In the discount rate (822,013} .
1% decrease In the discount rate 26,220
1% increase in the salary fncrease rate assumption 26,308
1% deacrease in the salary increase rate assumption (22,624)
10% improvement in employee turnover ' 2,984

10% increase in employee turnover ) (2,984)
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The cumulative remeasuremeant galns

{losses) on retirement beneflt obligation recognized in other
comprehensive Income follows:

Accumulated
Hemaasurement
Gein (Loss) Deferred Tax Net
Balance as at Januery 1 and Deceniber31,

2017 $105,040  ($31,527) $73,563
Balance as at January 1, 2016 ' ($45,950) $13,785 ($32,165)
Remessurement galn _ © 151,040 {45,312} 105,728
Balance as at December 31, 2016 $105,080 (531,527} $73,563
Balance as at January 1, 2015 {$177,427) $53,228 {$124,199)
Remeasurement gain 131,477 {39,443) 92,034
Balance as at December 31, 2015 {$45,950) $13,785 {$32,165)
The average durat?un of the benefit obligation is 18 years.

15, Equity

Details of the Company’s capltal stock as ot December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Shares Amount
Authorlzed
Ordinary shares at.R1 par value '
Balance at beginning and end of year 3,000,000,000  R3,000,000,000
Issued and Outstanding
Balance at beglnning of year - 2,500,000,000 $53,646,778
Treasury shares : {287,537) {5,774)
Balance at end of year 2,495,712 463 $53,641,004

The history of shares issuances from the initlal public offering (PO} of the Company s as follows:

Number of
Subscriber - Issue/Dffer Price Reglstration/issue Date  Shares Issued
IPQ Varlous P1.35 November 8, 2006 535,098,610
Stock dividends Varlous _ =  Detember 17, 2007 64,177,449
Stock rights offer (SRCY) Varlous 1,00 uly2s, 2011 272,267,965
Stock dividends Varlous - - January 25, 2012 137,500,000
Frivate placament Vartous 160  Deeember 14, 2012 60,668,750 ,
Frivate placemeant Strongoak Inc. L3l May5, 2014 430,286,226
SRO Varlous 1.40 Odober 28, 2015 1,000,000,000

2,500,000,000




-33-

On February 17, 2015, the BoD approved the stock rights offering of up to 1,000,000,000 shares at
R1.0 par value a share by way of pre-emptive rights offering to eligible existing comman

shareholde_rs of the Company at the proportion of 1 rights offer for gvery one and % exlsting
common shares held as of record datae. '

On October 28, 2015, the SEC a pproved the Increase in the Company's authorized capital stock from

R1,500.00 million divided into ,500,000,000 shares to B3,000.00 million divided Into 3,000,000,000
shares at #1.00 par value a share, :

Strongoak Inc. acquired 952,478,638 shares of the Cotnpany at par value arising from authorized
capital stock and stock rights offering by way of pra-emptive rights, where the increase was
approved by the SEC on October 28, 2015. This resulted in Strongoak Inc. OWning a total of

1,382,765,864 shares, fepresenting 55.32% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the
Company,

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the BOD and Stockholders, respectively, approved the
Company’s plan to undergo an equity restructuring to eliminate the Company’s deficit, as follows:

* Decrease the Company’s authorized capltal stock by reducing the par value of Its common stock
from 1 a share to approximately R0.50 5 share, without returning any portion of the capital to

the stockholders. The Compary’s Articles of Incorporation will be amended to reflect the
necessary changes,

* Create additional pald-in capital from the decrease In parvalye.

* Apply the newly created additional paid-In capital, together with the exlsting patd-in capltal of
$6.7 milllon, to wipe out the Company's deficit as at May 31, 2017,

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the equity restructuring,
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, additional pald-in capltal amounted to $6.66 mllon,

The Company has 236 and 256 shareholders as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

16.

Net Sales

Thls account cansists oft

2017 2016 2015
Net sales of flsh products $39,691,190 $28,938,265  $32,168,987
Others 1,629005 - 2,173206 2,240,609

$41,320,195 $31,111,471 534,408,596

Others pertain to sale of fishmeal,
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17. Cost of Goods Sold
This aceount consists of:
Note 2017 2016 2015

$30,189,700 525,571,245 $22,950,029
2,460,057 2,258,881 2,006,521

Direct materials
Direct Jabor
Manufacturing overhead:

Warehousing 925,600 1,113,311 1,031,855

Fuel 584,675 835,778 862,005
Light and water . 386,492 277,811 187,738
Depreclation and amortization 9 306,910 312,617 301,968
Rental . 22 117,15 662,544 500,800
Otheys 1,432,138 861,274 1,632,468
Total manufacturing costs 36,807,768 31,893,861 29,473,384
Finlshed goods, beginning b 3,818,280 3,913,443 7,715,605
Total cost of goods manufactured 40,626,048 35,807,304 37,188,989
Finished goods, ending 6 (3,658,870} (3,818,280} (3 913,443)

$36,967,178 531,989,024 $33,275 5486

Other manufacturing overhead consists of Indlrect labor,

repalrs and malntenance, outside setvices
and insurance among others,

18. Seliing and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of

Note 2017 2016 2015
Salarles, wages and other benefits $959548 $1,130,481 $935,B13
Outside services 634253 ‘345,328 B56,803
Taxes and licenses ' 200,997 237,636 438,308
Impairment loss on: .
Inventories [ 230,780 267,059 3,441,498
Trade and other receivables 5 57275 42,925 123,651
Other noncurrent assets 10 - 314,320 240,964
Property, plant and equipment 9 : - - 101,408
Representation and entertalnment 139,263 153,659 122,103
Transportation and travel 133,208 203,930 146,264
Securlty fees 79,307 77,134 68,282
Depreciation and amortization 9 71,783 65,990 59,258
Bustness development 71,641 89,505 59,019
Rental 22 53532 55,177 116,693
Utllities and communication - 45,898 62,647 71,327
Retirement benefit costs 14 46,3423 87,143 71,322
Insurance 32,4456 76,085 82,292
Materials and supplies 26,860 18,014 34,710
Fuei and ol 22197 43,231 112,095
Buyer's clalms 15504 25,407 524,919
Others

342133 167,489 330,964
$3,267,03%  $3,467,160 $8,037,696
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15. Other Income {Charges)

Thls account consists of:

Note 2017 . 2016 2015
Impairment losses on: :
Due from PTIAFI 13 {$6,667,442) 5— L
Investrnent in PTIAF] B {4,999,000) - -
Management fee 13 400,000 400,000 300,000
Interest income 4 263,613 145,212 167,723
Bank charges {128,841) (82,810) (91,734)
Foreign exchange gain {loss) {34,703} 108,584 220,463
Gain on disposal of transportation equlpment 9 627 3,589 -
Loss on disposal of investment 8 - - {599,487}
Reversal of allowance for j Impairment on
other noncurrent assets - - 5,821,845
Provision for impalment loss in Tishing vessel - ~  {5,821,845)
Reversal of allowance farinventor\,'
obsolescence - - 368,294
Others 235,597 114,209 (288,799)
{510,929,749) $689,784 576,460

In 2015, reversal of allowance for impairment on other

recavery of receivable from WCFI,

noncurrent assets pertains to partial

20.

Employae Benefits

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016 2015
‘Short-term employee benefits -$3,188,231 $3,143 395 $3,067,058
Post-employee henefits 14 46,423 87,143 71,322
$3,234,654 $3,230,538 53,138,380
21, Loss Par Share
The calculation of the basic and diiuted loss per share is based on the following data:
2017 2016 2015
Loss for the year (48,972,209} {$3,584,937) {$7,220,431)
Welghted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding 2,492,712,463  1,459,712,463 1,677,794,655
- ($0.00359) {50.00159) {$0.00430)

The weighted average number of shares refers ta
the effect of treasury shares,

shares in cireolation during the period that is after
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As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no dilutive potential share; hence, the
basic loss per share is equal to the diluted loss per share,

22.

Significant Agreements

Operating Legse Agreoments '

Plant. On January 25, 2013, a long-term lease contract was executed by and hetween the Co mpany
and AMHI, The term shall he for a perlod of flve vears from danuary 1, 2013 until
December 31, 2017, renewable every five years thereafter, upon terms and conditions mutually

agreeable to the parties, Based on the contract, the rental fee shall be $56,572, subject to an annual

escalation of 5% ar the national Inflation rate as published by the. Nationaj Statistics Office,
whichever is higher.

In addition, the Company shall

pay an amount equivalent to 26 months rental of $1.63 million as
security deposits.

On January 1, 2017, the lease contract was amended. Based on the amended contract, the rental
fee shall he $11,634 per month, subject to annual escalation of 5% or the national inflation rate as
published by the National Statistics Offlce, whichever Is higher,

Head Office, The Compa'ny leases its head office space from Dominfon Property Holdings, inc. with a

monthly rental of $3,688 for a period of three years, commencing on August 16, 2016 to
August 15, 2018 renewable by mutual agreement by both parties. '

Refundable lease deposits amounted to

$1.67 million and $1.61 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively {see Note 10).

Rental expense charged to operations in refation to the lease agreements are as fallows;

Note 017 2016 2015

Cast of goods sold 17 $117,156 $662,994 $500,R00
Selling and administrative expenses 18 53532 59,177 116,683

5170,728 $722,171  $617,493

Minlmum lease payments under noncancellable operating feases are as follaws:

2017 2016
Not later than one year $29,766 $597,057
Later than one year but not later than five years - 872,700

$29,766 51,465,797
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23,

Corporate Social Responsibility

For the past six {6} years, the Company has been giving back to the communlty through the feeding
program conducted In Banlisil High School acated In Genera) Santos City. The program aimed to
feed underwelght students in an atiempt to combat frequent absences and poor acadernic
performance as well as educate the familles about proper nutrition for thelr chitdren. The faeding
program was completed by 2017. The Company Is now developlng Its carporate soclal responslbility
program to focus an the [ocal workers’ community welfare, aswell as promating a clean and healthy
environment together with energy conservation, for commencement in 2018,

24,

Income Taxes

Current Tax
The Company’s current income tax expense represents minimum corporate income tax ambunting
to $94,961, 3420 and 535,221 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. '

Deferred Tax

The components  of the Company’s net deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Peferred tax assets
Allowance for impairment losses on: _

Property, plant and equipment _ 54,208,564 $4,208,064

Due from PTIAFI 2,000,233 - -

Other noncurrant assets 738,932 738,932

Inventories 216,847 417,244

Receivables 202,544 185,362
NOLCO 1,924,326 1,993,774
MCIT 95,381 420
Retiremant beneflt obligation 57,502 43,752
Unreallzed forelgn exchange loss 5,510 -
Rental payable ' - 126,464
Accrued expenses — 17,250
_ 9,450,239 © 7,732,162
Deferred tax liabitity
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - 17,748

$9,450,239 §7,714,414

The details of the Company’s NOLCO, which can be clalmed as deduction from future taxable
income, are as follows:

Inception Year Amount  Expired/Applied Balance Expiry Year
20186 54,875,913 - 5= $4,876,913 2015
2015 3,916,364 - . - 3,916,364 2018
2014 877,793 877,753 - 2017

$9,671,070 $877,793 $8,793,277
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The detalls of the Company’s MCIT, which can be cialmed as daduction from future income tax

liability, are as follows:

Inception Year Amopunt _Expired/Applied Balance Expiry Year

2017 594,561 [ 894,961 2020

2016 420 - 420 2019

2015 35,221 .- 35,221 2018

2014 68,260 69,260 - 2017
$199,862 $69,260 $130,602

In 2017 and 2016, the Company did nat reco
management belleves that future taxable |
to be utilized:

gnize the following deferred tax assets since the
ncome wilt hot be avallable to alfow the deferred assets

2017 2016

NOLCO $713,657 $907,547

Excess MCIT over ROIT 35,221 104,481
748,878 $1,012 028

The Company has assessed that with the new strategic plan being implemented to tum-around the
buslness, the Company wilf generate enough taxable income to utifize the total deferred tax assets
of $9.45 million and $7.73 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The reconclliation of benefit from Income

tax computed at the statutory Income tax rate and at
effective Income tax rate follows:

017 2016 2015
Beneflt from Income tax computed at statutory tax rate {$3,183922) (31,284,934} (52,326,667)
Change in unrecognized defarred tax assets _ {263,150} 257,426 1,413,065
Expired MCIT 639,260 52,786 -
Tax effects of:
Impatrment [oss on investrment In PTIAF) 1,19%.700 418,381
Expired NOLCO

202803 701,816 -

Nondeductible expanse 57761 -

Interest income from acretion of refundable lease

deposit . (20,326) {20,556) (20,534)
Interest income already sublected to final tax {5,089) {23,008) {25,783}
Nondeductible Interest expense 2,003 9,491 12,285
Effect of foralgn exchange galn : 8,804 . 125

{SLMW} {$298,175)  {§535,124)
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25, Fair Valug of Financlal Assetg and Liabilities

The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assets and
flnancial Habilitles as at December 31, 2017 and 2015,

2017 2016

Carrying Carrying
Amount Falr Value Amount Falr Value
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents $2,225,131  $2,225131 $4,186,918 34,186,918
Trade and other recelvablas 6,249,389 E,249,389 3,695,787 3,695,787
Due from related parties © 8,067,001 B,067,04% 14,138,969 14,138,969
Refundable lease deposits 1,674,393 1,674,393 1,613,428 1,613,428

$18,215,954 $18,215,954 . 523,635,102 $23,635,102

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables* $6,519,344 $6,519,344 3,622,870  $3,522,870
Loans payahle 24,301,950 24,307,309 20,793,334 20,788,452
Notes payable . 3,450,000 3,447,690 1,000,000 1,000,000
Due te Parent Com pany 2,002,803 2,002 804 -

$36,274,008 $36,277,147 525,416,204 $25,411,332

* Excluding sigtutory pupable and rustomers’ degasits

Due to the short-term maturitles of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recefvables, due
from related partfes, refundable lease deposits, trade and other payables and due to Pareng
Company, their carrylng amounits approximate their fair values, These financial assets and ljabilitlas
are classifled under Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy groups of the separate financial statements. .

The fair value of the loans and notes payable is determined based on the discounted cash flow
analysis using effective Interest rates for simitar types of Instruments. There were no significant
unobservable inputs Identifiad and na relationshlp was established between the unchservable
inputs and the falr value of the loans payable and refundable Jease deposits, These financlal assets

and liabllities are classified under Leve! 3 of the falr value hlerarchy Broups of the separate financial
slatements,

The fair value hlerarchy groups the financlal assets and llabllities into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value Js observable,

There were no transfers among levels in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
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26. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The Cempany's principal financlal instruments comprise malnly of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, due from relateq parties, refundable lease deposlts, trade and other
payables {excluding statutary payable and customer’s deposlts), loans payable, notes payable and

due to Parent Company. The main purpose of these financlal Instruments Is to finance the
Company’s operatlons, '

The main risks arising from the Company’s financlal instruments are credit risk, Interest rate risk,

liquidity risk and forelgn currency risk. The Company’s BOD and management review and approve
the policies for managing each of the tisks stmmarized below,

Credit Risk
Credit risk is a risk when a Counterparty fails to fulflll its obligations to the Company.

The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit

Company’s separate statements of financial position before taking
other credit enhancements;

risk for the components of the
into consideration collatera) and

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents $2,225131 54,186,918
Trade and other receivablas 6,249,389 3,695,787
Due from related parties 8,067,041 14,138,959
Rafundable lease deposits 1,674,393 1,613,428

518,215,954 $23,635,102

The Company, however, deals only with reputable banks and custorner to [imit this risk,

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of the Company’s financial assets | as
follows: .

2017
Neither Past __ Past Bue Account liut not impaired Impeired
Duenor 1-30Days 31-60Days Dvar 60 FInanclal
Impalred Past Due Past Due Days Assets Total
Cash and cash
equivalents $2,225,131 5 $- & S~ 42,225,131
Trade and other
recalvables 4,082,249 678,202 871,108 1117829 675,147 6,924,536
Due from related partles 5,485,508 - ~ 2581533 6,667,442 14,734,483
Refundable lease
deposits 1,674,393 - - - ~ 1,574,392

§13,467,281  3678,202  $371,109 $3599362 $7,242,589 $25,558,545
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2016
Nelther Past _ Past Due Account but not Impaired impalred
Duenor 1-30Days 31-60 Days Over 60 Financial
Impalred Past Due Past Due Days Assets Total
Cash ang cash ] ‘
equivalents $§4,186,918 5- & e $~ 84,186,918
Trade and other .
recelvables 2,931,672 146,243 - 617,872 617,872 4,313,659
Dua from related partles 13,904,880 - - 234039 — 14,138,960
Refundable lease ’
deposlts 1,613,428 - - - - 1,613,428
522,636,898 $146,243 5- 4851961 $617,872 524,252,974

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the amount of cash in banks and cash equivalents and
refundable Jease deposlts are nelther past due nor impalred and were classifled as “High Grade”,
while trade and other recelvables, due from related partles were classifled as “Standard Grade”,

The credit quality of such loans and receivables is managed by the Company using the interna! cradit
quallty ratings as follows:

Hlgh Grade. Pertains to counterparty who is not expected by the Com pany to default in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure Is minimal, This nomally includes large prime financial

Institutions and companies, Credit quality was -determined based on the credit standing of the
counterparty. o

Standord Grade. Other financlal assets not belonglng to high grade financlal assets are Included In
-thls category.

Substondard Grade, Receivables from other counterparties with histary of defaulted payments.

Interest Rate Risk

Intarest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal
Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates,

The primary source of the Company’s Interest rate risk relatesto dabt Instruments such as bank and

mortgage loans. The interest rates on these liabllities are disdosed in'Note 12 to the separate
financial statements,

Management belleves that any variation in the interest will not have a materfal impact on the net
profit of the Company.

Bank and mortgage loans as disclosed in Note 12 agreed at interest rates rapging from

approximately 4.5% to 9.59% per annum for bank and mortgage loans; expose the Company to
falr value interest rate rlsk.

The Company has no borrawlIngs with floating interest rata,

Liquidity Risk

Llquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter difficulties in ralsing funds
to meet commitments from financial instruments, it may result from elther the Inabllity to sl
assets qulckly at fair values ar failure to collect from counterparty, . '
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The Company's objective Is to maintain a balance betwean centinuity of funding and frexthility
through refated party advances and alms to manage liquidity as follows:

a. Toensure that adequate funding is avaliable at aj] times;

b. To meet commitments as they arlse without recuriing unnecessary costs; and
€. To be able to assess funding when needed at the least possible cost,

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturities for jts non-derlvative
financial liabllities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

financial llakllities based on the earliest date on which the Cormnpany can be required to pay,
The tables Include both Interest and principal,

2017
Welghted
Average Fifective Within One  More than One
Intarest Rate Yaar Yoear Total
Trade and other payablas* NI 46,5193 &- 86,519,344
Loans payable 4.50% - 9.59% p.a 24,263,385 ag565 24,301,950
Notes payable 0.40% p.n 2,700,000 750,000 3,450,000
Future Interest . 4,50% - 9,59% p.a 29,603 11,111 40,714
Due to Parent Company 6,50% p.a 2,002,804 " 2,002,804
-t 535,515,135 $7589,676 535,314,812
*Exciuding statutory poyable and customers’ deposits aggregating $312,111
016
Welghted Average
Effective interest WithinOne More than One
Rate Year Yaar Total
Trade and other payablaz* NIl $3,622.870 5 $3,622,870 -
Loans payable 2.50% - 9.55% p.a 20,759,621 33,713 20,793,334
Future interest 2,50%-9.59%p.a 8,466 5,743 14,209
Notes payahle 0.40% p.a 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
$25,350,95} 339,456 525,430,413

*Excluding statutary payeble and eustomers’ depnoslis aggregating $245,101

Eorelgn Curvency Risk

The Company has transactlonal currency exposures arlsing from purchase and construction contract
trensactions denominated in currencies other than the ¥ePOring currency. The Company does not
enterinte forward contracts ta hedge currency exXposures,

As part of the Company’s risk management policy, the Company maintains monitoring of the
fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates, thus managing its foraign currency risk,

The carrying amounts of the Company’s Phillppine Peso denominated mon

étary assets and
monetary liabillties at the reparting dates are as follows: :

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents $370,606 52,011,822
Trade and other recelvables 153,582 149,312
Due from related partles - 4,995,995 4,886,649
Trade and other payables {5,338,616) {2,657,434)
Loans payahle {3,114,859) (5,586,421)

Due to Parent Company (2,002,304)
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Management's Assessment of the Reasonableness of Possible Change In Forelgn Exchange Rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency derominated monetary ftems adjusted
and translated at period end for 7 6% change in forelgn currency rates.

The sensitivity analysls (ncludes all of the Company's foreign cufrencv denominated monetary assets
and liabilities. A positive number below Indicates an increase in net profit when the U.S. Dollar
strengthens by 6% against the relevant currency. Fora 6% weakening of the U.5. Dallar against the

Philippine Peso, there wouid be an equal and opposite impact on tha net profit and the balances on
the followlng table would be negative.

The following table detalls the Company’s sensitlvity to a 6% increase and decrease in the
U.5. Dollar against the relevant foreign currency.

Effect on Loss Before Tax

2017 ’ 2016

Cash and cash equivalents $22,236 $120,709
Trade and other recelvables 9,215 8,959
Due from related parties 259,760 293,160
Trade and other payables {320,317} (159,445}
Loans payable {186,852} {335,185}
Due to Parent Company {120,168} -
{5206,166) {571,764}

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital inanagement [s o ensure that it maintains a strong
credit standing and stable capital ratlos in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Company maintains its current capltal structure and wiil make adjustrnents, If necessary,
In order to generate a reasonable level of returns to stockholders over the fong term. Moreover,
i 2017, the Parent Company decided to undertake an equity restructuring which will result to the

ellmination of capltal deficit of $32.00 milllan {see Note %). No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year,

The Company considers the equity presenited in the separate statements of financial position as its
core capltal,

The Company manitors capltal using débt-to-equlty ratio, which 1s total debt divided by total aquity.
The debt-to-equity ratio as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

.

2017 2016
Debt 36,777,882 $25,808,144
Equity 23,875,873 37,848,082
Debt-to-Equity Ratlo 1.27:1 - 0.68:1

Pursuant to the PSE's rules on minimum public ownership, at least 10% of the Issued and

outstanding shares of a listed company must ba owned and held by the public, The public ownership
Is 32% as at Dacember 31, 2017 and 2016.
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27, Reconciliation of Liabilitles Arising from Financing Activities

The table below detalls changes In the Company's Ilabilltles arising from financing activities,
including cash and noncash changes:

FInancl_ng Cash Flows

: Forelgn
2016 Availments Payments Exchange Galn 2017
Loans payahla 520,793,334 $25,122,545 (525, 60R,502) ($5:327) $24,301,950
Notes payable 1,000,000 2,450,000 - - 3,450,000
Due to Parent Company - 2,002,804 - - 2,002,804
Interest payahla 90,595 768,302 (786,161) - 73,736

$21,883,929 534,344,651 (526,394,753} (85,327 $29,828,490
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
~ SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Dlrectors
Alliance Select Foods Intemational, Inc,
Unit 1206 East Tower

Phillppine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Paslg City

We have audited the accompanying separate financlal statements of Alfance Select Foods International,

Inc. (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.) {the “Company”} as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017,
on which we have rendered our report dated March 23, 2018,

In compliance with Securtles Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has two hundred twenty one (221) stockholders owning ong hundred {100} or more shares aach,

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

52 me D022,

EMMANUEL V. CLARIND

_Partner

CPA Cartificate No. 27455
Tex [dantification No. 102-084.004-000
BOA Accraditation No. 4782; valld untll December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Vaild untll March 27, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-005-2017
Valld until January 13, 2020
FTR Na. 6607954
Issued January 3, 2018, Makat] Clty

March 23, 2018
Makatl Clity, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY_ SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Alliance Select Foods International, Inc,
Unit 1206 East Tower

Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road
Ortigas Avenue, Paslg Chy

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Audlting the separate financial statements
of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc, (a subsidiary of Strongoak Inc,) (the “Company”} as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2018.
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an oplnion on the hasic separate financial statements

taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are the responsiblilty of the Company’s
management. These supplementary schedules includa the fallowing:

* Reconcillatlon of Retained Eérnings Available for Dividend Declaration
« Adoption of Effectlve Accounting Standards and Interpratations

These schedules are presented for the purpose of com
as amended, and are not part of the bagic separate
schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedy
financial statements, Including comparing such Inform

plying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68,
financial statements, The Information in this
res applied in our audit of the baslc saparate
ation directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepara the basic separate financial statements or ta the basic separate financlal

statements themselves, In our oplnlon, the information Is fairly stated In all materlal respects in relation
to the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole,

REYES TACANGONG & Co.

EMMANUEL V¥, CLARING

Partner

CPA Corttflcata No, 27455

Tao Identifiation No. 102-084-004-000

BDA Accreditation No. 4782; Valld untl] Decambar 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valid umil March 27, 2020

BIR Aceraditation Na, 08-005144-005-2017
Valld until January 13, 2020

FTR Na, 6607954
lavued January 3, 2018, Makat City

March 23, 2018
Makati City, Metro Maniia
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ALLIANCE SELECT EQODS INTERNATIQNAL, INC,

{A Suhsidlaty of Strongoak inc)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Dacember 31, 2017

Deficit at beginning of year as shown In the separate financial statements {$22,528,486)
Less deferred tax assets at the heginning of year ' (7,732,162}
Add deferred tax liability at the beglaning of year 17,748
Total deficlt, as adjusted at beglnning of year {30,242,500)
Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings (8,972,209}
Less:
Movement in deferred tax assets 1,718,077
Movement in deferrad tax liability 17,748
Treasury shares _ 5,774
Total retalned earnings avallable for dividend declaration at ent ofyear §~
Reconciliation:
Deficlt at end of year as shown In the separate financial statements ($31,500,695)
Less;
Deferred tax assets as at end of year 8,450,239
Treasury shares ' 3,774
- Total retained earnings available for dividend declaration at ang of year 5~
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(A Subsldiary of Strongoak inc.}

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Not Not
Tida Adopted Adoptad | Applicable
Framewaork for the Preparation and Presentation of Financlal
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative character(stics v
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Phillppine Financlal Raporting Standards (PFRS)
Not Nert
F
PFRS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
First-time Adoption of Phllippine. Financlal Reporting
PFRS 1 {Revisad) Standards e
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptlons for v
Flrst-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1; Limited Exemptlon from
Comparative PFRS -7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Sevare Hyperinfiation ane Y
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Ad opters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditlans and v
Cancellattons
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- P
based Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 (Revised) | Business Combinationg v
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptlons for joint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v

Amendments to PFRS 4: Flnancial Guarantee Contracts




PFRS

Tltle

Adoptad

Not -
Adopted

. Not
Applicabla

" PERS 5

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operatlons

v

- Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resourres

PFRS 7

Flnancial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Flnanclal
Assets

| Amendments ta PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financil

Assets - Effective Date and Transkion

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments :

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disciosures « Transfers of
Financlal Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsettlng
Financial Assets and Financial Llabilltules

Amandment tg PFRS 7; Servicing Contracks

Amendment to PFRS 7; Applicabillty of the

Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financkl
Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendrents to PFRS 8: Reconclllation of the Totalof
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entlty's Assets

PFRS 1D

Consolldated Finaneial Statements

Amendmentsto PFRS 10: Transition Guidanca

Amendments to PFRS 10; Investment Entities

Amendments to-PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consalldation Exceptlon

PFRS 11

Jolnt Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guldance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in JoInt Operations
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PFRS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entit{es

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guldance

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitles: Appiying
the Consolldation Exce ption

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 13

Falr Value Measurement

Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term recelvables and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolla Exception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards {PASs}

PAS

Title

Adopted

Mot
Adoptad

Not .
Applicable

PAS 1 {Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1 {Revised): Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arlsing on Liquidatlon

Amendments to PAS 1 {Revised}: Prasentation of tems
of Other Camprehensive Income

Amendment to PAS 1: Clariflcation
Requirements for Comparative Presentation

of the

Y

Amendments to PAS 1 {Revised): Dlsclosura Initfative

PAS 2

lnventories

PAS7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS7: Disclosure Inltlatlve

SN sES

PAS 8

Accounting Policles, Changes In Accounting Estimatss
and Errors

~

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11

Construction Contracts
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PAS

Title

Atoptet

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicahle

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlylng Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unreallzed Losseg

PAS16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Classifleation of Servielng
Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Methoxd -

Praportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendment to PAS 16; Property, Plant and Equipment

- Clarification of Acceptabie Methods of Depreclation
and Amortlzatlon '

Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 1B

Revenue

PAS 1D
(Revised)

Employee Benefits

Amendiment ta PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributians

Amendmaent to PAS 15; Discount Rate; Reglonal Market
Issue

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosura of
Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exc‘hange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment In a Forelgn Operatlon

PAS 23 {Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24 [Revlsed)

Related Paﬁ:y Disclosures

Amendmentto PAS '24: Key Management Parsonnel

SN RSN]S

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27
{Amended)

Separate Financlal Statements

Amendments to PAS 27 [Aniended}: Investment
Entitles
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RAS

Title

Adoptad

Not
Adopted

Not
Appli¢able

Amendments to PAS 27 {Amended): Equity Method in
Separate Financiat Statements

v

PAS 2B
{Amended)

Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PAS 28 (Amended): Salz or
Cantribution of Assets between an Investor and fts
Assoclate or Joint Ventyre '

Amendments to PAS 28 (Amended): . [nvestment
Entities: Applying the Consolitation Exception

PAS 29

Flnanclal Reporting in Hyperinitationary Economies

PAS 32

Financlal instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Financial Instruments: Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financfal instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquldation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of ftights |ssuas

Amendments to PAS 32; Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilitles

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Fffect of Distribution to
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Philippine Interpretations
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- Amendments to Phillppine Interpretation JFRIC-9: ' v
Embadded Derlvatives
"IFRIC 10 Interim Financtal Reparting and Impairment
[FRIC 12 Service Concesslon Arrangements

{FRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

FRicig | The Limit on a Defined Beneft Asset, Minimum

, v
Funding Requirements and their interaction
Amendments to Phillppine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minlmum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment In a Forelgn Operatlon v

IFRIC 17 Dlstributions of Noa-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
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Instruments
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IFRIC 21 Levies e

PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

‘ Not | Not
Interpretations : Titla Adopted Adopted | Applicable
SIc-7 Introduction of the Euro v
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$IC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
) | or its Shareholders




Not Not
Interpretatjnns _ Title Adopted Adapted | Applicable
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Lise AnMDejadlna

. SUITES 1305 & 1205 EAST TOWER,

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS
INTERNATIONAL, INC.

A PUBLICLY-LISTED COMPANY

May 18, 2018
Securities and Exchange Commigsion

Secretariat Building, PICC Complex, Roxas Botilevard
Pasay City, 1307 '

KE: Segllemenshl  FILING

To whom it may concern:

In view of the requested format change by the Philipplne Stock Exthange on the Statement of
Changes in Equlty, we are re-submitting thie complete set of Financia) Statements of Alllance

Select Foods International, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the 17Q requirement for the 1% quarter

of the calendar year 2018 to be consistant with tha PSE flling.

Please acknowled pe receipt hereof,

Thank you..

Very truly yours,

SVP for Group Operations

PHILIFFINE STOCK FXCHANGOE CEMTRLE,
EXCHANGE ROAD, DRTIGAS CENTER,
PASIG CITY, METRO MANILA,
PHIUPPIHES 1605

TELEPHONE MO, (632) 435 5241 TD 44

FAX NO, {632 635 5238 . WWWALLIANCESELECTFOQDS. COM
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1. For the querterly perlod ended March 31, 2018 U

2. Commission identification number CS200319138
3, BIR Tax [dentification No. 227-409-243-000
4, Exact name of Issuer as spedified In Its charter Alliance Select Foods Intarnational, Ine,

5. Pasig City, Philippines : .
. Province, country or other Jurlsdiction of incarporation or arganizatlon

6. Industry Classification Code: |2

7. 1206 East Tower PSEC Exchange Rd. Ortigas Center Pasig City 1605
Address of issuer's principal office Postal Cade

8. 635-5241 to 44
Issuer's telephone numher, including area code

9. Not Applicable
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10. Securities registered pursuant to Sectlons 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and & of the
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TItle of each Class ' Number of shares of
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Common shares, P0.50 : 2,499,712,453 shares
Par Value

11, Are any or all of the securltles listed on a Stack Exchange?
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If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securltles listed therein:

The Phil. Stock Exchange - Common shares
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PART Il - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1, Financial Statements

The unaudited financial statements of Alliance Select Foods International, Inc. {the “Company” or “Parent
Company”) and its Substdiaries {collectively referred to as the “Group”) as at and for the three months ended
March 31, 2018 (with comparative figures as at December 31, 2017 and for the period ended March 31,
2017) and Selected Notes to the Consolidated Finandial Statemnents are hereto attached as Annex “A".

The unaudited financial statements of the Group are presented In USS$, the currency of the primary economic
envirenment in which the Group operates.

Item 2. Management’s discussion and analysis of financlal condition and results
The fallowing discussion should be read in confunction with the attached unaudited financial statements of
the Group as at and for the three months ended March 31, 2018, with comparative figures as at Decamber
31, 2017 and for the period ended March 31, 2017, as appropriate.

The table below shows the comparisons of key aperating results for thethree month perlod ended March 31,

2018 versus the same period In 2017,

For tha Three Months Ended March 31

In USD'000 2018 2017
Revenue - net . 523,651 $16,819
Gross Profit 3,427 1,808
Gross Profft Margin 14% 11%
Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,945 1,520
Other Income 544 76
Other Expenses 49 57
Finance Costs : 329 199
Income Before Tax 1,638 208
Income Tax Expense 343 Bl
Incoma for the Peried 1,305 - 127
Attributable to: .

Equity holders of the parent _ 1,215 80

Non-controlling interest 80 37

$1,305 $117




Results of operations
Three months ended March 31, 2018 versus March 31, 2017

The Group's consolidated net revenues of $ 23.7 million for the first quartar of 2018 were 41% higher than
the revenues of § 16.8 million in the same reporting period last year. The revenue Increase s driven by
growth In most of the subsidiarles. ASFII's 57% revenue growth is driven by volume sales and average price
per FCL. Spence and Akaroa grew its business by 20% and 27% raspectively as it continues to increase its
volume sales for both local and export markets. These were partlally offset by a decrease in sales by PT IAF(
due to the continued struggle with fish sourcing in the region, and BGB mainly due to issues encountered as &
result of labor strikes waged In Chile during the flrst quarter, '

The 1st quarter of 2018 reglstered a gross profit of $3.4 milllon, 80% higher compared to the reported $1.9
mitlion gross proflt in the 1st quarter of 2017, Correspondingly, gross margin for the total group is higher at
14%, compared to last year's 11%. Last year's gross margln was malnly impacted by the high prices of raw
materials in Spence due to an algae bloom epidemie.

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 28%. Meanwhilg, the increase In average loans payable
balance from banks and/or financial institutions versus same perlod last yaar resulted to an increase in
finance cost,

Plan of Operation

The Group does not foresee any cash flow or liquidity problem ovar the next twelve (12) months. it Is in
tompliance with ks loan covenants pertaining to debt-to-equity ratio. There are no material off-balance
sheet transactlons, arrangements, obligations {Including contingent cbligations) and other relationships of
the Group with entities or other persons created during the reporting period that would have significant
impact on the Group’s operations and/or financfal condition,

As of March 31, 2018, there were no other material evenis or uncertainties known to management that
could have a materfal impact on the future operations, in respect of the following:

s Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a materlal impact
on the Group; :

s Known trends, events, uncertalntles that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
materiai favorable or unfavarable impact on net sales/revenues/ Income from continuing
operations;

s Significant elements of income or loss that did not arlse from the Group’s continulng operations; and

» Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of aperatlons.

Explanations for other materlal changes in the financiaf statements

Statement of Financlal Performance
Thrae months ended Mareh 31, 2018 versus the same period in 2017

Gross profit rete Increased across all entitles, delivering a consolld_atad 3 percentagé points gross profit rate
Improvement. Challenged by the high raw material cost last year, Spence recorded a 7 percentage polnts GP

rete improvement this year,

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 28%.
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Statement of Financial Positicn
As at Miarch 31, 2018 versus Decembar 31, 2017

The 24% growth In 2018 Q1 sales versus 2017 Q4 sales lad to an increased trade and other receivahles
batance,

Inventory balances across entities were malntained compared to that of 2017 ending balances, except for
BGB which grew by 363 malnly due to raw materials purchase.

Increase in Dther current assets is due t_o BGB's Increase in advances to verdors/suppliers,

Increése In Trade and other payables are mainly for raw material purchases.

Loan proceeds for the quarter were used to secure raw materlals given Its compeiltive price.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group uses the following key performance Indicators in order to assess the Group’s financial

performance from perlad to perlod. Analyses are employed by comparlsons and measurements based on the
financial data on the periods Indlcated below:

Liquidity and Solvency _ March 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current ratio 0.97 : 0.92
Debt to equity ratio . 1145 1.09

For the Three Months Ended March 31

Profitabliity ) 2018 2017
Revenue growth rate 40.6% 14.6%
Net profit marglhn =~ 5,1% 0.8%
Return on average stockholders' equity 3.1% 0.3%

Tha following defines each ratlo:

*  Liquidity ratio {expressed In proportion) = current assets / current llabliitles

"  Debt to equity ratio {expressed in propartion) = total llabilities / total stockholders’ equity

*  Revenue growth rate (expressed in percentage) = (current year's revenue— previous year's revenue)
/ previcus year’s revenue

»  Net profit margin {expressed In percentage) = net Income attributable to equity holders of parent /
net revenues

*  Return on average stockholders’ equity {expressed in percentage} = net income attributable to
aquity holders of the parent / average stockholders’ equity
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PART II--OTHER (NFORMATION
All current disclosures were already reported under SEC Form 17-C.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized,

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

A

MA, CRISTINA C, VILLARUZ
Group Comptroller

P

LISA ANGELA Y, DEJADINA
Senior Vice President for Group Operations
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to me thelr government issued identification cards, as follows;
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Ma. Cristina C. Villaruz PRC No. 0092146 - 12-01-2016 PRC, WManila 04-01-2019
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ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31, December 31,
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 $6,071,383 $4,427,478
Trade and other recelvables 8 12,419,921 9,414,233
inventories g 14,432,886 14,154,871
QOther current assets 10 6,432,560 5,612,224
Total Current Assets 38,357,250 33,608,806
Noncurrent Assets . .
Property, plant and equipment 11 15,837,613 16,104,369
Deferred tax assets 9,694,692 8,721,323
Goodwiil i 5 9,502,585 9,502,585
Other noncurrant essets 12 1,544,929 1,581,487
Total Noncurrent Assets 36,579,819 36,909,764
$74,937,069 570,518,570
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilitles
Trade and other payables 13 $9,923,137 $9,745,224
Leans payable 14 27,337,282 24,285,900
Due to related parties 2,016,231 2,142,510
Income tax payable 265,381 134,688
Total Current Liabilities 39,542,031 36,358,322
Noncurrent Liabilities
loans payable - net of current portion 92,842 75,355
Net retirement benefit obilgation 226,758 234,627
Deferred tax liabilities 135,957 135,957
Refundable Jease deposlts 20,860 21,811
Total Noncurrent Liabilitias 476417 471,750
Tatal Liabllitles 40,018,448 36,830,072
Equity 15 ' .
Capital stock 26,823,389 53,646,778
Additional paid-in capital 1,486,546 6,662,001
_Other comprehensive income 857,136 933,149
Retained earnings {Deficit) 7,982,060 {25,231,757)
37,149,131 35,010,131
Treasury shares 15 {(5,774) {5,774}
Equity attrlbutable to equity holders of the Parent '
Company 37,143,357 36,004,357
Non-controlling interests {2,224,736) {2,315,859)
Total Equity 34,918,621 33,688,498
$74,937,069 $70,518,570

See qccompanylng Notes to Consolidated Financtal Statements,



A

ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
_ {A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.)

e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Quarter Ended March 31
Note 2018 2017
NET SALES 16 $23,650,932 $16,818,518
COST OF GOODS 501D 17 : (20,223,735) {14,910,455)
GROSS PROFIT 3,427,193 1,308,063
SELLING AND ADMINTSTRATIVE EXPENSES 13 (1,945,340) (1,520,242)
INTEREST EXPENSE {328,807) {198,599}
EOQUITY IN NET EARNINGS {LOSSES)
OTHER INCOME {CHARGES}) 19 495,139 18,586
INCONIE BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,648,185 207,808
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 343,158 81,170
NET INCOME 1,305,027 126,638
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOS5)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Exchange differences on transtation of forelgn .
operations (76,013) 15,371
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,229,014 142,009
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company $1,215,013 590,295
Noncontrolling interests 90,014 36,343
$1,305,027 $126,638
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: _
Equity holders of the Parent Company - $1,137,891 $101,203
Noncontrolling interests 91,123 40,806
" $1,2259,014 $142,009
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Baslc and dlluted earnings per share 20 $0.00049 50.00004

See accompanying Notes to Consalidated Flnancial Statements.



ALLIANCE SELECT FCODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

March 31, December 31,
. 2018 2017

March 31, Dacember 31,
2017 2016

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Capiltal Stock

Balance at beginning of year

Effect of equity restructuring

553,646,778 553,646,778
(26,823,389} -

853,646,778 $32,238,544

Balance at end of period

26,823,389 53,646,778

53,646,776 53,646,778

Addltional Pald-In Capltal

Ralance at beglnning of year
Effect of equlty restructuring
Application of APIC to Deflcit

6,662,001 6562,001
26,313,389 -
{31,998,844) -

6,662,001 6,662,001

Balznce at end of perlod

1,486,566 _ 6,662,001

5,662,001 6,662,001

QOther Comprehensive Incoma

Cumulative Remeasurement on Retirement Obligation
Balance at beginning of year

Remeasurement galn {loss) an retiremant

£5,190 55190

55,150 {48,352)
- 103,542

Balance at end of period

55,190 55,190

55,150 55,190

Revafuation Reservas

Balance at beglaning of year 275 275 275 275

Eifect of deconsolldation - - - -

Share In other comprehansive Income| loss} _ _ _ -
of a joint venture

Balance at and of perlod 275 275 275 275

Cumulative Translation Adjustment
Balance at beginning of year
Exchange differences on forelgn currency translation:

877,684 893,534
(76,013)  {1550)

93,534 998,568
10,507  (105,034)

Balance at end of period

801,671 877684

504,441 893,534

Total balance at end of year of other comprehensive
[ncome

857,136 933,149

935,906 948,999

Daffclt

Balance at beglnning of year
Application of APIC to Deflclt
Net income {loss)

{25,231,797) (26,669,068)
11,998,844 - -
1,215,043 1437271

(26,669,068) (20,700,539)

00,285  {5,968,529)

Balance at end of perfod

7,082,060 (25,231,797

{26,578,773) (25,669,068)

Treasury Shares

{s,778) (5774}

(5,774} (5,774)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Balance at beginning of year

Total comprehensive income ([ass ) attrlbutable to
non-contralling Interests

{2,315,859) {1470,729)
91,123 154870

(2,470,728)  (2,488,979)
40,305 18,250

Balance at end of period

{2,224,736} (2315R59)

(2,429,923} (2,470,729}

$32,254,215 $32,112,207

-$34,918,621 $33,668,498

See gccomprinying Notes to Consalidated Financlol Stotements.



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsidiary of Strongoak Inc.} .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW.

Quarter Ended March 31
2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
income before income tax . $1,648,185 -6207,807
Adjustments for;
Depreclation and amortization 306,560 - 286,460
Interast expense 328,807 198,599
Unrealized forelgn exchange loss (gain} -~ net (244,677} 4,536
Retirement benafit - 23,170 21,513
Interast income (23,303) {15,549)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment - {e47)
Equity in net losses (earnings) - -
Operating income {loss) before working capital changes 1,838,742 702,719
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other recelvables (1,959,653)  {1,812,045)
Inventories {277,2B2) 313,495
Other cumrent assets {946,766) {1,441,026)
Other nencurrent assets 41,093 5,266
Increase {decrease) in trade and other payables 378,565 2,062,402
Net cash generated from (used for) operations . (925,301) (165,190)
Income tax paid {186,194) {34,366)
Interest recelved 23,303 15,549
Contribution to retlrement fund . (31,039) (98,215)
Net cash provided by {used in} operating actlvities {1,119,231) {286,222)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to proparty, plant and equipment {150,345) (314,819)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - a47
Net cash used jn Investing activities - {150,349) {314,172)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Availment of baak loans 11,023,457 7,880,435
Payments of:
Bank loans | ' (7,826,798} (11,280,039}
Interest (207,453) {198,594)
Decrease in due to-a related party {40,653) -
Net cash used in financing activities . 2,948,553 {3,598,203)
EFFECTS OF EOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS {34,568) {36,070)
NET INCRAESE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSS 1,644,405 {4,234,667)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,427,478 7,396,343
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF QUARTER $6,071,083 53,161,676

See accomponying Notes to Consoliduted Finoncigl Statements



ALLIANCE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
{A Subsidlary of Strongoak Inc.)

NQTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

General Information : :
Alliance Select Foods International, inc. (ASFIl or the “Parent Company”), a public corporation
under Section 17.2 of the Securltles Regulation Code (SRC), was incorporated in the Philipplnes
and registered with the Securitles and Exchange Commisston {SEC) on September 1, 2003. The
Parent Company is primarlly engaged In the business of manufacturing, canning, importing and
exporting of food products such as marine, aquacuiture and other processed seafoods. 1ts shares
are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE) since November 8, 2006.

Strongoak Inc. {Strongoak), the Immediate parent of ASFIl, owns a total of 1,382,765,864 ASFIl
common shares, representing 55.32% ownershlp. Strongoak Inc, Is & domastic company engaged
in fnvestment activities.

On July 20, 2017 and September 7, 2017, the Board of Directors (BOD) and Stockholders,
respectively, approved the Parent Company's equity restructuring by reducing the par value of its
shares and applying the resulting excess and additional paidin capital agalnst the Parent
Company’s deflcit. On March 23, 2018, the equity structuring was approved by the SEC.

The Parent Company's registered office address, which is also its princihal place of business, is at
Unit 1206 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig
City, The Parent Company has a plant located In Brgy. Tambler, Genersl Santos City, Philippines,

Subsidiarles
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ASFil and the following subsidiarles
{collectively referred herein as the “Group”} as at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

: o Principat Place of
Narne of Subsldlary 5% of Qwnership Nature of Business Business

Salmon and other seafoods United States of
$pence & Company Ltd. {Spence} 100 prozesiing Amerlca
Big Glary Bay Salmon and Salman and other seafoods o

seafood Company, Inc. (BGB} 100 processing hilipplnes
ASFI Thalland™ 100 Sales offica - Thaitand
PTInternaticnal Alliance Food

indanesla (PTIAF) 99.98 Canned fish processing indonesia
Alllance MHI Properties, Inc. (AMHI) 98.89 Leasing Phliippines

: Salmon farming 2nd
Akaroa Salmon {N2) Ltd. (Akaroa) » 80 protesing New Zealand
PT Van De Zee {PT vz) #* 49 Fishing : Indonesia

{a) Indirect ownership interest through PTIAFL
{b) No operotions in 2037 end 2015,

Spence. Spence is based in Brockton, USA and specializes in the producticn of smoked salmon
and other seafood praducts.
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BGB. BGB Is engaged in manufacturlng goods such as salmon and other processed seafoods. It
was registered with the Philippine SEC in October 2009 and its registered office Is located at Sulte
1205, East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. Its
plant facllities are located in Barrlo Tambler, General Santos Clty.

In 2016, the ASFIl converted advances of $2.57 million to capital stock of BGB.
ASFI Thailand. ASFi Thalland was established as a sales representative office.

PTIAFI and PT VDZ, PTIAFI was established under the Indonesian Foreign Capital Investment Law
and Is primarlly engaged in canned fish processing exclusively for international market. The plant
is located at JL Raya Madidir Kelurahan Madldir Unet Ung. I Kecamatan Madidir, Bitung
Indonesia. '

PTIAFI owns 49% of PT VDZ, a fishing company. PT VDZ’s operation [s intagrated with the tuna
processing activities of PTIAFI, As at December 31, 2016, PT VDZ ceased operatlons.

AMHI. AMHI was incorporated in the Phillppines and registered with the SEC on June 18, 2010 as
a property holding company. The reglstered address and principal offlce of AMH! is at Purok
Saydala, Barangay Tambler, General Santos City.

On December 23, 2015, ASFIl converted advances of $0.29 miion as partial payment of its
subscription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMHI. The subscription resulted to the
increase in Parent Company's effective voting ownership Interest in AMHI from 40% to 08.89%
(see Note 4).

Akaroa. Akaroa, a company incorparated and domiclled in New Zealand, is engaged in sea cage
salmon farming and operates two marine farms In Akaroa Harbor, South New Zealand, it
processes fresh and smoked salmon. Akaroa holds 20% stake in Salmon Smoit NZ Ltd. (SSNZ), an
entity operating a modern hatchery, which quarantines and consistently supplies high guality
smolts (juvenile salmon) for Akaroa’s farm.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting poficies used in the preparatlon of the financlal statemants are
conslstently appiied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

' Basls of Praparation

These consolldated financial statements have baen prepared on a going concern basis and in
accordance with Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting
framework includes all applicable PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC)
and adopted by the SEC.

The consolidated financlal statements comprise the statements of financial position, statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, statements of cash flows, and notes
thereto. Income and expenses, excluding the components of ather tomprehensive income, are
recognized in the stataments of comprehensive income. Recassification adjustments are
amounts reclassifled to profit or Joss in the current period that were recognlzed in other
comprehensive income In the current or previous periods, Transactions with the owners of the
Graup in their capacity as owners are recognized in the statements of changes in equity.
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Measurement Bases

The consolidated financial statements are presented In United States (U.S.) Dotlar, the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates. All values
are rounded to the nearest U.S. Dollar, except when otherwise stated.

The consolidated financtal statements have been prepared on a historleal cost basis. Historical
cost Is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
arderly transaction between market participants at the measurernent date. The Group uses
market observable data to the extent possible when measuring the fair vaiue of an asset or &
linbility. '

Fair values are categorized Into different levals in a fair value hietarchy based on Inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level'l - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for ldentical assets or liabilities

e level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or Indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair
value measurement Is unobservable

If the inputs used to measure the falr value of an asset or a lizbility might be categorized In
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that [s significant to
the entlre measurement.

" The Group recognizes transfers between fevels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the

reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information ahout the assumptions made In measurlng fair values Is in¢luded in Note 27
to the consclidated financlal statements.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The accaunting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except

" for the adoption of the foflowling new and amended PFRS which the Group adopted effective for

annual periods beginning on orafter lanuary 1, 2017:

e Amendments to PAS 7, Stotement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initfative — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in-liabilities arising from financing activities.

¢ Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related to unrealized
losses on debt Instruments measured at fair vaiue, to address diversity In practice.

+ Amendment to PFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests In Other Entities - Clarification of the Scape of
the Standard - The amendment is part of the Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle
and clarifies that the disclosure reguirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financlal informatlon, apply to an entity’s Interestin a subsldiary, a joint venture
or an assoclate (or a portion of its interest in a Joint venture or an assoclate) that is classifled
{or included Tn a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.



The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PERS did not have any matertal effect on the
consolidated financial statements. Additional disclosures have been Included in the notes to
financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS [n issue But Not Yet Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,
2017 and have not been applied In preparing the consolidsted flnancial statements are
summarized helow. '

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

s PFRS 9, Financial Instruments — This standard will replace PAS39, Flnoncial instruments:
Recognition and Meosurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS S}, It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financlal assets and financial
liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognitian, .

PERS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value {through profit or loss or through other compretensive income), depending on
the classification by reference to the business mode! within which these are held and Hs
contractual cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabliities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair
value option Is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss that Is attributabie to changes In the credlt risk of that
liability is recognized in other comprehensive income {rather than in profit or loss), unless this
craates an accounting mismatch.

For the Impairment of financlal assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit loss” model
based on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract; recognition
of a credit loss should no longer wait for there to he objective evidence of impairment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantlal overhaul allowing financial statements
ta better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hadging financlal and
non-financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers — The new standard replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply conslstently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core princliple {based ona five-step model to be apptied
to ail contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or Improved guidance {e.g.
the point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of
fulfilling and obtaining'a contract, etc.).

¢ Amendment to PFRS 1S, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 -
The amendments pravide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b} principal versus agent considerations; and [¢} licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.



e« Amendments to PAS 28, investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Measuring an
-Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value — The amendments are part of the Annual
Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and clarify that the electlon to measure at fair value
through profit or loss an Investment in an associate or a jolnt venture that is held by an entity
that is a ventura capital organization, mutual fund, unit trust of other qualifying entity, is
available for each Investment In an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-
investment baslis, upan Initial recognition,

s Philippine Interpretation (FRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and  Advance
Consideration — The interpretation provides guidance clarifying that the exchange rate to use
in transactions that Involve advance conslderation paid or received In a foreign currency s the
one at the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or defeyred
income [ability. ' :

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2019 -

« PFRS 16, Leoses — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its velated interpretations. The
most significant change Introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will be
brought onto lessees’ statement of financial position under a singla model (except leases of
less than
12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminatirig the distinction between operating and
finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease is retained.

Deferred effectivity -

o Amendment to PFRS 10, Consolidoted Financiol Statements and PAS 28, Investments in

' Associotes and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture — The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction
involves a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute a business, The
offective date of the amendments, initially set for annual periods beginning on or after
fanuary 1, 2016, was deferred indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier appfication is stil
permitted.

Management has inltially assessed that the adoption of PERS 9, PFRS 15 and PFRS 16 might have a-
significant effect on amounts reported In the Group’s financial assets and liabilitles, revenue and
leases. However, It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until &
detailed review has been completad. -

Basis of Consolidation ,

A subsidiary Is an entity in which the Group has control. The Group controls a subsidiary if it is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from lts involvement with the subsldlary and has the
ahility to affect those returns through Its power over the subsidiary. Control is generally
accompanled by a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are substantive are consldered when assessing whether the
Group controls an entity. The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and
circumstances Indicate that there are changes to one or more ofthe three elements of control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financlal statements
from the date when the Group obtains contral and continue to be econsolidated until the date
when such control ceases. The results of operations of the subdidiaries acquired or disposed are
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included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date of acquisition or
up to the date of disposa), as apprapriate.

The financlal statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same reporting periad of the
Parent Company. Consolidated flnancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Intercompany balances
and transactions, Including intercompany profits and unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated
in Full,

Achange in ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change in control, Is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Upan the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets {including
goodwill} and llabllities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling intecests and the other camponents
of equity related to the subsidiary. Galn or foss arising from the loss of control 1s recognized in
profit or loss. If the Group retains interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is
measured at fair valiue at the date control is fost. Subsequently, it Is accounted for as an equity-
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financlal asset depending on the level of interest
retained.

Non-controifing Interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Group, presented within equity in the consolldated staterments of financlal position, separately
from equity. atttibutable to equity holders-of the Parent Company. Non-controlling Interests
represent the interests of minority shareholders of PTIAFI, PTVDZ, Akaroa and AMH!,

Business Combination and Goodwill
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acquisition cost is

measured as the sum of the conslderations transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amaunt of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling Interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.

When the Group acqulres a business, it assesses the financla! assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractuai terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditlans as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

When the business comblnatlon is achieved in stages, any previously held non-controlling interest
is re-measured at the date of abtaining cantrol and a gain or loss Is recognlzed in profit or loss.

I the initial accounting for a business combination Is incomplete as at the reporting date in which
the combination ogcurs, the Group reports In Its consolidated financlal statements provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period,
the Group retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts and recognizes additional assets or
liabilities to reflect new information obtained abaut facts and circumstances that existed as-of the
acquisition date, The measurement period ends at the date the Group receives the informatlon
about facts and clrcumnstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that more
information is not obtainable, but should not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Goodwill, which arose from the acquisitions of Spence (§7.45 million) Tn 2011 and Akaroa
{$2.05 million) in 2012, is initially measured at the acquisitlon date as the sum of the fair value of
consideration transferred; the recognized amount of any non-tontrolling interest in the acquiree;
and, if the business combinatlan Is achieved In stages, the fair value of existing equity interest in
the acjuiree less the fair value of net identiflable assets acquired and liabilities assumned. If this
cansideratlon Is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the bargain
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purchase gain Is recognized directly in profit or loss. The consideration transferred does not
include amounts related to the setHement of pre-existing relationshlps. Such amounts are
generally recognized in profit or loss.

After Initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumuiated impairment losses.
For Impairment testing, goodwill atquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the entity’s cash-generating units ar group of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or Habllities of the entity are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of
units to which goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which goodwill
is monitored for Internat management purposes. '

Where goodwill has been allpcated to a cash-generating unit or group of cash generating units
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation in determining the gain ar
loss onh disposal. Goodwill disposed in this clrcumstance is measured based on the relatlve values
of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financlal assets and liabilities are accounted for as follows:

a. Recognltion

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statements of financlal
position when the Group becomes & party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. Financial instruments are Initially measured at fair value which includes
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition {eg. fees, commissions, transfer
taxes, etr.). However, transaction costs related to the acquisition of financlal instruments
classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) are recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Group uses trade date accounting to account for financial instruments,

“Day 17 Difference. The best evidence of the falr value of @ finandial Instrument at inftial
recognition Is Its transactlon price unless the transactlon price differs from Its fair value. The
best evidence of fait value Is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financlal
instrument Is not active, the Group determines falr value by using a valuation technique
whose varfables Include data from observable markets, The difference between the
transactloh price and the falr value (a “day 1" difference) Is recognized In proflt or [oss, unless
it qualifles for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the valuation model
uses unobservable data, the difference between the transaction price and the mode] value s
only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become obsenvable, or when the instrument
Is derecognized, For each transaction, the Group dstermines the appropriate method of
recognlzing the “Day 1” difference.

h. Classification

The Group classifles its financial assets at Initlal recognition under the following categoties:
(a) financial assets at FVPL, (b} held-to-maturlty (HTM) Investmants, (c) loans and recelvables
and (d) available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. Financial Nabiities, on the other hand, are
classified 85 either flnancial liabilities at FVPL or other finandal liabilities at amortized
tost. The classification of a financlal instrument largely depends cn the Group's intention at
acquisition or issuance date.
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Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturlties that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not ¢lassified ar desighated
as AFS financial assets or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are included in
current assets if maturity is within twelve maonths from reporting date. Otherwise, these are
classiflad as noncurrent assets,

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction costs
which are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial Instrument. The
amortlzation is included In profit or loss.

The Group has classified s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from
ralated parties and deposits as loans and receivables.

Cash equlvalents are short-term highly ligufd investmants that are readily convartlble to
known amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to
an nsignificant risk q’f change in value.

Other Financial Llabilitles at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are classifled in this category
IF these are not held for trading or not deslgnated as st FYPL upon the inception of the
liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing,

Other financial liabilities are initially recognlzed at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initfal recognition, other financia! llabilities are measured at
amortlzed cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost Is calculated by taking
Into account any refated Issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and [osses are racognized In
profit or loss when the [iablilties are derecognized, as well as through amortization process.

The Group's trade and other payables {excluding customer's deposit and statutory payable),
loans payable, due to related parties and refundable lease deposits are classified under this
category.

Impairment of Financlal Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objectlve evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is Impaired. A financial asset or group of financlal
assets is deemed Impalred if, and only If, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the assat (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset ar group of financial assets that can be estimated reifably,

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impaitment exists individually for its
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for its financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
ot not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impalrment. Assets that are individually assessed far
impairment and for which an impalrment lass is or continues to be racognized are not
included In a collactive assessment of impairment.
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The impalrment loss Is measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate, The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impairment losses are recognized In full in profit or loss. Interest income
contlnues to be recognized on the reduced carrying amount using the interest rate used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the Impairment loss.

If, in @ subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impalrment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account, The
amount of the reversa! is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the resultlng carrying
amount will not exceed the amortized cost determined had no impalrment loss been
recognized in prior years,

Derecognition

A financlal asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized by the Group when:

¢ the right to recelve cash flows from the asset has expired; or

s the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or :

¢ the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b}has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has
transferred control over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset ar has entered
Into a pass-through arrangement, and has nelther transfetred nor retained substantially alt
the tisks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognlzed
to the extent of the Group's continuing Involvement In the asset. Contlnuing Involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, & meesured at the lower
of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to pay.

A flnancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or
cancelled or has expired, Where an existing financial Jlabllity is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing llability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognized In profit or lass. '

Offsetting

Financlal assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated

_ statements of financial position if, and only if, there I5'a currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognized amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basls or to realize
the asset and settle the ilabillty simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements where the related assets and liabllities are presented gross in the
consolidated statements of financial position.



inventories

Inventorles are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and ‘et realizable value (NRV), Cost incurred In bringlng each produst to Its present focation
and condition is accounted as follows: :

Finished Goods and Work in Process. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted average
method. Costs comprise direct materials and when applicable, direct labor costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the Inventories to thelr present focation and
condition. NRV represents the estimated selling prlce less estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale

Raow Materlals ond Pockaglng Supplies, Cost is determined using weighted average method. NRV
is the current replacemsant cost.

When the NRV of the inventories-is lower than the cost, the Group provides for an allowance for
the decline In the value of the inventory and recognizes the write-down 2s an expense in profit or
loss. The amount of any raversal of any write-down of inventaties, arlsing from an increase In
NRV, is recagnized as part of other income or charges in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income,

When inventories are sold, the earrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense
in the period when the related revenue Is recognized and the refated allowance for impairment is
reversed.

Other Assets

Other assets include advances to suppliers, value-added tax (VAT), prepayments, creditable
withholding taxes (CWTs), investments in associate and joint ventures, biological assets,
intangible assets, idle assets and lease depaslts. Other assets that are expected to be realized
over no more than 12 months after the reporting date are classified as current assets. Dtherwise
these are classified as noncurrent assets.

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, The net amount of
VAT recoverable from the taxation authosity is included as part of "Other current assets” account
in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Prapayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before these
are utilized. These are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and recognized in
profit or loss when Ingurred,

CWTs. CWTs represent the amount withheld by the Group’s customers in relation ta its income.
CWTs can be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by
certificates of creditable tax withhald at source.

investments In an Assotiote and Joint Ventures. An assoglate Isan entity In which the Group has
significant influence, but not control, over the financlal and opsrating policies. Significant
Influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% percent of the voting
power of another antity.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have Joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture, Joint contral is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exIsts only when decislons about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Joint controt is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activitles require the unanimous consent of the partles sharing
control,

The considerations made In determining significant influence or joint control are simiiar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidlaries.

The Group’s Investments [n assoclates and joint ventures are Initlally carried in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost, Subsequent to Initial recognition, Investments in
assoclates and joint ventures are measured in the consclldated financiat statements using the
equity method,

Under the aquity method, the investment in an assoclate or a joint venture is initially recognized
at cost. The carrying amount of the investment Is adjusted to recognize changes In the Group’s
share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating
to the assoclate ot jolnt venture is included In the carrying amount of the Invastment and is
neither amortized nor Individually tested for impairment.

Upon loss of significant influence over an associate or of joInt control pver the joint venturg, the
Group measures and recognizes any retaining investment at its fairvalue, Any difference between
the carrying amount of the investment upon loss of significant Influgnce or joint control and the
fair value of the retained intarast and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss,

Blologlcal Assets. The Group measures its biological assats on inltfal recognition and at the end of
each reporting period at its fair value less costs to sell, Blological assets of the Group comprised
solely of consumable female smolts, They are cultured during the developmental phase which
lasts for an average period of 14-16 months.

Harvested agricultural produce are also carried at fair value less estlmated costs to seil at harvest
point.

Gains ar {osses arising on initial recognition of biological asset at falr value less estimated polnt-
of-sale costs and from a change in fair value less estimated point-ofsale of biological asset are
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the period when they arise,

Idie Assets. |dle assets are those which are no longer used in the Group’s operations. These are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impalment loss, The Group’s ldle assets
are already fully provided with ailowance for Impairment loss.

Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets. intangible assets that are acquired by the Group with finite useful lives
are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting peried, items of intangible assets.
acquired are measured at cost less accumulated amortizatlon and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes purchased price, including Import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any directly attrbutable cost of preparing the
intangible asset for its Intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when 1t increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwlll and brands, are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as
incurred.



Amortization of Intangible Assets with Definite Useful Lives. Amortization for salman farming
consent and fishing licensé with finite useful life is calculated over the cost of the asset less its
residual value,

Amortlzation is recognized in the consolidated statements of camprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of salmon farming consent and fishing license, from the date
that they are avallable for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied In the asset, The estimated usefu! life of
the salmon farming consent and fishing llcense for the current and comparative perlods Is 25
years.

Intongible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives. Macrocystic consent with indefinlte life is not
amortized. However, these assets are reviewed annually to ensure the carrying value does not
exceed the recoverable amount regardiess of whether an indicator of impairment is present. The
Group considers its macrocystic consent having an indefinite useful life for the following reasans:

¢ there have been no established legal or contractual expiration date;
¢ Impracticability of the determinatlon of the intanglble assets’ economic useful lives; and
¢ aré expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

Derecognitlon of Intangible Assets. An intangible asset Is derecognized on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the diffarence between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset and are recognized in the consohdated profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Property, Plant and Equipment,

Property, plant and equipment except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and any accumulated Impairment in value. land Is stated at cost less any
impairment In value, :

The finitial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, and any divectly attrlbutable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for Its Intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct’ labor, any other directly attibutable costs, the costs of
dlsmantllng and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and
capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased software that is Integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalized as part of the equipment.

Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or loss In the
year the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expendltures have resulted in an increase in the future economic henefits expected to he
obtalned from the use of an Item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditures are capitallzed as addltional costs of property, plant
and equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment
Is recognlzed If it is probabie that the future economic benefits embodied within the component
will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured rellably. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognized,

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment kave different useful lives, these
are accounted for as separate [tems (majar components) of property, plant and equipraent.



Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-ine method over the following
estimated useful lives of tha property, plant and equipment:

Number of Yaars

Building 25
5 {or lease term, whichever is
Leasehold improvements shorter)
Machinery and equipment 15
Transportation equipment 5
Plant and office furniture, fixtures and equipment 5

The estimated useful lives and depreclation and amortlzation method are reviewed periodicaily to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property, plant and equlpment.

Fully deprecisted assets'are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no
_ further charge for depreciation and amortlzation is made in respect of those assets.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cast snd the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment In value are removed from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss Is recognized In profit or loss,

Construction-in-progress {(CIP) represents properties under construction and is stated at cost,
including cost of canstructlon and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the construction of property, plant and equipment are capitallzed during the
tonstruction perlod. CIP is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed
and ready for operational use.

Impairment of Nonfinanciat Assets

The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such Indication
exists and when the carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or
cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of
the asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell or value In use. The falr value less cast to
sellis the amount obtalnable from the sale of an asset in an arm's-langth transaction less the cost
of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are dlscounted to their
present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate [argely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profitor loss.

An assessment Is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previgusly recognized Impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indlcation exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates wed to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impalrment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrylng
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, Howevar, that increased amount
cannot excead the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is récognlzed in proflt or loss. After such reversal, the depreclationand amortization charges are
adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, an a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life.
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Goodwill. The Group assesses goodwlll for impairment annually and when circumstances indlcate
that the carrying amount may be impaired. Impalrment is determined for goodwill by assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates,

Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying amount, an
Impairment loss is recognlzed Impairment losses ralating to goodwlll cannot be reversed in
future permds

Customers’ Deposit
Customers’ deposit consists of amounts received by the Group from its customers as advance .

payments for the sale of goods. These are recorded at face amount in the consolidated
statementis of financial position and recognized as revenue In profit or loss when the goods for
which the advances were made are delivered to the customers.

Equity

Capital Stock and Additionaf Poid-In Capfta! Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares
Issued. Incremental costs, net of tax, incurred that are directly attributable 1o the Issuance of
new shares are recognized in equity as a reduction from related additional pald-in capital {APIC)
or retained earnings. Proceeds or fair value of conslderation received in excess of par value are
recognized as APIC,

Other Comprehensive Income. Other comprehensive income pertains to remeasurement gain or
loss on retirement beneflts obligation, revaluation reserves and cumulative translation
adjustments.

Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of net toss, net of dividend declaration, Deficit
may also include effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard’s
transitional provision,

Treasury Shares. Own equity instruments which are reacquired are recognized at cost and
deducted from equity. No galn or loss is recognized in the consolldated statements of
comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments. Any difference between the cartying amount and the consideration, if relssued, is
recognized In APIC, Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullifled for the Group and no
dividends are allocated to them.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with _ihe
transactions will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue fs measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts and returns. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. Revenue is recagnhized as follows:

Sale of Goods, Revenue |s recognired, net of sales retusns and discounts, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers, which Is normally
upon delivery to and acceptance of the goods by the buyer.

Rental fncome. Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest Income. Interest income Is recognized in profit -or loss using the effective Interest
method. '

Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the peried.



Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized In profit or loss when a decresse In future economic benefit
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liabllity has arisen that can be measured
reltably,

Cost of Goods Soid. Cost of goods sold is recognized as expense when the related goods are sold.

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling expenses constitute costs incurred to sell and market
the goods and services. Adminlistrative expenses constitute cost of administering the business,
Both are expensed as incurred.,

Interest Expense. Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest
methed, '

Other Charges. Expenses from other sources are expensed as incurred,

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. BorrowlIng costs are capitalized if they are

directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifylng asset., Capitalization of
borrowling cost commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in prograss and
expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing casts are capitalized until the assets
are substantially ready for thelr Intended use.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contalns a [ease is based on the substance of
. the arrangement at Inceptlon date. This requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a spécific asset or assets and whether the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment Is made after inception of the lease only if one
of the following applles:

a, there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal orextension of the arrangement;

b. arenewal optlon is exercised or extension granted, unless the term af the renewal or
extension was Initiafly included In the lease term;

e, therels a change in the determinatlon of whether fulflliment rsdependent on a speclified
asset; or

d. thereis a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, fease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
thange In circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios {a}, {c} or (d] and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as Lesses, Leases where the lessor retalns substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classifled as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
axpense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Group as lessor, leases where the Group retains substanthily afl the risks and rewards of
ownershfp are classified as operating leases. Operating lease reveipts are recognized as an
income in profit or loss on a stralght-line basis over the lease term,



Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method. This
method raflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The Group recognizes service costs comprising of current service costs, past service casts, gain or

loss on curtaliment and settlements and net interest expense on the retirement benefit liability in
profit or loss,

The Group determines the net interast expense on retirement benefit liability by applylng the
discount rate to the net retivement benefit liabllity at the beginning of the year, taking into
account any changes In the liability durlng the perlod as a result of contrlbutlons and benefit
payments. .

Remeasurements of the net retirement benefit liability, which consist of actuarlal gains and losses
and the return on plan asset {excluding amount charged In net interest) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income (OC!) and are not reclassified to profit or loss In
subsequent periods.

The net retirement beneflt llability recognized by the Group Is the present value of the defined
benefit obllgation reduced by the fair value of plan asset. The present value of defined benefit
ohiigation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free
interest rates of government bonds that have terms to maturlty spproxtmating the terms of the
related retlrement benefit liability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that tha amounts recognized In the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be
determined at the reporting daté.

Income Taxes

Currant tox. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax. Deferred tax Is provided on all temparary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilitles and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liablfities are recognized for all taxable tempotary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temparary differences, net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), to the extent that It Is probatle that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
benefits of NOLCO and MCIT can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable proflt wlill be available to allow ail
orpart of the deferred income tax assets to be utllized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is seitled, based on tax rate {and tax laws) In
effect at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset and Habllitles are offset, if a legally enforceable right exlsts to set off current
tax assets against current tax ligbilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit ar loss is recognlzed outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax ftems are recognized in relation to the underlying transaction either In other
comprehensive income or directly In equity.

Forelgn Currency-Dengminated Yransactions and Translation

Each entity In the Group detarmines its own functional currency and Items included In the
consolidated financlal statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions In foreign currencies are initially recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the
transactlons. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using
the closing exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising from
foreign exchange transactions are credited to or charged against operatlons for the year,

Investments in associates and subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than US Dollar are
translated to US Dollar using the closing exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. The
Group’s share in the resulis of operations of the foreign investee istranslated using the exchange
rate at' the dates of the transactions or, where practicable, the rate that approximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, such as the average rate for the period. Any
resulting exchange difference is recognized as a separate component of equity. '

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of
monetary items are included In profit or loss for the period, Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary iiems carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation on non-monetary Items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Far the purpose of presenting consclldated financlal statements, the assets and liabilitles of the
Group's forelgn operations (including comparatives)-are expressed in US doilars using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
{Including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates at the dates of the
. transactlens are used. Exchange differences, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
Income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the header of foreign currency
translation reserve, ' -

On the disposat of a forelgn operatlon (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interast in a foreign
operation, or a disposal Involving loss of contra! over a subsidiary that Includes a foreign
operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operatlon attributable
to the Group are reclassified to praflt or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been
attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassifiad to profit or
loss.

Related Party Relationships and Related Party Transactions

Related party relatlonships exIst when one party has the abillly to contrai, directly or indirectly
through one or more Intermediarlas, the other party or exercise significant influence ovar the
other party in making financlal and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between
and/or among entlties which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or
between andfor among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnal,
directors, or its stockholders.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a ref:orting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged,



Provislons _

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result-of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obilgation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligatlon. Provisions are reviewed at the end of reportlng period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent llabilitles are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed In the notes to consolldated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economlc benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financiat
statements when an inflow of economic beneflts is probable

Events after_the Reporting Date

The Group identlfles subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date bug
hefore the date when the consclldated financial statements were authorized for Issue. Any
subsequent event that provides addltional information about the Group’s financial position at the
reporting date is reflected in the consolidated financlal statements. Non-adjusting subsequent
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolldated financlal statements, when materlal,

Income {Loss) per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted income {loss) per share data for its common shares,

Basic income (fuss) per share Is calcufated by dividing the net Income (loss) attributable to
common shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common
shares Issued and outstanding during the year. There are no potential dilutive shares.

Operating Segments
For management purposes, the Graup is divided into operating segments per products/service,

(tuna, salmon, and rental} according to the nature of the products and services provided. The
Group's identifiled operating segments are consistent with the ssgments reported to the BOD
which is the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptlons

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requlres management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent Habilities, at the end of the reporting petiod,
Howaver, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period when the estimate is revised if the revision
affacts only that perlod or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future peticds,

The Group helieves that the following represent a summary of these significant judgments,
estimates and assumptions and the related Impact and associated risks in the consolidated
financial statements:



Assessing Going Concern. The Group's management has made an assessment of the Group’s
abillty to continue as a golng concern and is satisfled that the Group has the resources to
continue in business for the foraseeable future. Furthermore, management Is not aware of any
materlal uncertainties that may. cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
golng concern. Therefore, the consolldated financial statements continue to be prepared on a
going cancern basis,

Determining Functional Currency. Based on management's assessment, the functional currency
- of the entitles in the Group has been determined to be the US Dollar, except for certain
subsidiaries whose functional currency is the New Zealand Dollar and Philippine Peso. The US
Dollar Is the currency that mainly influences the operations of most of the entities within the
- Group.

Assessing Acquisition of a Business. The Parent Company acquired & subsidiary which owns real
estate, At the tlme of acquisition, the Parent Company considers whether the acquisition
represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets, An entity accounts for an acquisition
as a buslness combination if it acqulres an integrated set of business processes in addition to its
current business. The conslderatlon 1s made to the extent that the significant business processes
are acquired and the additlonal services to be provided by the subsidlary,

Management has assessed that the acquisition of AMHI in 2015 constitutes a business.

Determining Contral Over Subsidiaries. Control |s presumed to exist when an Investor is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its Involvement with the subsidiaries and has the ability to
affect those retumns through its power over the subsidiaries, Management has determined that by
virtue of its. majority cwnership of voting rights or by the power to cast the majority of votes
through its representatives in the BOD in AMH! and PTVDZ as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Parent Company has the ability to exerclse control over thesa subsldiaries,

Determining Reportable Operating Segments, The Group has determined that it has reportable
segments based on the following thresholds:

a. lIts reported révenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment sales or
transfers, s 10% or more of the combined revenue, internaland external, of all operating
segments,

b. The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more, in absolute amount, of {i}
_the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss and (i) the
combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss.

¢, lts assets are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operathg segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be consldered
. repartable, and separately disclosed, if management believes that lsformation about the segment
- would be useful to users of the consolidated financial statements,

Accaunting for Interest in @ Jaint Operation. The Group has, after consldering the structure and
form of the contractual arrangement, the terms agreed by the parties and the Group's rights and
ohligations classifled its interest in a joint arrangement with FDCP, Inc. {FDCP) and Wild Catch
Fisheries, Inc. (WCF) as a joint venture under PFRS 11. As a consequence, the Group aceounts for
the assets, llabllitles, revenues and expenses relating to its Interast in the joint operation only to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture.



Clossifying Leases - Group as a Lessee. The Group has an operating lease agreement for Its office
site. The Group has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the leased

property are retalned by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreement is accounted for as an oparating
lease.

Classlfying Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered into ease agreement on fts parcel of
land. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant dsks and rewards of ownership
of the property. Accordingly, these leases are accounted for as operating leases.

Estimating Impairment Losses on Financiof Assets. The Group maintains allowance for impalrment
losses at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible recelvables, The level
of this allowance 15 evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectabillity
of the accounts, These factors Include, but are not Tmited to, slgnificant financial difficulties or
bankruptey, the length of the Group’s relationship with the tustomer, the customer payment
behavlor, and known market factors. The Group identifles and provides for specific accounts that
are doubtful of collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining recelvables and
establishes a provision considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

Estimating NRY of Inventorfes. The NRY of inventories represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make the sale. The Group
determines the estimated selling based on the recent sale transactlon of similar goods with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of transactlons
occurred, The Group records provisions for the excess of cost ovar the net raalizable value of
inventories. While the Group helieves that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences In the actual experience or significant changes in estimates may materjally
affect the profit or loss and.equity.

Estimoting Useful Lives of Froperty, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets. The Group
estimates the useful lives of property, piant and equipment and other intangible assets based on
the perlod over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimates are based on
a collective assessment of industry practice, Internal technical evaluatlon and experience with
similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intanglble
assets are revlewed at each reporting date and are updated if expectatlons differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits on the use of the assets. Future results of gperations could be materially affected by
changes in estimates brought about by changes In the factors mentioned above. The amount and
timing of recording of depreciation expense for any period would be affacted by changes in these
factors and circumstances.

Assessing Impairment of Nonfinanclol Assets and Goodwill. The Group assesses impairment on its
nonfinancial assets {excluding goodwill) whenever aevents or changes in circumstances indlcate
that the carrying amount of the assets or group of assets may not be recoverable. The relevant
factots that the Group conslders in deciding whether to perform an asset impairment review
Include the following:

¢ significant underperformance of a business in relation to expectations;
» significant negative industry or economic trends; and
s significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets,

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an Impairment [oss 1s
recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if It Is not possible, for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount represents the greater
of the falr valua less cost to sell and the value in use. Value In use Is determined as the present



value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the
assets. The estimated cash flows are projected using growth rates based on historical experience
and business plans and are discounted usihg pretax discount rates that reflect the current
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.

Goodwill is tested for Impairment annually and more frequently, when clrcumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may be impaired.

Estimating Retirement Benefit Costs. The determination of the obligation and costs of retirement
benefits is dependent on the assumptions used by the actuary in caleufating such amounts. These
assumptions are described in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and Include,
among others, discount rates and salary increase rates,

Recognizing Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting
date is reviewed and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be avallable to allow alt or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized, The Group's
assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assots on deductible temporary differences is
based on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast Is
based on the Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.

Business Combinations

On December 23, 2015, the Parent Company converted advances of $0.29 million {R13.5 milllon)
as partial payment of its subscription to 54,000,000 voting preferred shares of AMHIL The
subscription resulted to the increase in the Parent Company's effective voting ownership interest
in AMHI to 98.89%. Prior to December 23, 2015, the Parent Company had 40% voting ownership
interest in AMHL. The fair values of the identlfied net assets of AMHI at the time of acquisition
and the purchase price allocation are as follows: :

Amount
Met assets at acquisition date 56,379,054
Percentage share of net assets acquired 98.85%
Net assets acquired . : 6,308,884
Gain on acquisition {3,471,040)
Galn on remeasurement of previously held Interest {2,356,202)
Total consideration . $481,642
Total consideration . . 4481642
Less cash acquired : 2,553
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acqulred $479,089

Gains on acquisition and remeasurement of previously held interest resulted from the Increase in
fair value of the land held by AMHI. The fair value of previously held interest by the acquirer
immediately befora the acquisition date was $2.55 milllon.

Non-controlling interest Is measured based on its proportio_nate share on the net assets of AMH]
at acquisition date.

The revenue and the net income of AMHI from the date the Parent Company obtalned control,
which is December 23, 2015, to December 31, 2015 were no longer included in the consolidated
financial statements because these were not considered significant,



Had'the acquisition of AMH! taken place at the beginning of 2015, the Group’s revenue and net
loss for the year waould have been $67.99 mililon and 57.64 million, respectively,

. Goodwlil

Goodwill resulted from the acquisition by the Parent Company of the following subsidlarles:

Spence, The Parent Company acquired 100% ownership of Spence In 2011. The acquisition of
Spence’s salmon processing facilities in Brockton, USA allows the Group to diversiy its product
fine to take advantage of the changing food consumption patterns around the globe, address the
issue of sourcing raw materials and improve averall margins and profitability. The goodwill arising
from the acquisition amounted to $7.45 million.

Akoroa, The Parent Company acquired 80% ownership of Akaroa In 2012. Akaroa is engaged in
the business of sea cage salmon farming and operates two marine farms in New Zealand. It also
processes fresh and smoked salmon. Akaroa also holds 20% stels in S$SNZ, an entlty operating a
modern hatchery, which quarantines and conslstently supplies high quality smolts {(Juvenile
salman} for Akaroa’s farm. The acquisition enables the Group to stabilize its supply of salmon.and
eventually strengthen Its market share in the salman industry. The goodwill arising from the
acquisition amounted to $2.05 millian.

Disposal of Investments

PENZ
On October 30, 2015, ASFIl sold its 50% plus one share interest [ PFNZ to HC & JW Studhoime

No. 2 Family Trust for $5,000. The sale resulted in a gain of $0.37 million in the 2015 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (see Note 21). "

The carrying amounts of the net llabilities of PFNZ as at October 30, 2015, which have been
excluded in the 2015 consolidated financial statements, are as follows;

Amount
Net liabHities $732,774
Non-controlling interests . {366,494)
Met liabllitlas sold $366,280

Amount
Fair value of consideration received $5,000
Carrying amount of net liabllities sold ' {366,280}
Gain on disposal . $371,280

The 2015 consolidated statement of comprehensive income Includes revenue of $3.26 million and
net loss of $0.57 million of PFNZ for the ten months period ended October 30, 2015.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Cash on hand $4,665 $4,029
Cash in banks : 6,061,112 4,415,573
Cash equivalents - 6,106 7,876
$6,071,883 54,427,478

Cash tn banks earn interest at prevalling bank deposit rates.

Cash equlvalents pertain to cash placement with a bank for varylng pertods of up to three manths

depending on the Immediate cash requirements of the Group,

Trade and Other Recelvahles

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Trade $11,249,318 $9,117,570

Clalms receivabies . 1,023,512 1,027,177

Due from related parties 245,525 245,302

Recelvable from PFNZ - current portion 112,204 140,958

Advances ta employees 10,531 30,771

.Others : 790,681 864,405
) 13,431,873 11,426,183

Less allowance for itmpairment losses 2,011,950 2,011,950

' : $11,415,921 $9,414,233

Trade receivables are generated from the sale of inventorles and are generally-collectible within

29 to 60 days.

Claims receivables Include claims for refunds from government agencies and claims from

insurance, suppllers and ather parties.

Inventories

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Finished goods $6,044,956 $5,413,534
Raw materials 8,917,968 9,563,397
Parts and supplies . 294,940 294,821
Work-in-process 267,806 237,261
Impairment losses on [nventories _ (1,092,784) (1,354,142)
14,432,886 14,154,871




10. Other Currant Assets

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Advances to suppliers 55,107,111 54,673,341
Prepayments: :
Taxes 57,239 , 68,011
Insurance ) 60,995 25,428
Others 563,000 254,287
Input VAT 644,215 501,157

$6,432,560 $5,612,224

Advances to suppliers pertain to advance payments to suppliers for purchase of fish,

Other prepayments pertain to dues and subscriptions and other fees.

11,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment had total addition of $150,349 aggregate additions for tha flest
guarter of 2018. )

The Group provided for Impairment loss of $1.09 million in 2017 (PTIAFI's ptant and machinery)
and $8.55 milfion In 2015 (mainly fishing vessels and related CIP), on its property, plant and
equipment because of the discontinuance of the Group's fishing operations. Allowance for
fmpairment loss amounted to $1.70 milllon and $0.61 milllon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively,

In 2016, fishing vessels with cost amounting to $14.41 million and accumulated depreciation and
impairment amounting to $14.10 million, were reclassified to “Other noncurrent assets” as
“Idle assets” as these are no longer used in operations.

In 2015, the Parent Company recovered two of the fishing vessels it previously soid to WCFI
because of losses sustained by WCFI. The receivable from the sale of three fishing vessels of
$6.38 miilion in 2013 was provided with an allowance for Impaitment loss of $6.28 million in
2014, When the Parent Company. recovered the two vessels at a carrying amount of $5.91
milfion, it reversed allowance for impairment (recovery) of $5.82 million in 2015 but recognized a
provision for impairment loss on the fishing vessels at the same smount-in the same year.
Effectively, the Parent Company did not recognize any galn or loss from this transaction in the
2015 consolidated financial statements. '



12. Qther Noncurrent Assets
This account conslists of:
: 2018 2017
Receivable from WCFI ' $2,182,886 $2,182,863
Receivable from PFNZ - net of current portion 994,004 994,004
Investments in joint ventures 553,480 553,480
Idle assets 314,320 314,320
Other intangible assets - 56,792 171,217
investment ih an associate 118,333 118,333
Others 375,776 412,212
. , 4,595,551 4,746,429
Less alfowanca for impairment losses 3,050,662 3,164,242
41,544,929 41,581,487
13. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of;
2018 2017
Trade payables;
Third parties . $7,292,226 86,945,640
Related party . 260,957 260,957
Accrued expenses: .
Salarles, wages and other benefits 557,218 758,492
Professional fees 225,027 241,787
Interest _ . 167,584 435,828
Frelght 48,568 16,544
Others 1,067,040 647,619
Customers’ deposit 71,396 ° 72,298
Statutory payable . 136,539 278,458
Others ' 36,582 83,570

$9,923,137 59,745,224

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within 20 days.

Other accrued expenses Include accruals for business development expenses, security services,
commisslon and customers’ claims. Accrued expenses are usually settled in the following month.

Statutory payable includes amounts payable to government agencles such as 58S, Phithealth and
Pag-1BIG and are normally settled in the followlng month.
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14, Loans Payable
Detalls of the Group's [oans pavahle are as fallows:

Short-term Loans

Currency Nominal Interest rate 2018 2017

Local banks usD 4.50% $21,692,132 £18,487,001
PHP 5.00% - -

{nyestment banks PHP 4.50% 2,933,282 3,064,250
usp 5.00% 2,700,000 2,700,000

_ 27,325,414 24,251,381
Add current portion of long-term loans 11,868 30,607

$27,337,282 $24,285,500

Loans from local banks aggregating $21.69 milfien and $18.49 mllion as at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively, represent availments of revolving Facilities, export packing
credit, export bills purchase, Import letters of credit and trust receipts, with term ranging from 3
to 6 months.

Loans from investment banks are unsecured promissory notes used to finance the Group's
working capital requirements, with 90-day term renewable,

15. Equity
Capital Stock

Details of the Company's capital stock as at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as
follows: ' '

2018 2017

Shares Amaunt Shares Amopunt
Authorlzed
Ordinary shares at R0.5 and #1 par

value '

Balance at beginning of year 3,000,000,000  R3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000  £3,000,000,000
Effect of equity restructuring - 1,500,000,000 - -
Balance at end of year 3,000,000,000  #1,500,000,000 3,000,000,000  #3,000,000,000
Issued and Dutstanding
Balance at heginning of year 2,500,000,000 $53,646,778 2,500,000,000 453,645,778
Effect of equity restructuring . - 16,623,380 - -
Tatal issusd and fully paid 2,500,000,000 26,823,380 2,500,000,000 53,646,778
Treasiry Stock ' {287,537} [5,774) {287,537} (5,774)

Balance at end of year 2,499,712,363 526,817,615 2,499,712,463 553,641,004



»

The history of shares issuances from initial public offering of the Parent Company is as follows:

IssuefOffer Number of

Subscribar Price Registration/lssue Date Shares Issued

Inltial public offering Various B1.35 November 8, 2006 535,099,610
Stock dividends Varlous - December 17, 2007 64,177,449
Stock rights offer (SRO) Various 1.00 July 25,2011 272,267,965
Stock dividends Various - January 25, 2012 137,500,000
Private placement Various 1.60 December14, 2012 60,668,750
Private placement Strongoak Inc. 131 May 5, 2014 430,286,226
SRO Various 1.00 Octoher 28, 2015 - 1,000,000,000
2,500,000,000

On February 17, 2015, the BOD approved the Increase in the Parent Cornpa ny's authorized capital
stock from R1.50 billion divided into 1.50 biliion shares to 83.00 billion divided into 3.0 billion
shares at ®1,00 par value a share. The same resolution was approved by the stockholders on
March 31, 2015. The increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the SEC on October 28,
2015,

In the same meeting, the BOD also approved the stock rights offering of up to 1.0 billion shares at
R1.00 par value a share by way of pre-emptive rights offering to eliglble existing comman
shareholders of the Parent Company at the propartion of 1 rights offer for every one and %
existing comman shares held as of the recard date. :

Strongoak Inc. acquired 952,479,638 shares of the Parent Company at par value arising from the
increase In authorized capital stock and stock rights offering by way of pre-emptive rights, such
Increase was approved by the SEC on October 28, 2015, This resulted in Strongpak Inc. owning a
total of 1,382,765,864 common shares, representing 55.32% of the total issued and outstanding
sharaes of the Parent Company.

On July 20, 2027 and September 7, 2017, the BOD and stockholders, respectively, approved the
Parent Company's plan to undergo an equity restructuring to eliminate the Parant Company’s
deficit, as follows:

* Decrease the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock by reducing the par value of its
common stock from P1 a share to approximately 20,50 a share, without returning any portion
of the capltal to the stockholders. The Parent Company’s Artlcles of Incorporation will be
amended to reflect the necessary changes.

¢ Create additional pald-in capital from the decrease in par value,

* Apply the newly created additional paid-in capltal, together with the exlsting paid-in capktal of
$6.7 million, to wipe out the Parent Company’s deficit as at May 31, 2017,

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for the equity
restructuring. Accordingly, the resulting APIC of $26,82 miltion from the restructuring and the
APIC of $6.66 milllon as at December 31, 2016, will be used 1o fully wipe out the Parent
Company's deficit amounting to $32.00 milllon as at December 31, 2017. '
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16. Net Sales
This account consists of:
2018 - 2017
Net sales of goads and services $23,652,470 $16,824,142
Sales returns {1538) (5,624}
$23,650,932 $16,818,518
Sales returns pertain to returns of smoked salmon and cannad tuné.
" 17. Cost of Goods Sold
This account consists of:
2018 2017
Raw materfals used $17,163,949 $12,423,696
Direct labor 1,708,704 1,406,676
Manufacturing overhead:
Depreciation and amortization 275,510 255,606
Llight and water 130,801 162,402
Fuel 108,231 210,986
Rent 66,036 80,437
Others 1,350,930 750,664
Total manufacturing costs 20,855,161 15,330,467
Finished goods, heginning 5,413,534 5,487,867
Total cost.of goods manufactured 26,268,695 20,818,334
Finished goods, ending {6,043,956) {5,907,879)
$20,223,739 $14,910,455

Other manufacturing overhead consists of indlrect labor, repalrs and malntenance, outside

services and insurance, among others,

18,

Selling end Administrative Expenses

This account consists of!

2018 207
Salaries, wages and other short-term benefits $804,772 $628,486
Freight and handling 276,847 266,731
Qutside services 271,617 208,927
Transportation and travel 80,032 62,327
Insurance 47,455 42,512
Taxes and licenses 98,722 37,903
Depreciation and amortization 10,051 29,584
Rental 46,781 29,518
Representation and entertainment 42,582 28,139
Others 246,481 185,114
$1,945,340 §1,520,242




As at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the aging analysis of the Group’s financlal assels Is
as follows; '

2018
Past Due Accaunt but not Impalred

Neither Past Impaired

Duenor 1-30Days 31-60 Days Over Financiaf
Impaired Past Dua Past Dua 60 Days Assets Total
Cash In banks 56,061,112 . 5= $- $-  $6,061,112
Cash equivalants 8,106 - - - - 6,106

Trade and other . .

recelvables 8,995,141 1,256,000 124,911 1,043,969 2,011,950 1L415921
Receivable from PFNZ* 994,004 - - - - 994,004
Refundable deposits* 61,002 - - - - 61,002

$16,117,365 51,256,000 $124,811  $1,043,969  $2,011,950 $18,548,407

*Undar other noncurrent assets

2017
Past Due Account but not Impalred

Neither Past ) Impalred

Duenor 1-30Days 31-60 Days Over Financial
Impaired Past Due Past Due - 60 Days Assets Toral
Cash In hanks $4,4415,573 3 [ & =  $4,415573
Cash equivalents 7,876 - - - - 7.876

Trade and ather

receivables 4,345,089 5,387,996 463,660 1,225,438 2,011,950 11,426,183
Recelvable from PRENZ* 984,004 - - - - 994,004
Refundable deposits* 54,786 - - — 54,786

$9,817,328  $5,387,096 $463,660  $1229438  $2,011,950 $16,898,422

*Under ather noncurrant assels
*Under noncurrent nssets

As at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the carrying amounts of financla! assets that are
neither past due nor impaired are rated as High Grade. The credlt quality of the financial assets is
managed by the Group using the internal credIt quality ratings as follows:

High Grade, Pertains to counterparty who Is not expected by the Group to default in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is mintmal. This narmally includes large prime financial
Institutions and companies. Credit quality was determined based on the credit standing of the
counterparty.

Standard Grode, Other financial assets not belonging to high grade financial asgets are included
In this categary.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of chariges in market interest rates.

The primary source of the Group's Interest rate risk relates to debt Instruments such as bank and
martgage loans.

Liguidity Risk

- Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties In raising funds

to meet commitments from financial instruments. It may restlt from either the inability to sell
assets quickly at fair values or failure to collect from counterparty.



The Group’s objective Is to maintain a balance between contihulty of funding and flexibiiity
through ralated party advances and aims to manage liquidity as follows:

a. To ensure that adequate funding is avallable at all times;
b. To meet commitments as they arlse without recurving unnecessary casts; and

c. Tobeable to assess funding when needed at the least possible cost.

Forelgn Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from purchase and sale transactions
denominated in currencies other than the reporting currency. The Group does not enter into
forward contracts to hedge curcency exposures. ’

As part of the Group’s risk management pollcy, the Group maintains monitoring of the
fluctuations In the foreign exchange rates, thus managing Its forelgn currency risk,

Lapital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that It maintalns a strong
credit standing and stable capltal ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value, The Group maintains its current capital structure and will make adjustments, if necassary,
in order to generate a reasonable level of returns to stockholders over the long term, No changes
were made in the objectives, policles or pracesses during the year.

The Group considers the equity presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as
its core capital,

The Group monitors capital using debt to equlty ratio, which is total dabt divided by total equity.
The debt-to-equity ratio as at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, fo_llows:

2018 2017
Debt $40,018,44B 536,830,072
Equity 34,918,621 33,688,498
Debt-to-Equlty Ratio $1.15:1 $1.09:1

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capltal requirements.

Debt is composed of trade and other payabies, loans payable, dus to related parties and Income
tax payable, while equity includes share capital, reserves of the Group and non-controlling
interests, less treasury shares. The computed ratios above are acceptable. '

The Group reviews its capital structure on an annual basls. As part of this review, the Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks assoclated with it,



